
  

 
Meeting of the  

 

CABINET 
__________________________________ 

 
Wednesday, 2 July 2008 at 5.30 p.m. 

_______________________________________ 
 

AGENDA – SECTION ONE 
______________________________________ 

 
VENUE 

Committee Room, 1st Floor, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove 
Crescent, London, E14 2BG 

 
 
 

Members: 
 

 
Councillor Lutfur Rahman (Chair) – (Leader of the Council) 
Councillor Sirajul Islam (Vice-Chair) – (Deputy Leader of the Council) 
Councillor Ohid Ahmed – (Lead Member, Regeneration, Localisation and 

Community Partnerships) 
Councillor Rofique U Ahmed – (Lead Member, Culture and Leisure) 
Councillor Anwara Ali – (Lead Member, Health & Wellbeing) 
Councillor Alibor Choudhury – (Lead Member, Employment and Skills) 
Councillor Marc Francis – (Lead Member, Housing and Development) 
Councillor Clair Hawkins – (Lead Member, Children's Services) 
Councillor Joshua Peck – (Lead Member, Resources and Performance) 
Councillor Abdal Ullah – (Lead Member, Cleaner, Safer, Greener) 
 
[Note: The quorum for this body is 3 Members]. 

 
If you require any further information relating to this meeting, would like to request a large 
print, Braille or audio version of this document, or would like to discuss access arrangements 
or any other special requirements, please contact: 
Angus Taylor, Democratic Services,  
Tel: 020 7364 4333, E-mail: angus.taylor@towerhamlets.gov.uk  
 

 



 
 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

CABINET  
 

WEDNESDAY, 2 JULY 2008 
 

5.30 p.m. 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 
 
 

 PAGE 
NUMBER 

WARD(S) 
AFFECTED 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

1 - 2  

 To note any declarations of interest made by Members, 
including those restricting Members from voting on the questions 
detailed in Section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act, 
1992.  See attached note from the Chief Executive. 
 

  

3. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  
 

3 - 28  

 To confirm as a correct record of the proceedings the 
unrestricted minutes of the ordinary meeting of the Cabinet 
held on 11th June 2008. 
 

  

4. DEPUTATIONS & PETITIONS  
 

  

 To receive any deputations or petitions. 
 

  

5. OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 

  

5 .1 Chair's advice of Key Issues or Questions in relation to 
Unrestricted Business to be considered   

 
  

 To receive any advice of key issues or questions in relation 
to the unrestricted business of the Cabinet, arising from the 
meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 
1st July 2008 2008. 
 
 

  



 
 

 PAGE 
NUMBER 

WARD(S) 
AFFECTED 

5 .2 Any Unrestricted Decisions "Called in" by the 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee   

 
  

 (Under provisions of Article 6 Para 6.02 V of the 
Constitution). 
 
At the point of reprographic processing of this agenda the 
Acting Assistant Chief Executive had not received any 
requests to ‘call in’ any of the provisional decisions of the 
Cabinet, taken at its meeting held on 11th June 2008, for 
further consideration by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, at its meeting to be held on 1st July 2008.  
 
Should any of these provisional decisions be “called in” 
within the appropriate timescales and the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee, upon consideration, refer the reports 
back to the Cabinet for further consideration Members will 
receive a copy of each report and the decision/ 
recommendations of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
at the Cabinet meeting. 
 
 

  

 UNRESTRICTED REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 

6. A BETTER PLACE FOR LIVING SAFELY  
 

  

6 .1 Food Law Enforcement Service Plan 2008/2009 (CAB 
012/089)   

 
29 - 100 All Wards 

7. A BETTER PLACE FOR LIVING WELL  
 

  

7 .1 Recommissioning LinkAge Plus (CAB 013/089)   
 

101 - 104 All Wards 

8. A BETTER PLACE FOR CREATING AND 
SHARING PROSPERITY  

 

  

8 .1 London Thames Gateway Development Corporation, 
Draft Bromley-by-Bow Land Use Design Brief (CAB 
014/089)   

 

105 - 256 Bromley-By-
Bow 

9. A BETTER PLACE FOR LEARNING, 
ACHIEVEMENT AND LEISURE  

 

  

 Nil items. 
 

  

10. A BETTER PLACE FOR EXCELLENT PUBLIC 
SERVICES  

 

  

10 .1 General Fund Service Outturn and Strategic Plan 
Performance Information for 2007/2008 - To Follow 
(CAB 015/089)   

 

 All Wards 



 
 

 PAGE 
NUMBER 

WARD(S) 
AFFECTED 

11. ANY OTHER UNRESTRICTED BUSINESS 
CONSIDERED TO BE URGENT  

 

  

12. UNRESTRICTED REPORTS FOR 
INFORMATION  

 

  

12 .1 Housing Revenue Account Provisional Outurn Report 
2007/08 (CAB 016/089)   

 
257 - 262 All Wards 

12 .2 Exercise of Corporate Director Discretions (CAB 
017/089)   

 
263 - 266 All Wards 

  
 

13. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 
 In view of the contents of the remaining items on the agenda, the Committee is 

recommended to adopt the following motion: 
 
“That, under the provisions of Section 100A of the Local Government Act, 1972 as 
amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) Act, 1985, the Press and 
Public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting for the consideration of the Section 
Two business on the grounds that it contains information defined as Exempt in Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government, Act 1972”. 
 
EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL SECTION (PINK) 
The Exempt / Confidential (Pink) Committee papers in the Agenda will contain 
information, which is commercially, legally or personally sensitive and should not be 
divulged to third parties.  If you do not wish to retain these papers after the meeting, 
please hand them to the Committee Officer present. 
 
 
 
 

14. EXEMPT / CONFIDENTIAL MINUTES   
 
 Nil items. 

 
 

15. OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE   
 

 
15 .1 Chair's advice of Key Issues or Questions in relation to Exempt / Confidential 

Business to be considered.   
 
 Nil items. 

 
 
 



 
 

15 .2 Any Exempt / Confidential Decisions "Called in" by the Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee   

 
 (Under provisions of Article 6 Para 6.02 V of the Constitution). 

 
Nil items. 
 
 
 

 EXEMPT / CONFIDENTIAL REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 

16. A BETTER PLACE FOR LIVING SAFELY  
 

  

 Nil items. 
 

  

17. A BETTER PLACE FOR LIVING WELL  
 

  

 Nil items. 
 

  

18. A BETTER PLACE FOR CREATING AND 
SHARING PROSPERITY  

 

  

 Nil items. 
 

  

19. A BETTER PLACE FOR LEARNING, 
ACHIEVEMENT AND LEISURE  

 

  

 Nil items. 
 

  

20. A BETTER PLACE FOR EXCELLENT PUBLIC 
SERVICES  

 

  

 Nil items. 
 

  

21. ANY OTHER EXEMPT/ CONFIDENTIAL 
BUSINESS CONSIDERED TO BE URGENT  

 

  

22. EXEMPT / CONFIDENTIAL REPORTS FOR 
INFORMATION  

 

  

 Nil items. 
 

  



 
 

 SCRUTINY PROCESS 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee, at its meeting on Tuesday 29th July 2008 may 
scrutinise provisional decisions made in respect of any of the reports attached, if it is 
“called in” by five or more Councillors except where the decision involves a 
recommendation to full Council. 
 
The deadline for “Call-in” is: Friday 11th July 2008  (5.00 p.m.) 
 
The deadline for Deputations is:  Wednesday 23rd July 2008  (5.00 p.m.) 
 
Councillors wishing to “call-in” a provisional decision, or members of the public wishing to 
submit a deputation request, should contact: John Williams 
 Service Head Democratic Services: 
 020 7364 4205 

 
 

 
 



1 
 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\3\4\AI00015439\Notefromchiefexecutiveredeclarationofinterests07010850.doc 
    

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS - NOTE FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 
This note is guidance only.  Members should consult the Council’s Code of Conduct for further 
details.  Note: Only Members can decide if they have an interest therefore they must make their 
own decision.  If in doubt as to the nature of an interest it is advisable to seek advice prior to 
attending at a meeting.   
 
Declaration of interests for Members 
 
Where Members have a personal interest in any business of the authority as described in 
paragraph 4 of the Council’s Code of Conduct (contained in part 5 of the Council’s Constitution) 
then s/he must disclose this personal interest as in accordance with paragraph 5 of the Code.  
Members must disclose the existence and nature of the interest at the start of the meeting and 
certainly no later than the commencement of the item or where the interest becomes apparent.   
 
You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is likely to 
affect: 
 

(a) An interest that you must register 
 
(b) An interest that is not on the register, but where the well-being or financial position of you, 

members of your family, or people with whom you have a close association, is likely to be 
affected by the business of your authority more than it would affect the majority of 
inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision. 

 
Where a personal interest is declared a Member may stay and take part in the debate and 
decision on that item.   
 
What constitutes a prejudicial interest? - Please refer to paragraph 6 of the adopted Code of 
Conduct. 
 
Your personal interest will also be a prejudicial interest in a matter if (a), (b) and either (c) 
or (d) below apply:- 
 

(a) A member of the public, who knows the relevant facts, would reasonably think that your 
personal interests are so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the 
public interests; AND 

(b) The matter does not fall within one of the exempt categories of decision listed in 
paragraph 6.2 of the Code; AND EITHER   

(c) The matter affects your financial position or the financial interest of a body with which 
you are associated; or 

(d) The matter relates to the determination of a licensing or regulatory application 
 

The key points to remember if you have a prejudicial interest in a matter being discussed at a 
meeting:- 
 

i. You must declare that you have a prejudicial interest, and the nature of that interest, as 
soon as that interest becomes apparent to you; and  

 
ii. You must leave the room for the duration of consideration and decision on the item and 

not seek to influence the debate or decision unless (iv) below applies; and  

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



2 
 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\3\4\AI00015439\Notefromchiefexecutiveredeclarationofinterests07010850.doc 
    

 
iii. You must not seek to improperly influence a decision in which you have a prejudicial 

interest.   
 

iv. If Members of the public are allowed to speak or make representations at the meeting, 
give evidence or answer questions about the matter, by statutory right or otherwise (e.g. 
planning or licensing committees), you can declare your prejudicial interest but make 
representations.  However, you must immediately leave the room once you have 
finished your representations and answered questions (if any).  You cannot remain in 
the meeting or in the public gallery during the debate or decision on the matter. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



CABINET, 11/06/2008 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

MINUTES OF THE CABINET 
 

HELD AT 5.44 P.M. ON WEDNESDAY, 11 JUNE 2008 
 

COMMITTEE ROOM, 1ST FLOOR, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 CLOVE 
CRESCENT, LONDON, E14 2BG 

 
Members Present: 
 
  
Councillor Ohid Ahmed (Lead Member, Regeneration, 

Localisation and Community 
Partnerships) 

Councillor Rofique U Ahmed (Lead Member, Culture and Leisure) 
Councillor Anwara Ali (Lead Member, Health & Wellbeing) 
Councillor Alibor Choudhury (Lead Member, Employment and Skills) 
Councillor Marc Francis (Lead Member, Housing and 

Development) 
Councillor Clair Hawkins (Lead Member, Children's Services) 
Councillor Sirajul Islam (Deputy Leader of the Council) 
Councillor Joshua Peck (Lead Member, Resources and 

Performance) 
Councillor Lutfur Rahman (Leader of the Council) 
Councillor Abdal Ullah (Lead Member, Cleaner, Safer, Greener) 
  

 
Other Councillors Present: 
Councillor M. Shahid Ali  
Councillor Abdul Asad  
Councillor Stephanie Eaton (Leader Liberal Democrat Group and 

Scrutiny Lead Member: Health) 
Councillor Ahmed Hussain (Scrutiny Lead Member: Learning, 

Achievement and Leisure) 
Councillor Denise Jones  
Councillor Abjol Miah (Leader of the Respect Group) 
Councillor Oliur Rahman (Leader of the Respect Unity Coalition 

Group) 
Councillor Salim Ullah (Scrutiny Lead Member: Living Safely) 

 
Others Present: 
  

 
Officers Present: 
Isobel Cattermole – (Service Head, Resources, Childrens' Services) 
Lara Cerroni – (Communications Officer, Communications, Chief 

Agenda Item 3

Page 3



CABINET, 11/06/2008 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

2 

Executive's) 
Kevan Collins – (Corporate Director, Children's Services) 
Paul Evans – (Interim Corporate Director Development & 

Renewal) 
Alan Finch – (Service Head Corporate Finance, Resources) 
Julian Francis – (Political Adviser to the Conservative Group, 

Democratic Services, Chief Executive's) 
Isabella Freeman – (Assistant Chief Executive [Legal Services] and 

Monitoring Officer) 
John Goldup – (Corporate Director, Adults Health and Wellbeing) 
Dean Grant –  
Stephen Halsey – (Corporate Director, Communities, Localities & 

Culture) 
Stephen Hartley – Cabinet Executive Assistant, Democratic 

Services, Chief Executive's) 
Chris Holme – (Service Head, Resources, Development and 

Renewal) 
Afazul Hoque – (Acting Scrutiny Policy Manager, Scrutiny and 

Equalities, Chief Executive's) 
Michael Keating – (Acting Assistant Chief Executive) 
Maureen McEleney – (Director of Housing Management) 
Chris Naylor – (Corporate Director, Resources) 
Jackie Odunoye – (Interim Service Head, Housing Strategy and 

Development, Development and Renewal) 
Jamie Ounan – (Strategic Planning Manager, Development and 

Renewal) 
Martin Smith – (Chief Executive) 
Alan Steward – (Interim Service Head, Strategy and 

Performance) 
Angus Taylor – (Executive Team Leader, Democratic Services) 
Paul Ward – (Democratic Services) 

 
 
 
ELECTION OF TEMPORARY CHAIR 
 
At 5.44pm, the Clerk informed those present that the Leader of the Council 
and Chief Executive were delayed in another meeting and had requested that 
consideration of the substantive business on the agenda did not commence 
until they were present. However in accordance with the requirements of the 
Authority’s Constitution (Part 4 – Rules of Procedure, Section 4.1 Council 
Procedure Rules, Rule 8.1, he was required to open the meeting as there 
were a sufficient number of Cabinet members present to form a quorum.  
Accordingly the clerk sought nominations from those Cabinet members 
present for a temporary Chair of the Cabinet. 
 
Councillor M. Francis, Lead Member Housing and Development, nominated 
Councillor C. Hawkins, Lead Member Children’s Services, as Temporary 
Chair of the Cabinet.  Councillor J. Peck, Lead Member Resources and 
Performance, seconded the nomination. 
 

Page 4



CABINET, 11/06/2008 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

3 

There being no other nominations it was: - 
 
Resolved 
 
That Councillor C. Hawkins be elected Temporary Chair of the Cabinet. 
 
 

COUNCILLOR C. HAWKINS IN THE CHAIR 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT ONE 
 
The Chair informed those members of the Cabinet present that, to effect the 
wishes expressed by the Councillor L. Rahman, Leader of the Council and Mr 
M. Smith, Chief Executive, that consideration of the substantive business on 
the agenda did not commence until they were present, having taken the 
advice of the Clerk, she considered it appropriate that the meeting adjourn for 
a period of 20 minutes. Accordingly the Chair Moved the following motion for 
the consideration of members of the Cabinet, and it was: - 
 
Resolved 
 
That the Cabinet adjourn for a period of 20 minutes, at 5.45pm, and that the 
meeting reconvene at 6.05pm. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 5.45pm 
The meeting reconvened at 6.05pm 
 
ADJOURNMENT TWO 
 
The Chair informed those members of the Cabinet present that, Councillor L. 
Rahman, Leader of the Council and Mr M. Smith, Chief Executive, had been 
further delayed and she therefore considered it appropriate that the meeting 
adjourn for a further period of 10 minutes. Accordingly the Chair Moved the 
following motion for the consideration of members of the Cabinet, and it was: - 
 
Resolved 
 
That the Cabinet adjourn for a period of 10 minutes, at 6.05pm, and that the 
meeting reconvene at 6.15pm. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6.05pm 
The meeting reconvened at 6.15pm 
 
ADJOURNMENT THREE 
 
The Chair informed those members of the Cabinet present that, Councillor L. 
Rahman, Leader of the Council and Mr M. Smith, Chief Executive, had been 
further delayed and she therefore considered it appropriate that the meeting 
adjourn for a further period of 10 minutes. Accordingly the Chair Moved the 
following motion for the consideration of members of the Cabinet, and it was: - 

Page 5



CABINET, 11/06/2008 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

4 

 
Resolved 
 
That the Cabinet adjourn for a period of 10 minutes, at 6.15pm, and that the 
meeting reconvene at 6.25pm. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6.15pm 
The meeting reconvened at 6.25pm 
 
 
 

1. ELECTION OF CHAIR FOR THE MUNICIPAL YEAR 2008/ 2009  
 
Councillor C. Hawkins the temporary chair of the Cabinet, sought nominations 
for the Chair of the Cabinet for the Municipal Year 2008-2009. 
 
Councillor S. Islam, Deputy Leader of the Council, nominated Councillor L. 
Rahman, Leader of the Council, as Chair of the Cabinet for the Municipal 
Year 2008-2009.  Councillor A. Ali, Lead Member Health and Wellbeing, 
seconded the nomination. 
 
There being no other nominations it was: - 
 
Resolved 
 
That Councillor L. Rahman be elected Chair of the Cabinet for the Municipal 
Year 2008 – 2009. 
 
 

COUNCILLOR L. RAHMAN IN THE CHAIR 
 
 
At this juncture the Chair apologised to all those present for the delay in 
commencement of the substantive business. 
 

2. ELECTION OF VICE- CHAIR FOR THE MUNICIPAL YEAR 2008/ 2009  
 
The Chair, nominated Councillor S. Islam, Deputy Leader of the Council, as 
Vice-Chair of the Cabinet for the Municipal Year 2008-2009.  Councillor A. Ali, 
Lead Member Health and Wellbeing, seconded the nomination. 
 
There being no other nominations it was: - 
 
Resolved 
 
That Councillor S. Islam be elected Vice-Chair of the Cabinet for the Municipal 
Year 2008 – 2009. 
 

3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
No apologies for absence were received. 

Page 6



CABINET, 11/06/2008 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

5 

 
4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
 
Councillor R. U. Ahmed declared a prejudicial interest in Agenda item 9.1 
“Housing Investment Programme 2008/09 to 2012/2013”. The declaration of 
interest was made on the basis that the report contained recommendations 
relating to regeneration of the Ocean NDC area and Councillor Ahmed was a 
resident in the Ocean NDC area and the report made reference to this 
property. 
 
Councillor M Francis declared a prejudicial interest in Agenda item 9.1 
“Housing Investment Programme 2008/09 to 2012/2013”. The declaration of 
interest was made on the basis that the report contained recommendations 
relating to housing investment and Councillor Francis was a representative of 
the Authority on the governing body of Old Ford Housing Association. 
 
Councillor O Ahmed declared a personal interest in Agenda item 9.1 
“Housing Investment Programme 2008/09 to 2012/2013”. The declaration of 
interest was made on the basis that the report contained recommendations 
relating to Tower Hamlets Homes Shadow Board and Councillor Ahmed was 
a representative of the Authority on Tower Hamlets Homes Shadow Board. 
 
Councillor J Peck declared a personal interest in Agenda item 9.1 “Housing 
Investment Programme 2008/09 to 2012/2013”. The declaration of interest 
was made on the basis that the report contained recommendations relating to 
housing investment and Councillor Peck was a representative of the Authority 
on the governing body of the Gateway Housing Association.  
 
Councillor O. Ahmed declared a personal interest in Agenda item 10.1 “Draft 
City Fringe Opportunity Area Planning Framework Response to Public 
Consultation”.  The declaration of interest was made on the basis that the 
report contained recommendations relating to the City Fringe and Councillor 
Ahmed was a representative of the Authority on the governing body of the 
City Fringe Partnership. 
 
Councillor A Ali declared a personal interest in Agenda item 10.1 “Draft City 
Fringe Opportunity Area Planning Framework Response to Public 
Consultation”. The declaration of interest was made on the basis that the 
report contained recommendations relating to the area in which a General 
Practice employing Councillor Ali was located. 
 
Councillor L Rahman declared a personal interest in Agenda item 10.1 
“Draft City Fringe Opportunity Area Planning Framework Response to Public 
Consultation”. The declaration of interest was made on the basis that the 
report contained recommendations relating to the Spitalfields and Banglatown 
area and Councillor Rahman was a Ward member for Spitalfields and 
Banglatown.  
 
Councillor R. U. Ahmed declared a personal interest in Agenda item 11.3 
“Children’s Services Capital Programme”. The declaration of interest was 

Page 7



CABINET, 11/06/2008 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

6 

made on the basis that the report contained recommendations relating to 
funding for primary schools and Councillor Ahmed’s daughter attended Ben 
Jonson primary school. 
 
Councillor S Islam declared a personal interest in Agenda item 11.3 
“Children’s Services Capital Programme”. The declaration of interest was 
made on the basis that the report contained recommendations relating to 
funding for primary schools and Councillor Islam was a school governor at 
John Scurr primary school. 
 
Councillor R Ahmed declared a personal interest in Agenda item 12.1 
“Tower Hamlets Community Plan 2020 and Local Area Agreement”. The 
declaration of interest was made on the basis that the report contained 
recommendations relating to the 2012 Olympic Games and Councillor Ahmed 
was a representative of the Authority on the governing body of the Olympic 
Delivery Authority.  
 
Councillor J Peck declared a personal interest in Agenda item 12.2 
“Strategic Plan, Annual Report and Best Value Performance Plan”. The 
declaration of interest was made on the basis that the report contained 
recommendations relating to a potential application for funding from the 
Heritage Lottery Fund and Councillor Peck was an employee of the Heritage 
Lottery Fund. 
 
Noted 
 

5. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  
 
The Chair Moved and it was: - 
 
Resolved 
 
That the unrestricted minutes of the ordinary meeting of the Cabinet held on 
7th May 2008 be approved and signed by the Chair, as a correct record of the 
proceedings. 
 

6. DEPUTATIONS & PETITIONS  
 
The clerk advised that the Acting Assistant Chief Executive had received no 
requests for deputations or petitions in respect of the business contained in 
the agenda. 
 
 

7. OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 
 

7.1 Chair's advice of Key Issues or Questions in relation to Unrestricted 
Business to be considered  
 
The Chair informed members of the Cabinet that Councillor Asad, Chair of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee, had Tabled  

Page 8



CABINET, 11/06/2008 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

7 

• A sheet of questions/ comments arising from the deliberations of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee, held on 10th June 2008, in respect 
of the unrestricted business contained in the agenda for consideration. 

• A sheet of advice/ comments arising from the deliberations of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee, held on 10th June 2008, in respect 
of Budget and Policy Framework reports contained in the agenda for 
consideration. 

copies of which would be interleaved with the minutes. 
 
Councillor Asad, Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committe, addressed 
members of the Cabinet: 
• Thanking several Cabinet members for attending the Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee the previous evening commenting that their views 
had been helpful to the deliberations of the Committee. 
 

• Key Issues or Questions (Pre Scrutiny) 
Informing members of the Cabinet that he had nothing to add to the 
questions/ comments raised by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 
as set out in the tabled paper regarding: - 
o Agenda item 9.1 “Housing Investment Programme 2008/09 to 

2012/13” (CAB 001/089) 
o Agenda item 12.4 “Award of Chillers for Anchorage House 

Contract” (CAB 009/089) 
 

• Budget and Policy Framework matters 
Reporting and expanding as appropriate upon the comments/ advice of 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee set out in the tabled papers 
regarding: - 
o Agenda item 12.1 “Tower Hamlets Community Plan 2020 and 

Local Area Agreement” (CAB 006/089) 
o Agenda item 12.2 “ Strategic Plan, Annual Report, and Best 

Value Performance Plan” (CAB 007/089) 
o Agenda item 11.2 “Children and Young People’s Plan (CYPP) 

Review and 2007 Update” 
 
The Chair thanked Councillor Francis for presenting the contribution of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee; and then Moved and it was: - 
 
Resolved 
  
That the questions/ comments/ advice of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee be noted, and that these be given consideration during the 
Cabinet deliberation of the items of business to which the questions/ 
comments/ advice related. 
 
 

7.2 Any Unrestricted Decisions "Called in" by the Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee  
 

Page 9



CABINET, 11/06/2008 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

8 

The Clerk advised that no provisional decisions made by the Cabinet, at its 
meeting held on 7th May 2008, had been referred back to Cabinet, by the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee, for further consideration. 
 

8. A BETTER PLACE FOR LIVING SAFELY  
 
The Clerk advised that there were no business to be considered under this 
section of the agenda. 
 
 

9. A BETTER PLACE FOR LIVING WELL  
 
 

9.1 Housing Investment Programme 2008/09 to 2012/2013 (CAB 001/089)  
 
Councillors M. Francis and R. U. Ahmed having declared a prejudicial 
interest in Agenda Item 9.1 “Housing Investment Programme 2008/09 to 
2012/13” withdrew from the proceedings at the commencement of 
consideration of this item of business, being 6.35pm. 
 
Mr Evans, Interim Corporate Director Development and Renewal, at the 
request of the Chair, in introducing the report addressed the matters raised by 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, held on 10th June 2008, in relation to 
the report; as set out in the tabled sheet of questions and comments 
presented by the Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee earlier in the 
proceedings. 
 
Mr Evans, Interim Corporate Director Development and Renewal, and Ms 
McEleney, Director of Housing Management, at the request of the Chair, 
responded to requests for clarification/ assurance, in relation to a number or 
matters including:-  
• With reference to principles in the current Housing Investment Strategy 

consideration that provision of social housing was more relevant for 
residents of Tower Hamlets than the expansion of low cost home 
ownership, as for many the latter was not an option and further 
Member level discussion of this was needed. Also that examination of 
initiatives to increase the provision of family size units was required in 
order to reduce current levels of overcrowding. 

• With reference to paragraph 3.6 quantification of the stated intended 
outcome of increased supply of social housing or the issuing of 
Disabled Facility Grants. Mr Evans undertook to provide members of 
the Cabinet with a written response in relation to the latter. 

• Whether Officers were confident that the £200 million resource gap 
referred to in paragraph 6.17, would be secured through the 
achievement of a 2 star Arms Length Management Organisation 
(ALMO).  Also what other funding sources were being explored. 

• Rationale for the differentials in the proposed cash incentives set out in 
Table 8, paragraph 7.4. 

• Consideration that whilst the proposed levels of cash incentives were 
comparable with neighbouring authorities they did not reflect the 

Page 10



CABINET, 11/06/2008 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

9 

demographics of Tower Hamlets and would not influence resident 
decisions regarding buying a property. 

• Consideration that, in relation to the Cash Incentive Scheme, the upper 
threshold on property purchases of approximately £250,000 was a 
barrier for resident property purchase in Tower Hamlets, given market 
prices, and increasing cash incentives as proposed would not ease this 
constraint. 

• With reference to paragraph 7.6.1 and the intention to explore cash 
incentive grants for residents wishing to move to a shared ownership 
property concern that such grants should focus on low cost home 
ownership; and other options should be explored before this such as 
equity schemes and community land trusts. 

• Whether sufficient investment was being made in housing stock to:  
o Address the conditions and financial hardship caused by poor 

ventilation such as damp and condensation. 
o To mitigate the impact on vulnerable elements of the community 

of lift breakdowns and whether the approach was strategic in this 
regard. 

• With reference to paragraph 4.2 the Registered Social Landlord to 
provide social housing on the Ocean Estate. The absence of reference 
to the Ocean Regeneration Trust in this context. Also with reference to 
paragraph 6.8t he linkage between the Ocean Regeneration and 
Blackwall Reach housing regeneration schemes. 

• Consideration that the recommendations proposed a continuation of 
the current Housing Investment Programme(HIP) and its underlying 
principles, methodology and funding outcomes, but that a new more 
innovative approach was required to achieve the required investment 
to deliver decent homes for all local residents.  This in the context that 
the ALMO, whilst a route to securing substantial new investment in 
local housing stock would not necessarily provide sufficient resources 
to universally achieve the Government Decent Homes Standard. Whilst 
acknowledging that the Authority’s capital investment in housing must 
be underpinned by an objective principles and methodology and it 
would be inappropriate to redesign the HIP to accommodate individual 
requests, concern was expressed regarding the underlying process 
that had led to the proposals for funding housing capital work, as set 
out in the HIP. In particular concern was expressed that the issue of 
the windows, and more specifically the panels beneath, admitting damp 
on the Malmsbury Estate and Sheffield Square in particular; with both 
the attendant fuel poverty, in the context of rapidly rising prices, and 
the environmental need for a renewed focus on thermal efficiency, had 
been raised by both Cabinet and Ward Members several times 
previously, and yet this scheme had moved back in the programme’s 
timeline not forward. Accordingly a re-examination of the case for 
progressing the Malmsbury Esate/ Sheffield Square windows scheme 
was requested. 

 
The Chair Moved and it was: - 
 
Resolved: 
 

Page 11



CABINET, 11/06/2008 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

10 

1. That the five-year Housing Investment Programme 2008/2009 to 
2012/2013, as set out in Appendices A and B to the report (CAB 
001/089), be approved; 

 
2. That capital estimates (Total Estimated Cost Column) for all schemes 

set out in Appendix A and B to the report (CAB 001/089), be adopted; 
 
3. That the Corporate Director, Development and Renewal, be authorised 

to tender the schemes set out in the programme, determine the 
outcomes of procurement competitions and enter into contracts as 
resources allow over the programme period; and 

 
4. That the revised grant levels for the Cash Incentive Scheme, as set out 

in Table 8 of the report (CAB 001/089), be approved. 
 
Councillors M. Francis and R. U. Ahmed re-entered the proceedings 
following the conclusion of the Cabinet deliberations in respect of this item, 
being 7.00pm. 
 
 

10. A BETTER PLACE FOR CREATING AND SHARING PROSPERITY  
 
 

10.1 Draft City Fringe Opportunity Area Planning Framework Response to 
Public Consultation (CAB 002/089)  
 
Mr Evans, Interim Corporate Director Development and Renewal, at the 
request of the Chair, in introducing the report summarised the salient points 
contained therein. 
 
A comprehensive discussion followed, during which the Authority’s proposed 
response to formal consultation by the Mayor of London in relation to the City 
Fringe Opportunity Area Planning Framework (CF OAPF) was broadly 
welcomed, but which also identified areas where the response should be 
strengthened including:- 
• Further emphasis on mixed use policy, achieving the right mix of social 

housing, affordable housing and other land usage in the context of 
protecting the distinct heritage and commercial character of the City 
Fringe from the impact of “city creep”. 

• Greater focus on the key priority of improved provision of the social 
infrastructure to meet demands associated with residential growth. 

• Reflection of the Authority’s policy relating to town centres and place 
shaping. 

• Ensuring a strategic approach which maximised opportunities for local 
residents. 

• The need for protection of heritage to feature much more strongly in 
the policy direction of the document; and for this to be supported with 
specific local examples of thinking such as the Hawkesmoor Church in 
Spitalfields. 

Page 12



CABINET, 11/06/2008 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

11 

• The need for further work to be undertaken around the greening of 
links between open spaces to build on the positive ideas set out for 
such linkage. 

• Further emphasis that the location of tall buildings in the vicinity of high 
value historical architecture is not complimentary appropriate, and in 
particular with reference to Broadgate and Spitalfields. 

• The need for congruence between the CF OAPF and the Authority’s 
policies on housing: provision of social rented housing as well as 
affordable housing and the provision of family sized housing. 

• With reference to page 9 of the report re examination of the Authority’s 
commitment of resources to the further development of the CF OAPF. 

• Stronger emphasis on improving transport infrastructure to meet 
demand associated with residential and employment growth and also a 
stronger focus on waste management and recycling infrastructure in 
this context. 

 
Mr Evans, Interim Corporate Director Development and Renewal, at the 
request of the Chair, responded to requests for clarification/ assurance, in 
relation to a number or matters including:-  
• Given that the Greater London Authority was leading on the 

development of the City Fringe OAPF, and it was proposed that Tower 
Hamlets engaged in joint working with other London boroughs and a 
collaborative exercise with the Mayor and GLA to further develop the 
document how would they ensure that the final document reflected the 
aspirations and addressed the priorities of the residents of Tower 
Hamlets. 

• Inclusion of detailed references in the CF OAPF to the usage of  
Section 106 planning gain resources. 

• With reference to page 16 of the report the absence of reference to 
community and voluntary sector groups in relation to creative and 
cultural industries in the area. 

• The development of an employment and enterprise strategy including 
an action plan to support small businesses to remain in the City Fringe 
area given the threat of big business. 

 
The Chair Moved the recommendation set out in the report subject to 
amendment thereof, and the addition of a further recommendation, for the 
consideration of members of the Cabinet, as follows: 
• That the words “subject to necessary and appropriate amendments to 

ensure that the response is coherent and reflect the views of Members” 
be inserted at the end of the recommendation set out in the report.  

• That the following additional recommendation be agreed “That the 
Interim Corporate Director Development and Renewal, after 
consultation with the appropriate Lead Member, be authorised to make 
any appropriate and necessary amendments, arising from the 
amendment set out above, before submission to the Mayor of London. 

 
and it was: - 
 
Resolved: 

Page 13



CABINET, 11/06/2008 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

12 

 
1. That Appendix 2 to the report (CAB 002/078) be approved as Tower 

Hamlets formal response to the draft City Fringe Opportunity Area 
Planning Framework, subject to necessary and appropriate 
amendments to ensure that the response is coherent and reflect the 
views of Members. 

 
2. That the Interim Corporate Director Development and Renewal, after 

consultation with the appropriate Lead Member, be authorised to make 
any appropriate and necessary amendments, arising from resolution 2. 
above, before submission to the Mayor of London. 

 
 

11. A BETTER PLACE FOR LEARNING, ACHIEVEMENT AND LEISURE  
 
 

11.1 Primary Strategy for Change and Primary Capital Programme (CAB 
003/089)  
 
Mr Collins, Corporate Director Children’s Services, at the request of the Chair, 
in introducing the report summarised the salient points contained therein. 
 
A discussion followed, during which the proposals were broadly welcomed, 
but which also identified some areas where the Primary Strategy for Change 
could be strengthened including:- 
 
• Consideration that improving the physical infrastructure of primary 

schools was welcome, but that this should be accompanied by greater 
emphasis on the action to be taken to invest in the next generation of 
teachers and in particular support the development of the current 
cohort of young teachers and prepare them for leadership/ headship. 

• The need for a much stronger emphasis grounds around schools and 
recognition that they were multi-faceted assets not just for fitness but 
also for learning and the benefits of school services also required 
emphasis.  

• With reference to  Appendix A, paragraph 4.8.1 consideration that the 
reference to the rich heritage of Victorian school buildings required 
more positive emphasis.  Victorian buildings were flexible and well 
designed and could meet 21st Century needs provided this was 
factored in sufficiently early to any refurbishment process. These 
buildings were not just a capital asset but also an educational asset, 
connecting young people to their history through learning in that 
environment.  This concept needed to be reflected more widely in the 
strategy. 

 
The Chair Moved the recommendations set out in the report subject to the 
amendment of recommendation 2.2, and the addition of a further 
recommendation, for the consideration of members of the Cabinet, as follows: 
• That the words “subject to necessary and appropriate amendments to 

ensure that the response is coherent and reflect the views of Members” 
be inserted at the end of the recommendation 2.2.  

Page 14



CABINET, 11/06/2008 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

13 

• That the Corporate Director Children’s Services, after consultation with 
the appropriate Lead Member, be authorised to make any appropriate 
and necessary amendments, arising from the amendment above 
before submission to the Department for Children, Schools & Families. 

 
and it was:- 
 
Resolved: 
 
1. That the contents of the report (CAB 003/089) be noted;  
 
2. That the draft Primary Strategy for Change, attached at Appendix A to 

the report (CAB 003/089), be approved for submission to the 
Department for Children, Schools & Families, subject to necessary and 
appropriate amendments to ensure that the plans are accurate, 
coherent and reflect the views of Members; and 

 
3. That the Corporate Director Children’s Services, after consultation with 

the appropriate Lead Member, be authorised to make any appropriate 
and necessary amendments, arising from resolution 2. above, before 
submission to the Department for Children, Schools & Families. 

 
 

11.2 Children and Young People’s Plan (CYPP) Review and 2007 Update 
(CAB 004/089)  
 
Mr Collins, Corporate Director Children’s Services, at the request of the Chair, 
in introducing the report addressed the matters raised by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee, held on 10th June 2008, in relation to the report; as set 
out in the tabled sheet of questions and comments presented by the Chair of 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee earlier in the proceedings. 
 
Mr Collins also advised members of the Cabinet that he had, on behalf of the 
Authority, recently used its powers under the Education Act 2006 to issue a 
notice to improve at St Paul’s Way School, the issuance of which was a 
statutory duty. Officers were not satisfied with the progress made at the 
school and mitigating action to achieve this. All stakeholders including the 
Leader of the Council had been briefed.  This step demonstrated that the 
Authority had a robust ambition to raise educational standards and a 
determination to move the school forwards.  Officers would work with the 
school and the Department of Children Schools and Family to achieve this. 
 
The Chair endorsed the action taken on behalf of the Authority, in relation to 
St Paul’s Way School, by Mr Collins, commenting that all children had a right 
to equal opportunities for life chances and it was right to take action to assure 
this. 
 

Page 15



CABINET, 11/06/2008 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

14 

A discussion followed, during which the proposals were broadly welcomed, 
but which also identified some areas where the Primary Strategy for Change 
could be strengthened including:- 
• With reference to Appendix A (table at page 15) to the report, 

consideration that greater emphasis should be placed on the important 
contribution of the voluntary, community and private sector to delivering 
the desired outcomes for young people. 

• With reference to the baseline targets detailed at Appendix A (table at 
page 24/25) to the report, consideration that the targets relating to the 
reduction of child obesity and chlamydia screening were insufficiently 
ambitious and the Corporate Director should work in partnership with 
the Tower Hamlets Primary Care Trust to address this. 

• With reference to Appendix A (page 22) to the report, relating to 
proposed action in the next 12 months to ensure prompt access to 
treatment and support for young people who misuse (drugs and 
alcohol) consideration that the target of 3% needed to be stretched to 
achieve satisfactory outcomes. 

 
Mr Collins, Corporate Director Children’s Services, and Mr Halsey, Corporate 
Director Communities Localities and Culture, at the request of the Chair, 
responded to requests for clarification/ assurance, in relation to a number or 
matters including:-  
• The social impact of child poverty and inadequate employment 

opportunities. 
• The need to provide sufficient school places in the right location 

thereby obviating the need to bus children from the same family to 
different schools across the Borough. 

• The practical implications of the issuance of a statutory notice to 
improve on St Paul’s Way School. 

• Action proposed for enforcement in relation to under age drinking. 
 
The Chair Moved the recommendations set out in the report subject to 
amendment thereof, for the consideration of members of the Cabinet, as 
follows: 
• 2.1 That the assessment of the second year’s progress against the 

CYPP be noted. 
• 2.2 That the updated strategic objectives, activities and targets be 

noted and approved, subject to appropriate amendments to 
ensure that these reflect the views of Members. 

• 2.3 That the review of the CYPP 2008 be endorsed.  
• 2.4 Extension of the authorisation of the Corporate Director to make 

amendments to the CYPP to include those to ensure the CYPP 
reflects the views of Members.   

 
and it was:- 
 
Resolved: 
 
1. That the assessment of the second year’s progress against the 

Children and Young People’s Plan be noted; 

Page 16



CABINET, 11/06/2008 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

15 

 
2. That the updated strategic objectives, activities and targets be noted 

and approved subject to appropriate amendments to ensure that these 
reflect the views of Members;  

 
3. That the Children and Young People’s Plan 2008 review be endorsed; 

and 
 
4. That the Corporate Director Children’s Services be authorised to make 

adjustments following the June 2008 Cabinet that are consistent with 
the spirit of the Children and Young People’s Plan to respond to new 
performance data and information which becomes available between 
now and submission of the report to Ofsted in June 2008 and also to 
ensure the CYPP reflects the views of Members.  

 
 

11.3 Children’s Services Capital Programme (CAB 005/089)  
 
Ms Cattermole, Service Head Resources Children’s Services, at the request 
of the Chair, in introducing the report briefly summarised the salient points 
contained therein. 
 
Councillor Peck, Lead Member Resources and Performance, in referring to 
Appendix A “Children’s Services Capital Outturn 2007/08” to the report: 
• Noted that Thomas Buxton School (Bishops Square) had received 

£100, 000 of Section 106 planning gain monies for capital works which 
was a positive benefit for the local community linked to development in 
the locality. 

• Commented that Local Priorities Programme funding had been 
allocated on a two year basis and such funding which was not utilised 
at that point would be clawed back 

 
The Chair Moved and it was: - 
 
Resolved: 
 
1. That the contents of the report (CAB 005/089) be noted; 
 
2. That the overall funding provision and expenditure in 2007/08, as set 

out in Appendix A to the report (CAB 005/089), be noted; 
 
3. That the adoption of revised capital estimates for the schools condition 

programme for relevant schemes, as shown in Appendix B to the report 
(CAB 005/089), be approved and expenditure authorised; 

 
4. That the projects/global sums identified in this report together with the 

respective matching resources, as set out in Appendix C to the report 
(CAB 005/089), be noted;  

 

Page 17



CABINET, 11/06/2008 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

16 

5. That the adoption of a revised capital estimate of £5,800,000 for the 
Marner School expansion scheme be approved and expenditure 
authorised, as set out in paragraph 5.6 of the report (CAB 005/089); 

 
6. That the adoption of a revised capital estimate of £5,100,000 for the 

Manorfield School extension scheme be approved, acceptance of 
tender in respect of temporary accommodation approved and 
expenditure authorised, as set out in paragraph 5.11 of the report (CAB 
005/089); 

 
7. That the adoption of a preliminary capital estimate of £4,400,000 for 

the Arnhem Wharf School expansion scheme be approved and 
expenditure authorised, as set out in paragraph 5.14 of the report (CAB 
005/089); 

 
8. That the adoption of a preliminary capital estimate of £3,500,000 for 

the Ben Jonson School expansion scheme be approved and 
expenditure authorised, as set out in paragraph 5.17 of the report (CAB 
005/089); 

 
9. That the adoption of a full capital estimate of £589,448 for the 14-19 

Diploma Project be approved and expenditure authorised, as set out in 
paragraph 5.22 of the report (CAB 005/089); 

 
10. That the adoption of a capital estimate of £1,570,496 for global minor 

works provision in respect of the Early Years Capital Programme 
(Minor Works) 2008/9 be approved, as set out in paragraph 5.25 of the 
report (CAB 005/089); 

 
11. That the adoption of a capital estimate of £605,726 for global minor 

works provision in respect of the Extended Schools Programme (Minor 
Works) 2008/9 be approved, as set out in paragraph 5.28 of the report 
(CAB 005/089); 

 
12. That the adoption of a capital estimate of £419,541 for global minor 

works provision in respect of the Schools Access Initiative Programme 
(Minor Works) 2008/9 be approved, as set out in paragraph 5.32 of the 
report (CAB 005/089); 

 
13. That the adoption of a capital estimate of £150,000 for global minor 

works provision in respect of the Kitchens Improvement Programme 
(Minor Works) 2008/9 be approved as set out in paragraph 5.34 of the 
report (CAB 005/089); 

 
14. That the adoption of a preliminary capital estimate of £100,000 to cover 

the costs of undertaking feasibility studies/survey for schemes being 
considered for inclusion in the capital programme be approved and 
expenditure authorised as set out in paragraph 5.35 of the report (CAB 
005/089); 

 

Page 18



CABINET, 11/06/2008 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

17 

15. That the adoption of a preliminary capital estimate of £100,000 to cover 
the costs of undertaking Asbestos Survey Updates and Fire Risk 
Assessments be approved and expenditure authorised as set out in 
paragraph 5.36 of the report (CAB 005/089); 

 
16. That, in respect of all proposed tenders referred to in this report, in the 

event of the lowest tender for any scheme exceeding the permitted 
tolerance allowed in financial regulations, the Corporate Director 
Children’s Services be authorised to prepare and carry out a Bill of 
Reductions where relevant to ensure expenditure is contained with the 
agreed costs. 

 
12. A BETTER PLACE FOR EXCELLENT PUBLIC SERVICES  

 
Variation of Order of Business 
At this juncture the Chair informed members of the Cabinet that he considered 
it appropriate because of the linkage between the Community Plan 2020/LAA 
and the Strategic Plan/ Best Value Performance Plan together with the 
composite comments/ advice from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee in 
relation to these reports, presented earlier in the proceedings, that both 
reports should be considered in conjunction. Accordingly the Chair Moved the 
following motion for the consideration of members of the Cabinet, and it was: - 
 
Resolved 
 
That the order of business be varied to allow for Agenda items 12.1 “Tower 
Hamlets Community Plan 2020 and Local Area Agreement” and Agenda item 
12.2 “Tower Hamlets Strategic Plan, Annual report, and Best Value 
Performance Plan” to be considered in conjunction. 
 
 

12.1 Tower Hamlets Community Plan 2020 and Local Area Agreement (CAB 
006/089) - To Follow  
 
The Chair informed members of the Cabinet that the special circumstances 
and reasons for urgency associated with the report had been tabled and a 
copy of this sheet would be interleaved with the minutes. The Cabinet 
subsequently agreed the special circumstances and reasons for urgency as 
tabled and as set out below: 

 

• The report was unavailable for public inspection within the standard 
timescales set out in this Authority’s Constitution, because of the 
continuation of negotiations with Government Office for London over 
the indicators and targets to be included within this Council’s Local 
Area Agreement which it had been anticipated would be completed in 
time for publication of the agenda before us. 

• The Local Area Agreement is the recognised delivery vehicle for the 
Community Plan and the principal target setting mechanism between 
central and local government.  It was vital that the Community Plan and 
Local Area Agreement were consistent and aligned to allow proper 
consideration of the report by members of the Authority. 

Page 19



CABINET, 11/06/2008 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

18 

 
The Chair commented that he had attended the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee the previous evening and had found the debate relating to both the 
Community Plan 2020/ LAA and the Strategic Plan/ BVPP very constructive. 
Accordingly the Chair requested that the final draft of these documents, to be 
presented to Council, reflect the advice and comments arising from these 
deliberations, as he considered this would strengthen the aspirations 
contained therein. 
 
Mr Steward, Interim Service Head Strategy and Performance, at the request 
of our Chair, responded to the matters raised by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, held on 10th June 2008, in his introduction of the report.  Mr 
Steward in particular 
• Outlined the chronology and methodology associated with the 

development of the Community Plan 2020/ LAA, and the themes and 
priorities that had emerged.   

• Set out the next steps including strengthening these documents in the 
areas indicated by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, and in 
particular with reference to the support of affordable housing and social 
for rent housing provision, prior to submission to Council on 25th June 
2008. 

• Advised members of the Cabinet that once the LAA had been agreed 
with Government, the targets would be included in the Community Plan 
with those for the first 3 years being explicit to facilitate accountability. 

• Assured members of the Cabinet that although only 35 indicators had 
been selected for the LAA from the national basket of 198, on the basis 
of partnership response and an evaluation of their contribution to the 
theme One Tower Hamlets, the Authority’s performance would 
continue to be measures against all 198 indicators. 

• Informed members of the Cabinet that as many of the indicators in the 
LAA were new a review would be undertaken at the end of the first 
year of the agreement to establish if the targets were sufficiently robust 
and stretching. 

 
A detailed discussion followed, during which the proposals were broadly 
welcomed and thanks were extended to Councillor Jones, former Leader of 
the Council, Councillor Asad, former Lead Member Employment and Skills, 
and the Partnership Management Group and the Officer team for their 
contribution to the development of the Plan and Agreement, and which 
focused on the following:  
• The need for further Member level discussion around the setting of 

targets relating to provision of social for rent housing, units of 
accommodation of 3 or more bedrooms and homelessness. Councillor 
Francis, Lead Member Housing and Development, commented that 
Government had recognised the  Authority’s good performance in 
relation to the latter 2 areas, but considered that, in partnership with the 
voluntary and community sectors, performance could be stretched to 
improve outcomes still further. Councillor Francis requested that 
members of the Cabinet be provided with figures for targets not 
included in the draft LAA prior to its consideration at Council. 

Page 20



CABINET, 11/06/2008 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

19 

• The relevance of indicator NI 154 ”Net Additional Homes” to the 
Borough and instead a greater focus on indicator NI155 “Affordable 
Homes delivered”.  

• The inclusion of a more ambitious target relating to indicator NI 158 
“Decent Homes” once funding from Government was secured as a 
result of the achievement of a 2 star Arms Length Management 
Organisation. 

• Consideration that inclusion of indicator NI 160 “Local authority tenants’ 
satisfaction with landlord services” amongst the 35 indicators of the 
LAA would have been a positive step for the Authority, but 
understanding the reasons why it had not been included, it was 
requested that it be used as a local indicator for the time being. 

• Strengthening the emphasis on provision of affordable housing and 
family housing. 

• Consideration that further work was needed to embed the Community 
Plan theme “One Tower Hamlets” across the other 4 themes. Also with 
reference to page 14 of Appendix 1 “Tower Hamlets Community Plan 
2020” ,to the report, consideration that the section setting out how to 
achieve “One Tower Hamlets” should be made more distinct from the 
previous section and required greater clarity as to responsibility for 
delivery. 

• Consideration that an even more accessible version of the Community 
Plan 2020/ LAA should be made available for young people with a view 
to usage as a citizenship tool in schools. 

• Consideration that overall the sense of poverty and ill health in Tower 
Hamlets was underplayed in the draft Community Plan 2020/ LAA and 
the inclusion of further statistical and narrative detail was required in 
parts of the document relating to health and housing. 

• The need to ensure that the Community Plan theme “A Healthy 
Community” was cross referenced to and congruent with the Public 
Health Strategy. 

• The need to communicate the priorities and objectives relating to the 
Community Plan theme “One Tower Hamlets” to staff at all levels of the 
Authority, and that to help embed reflection upon the meaning of these 
to individuals  that consideration be given to the addition of a paragraph 
to all committee reports entitled “One Tower Hamlets Implications”. 

 
Mr Steward, Interim Service Head Strategy and Performance,  and Mr Smith, 
Chief Executive, responded to requests for clarification/ assurance, in relation 
to a number or matters including:-  
• The furnishing of Members with the targets for inclusion in the 

Community Plan 2020/LAA, to be derived from the LAA agreed with 
Government, as soon as practically possible. 

• With reference to page 30 of Appendix 1 “Tower Hamlets Community 
Plan 2020”, to the report, the absence of detail relating to the new 
structure of the Tower Hamlets Partnership. 

• With reference to page 5 of Appendix 3 “Tower Hamlets LAA Targets”, 
to the report, the deferral of target setting relating to the indicator NI7 
“Environment for a thriving third sector” and the timescales envisaged 
for the setting thereof. 

Page 21



CABINET, 11/06/2008 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

20 

 
Councillor Rofique Ahmed, Lead Member Culture and Leisure, considered it 
appropriate, that the Chief Executive should also consult the Lead Member 
Regeneration, Localisation and Community Partnerships, prior to making any 
amendments to the Community Plan 2020 and Local Area Agreement (LAA) 
2008-11 prior to final publication. Councillor Ahmed therefore proposed, for 
the consideration of members of the Cabinet, that the recommendation 
contained in paragraph 2.2 of the report be amended accordingly. 
  
Councillor Peck, Lead Member Resources and Performance, considered that 
targets pertaining to the Priority “Support vibrant town centres and a cleaner, 
safer public realm” and the Indicator NI195 “Improved street and 
environmental cleanliness” detailed in Appendix 3 “Tower Hamlets LAA 
Targets”, to the report, were not sufficiently ambitious; and accordingly 
proposed an amendment to the recommendation set out in paragraph 2.1 of 
the report, for the consideration of members of the Cabinet, as follows:- 
 
“That the Local Area Agreement 2008-2011 (Appendix 3) be endorsed 
subject to amendment of the provisional target for NI195 “Improved Street 
and Environmental Cleanliness” as follows: 
• Detritus 

o 2008/09 - 13% 
o 2009/10 - 11% 
o 2010/11 - 10% 

• Fly Posting 
o 2008/09 - 3% 
o 2009/10 - 2% 
o 2010/11 - 2%.  

 
The Chair then Moved the recommendations as contained in the report, 
taking account of the amendments proposed by Councillors R. U. Ahmed and 
J. Peck, and it was:- 
 
Resolved: 
 
1. That the Tower Hamlets Community Plan 2020, attached at Appendix 1 

to the report (CAB 006/089), and Local Area Agreement 2008-2011, 
attached at Appendix 3 to the report, be endorsed and that full Council 
be recommended to approve the Plan and LAA, subject to any 
appropriate amendments to ensure that they are accurate and reflect 
the views of Members;  

 
2. That the Chief Executive, after consultation with the Leader of the 

Council, (and Chair of the Partnership), the appropriate Lead Member 
and the Vice-Chair of the Partnership, be authorised to make 
appropriate amendments to the Tower Hamlets Community Plan 2020 
and LAA 2008-11 in advance of final publication; 

 
3. That the provisional target for NI195 “Improved Street and 

Environmental Cleanliness”, “Detritus”, within the Tower Hamlets LAA 
Targets (Appendix 3), be amended to: 

Page 22



CABINET, 11/06/2008 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

21 

o 2008/09 - 13% 
o 2009/10 - 11% 
o 2010/11 - 10% 

 
4. That the provisional target for NI195 “Improved Street and 

Environmental Cleanliness”, “Fly Posting”, within the Tower Hamlets 
LAA Targets (Appendix 3), be amended to: 
o 2008/09 - 3% 
o 2009/10 - 2% 
o 2010/11 - 2%.  

 
 

12.2 Strategic Plan, Annual Report and Best Value Performance Plan (CAB 
007/089) -  To Follow  
 
Please note that the order of business was varied by resolution of the Cabinet 
earlier in the proceedings to allow this item to be considered in conjunction 
with agenda item 12.1 “Tower Hamlets Community Plan 2020 and Local Area 
Agreement”. The deliberations of the Cabinet are however detailed below in 
the order detailed in the agenda for ease of reference. 
 
The Chair informed members of the Cabinet that the special circumstances 
and reasons for urgency associated with the report had been tabled and a 
copy of this sheet would be interleaved with the minutes. The Cabinet 
subsequently agreed the special circumstances and reasons for urgency as 
tabled and as set out below: 

 

• The report was unavailable for public inspection within the standard 
timescales set out in this Authority’s Constitution, because of the 
continuation of negotiations with Government Office for London over 
the indicators and targets to be included within this Council’s Local 
Area Agreement which it had been anticipated would be completed in 
time for publication of the agenda before us. 

• The Local Area Agreement is the recognised delivery vehicle for the 
Community Plan and the principle target setting mechanism between 
central and local government.  The Strategic Plan sets out the 
Council’s contribution to delivering both the Community Plan and the 
Local Area Agreement.  It was vital that the Community Plan, Local 
Area Agreement and Strategic Plan were consistent and aligned to 
allow proper consideration of the report by members of the authority. 

 
Mr Steward, Interim Service Head Strategy and Performance, at the request 
of the Chair, responded to the matters raised by the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, held on 10th June 2008, in his introduction of the report. 
 
A discussion followed, during which the proposals were broadly welcomed, 
and with reference to Appendix 1 “Tower Hamlets Council Strategic Plan 
2008/2009”, Section 5 “Key Initiatives Year 1: April 2008 – April 2009” – “One 
Tower Hamlets” the following point was also made:- 

Page 23



CABINET, 11/06/2008 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

22 

� Targets for Performance Indicator SI3 “A workforce to reflect the 
community: percentage of top 5% earners that are disabled” were not 
sufficiently ambitious. 

 
Mr Steward, Interim Service Head Strategy and Performance, responded to 
requests for clarification/ assurance, in relation to a number of matters 
including:-  
• With reference to Appendix 1 “Tower Hamlets Council Strategic Plan 

2008/2009”, Section 5 “Key Initiatives Year 1: April 2008 – April 2009” – 
“One Tower Hamlets”  
o The targets for the next 3 years in relation to Performance 

Indicator SI2 “A workforce to reflect the community: percentage 
of top 5% earners that are women” were less ambitious than 
that for the current year. 

 
o The absence of targets for Performance Indicator SI6 

“Percentage of Stage 1 complaints completed in time”. 
 
Councillor Rofique Ahmed, Lead Member Culture and Leisure, considered it 
appropriate, that the Chief Executive should also consult the appropriate Lead 
Member prior to making any amendments to the Strategic Plan 2008/09 and 
Best Value Performance Plan (BVPP) prior to final publication. Councillor 
Ahmed therefore proposed, for the consideration of members of the Cabinet, 
that the recommendation contained in paragraph 2.2 of the report be 
amended accordingly. 
 
Councillor Peck, Lead Member Resources and Performance, considered that 
targets pertaining to the performance Indicator SI7 “Percentage of residents 
agreeing that the Council provides value for money for the Council Tax I pay” 
set out in Appendix 1 “Tower Hamlets Council Strategic Plan 2008/2009”, 
Section 5 “Key Initiatives Year 1: April 2008 – April 2009” – “One Tower 
Hamlets”, in the report, were not sufficiently ambitious; and accordingly 
proposed an amendment to the recommendation set out in paragraph 2.1 of 
the report, for the consideration of members of the Cabinet as follows:- 

 
“That the Council’s Strategic Plan 2008/09 (Appendix 1) be endorsed subject 
to amendment of the provisional target for Performance Indicator SI7 
“Percentage of residents agreeing that the Council provides value for money 
for the Council Tax I pay” set out in Section 5 “Key Initiatives Year 1: April 
2008 – April 2009” – “One Tower Hamlets” as follows: 
• 2007/08 - 41% 
• 2008/9 - 46%  
• 2009/10 - 51%. 
 
The Chair then Moved the recommendations as contained in the report, 
taking account of the amendments proposed by Councillors R. U. Ahmed and 
J. Peck, and it was:- 
 
Resolved: 
 

Page 24



CABINET, 11/06/2008 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

23 

1. That the Council's Strategic Plan 2008/09, end of year monitoring, Best 
Value Performance Plan and Annual Report be endorsed and that full 
Council be recommended to approve these Plans, attached at 
Appendix 1 and 3 to the report (CAB 007/089) respectively, subject to 
necessary and appropriate amendments to ensure that the plans are 
accurate, coherent and reflect the views of Members; and 

 
2. That the Chief Executive, after consultation with the Leader of the 

Council, be authorised to make appropriate and necessary 
amendments to the Strategic Plan 2008/09 and BVPP (2007/2008) in 
advance of final publication. 

 
3. That the target for SI7 “Percentage of Residents Agreeing that the 

Council Provides Value for Money for the Council Tax I Pay”, set out in 
Section 5 “Key Initiatives Year 1: April 2008 – April 2009” – “One Tower 
Hamlets”, be amended to:- 
o 2007/08 - 41% 
o 2008/9 - 46%  
o 2009/10 - 51%. 

 
 

12.3 Energy Supply Contracts (CAB 008/089)  
 
Mr Evans, Interim Corporate Director Development and Renewal, and Ms 
Pipe, Energy Contracts Manager, at the request of the Chair, responded to 
requests for clarification/ assurance, in relation to the following:- 
• The potential for the Authority to extend the number of sites that used 

green electricity. 
• Examination of options for the installation of solar panels and use of bio 

fuels in relation to the Authority’s housing stock. 
 
The Chair Moved and it was: - 
 
Resolved: 
 
1. That the procurement procedure, as set out in Section 7 of the report, 

(CAB 008/089) be approved; and 
 
2. That the Head of Property Services [Development and Renewal] after 

consultation with the Interim Corporate Director of Development & 
Renewal be authorised to determine the energy supply contract 
providing best value for the Authority and to agree the Authority’s entry 
into that contract. 

 
 

12.4 Award of Chillers for Anchorage House Contract (CAB 009/089)  
 
Mr Naylor, Corporate Director Resources, at the request of the Chair, in 
introducing the report addressed the matters raised by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee, held on 10th June 2008, in relation to the report; as set 

Page 25



CABINET, 11/06/2008 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

24 

out in the tabled sheet of questions and comments presented by the Chair of 
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee earlier in the proceedings. 
 
The Chair Moved and it was: - 
 
Resolved: 
 
1. That in consequence of the extreme urgency pursuant to Procurement 

Procedures paragraph 2.1.1 (b) an exception to the general provisions 
of paragraphs 2.5.1 (requirement for 6  tenders) and 2.5.2 (requirement 
for public notice) of the Procedures be authorised in respect of the 
procurement process for this contract; and 

 
2. That the contract for the replacement chillers and IT suite 

improvements be awarded to Allen Hubbard Services in accordance 
with their tender dated 14th of April 2008 returned on the 2nd of May 
2008. 

 
 

12.5 Cabinet Sub Bodies 2008/2009 Terms of Reference and Membership  
(CAB 010/089)  
 
The Chair informed members of the Cabinet that he had Tabled a Motion for 
their consideration, a copy of which would be interleaved with the minutes.  
 
The Chair then formally Moved the motion as tabled, subject to the following 
amendment, for the consideration of members of the Cabinet: 
 
“That Councillor Peck be appointed as a member of the Grants Appeals Panel 
for the Municipal Year 2008/09 and that Councillor Islam be appointed as a 
substitute for Members appointed to the membership of the Grants Panel in 
the Municipal Year 2008/09. “ 
 
and it was:- 
 
Resolved 
 
1. That the establishment of the Sub-Bodies listed at (a) and (b) below, to 

discharge functions on behalf of the Cabinet, with Terms of Reference, 
Membership and Quorum as set out in paragraphs 4.1.1 and 4.1.2 of 
the report (CAB 011/078), be agreed: 
(a) Grants Panel 
(b) Grants Appeals Panel 

 
2) That the appointments to the Grants Panel and Grants Appeals Panel 

for the Municipal Year 2008/2009, as set out below, be agreed: - 
 

Grants Panel 
 
Members 
 

Substitutes 

Page 26



CABINET, 11/06/2008 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

25 

Councillor M. Francis  
 

Councillor S. Islam 
 

Councillor C. Hawkins 
 

Councillor A. Ali 
 

Councillor A. Ullah 
 

 
Councillor O. Ahmed 
 

 

Councillor A. Choudhury 
 

 

 
Grants Appeals Panel 
 
Members 
 

Substitutes 

Councillor J. Peck 
 

Councillor L. Rahman 

Councillor R. U. Ahmed 
 

 

 
 
 

13. UNRESTRICTED REPORTS FOR INFORMATION  
 
 

13.1 Exercise of Corporate Director Discretions (CAB 011/089)  
 
The Chair Moved and it was: - 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the exercise of Corporate Directors’ discretions, as set out in Appendix 1 
to the report CAB 011/089), be noted. 
 

14. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
The Chair Moved and it was: - 
 
Resolved 
 
That in accordance with the provisions of Section 100A of the Local 
Government Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to 
Information) Act 1985, the press and public be excluded from the remainder of 
the meeting for the consideration of the Section Two business on the grounds 
that it contained information defined as exempt or confidential in Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government, Act 1972. 
 

15. EXEMPT / CONFIDENTIAL MINUTES  
 
Minutes of Cabinet held on 7th May 2008 approved. 

Page 27



CABINET, 11/06/2008 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

26 

 
 

16. OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 
 

16.1 Chair's advice of Key Issues or Questions in relation to Exempt / 
Confidential Business to be considered.  
 
Nil items. 
 
 

16.2 Any Exempt / Confidential Decisions "Called in" by the Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee  
 
Nil items. 
 

17. A BETTER PLACE FOR LIVING SAFELY  
 
Nil items. 
 

18. A BETTER PLACE FOR LIVING WELL  
 
Nil items. 
 

19. A BETTER PLACE FOR CREATING AND SHARING PROSPERITY  
 
Nil items. 
 

20. A BETTER PLACE FOR LEARNING, ACHIEVEMENT AND LEISURE  
 
Nil items. 
 

21. A BETTER PLACE FOR EXCELLENT PUBLIC SERVICES  
 
Nil items. 
 

22. EXEMPT / CONFIDENTIAL REPORTS FOR INFORMATION  
 
Nil items. 
 

 
 

The meeting ended at 8.40 p.m.  
 
 

Chair,  
Cabinet 

 

Page 28



COMMITTEE 
 
Cabinet 

DATE 
 
02/07/08 

CLASSIFICATION 
Unrestricted 

REPORT 
NO  

AGENDA 
ITEM NO 
 

REPORT OF 
Head of Trading Standards & 
Environmental Health 
(Commercial) 
Colin Perrins 
(Originating Officer) 
David Tolley – Environmental 
Health Commercial Services 
Manager 

TITLE 
Food Law Enforcement Service Plan 2008//2009 
 
Ward(s) affected 
All 

 
 
 
1. SUMMARY: 
 
1.1 This report sets out the Council’s eighth annual plan for effective 

enforcement of food safety legislation. The aim of the plan is to ensure 
that food is produced and sold under hygienic conditions, is without risk 
to health and is of the quality expected by consumers. 

 
1.2 The Food Standards Agency requires local authorities to have in place a 

Food Law Enforcement Service Plan.  The plan will form a significant part 
of the standard against which local authorities will be audited by the 
Agency to assess their effectiveness in ensuring food safety. 

 
1.3 Accordingly the Cabinet is requested to consider the Food Law 

Enforcement Service Plan 2008/09 and make recommendations as 
appropriate and adopt this plan.   

 
2. RECOMMENDATION: 

 
2.1 Cabinet is recommended to approve the Tower Hamlets Food Law 

Enforcement Plan 2008/2009 attached at Appendix 1 to the report. 
 
  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 (AS AMENDED) SECTION 100D 

LIST OF “BACKGROUND PAPERS” USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 
 

Brief description of 
“background papers”. 

Tick if copy supplied for 
register. 

Name and telephone number of 
holder and address where open to 
inspection. 

   
  Name:                   David Tolley 
   

Telephone No:    x6724 
 

Agenda Item 6.1

Page 29



3.  BACKGROUND: 
 
3.1 The Food Standards Agency (FSA) is a non-ministerial government 

department, which came into existence on 3 April 2000 with the aim of 
protecting the interests of consumers. One of the key roles of the 
Agency is to oversee Local Authority enforcement activities in respect 
of food safety. The Food Standards Act 1999 empowers the Agency to 
monitor and audit local authorities.  

 
3.2 Given the importance of the service plan, particularly in the context of 

the local authority monitoring and audit role of the FSA, it was 
recognised that central guidance on the content of the service plan for 
food law enforcement would be helpful. The Agency therefore issued a 
template for a service plan, as part of its Framework Agreement on 
Local Authority Food Law Enforcement, in September 2000 and 
recommended the adoption of the model.  

 
3.3 Tower Hamlets’ commercial profile incorporates shops, offices, hotels, 

pubs, restaurants and cafes, schools, markets, food manufacturers and 
processors, university colleges, halls of residence, hospitals, poultry 
slaughterhouses, public entertainment venues and tourist attractions.  

 
3.4 The Environmental Health (Commercial) service has responsibility for 

food hygiene, food standards, health and safety and public health 
issues in respect to premises in the Borough. In short they make an 
important contribution to protecting the well being of Tower Hamlets’ 
residents and visitors. 

 
3.5 The Council’s Food Safety function has made significant improvements 

over the last three years. The service review and reorganisation have 
produced increased stability and performance.  The programme of 
activity proposed in the plan will fulfil the Borough’s statutory 
obligations and help minimise food related illness in the Borough. 

 
4 NEW ISSUES FOR 2008/9 
 
4.1 The landscape for food safety will change significantly this year. 

Monitoring of our food safety service is carried out by the FSA. The 
method of performance assessment has changed and our performance 
will be measured against the fulfilment of this plan (30% weighting) and 
the percentage of broadly compliant premises (70% weighting) we 
have within the Borough. 

 
4.2 The broadly compliant requirement is also a new National Performance 

Indicator – NI184, which measures food establishments in the Borough 
which are broadly compliant with food hygiene law. We currently have 
57% of food premises broadly compliant with an aspiration to increase 
this by 5% to 62% during this performance year. 

 

Page 30



4.3 A range of interventions has been developed aimed at increasing this 
compliance rate. We are  we are hampered by the turnover of 
businesses in the Borough and the age of the commercial stock. 

 
4.4 The FSA are in the process of implementing a new Code of Practice 

and auditing arrangements for Local Authorities, the impact of which 
will be reviewed during this year. 

 
4.5 A national “Scores on the Doors” scheme is likely to be announced by 

the FSA at the end of the year. This scheme will allow Local Authorities 
to publish a food premises risk rating in line with national criteria. We 
will report back with recommendations when the national scheme is 
announced. 

 
4.6 We are also developing systems so that we can report back on 

National Performance Indicator 182 – Satisfaction of businesses with 
local authority regulation services. We are developing the mechanisms 
to measure our interaction with businesses that we come into contact 
with. 

 
4.7 A review by central government (Rogers Review) into priorities for 

environmental health and trading standards within local government 
placed food safety/standards and health and safety within the top 5 
priorities within the scope of environmental health. This priority rating 
will form the basis of further work within the Local Better Regulation 
Office. It is expected that guidance will be issued to local authorities on 
how these priority areas should be resourced and managed. Such 
guidance is not likely to be issued for at least 6 months.  

 
4.8 Following on from the Hampton review into local regulation we have 

reviewed our services to determine if the inspection burden can be 
lifted on local businesses but ensuring that risks are controlled to 
ensure public health is not at risk. We have done this where the risk 
rating indicates that the business is broadly compliant  

 
4.9 The impact on the food safety service with regards to the above 

changes has been significant and we have now moved away from 
inspection for inspection sake and allowing those premises that are 
broadly compliant to have a lighter touch and those that are not broadly 
compliant to be advised/enforced against. This has resulted in more 
resources going to the higher risk premises. 

 
5 The Plan 
 
5.1 The Tower Hamlets Food Law Enforcement Service Plan is based on 

the recommended FSA template and is attached to this report 
(Appendix 1). It outlines the action the Council will take to ensure food 
safety. The Plan incorporates the Council’s objectives as set out in the 
Community Plan and Trading Standards & Environmental Health 
(Commercial) Service Plan. In particular it impacts on the quality of life 

Page 31



in Tower Hamlets and the health of residents and visitors. It helps to 
ensure that businesses maintain high standards. The plan advocates 
an Enforcement Concordat approach and commits the Environmental 
Health Commercial Team to continuous improvement, specifically 
making reference to meeting Best Value criteria. The standard format 
of the plan will facilitate comparisons with other authorities. 

 
5.2 The Food Law Enforcement Service Plan incorporates the Trading 

Standards & Environmental Health (Commercial) services’ positive 
commitment in valuing diversity. 

 
5.3 The plan is split between reactive and proactive work. The former 

includes handling consumer complaints and requests for advice or 
information, not least from the business community, residents, 
employees in the Borough and tourists. The latter comprises mainly the 
achievement of routine inspection targets. Tower Hamlets has 2,339 
food premises, all of which require inspection. The frequency of such 
inspections is determined by a nationally agreed risk based inspection 
rating scheme. Thus some high-risk premises are subject to twice 
yearly visits, whereas some low risk premises are only visited every 
five years, or may even receive a self audit questionnaire. 

 
5.4 Last year the Food Safety team achieved 99.6% of all food hygiene 

interventions due. The inspection rate for highest risk premises was 
100%. This should have placed the authority in the top quartile of local 
authorities, based on the national performance Indicator. 

 
5.5 The plan also covers the wider remit of food safety work including 

complaints and enquiries, sampling, food hazard warnings, outbreak 
control, health promotion, training and publicity. These tasks remain 
relatively constant year on year. 

 
5.6 The plan also highlights some of the major successes during 2007/8. 

Some notable examples are 
• Improving inspection performance 
• Production of Food and Drink an in house news letter for food 

business 
• Responding to 146 national food alerts regarding unsafe food 

products that entered the retail chain 
• Improving enforcement activity – 13 premises were closed for pest 

infestation with resulting prosecutions 
 
 
6 Monitoring the Plan 
 
6.1 Tower Hamlets is required to review the plan annually, and under 

current arrangements the review will be reported to Cabinet. 
Accordingly performance against last year’s plan is included in Section 
6 of this years’ plan. 

Page 32



6.2 To ensure quality, apart from the checks built into the plan, the 
Environmental Health Commercial Team participates in peer review 
audits and in actively developing the service with other London 
Boroughs through the North East Sector Food Liaison Group and 
Association of London Environment Health Managers. The Food 
Standards Agency is very active in providing seminars, training, advice 
and support. 

 
7 Financial Implications 
 
7.1 The Food Service is the only enforcement service within the 

Directorate of Communities Localities and Culture where this level of 
prescription for service standards exists. This prescription has led to 
proportionately higher levels of resourcing being devoted to the 
provision of the food service. The Directorate must keep a balance to 
ensure that resourcing is directed to services so that there is adequate 
overall service performance across all services. 

 
7.2 The objectives of the Food Safety service are to ensure the best 

possible service will be provided within current resourcing. Our aims 
are that we will address all of the high-risk areas to ensure that food 
supplied and consumed in the Borough is safe. 

 
7.3 The Food Standards Agency has powers of audit and review of the 

Food Safety services in local authorities. Their ultimate sanction is to 
relieve the local authorities of their responsibilities. 

 
8.   Comments of the Chief Financial Officer 
 
8.1 Section 7 of the report confirms that sufficient resources have been 

prioritised within the service to ensure that performance levels are 
maintained at a level as prescribed by the Foods Standards Agency. 
No other specific Financial Implications emanate from this report which 
seeks Cabinet’s agreement to the Food Law Enforcement Plan for 
2008/2009. 

 
9.  Concurrent Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal) 
 
9.1  Local Authorities are audited regularly by the Food Standards Agency 

(FSA) and as part of that audit the council is required to provide its 
Food Law Enforcement Service Plan.  The plan, which is based on a 
template recommended by the FSA, should set out the minimum 
standards of performance expected from the Council across the full 
range of their food law enforcement activities. 

 
10 Equal Opportunities Implications 
 
10.1  As a result of targeted training he Food Safety function is approaching 

a workforce to reflect the community, which has lead to a multi lingual 
capability. 

Page 33



 
10.2 The service has procedures and training programmes that promote and 

deliver equal treatment to all businesses 
 
10.3 All high demand business advice is translated into minority languages 
 
10.4  The Food Safety sampling programme has focussed on imported foods 

that are sold to local communities. This is to ensure imported foods are 
wholesome and safe. 

 
11  Anti Poverty Implications 
 
11.1  Food Safety activity is focussed on raising the quality of food 

businesses in the Borough. Raising the quality of businesses will help 
customers obtain better value for money and help make businesses 
more profitable. 

 
12  Sustainable Action for a Greener Environment 
 
12.1  Food businesses are encouraged to reduce food waste and deal 

efficiently with the waste they do produce. 
 
12  Risk Management Implications 
 
12.1 The Council as a Food Authority is required to carry out statutory 

functions in relation to food safety. The Food Standards Agency are 
charged with overseeing the activities of Food  Authorities and may 
carry out audits of the authority to ensure it is meeting the requirements 
of The Standard for Food Services set out in the Framework 
Agreement and its statutory functions. 

 
12.2 Should the Council not fulfil its obligations as specified above, the Food 

Standards Agency may use its powers to take away the functions of 
the authority and place them with another authority to exercise them on 
its behalf. 

 
12.3 Further, should the Council not exercise its duties and provide a food 

safety service there is the potential that both unsafe and unscrupulous 
activities would go unchecked and unenforced, which may lead to 
serious food borne illness or disadvantage to the residents, consumers 
and businesses within the borough. 

 
12.4 The risks above which were significant have now been ameliorated 

now the review of Environmental Health (Commercial) has been 
completed. The last round of recruitment has been completed and 
vacancies have been filled. Before the Service Review took place there 
was a vacancy rate of 40% 

 
 
 

Page 34



13. Efficiency Statement 
 
13.1 The completion and implementation of the Environmental Health 

(Commercial) service review has now addressed the over reliance on 
agency staff. The appointment of full time staff has led to more efficient 
use of resources. This has resulted to increased levels of pro-active 
performance in terms of inspections and audits of businesses 

 
14. Appendices 
 
14.1 The following appendices are attached to this report:- 
 
Appendix 1 – LBTH Food Law Enforcement Plan – 2008/9 
 

Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank



D:
\m

od
ern

go
v\D

ata
\A
ge
nd
aIt

em
Do

cs\
1\7

\4\
AI

00
01

54
71

\Fo
od

La
wE

nfo
rce

me
ntS

erv
ice

Pla
nA

pp
x1
0.d

oc
 

 
1 

 
 

     
Ap

pe
nd

ix 
1 

 
LO

ND
ON

 B
OR

OU
GH

 O
F T

OW
ER

 H
AM

LE
TS

 
    

FO
OD

 LA
W

 E
NF

OR
CE

ME
NT

 S
ER

VI
CE

 P
LA

N 
 

 
20

08
/20

09
  

    

Page 37



 
2 

  
CO

NT
EN

TS
 

 
Ex

ec
uti

ve
 Su

mm
ary

 
 

1.0
 

Se
rvi
ce
 A
im
s a

nd
 O
bje

cti
ve
s 

 
2.0

 
Ba

ck
gr
ou

nd
 

 
3.0

 
Se

rvi
ce
 D
eli
ve
ry 

 
4.0

 
Re

so
ur
ce
s 

 
5.0

 
Qu

ali
ty 
As

se
ss
me

nt 
 

6.0
 

Re
vie

w 
 

7.0
 

An
ne
xe
s 

  

Page 38



 
3 

Ex
ec
uti

ve
 Su

mm
ary

 
 

Th
is 
is 
the

 C
ou
nc
il’s
 m
an
da
tor
y a
nn
ua
l p
lan
 fo
r th

e e
ffe
cti
ve
 en

for
ce
me

nt 
of 
foo

d s
afe

ty 
leg
isla

tio
n. 
Th
is 
pla
n f
ulf
ils 
the

 C
ou
nc
il’s
 ob

lig
ati
on
s 

un
de
r th

e F
ram

ew
ork

 Ag
ree

me
nt 
on
 Lo

ca
l A
uth

ori
ty 
Fo
od
 La

w 
En
for
ce
me

nt 
wit
h t
he
 Fo

od
 St
an
da
rds

 Ag
en
cy
 (F
SA

). T
he
 ob

jec
tiv
e o

f th
is 

pla
n i
s t
o e

ns
ure

 th
at 
a p

rog
ram

me
 of
 fo
od
 en

for
ce
me

nt 
ac
tiv
ity
 is
 ca

rrie
d o

ut,
 pr
ov
idi
ng
 pu

bli
c c
on
fid
en
ce
 th
at 
foo

d i
s p

rod
uc
ed
 w
ith
ou
t ri
sk
 

an
d s
old
 un

de
r h
yg
ien
ic 
an
d s
afe

 co
nd
itio
ns
 in
 To

we
r H
am

let
s. 

 Th
e C

ou
nc
il is

 re
qu
ire
d b

y t
he
 FS

A t
o p

rod
uc
e a

 pl
an
 th
at 
is 
rat
ifie
d b

y M
em

be
rs.
 

 
Th
e p

lan
 se
ts 
ou
t th

e a
im
s a

nd
 ob

jec
tiv
es
 of
 th
e E

nv
iro
nm

en
tal
 H
ea
lth
 C
om

me
rci
al 
Te
am

 an
d l
ink
s t
ea
m 
pri
ori
tie
s t
o t
he
 C
ou
nc
il’s
 co

re 
the

me
s. 
Th
e p

lan
 al
so
 gi
ve
s a

n u
p t
o d

ate
 pr
ofi
le 
of 
the

 Bo
rou

gh
, a
 re
vie
w 
of 
ou
r a
cti
vit
ies
 in
 20

07
/08

 an
d o

ur 
pro

gra
mm

e o
f w
ork

 fo
r 

20
08
/09

. 
 Th
e C

om
me

rci
al 
Te
am

 ca
rrie

d o
ut 
99
.6%

 of
 al
l F
oo
d H

yg
ien

e i
ns
pe
cti
on
s d
ue
 an

d 5
7.3

% 
of 
all
 fo
od
 st
an
da
rds

 in
sp
ec
tio
ns
 du

e. 
Fo
od
 

Sta
nd
ard

s i
ns
pe
cti
on
s a
re 
se
en
 as
 a 
se
co
nd
 pr
ior
ity
 to
 th
at 
of 
foo

d h
yg
ien
e. 
En
for
ce
me

nt 
ac
tiv
ity
 w
as
 fa
r g
rea

ter
 th
is 
ye
ar 
wit
h 1

3 f
oo
d 

pre
mi
se
s c
los
ed
 fo
r p
es
t in
fes

tat
ion
s. 
W
e a

re 
tar
ge
tin
g p

es
t m

an
ag
em

en
t th

is 
ye
ar 
wit
h t
he
 as

pir
ati
on
 th
is 
wil
l re

su
lt i
n f
ew
er 
clo
su
res

. 
 Th
ere

 ha
s b
ee
n a

 si
gn
ific
an
t in

cre
as
e i
n i
lle
ga
l im

po
rte
d f
oo
d i
nto

 th
e B

oro
ug
h a

nd
 w
e a

re 
wo
rki
ng
 w
ith
 ne

igh
bo
uri
ng
 Bo

rou
gh
s t
o i
de
nti
fy 

su
pp
ly 
ch
ain
s a
nd
 ta
ke
 re
me

dia
l a
cti
on
. 

 Th
e l
an
ds
ca
pe
 fo
r fo

od
 sa
fet
y w

ill c
ha
ng
e s

ign
ific
an
tly
 th
is 
ye
ar.
 M
on
ito
rin
g o

f o
ur 
foo

d s
afe

ty 
se
rvi
ce
 is
 ca

rrie
d o

ut 
by
 th
e F

SA
. O
ur 

pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 w
ill b

e m
ea
su
red

 ag
ain
st 
the

 fu
lfilm

en
t o
f th

e S
erv

ice
 pl
an
 (3
0%

 w
eig
hti
ng
) a
nd
 th
e p

erc
en
tag

e o
f b
roa

dly
 co

mp
lia
nt 
pre

mi
se
s 

(70
% 
we
igh
tin
g) 
wit
hin

 th
e B

oro
ug
h, 
no
t ju

st 
tho

se
 th
at 
fal
l d
ue
 fo
r in

sp
ec
tio
n t
his
 ye
ar.
 

 Th
e b

roa
dly
 co

mp
lia
nt 
req

uir
em

en
t is
 al
so
 a 
ne
w 
Na
tio
na
l P
erf
orm

an
ce
 In
dic
ato

r –
 18

4- 
wh
ich
 m
ea
su
res

 fo
od
 es
tab

lish
me

nts
 in
 th
e B

oro
ug
h 

wh
ich
 ar
e b

roa
dly
 co

mp
lia
nt 
wit
h f
oo
d h

yg
ien
e l
aw
. W

e c
urr
en
t h
av
e 5

7%
 of
 fo
od
 pr
em

ise
s b
roa

dly
 co

mp
lia
nt 
wit
h a

n a
sp
ira
tio
n t
o i
nc
rea

se
 

thi
s b

y 5
% 
du
rin
g t
his
 pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 ye
ar.
 

 W
e h

av
e d

ev
elo
pe
d a

 ra
ng
e o

f in
ter
ve
nti
on
s a
im
ed
 at
 in
cre

as
ing
 th
is 
co
mp

lia
nc
e r
ate

. H
ow
ev
er,
 w
e a

re 
ha
mp

ere
d b

y t
he
 tu
rno

ve
r o
f 

bu
sin
es
se
s i
n t
he
 Bo

rou
gh
 an

d t
he
 ag

e o
f th

e c
om

me
rci
al 
sto
ck
. 

 Th
e F

SA
 ar
e i
n t
he
 pr
oc
es
s o
f im

ple
me

nti
ng
 a 
ne
w 
Co
de
 of
 Pr
ac
tic
e a

nd
 au

dit
ing
 ar
ran

ge
me

nts
 fo
r L
oc
al 
Au
tho

riti
es
, th

e i
mp

ac
t o
f w
hic
h w

ill 
be
 re
vie
we
d d

uri
ng
 th
is 
ye
ar.
 

 

Page 39



 
4 

A n
ati
on
al 
Sc
ore

s o
n t
he
 D
oo
rs 
sc
he
me

 is
 lik
ely
 to
 be

 an
no
un
ce
d b

y t
he
 FS

A a
t th

e e
nd
 of
 th
e y
ea
r. T

his
 sc
he
me

 w
ill a

llo
w 
Lo
ca
l A
uth

ori
tie
s 

to 
pu
bli
sh
 a 
foo

d p
rem

ise
s r
isk
 ra
tin
g i
n l
ine
 w
ith
 na

tio
na
l c
rite

ria
. W

e w
ill r
ep
ort
 ba

ck
 w
ith
 re
co
mm

en
da
tio
ns
 w
he
n t
he
 na

tio
na
l s
ch
em

e i
s 

an
no
un
ce
d. 

 W
e a

re 
als
o d

ev
elo
pin
g s
ys
tem

s s
o t
ha
t w
e c

an
 re
po
rt b

ac
k o
n N

ati
on
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 In
dic
ato

r 1
82
 – 
Sa
tis
fac

tio
n o

f b
us
ine
ss
es
 w
ith
 lo
ca
l 

au
tho

rity
 re
gu
lat
ion
 se

rvi
ce
s. 
W
e a

re 
de
ve
lop
ing
 th
e t
oo
ls 
to 
me

as
ure

 ou
r in

ter
ac
tio
n w

ith
 bu

sin
es
se
s t
ha
t w
e c

om
e i
nto

 co
nta

ct 
wit
h. 

A r
ev
iew

 by
 ce

ntr
al 
go
ve
rnm

en
t (R

og
ers

 R
ev
iew

) in
to 
pri
ori
tie
s f
or 
en
vir
on
me

nta
l h
ea
lth
 an

d t
rad

ing
 st
an
da
rds

 w
ith
in 
loc
al 
go
ve
rnm

en
t p
lac
ed
 

foo
d s
afe

ty/
sta

nd
ard

s a
nd
 he

alt
h a

nd
 sa
fet
y w

ith
in 
the

 to
p 5

 pr
ior
itie
s w

ith
in 
the

 sc
op
e o

f e
nv
iro
nm

en
tal
 he

alt
h. 
Th
is 
pri
ori
ty 
rat
ing
 w
ill f
orm

 th
e 

ba
sis
 of
 fu
rth
er 
wo
rk 
wit
hin
 th
e L

oc
al 
Be
tte
r R
eg
ula
tio
n O

ffic
e. 
It i
s e
xp
ec
ted

 th
at 
gu
ida
nc
e w

ill b
e i
ss
ue
d t
o l
oc
al 
au
tho

riti
es
 on

 ho
w 
the

se
 

pri
ori
ty 
are

as
 sh

ou
ld 
be
 re
so
urc

ed
 an

d m
an
ag
ed
. S
uc
h g

uid
an
ce
 is
 no

t li
ke
ly 
to 
be
 is
su
ed
 fo
r a
t le
as
t 6
 m
on
ths
.  

 Fo
llo
win

g o
n f
rom

 th
e H

am
pto

n r
ev
iew

 in
to 
loc
al 
reg

ula
tio
n w

e h
av
e r
ev
iew

ed
 ou

r s
erv

ice
s t
o d

ete
rm
ine
 if 
the

 in
sp
ec
tio
n b

urd
en
 ca
n b

e l
ifte
d 

on
 lo
ca
l b
us
ine
ss
es
 bu

t e
ns
uri
ng
 th
at 
ris
ks
 ar
e c

on
tro
lle
d t
o e

ns
ure

 pu
bli
c h
ea
lth
 is
 no

t a
t ri
sk
. W

e h
av
e d

on
e t
his
 w
he
re 
the

 ris
k r
ati
ng
 

ind
ica
tes
 th
at 
the

 bu
sin
es
s i
s b

roa
dly
 co

mp
lia
nt 
 

 Th
e i
mp

ac
t o
n t
he
 fo
od
 sa
fet
y s
erv

ice
 w
ith
 re
ga
rds

 to
 th
e a

bo
ve
 ch

an
ge
s h

as
 be

en
 si
gn
ific
an
t a
nd
 w
e h

av
e n

ow
 m
ov
ed
 aw

ay
 fro

m 
ins
pe
cti
on
 

for
 in
sp
ec
tio
n s
ak
e a

nd
 al
low

ing
 th
os
e p

rem
ise
s t
ha
t a
re 
bro

ad
ly 
co
mp

lia
nt 
to 
ha
ve
 a 
lig
hte

r to
uc
h a

nd
 th
os
e t
ha
t a
re 
no
t b
roa

dly
 co

mp
lia
nt 
to 

be
 ad

vis
ed
/en

for
ce
d a

ga
ins
t. T

his
 ha

s r
es
ult
ed
 in
 m
ore

 re
so
urc

es
 go

ing
 to
 th
e h

igh
er 
ris
k p

rem
ise
s. 

  

Page 40



 
5 

1 
 

SE
RV

IC
E A

IM
S 
AN

D 
OB

JE
CT

IVE
S 

 1.1
 

 
Aim

s a
nd
 ob

jec
tiv
es
 

 1.1
.1 

To
 pr
om

ote
 an

d r
eg
ula
te 
foo

d s
afe

ty,
 fo
od
 st
an
da
rds

, h
ea
lth
 an

d s
afe

ty 
in 
foo

d p
rem

ise
s. 

 1.1
.2 

To
 pr
ov
ide
 ad

vic
e a

nd
 ed

uc
ati
on
 to
 al
l s
ec
tor
s o
f th

e c
om

mu
nit
y o
n f
oo
d s
afe

ty 
ma

tte
rs.
 

 
1.1

.3 
To
 pr
ev
en
t th

e s
pre

ad
 of
 in
fec
tio
us
 di
se
as
e a

nd
 fo
od
 po

iso
nin
g a

nd
 in
ve
sti
ga
te 
ou
tbr
ea
ks
. 

 1.1
.4 

Sm
ok
e F

ree
 en

for
ce
me

nt 
an
d t
ob
ac
co
 co
ntr
ol.
 

 1.1
.5 

Lic
en
sin
g o

f M
as
sa
ge
 an

d S
pe
cia
l T
rea

tm
en
t p
rem

ise
s. 

 1.1
.6 

He
alt
h a

nd
 Sa

fet
y e
nfo

rce
me

nt 
an
d a

dv
ice
, a
cc
ide
nt 
inv
es
tig
ati
on
 in
 no

n f
oo
d p

rem
ise
s. 

 1.1
.7 

An
im
al 
we
lfa
re 
an
d t
he
 co

ntr
ol 
of 
zo
on
oti
c d

ise
as
es
. 

 
1.2

  
 

Lin
ks
 to
 C
orp

ora
te 
ob
jec
tiv
es
 an

d p
lan
s 

 
1.2

.1 
Th
e F

oo
d L

aw
 En

for
ce
me

nt 
Se
rvi
ce
 Pl
an
 is
 de

sig
ne
d t
o m

ee
t c
us
tom

er 
ne
ed
s a

nd
 se

rvi
ce
s a

re 
pro

vid
ed
 w
ith
 re
fer
en
ce
 to
 th
e: 
 

 
• 

Co
mm

un
ity
 Pl
an
 

• 
Co
un
cil’
s S

tra
teg

ic 
Pla

n 
• 

Dir
ec
tor
ate

’s 
An
nu
al 
Pla

n 
• 

Div
isio

na
l S
erv

ice
 Pl
an
 

 
1.2

.2 
 

Th
e a

cti
vit
ies
 of
 th
e E

nv
iro
nm

en
tal
 H
ea
lth
 C
om

me
rci
al 
Te
am

 ar
e l
ink
ed
 w
he
re 
po
ss
ibl
e t
o t
he
se
 st
rat
eg
ies
, p
oli
cie
s a

nd
 

ob
jec
tiv
es
.  T

he
se
 ar
e s
et 
ou
t in

 th
e T

ea
m 
Pla

n w
hic
h d

eta
ils 
am

on
gs
t o
the

r is
su
es
, th

e F
oo
d E

nfo
rce

me
nt 
ob
jec
tiv
es
 fo
r th

e 
ye
ar 
an
d d

efi
ne
s t
he
 pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 th
at 
ha
s b
ee
n s
et 
to 
me

et 
the

se
 ta
rge

ts.
 

 1.2
.3 

 
Th
e V

isio
n S

tat
em

en
t o
f th

e C
ou
nc
il is

: 
 

To
 im

pro
ve

 th
e q

ua
lity

 of
 lif

e f
or 

ev
ery

on
e l

ivin
g a

nd
 w

ork
ing

 in
 To

we
r H

am
let

s. 
 

1.2
.4 

Th
e C

ou
nc
il w

ill r
ea
lise

 its
 ov
era

ll V
isio

n f
or 
the

 Bo
rou

gh
 th
rou

gh
 fiv
e c

ore
 th
em

es
: 

Page 41



 
6 

 
• 

On
e T

ow
er 

Ha
ml
ets

 
• 

A 
Go

od
 Pl

ac
e t
o L

ive
 

• 
Pr
os
pe
ro
us
 C
om

mu
nit
ies

 
• 

Sa
fe 
an
d S

up
po

rti
ve
 C
om

mu
nit

ies
 

• 
He

alt
hie

r C
om

mu
nit

ies
 

 1.2
.5 

Th
e a

im
 of
 th
e E

nv
iro
nm

en
tal
 H
ea
lth
 C
om

me
rci
al 
Te
am

 is
 to
 pr
ote

ct 
res

ide
nts
, v
isit
ors

 an
d b

us
ine
ss
es
 by
: 

 
• 

Th
e e

nfo
rce

me
nt 

of 
co

ns
um

er 
leg

isla
tio

n b
y w

ay
 of

 in
sp

ec
tio

n, 
co

mp
lai

nt 
inv

es
tig

ati
on

, tr
ain

ing
 an

d a
dv

ice
. 

• 
Ad

vis
ing

 co
ns

um
ers

 on
 th

e r
es

olu
tio

n o
f c

ivil
 di

sp
ute

s w
ith

 tra
de

rs.
 

• 
Pr

om
oti

ng
 an

d r
eg

ula
tin

g f
oo

d h
yg

ien
e/s

afe
ty 

an
d s

tan
da

rds
 of

 he
alt

h a
nd

 sa
fet

y i
n t

he
 w

ork
pla

ce
 an

d a
t p

ub
lic 

ev
en

ts 
in 

the
 

bo
rou

gh
 

• 
Pr

ev
en

tin
g t

he
 sp

rea
d o

f in
fec

tio
us

 di
se

as
e a

nd
 fo

od
 po

iso
nin

g, 
inc

lud
ing

 th
e i

nv
es

tig
ati

on
 of

 ou
tbr

ea
ks

 
• 

Iss
ue

 an
d e

nfo
rce

me
nt 

of 
ap

pro
va

ls 
co

ve
rin

g a
 ra

ng
e o

f a
cti

vit
ies

 
• 

De
ve

lop
ing

 pa
rtn

ers
hip

s w
ith

 bu
sin

es
se

s, 
reg

en
era

tio
n i

nit
iat

ive
s a

nd
 ot

he
r o

rga
nis

ati
on

s i
n t

he
 Bo

rou
gh

 
• 

Inv
olv

ing
 ou

rse
lve

s i
n n

ati
on

al 
str

ate
gie

s i
.e.

 O
be

sit
y S

tra
teg

y, 
He

art
be

at 
aw

ard
 sc

he
me

s, 
fas

t fo
od

 ou
tle

ts 
aro

un
d s

ch
oo

ls.
 

• 
Sm

ok
e F

ree
 en

for
ce

me
nt 

an
d a

dv
ice

 
• 

An
im

al 
we

lfa
re 

an
d t

he
 co

ntr
ol 

of 
zo

on
oti

c i
nfe

cti
on

s 
• 

Lic
en

sin
g o

f M
as

sa
ge

 an
d S

pe
cia

l T
rea

tm
en

t p
rem

ise
s. 

 
 

2.0
  

 
BA

CK
GR

OU
ND

 
 2.1

 
 

Pr
ofi
le 
of 
To
we
r H
am

let
s  

 2.1
.2 

To
we
r H
am

let
s h
as
 a 
wid

e r
an
ge
 of
 co
mm

erc
ial
 fo
od
 bu

sin
es
se
s l
oc
ate

d a
cro

ss
 di
ffe
ren

t p
art
s o
f th

e b
oro

ug
h. 
So
me

 of
 th
e k
ey
 

bu
sin
es
se
s i
nc
lud
e: 
 

 
� 

Ma
jor
 su

pe
rm
ark

ets
 (T
es
co
, M

orr
iso
ns
, A
sd
a, 
Sa
ins
bu
ry,
 Li
dl,
 M
ark

s a
nd
 Sp

en
ce
r &
 W
ait
ros

e) 
� 

Of
fic
e d

ev
elo
pm

en
ts 
oc
cu
pie
d b

y b
lue
 ch
ip 
co
mp

an
ies
, n
ew
sp
ap
er 
pu
bli
sh
ers

, w
ith
 la
rge

 sc
ale
 ca

ter
ing
  

� 
Se
ve
ral
 m
ajo
r h
ote

ls,
 in
clu
din
g B

rita
nn
ia,
 Fo

ur 
Se
as
on
s, 
Th
ist
le 
To
we
r, H

oli
da
y I
nn
, H
ilto
n, 
Ra
dis
so
n a

nd
 M
arr
iot
t 

� 
Th
ere

 is
 a 
div
ers

e r
an
ge
 of
 re
sta
ura

nts
 an

d c
afe

s i
n t
he
 bo

rou
gh
, in

clu
din
g I
tal
ian
, F
ren

ch
, G
ree

k, 
Tu
rki
sh
, S
om

ali
, S
pa
nis
h, 

Ch
ine
se
, J
ap
an
es
e, 
Th
ai 
an
d t
ho
se
 fro

m 
the

 In
dia
n s

ub
-co

nti
ne
nt 
(In
dia
, B
an
gla
de
sh
, a
nd
 Pa

kis
tan

).  
 

Page 42



 
7 

� 
94
 sc
ho
ols
 

� 
Bil
lin
gs
ga
te 
– L

on
do
n’s
 m
ajo
r W

ho
les
ale
 Fi
sh
 M
ark

et 
� 

W
orl
d f
am

ou
s s
tre
et 
ma

rke
ts 
at 
Pe
ttic
oa
t L
an
e, 
W
hit
ec
ha
pe
l, B

ric
k L
an
e a

nd
 R
om

an
 R
oa
d. 

� 
Lo
nd
on
 G
uil
dh
all
 U
niv
ers

ity
, Q

ue
en
 M
ary

 U
niv
ers

ity
 of
 Lo

nd
on
 an

d T
he
 R
oy
al 
Lo
nd
on
 H
os
pit
al 
Me

dic
al 
Sc
ho
ols
 

� 
Th
e R

oy
al 
Lo
nd
on
, S
t A
nd
rew

s, 
Mi
le 
En
d, 
Lo
nd
on
 C
he
st 
an
d L

on
do
n I
nd
ep
en
de
nt 
Ho
sp
ita
ls 

� 
1 p

ou
ltry
 sl
au
gh
ter
ho
us
e 

� 
3 C

ity
 Fa

rm
s 

� 
nu
me

rou
s n
igh
t c
lub
s &

 ot
he
r v
en
ue
s 

� 
Ma

ny
 co

mm
un
ity
 ev
en
ts 
su
ch
 as
 co
nc
ert
s i
n V

ict
ori
a P

ark
 an

d f
es
tiv
als
 in
 Br
ick
 La

ne
. 

 
 

2.2
 

Or
ga
nis
ati
on
al 
Str
uc
tur
e 

 2.2
.1 

Th
e T

ea
m 
is 
loc
ate

d w
ith
in 
the

 Tr
ad
ing
 St
an
da
rds

 an
d E

nv
iro
nm

en
tal
 H
ea
lth
 (C
om

me
rci
al)
 D
ivis

ion
. T
his
 di
vis
ion
 is
 pa

rt o
f th

e 
En
vir
on
me

nta
l C
on
tro
l G
rou

p, 
wh
ich
 in
clu
de
s E

nv
iro
nm

en
tal
 H
ea
lth
 Pr
ote

cti
on
, M

ark
ets
 Se

rvi
ce
s a

nd
 Pa

rki
ng
 C
on
tro
l. 

En
vir
on
me

nta
l C
on
tro
l is
 pa

rt o
f th

e D
ire
cto

rat
e o

f C
om

mu
nit
ies
 Lo

ca
litie

s a
nd
 C
ult
ure

. T
he
 st
ruc

tur
e o

f E
nv
iro
nm

en
tal
 H
ea
lth
 

(C
om

me
rci
al)
 is
 in
 An

ne
xe
 B.
 Th

e C
ou
nc
il’s
 ad

mi
nis
tra
tiv
e c

om
mi
tte
e s

tru
ctu

re 
is 
se
t o
ut 
in 
An
ne
xe
 C
 an

d s
tru
ctu

re 
sh
ow
ing
 

wh
ere

 th
e s

erv
ice
 si
ts 
in 
the

 ov
era

ll c
ou
nc
il o
rga

nis
ati
on
 is
 in
 An

ne
xe
 D
. 

 2.2
.2 

Fo
od
 Sa

fet
y f
all
s w

ith
in 
the

 po
rtfo

lio
 of
 th
e L

ea
d M

em
be
r fo

r S
afe

r, C
lea
ne
r, G

ree
ne
r, w

ho
 re
po
rts
 fo
od
 sa
fet
y m

att
ers

 to
 

Ca
bin
et.
 

 
2.3

  
Sc
op
e o

f th
e F

oo
d S

erv
ice
 

 2.3
.1 

Th
e E

nv
iro
nm

en
tal
 H
ea
lth
 C
om

me
rci
al 
Se
rvi
ce
 is
 re
sp
on
sib
le 
for
 th
e f
oll
ow
ing
 fu
nc
tio
ns
 in
 al
l c
om

me
rci
al 
pre

mi
se
s. 

• 
foo

d h
yg
ien
e 

• 
foo

d s
tan

da
rds

 
• 

he
alt
h a

nd
 sa
fet
y 

• 
inf
ec
tio
us
 di
se
as
e c
on
tro
l  

• 
pu
bli
c h
ea
lth
 ac

tiv
itie
s 

• 
Sp
ec
ial
 Tr
ea
tm
en
t li
ce
ns
ing
 

• 
an
im
al 
He
alt
h  

• 
Sm

ok
e F

ree
/To

ba
cc
o C

on
tro
l 

 2.3
.2 

Nu
isa
nc
e a

nd
 Po

llu
tio
n c
on
tro
l is
su
es
 re
lat
ed
 to
 co
mm

erc
ial
 pr
em

ise
s a

re 
de
alt
 w
ith
 by
 th
e E

nv
iro
nm

en
tal
 Pr
ote

cti
on
 se

rvi
ce
.  

Th
e T

rad
ing
 St
an
da
rds

 Te
am

 de
als
 w
ith
 an

im
al 
fee

din
g-s

tuf
fs 
an
d f
rau

du
len
t a
cti
vit
ies
 co

ve
red

 by
 th
e F

oo
d S

afe
ty 
Ac
t.  
 

Page 43



 
8 

 2.3
.3 

A p
roa

cti
ve
 an

d r
ea
cti
ve
 se

rvi
ce
 in
 re
lat
ion
 to
 fo
od
 hy
gie
ne
 an

d f
oo
d s
tan

da
rds

 is
 pr
ov
ide
d p

rim
ari
ly 
thr
ou
gh
 th
e p

rog
ram

me
d 

ins
pe
cti
on
 of
 fo
od
 bu

sin
es
se
s a
nd
 by
 re
sp
on
din
g t
o s

erv
ice
 re
qu
es
ts 
inc
lud
ing
 co
mm

en
ts 
on
 pl
an
nin
g a

nd
 lic
en
sin
g 

ap
pli
ca
tio
ns
.   

 2.3
.4 

Ag
en
cy
 st
aff
 ha

ve
 be

en
 em

plo
ye
d t
o d

ea
l w
ith
 so
me

 pr
og
ram

me
d f
oo
d s
afe

ty 
ins
pe
cti
on
s a
nd
 Se

rvi
ce
 R
eq
ue
sts
 to
 co

ve
r s
taf
f 

va
ca
nc
ies
 w
ith
in 
the

 te
am

.  C
urr
en
tly
 ag

en
cy
 st
aff
 m
ak
e u

p s
om

e o
f th

e s
ho
rtfa

ll in
 pr
og
ram

me
d i
ns
pe
cti
on
s w

hic
h w

ou
ld 
no
t 

oth
erw

ise
 be

 ca
rrie

d o
ut.
 H
ow
ev
er,
 ha

ve
 re
cru

ite
d t
o t
wo
 va
ca
nt 
po
sts
 an

d r
eli
an
ce
 on

 ag
en
cy
 w
ill b

e k
ep
t to

 a 
mi
nim

um
. 

 2.3
.5 

Th
e S

erv
ice
s f
un
cti
on
al 
are

as
 ar
e s

et 
do
wn
 in
 th
e E

nv
iro
nm

en
tal
 H
ea
lth
 C
om

me
rci
al 
-Te

am
 Pl
an
 (A
nn
ex
e E

) 
 

2.4
 

De
ma

nd
s o
n t
he
 Fo

od
 Se

rvi
ce
 

 2.4
.1 

 
Pr
em

ise
s P

rof
ile
 

 2.4
.2 

Th
e t
ab
les
 be

low
 sh

ow
 th
e n

um
be
r o
f fo

od
 bu

sin
es
se
s i
n e

ac
h r
isk
 ca
teg

ory
 cl
as
sif
ied
 by
 ty
pe
 of
 ac

tiv
ity
 an

d r
isk
 ra
tin
g. 
 So

me
 

pre
mi
se
s, 
wh
ere

 th
e r
isk
 is
 ne

gli
gib
le 
are

 di
sc
ou
nte

d f
rom

 th
e i
ns
pe
cti
on
 pr
og
ram

me
. T
he
 tre

nd
 of
 th
e n

um
be
r o
f fo

od
 sa
fet
y 

pre
mi
se
s d
rop

pin
g f
rom

 hi
gh
 ris
k (
A r
ate

d p
rem

ise
s) 
to 
me

diu
m 
ris
k h

as
 co
nti
nu
ed
 ag

ain
 th
is 
ye
ar 
wit
h a

 32
% 
red

uc
tio
n i
n A

 
rat
ed
 pr
em

ise
s. 
Th
ere

 ar
e 2

5%
 le
ss
 hi
gh
 ris
k p
rem

ise
s t
his
 ye
ar 
for
 fo
od
 st
an
da
rds

. T
he
 re
du
cti
on
 in
 th
e h

igh
 ris
k p

rem
ise
s h
as
 

be
en
 du

e t
o t
arg

ete
d a

dv
ice
 an

d e
nfo

rce
me

nt.
 

 Ta
ble

 1  
 

 
Th
e n

um
be
r o
f fo

od
 bu

sin
es
se
s a
nd
 th
eir
 in
sp
ec
tio
n r
ati
ng
 fo
r fo

od
 hy
gie
ne
 (2
3/4

/08
) 

 Ris
k 

Dis
trib

uto
rs 

Im
po

rte
rs 

3rd
 

Co
un

trie
s  

Su
pp

lie
rs 

of art
icle

s i
n 

co
nta

ct 
wit

h 
Fo

od
 

Mf
r s

ell
ing

 
by

 re
tai

l 
Ma

nu
fac

tur
er 

Pa
ck

ers
 

Re
sta

ur
an

ts 
Pu

b/C
lub

 
Su

pe
rm

ar
ke

t 
Re

tai
ler

s 
Sla

ug
hte

r 
ho

us
es

 
Gr

an
d 

To
tal

 

A 
 

 
 

1 
3 

 
15

 
 

 
 

 
19

 
B 

4 
 

 
7 

9 
 

31
2 

21
 

1 
22

 
 

37
6 

C 
68

 
 

 
16

 
12

 
1 

68
8 

12
4 

10
 

30
8 

 
12

27
 

D 
12

 
 

 
1 

 
 

47
 

69
 

3 
14

3 
 

27
5 

E 
9 

1 
 

1 
1 

 
36

 
36

 
2 

17
1 

 
25

7 
No

 ris
k 

 
9 

4 
 

1 
 

2 
 

 
5 

2 
23

 
Un

rat
ed
 

1 
1 

 
2 

4 
 

92
 

7 
1 

54
 

 
16

2 
 

Page 44



 
9 

 
To
tal
 23

39
 pr
em

ise
s 

 
Th
e f
req

ue
nc
y o
f in

sp
ec
tio
n i
s: 

Ca
teg

ory
 A,
 ev
ery

 6 
mo

nth
s; 
B, 
ev
ery

 12
 m
on
ths

; C
, e
ve
ry 
18
 m
on
ths
, D
, e
ve
ry 
2 Y

rs;
 an

d E
, e
ve
ry 
3 Y

rs.
 Th

e C
ate

go
ry 
of 
Un
rat
ed
 

pre
mi
se
s i
s d

ete
rm
ine
d o

n t
he
 fir
st 
vis
it a

nd
 ca
n b

e A
-E
. C
ate

go
ry 
E p

rem
ise
s m

ay
 be

 de
alt
 w
ith
 us

ing
 an

 al
ter
na
tiv
e e

nfo
rce

me
nt 

str
ate

gy
. 

   
 Ta
ble

 2 
 

 
Th
e n

um
be
r o
f fo

od
 bu

sin
es
se
s a
nd
 th
eir
 in
sp
ec
tio
n r
ati
ng
 fo
r fo

od
 st
an
da
rds

 (2
3/4

/08
) 

 
 

Dis
trib

uto
r 

Im
po

rte
rs 

3rd
 

Co
un

trie
s 

Su
p o

f a
rtic

les
 in

 
co

nta
ct 

wit
h f

oo
d 

Ma
nu

fac
tur

er 
se

llin
g b

y 
ret

ail
 

Ma
nu

fac
t

ure
rs 

Re
sta

ura
nts

 
Pa

ck
ers

 
Su

pe
rm

ark
et 

Pu
bs

/C
lub

s 
Re

tai
ler

s 
Sla

ug
hte

r 
ho

us
es

 
To

tal
 

A 
12

 
1 

 
 

4 
 

1 
 

 
3 

 
21

 
B 

68
 

3 
 

19
 

25
 

1 
41

1 
62

 
7 

19
9 

1 
79

6 
C 

9 
2 

2 
5 

2 
63

3 
 

9 
17

5 
38

9 
1 

12
27

 
No

 R
isk

 
1 

1 
2 

 
 

8 
 

 
 

24
 

 
36

 
Un

ra
te

d 
5 

4 
 

4 
5 

13
9 

 
1 

20
 

88
 

 
26

6 
 

To
tal
 pr
em

ise
s 2
34
6 

 Th
e f
req

ue
nc
y o
f in

sp
ec
tio
n i
s: 

A, 
ev
ery

 12
 m
on
ths
; B
, e
ve
ry 
2 y
ea
rs;
 C
, e
ve
ry 
5 y
ea
rs.
 C
ate

go
ry 
C 
pre

mi
se
s m

ay
 be

 de
alt
 w
ith
 us

ing
 an

 al
ter
na
tiv
e 

en
for
ce
me

nt 
str
ate

gy
. 

 2.4
.3 

As
 at
 Ap

ril 
20
08
 th
e f
oll
ow
ing
 es

tab
lish

me
nts
 w
ere

 ap
pro

ve
d b

y t
he
 C
ou
nc
il t
o p

rod
uc
e a

nd
 m
an
ufa

ctu
rer
 fo
od
 fo
r th

e d
om

es
tic
 

ma
rke

t: -
 

 
� 

18
 fis
he
ry 
pro

du
cts
 es
tab

lish
me

nts
 

� 
1 w

ho
les
ale
 fis
he
ry 
pro

du
cts
 an

d l
ive
 sh

ell
fis
h m

ark
et 

� 
5 m

ea
t p
rod

uc
ts 
es
tab

lish
me

nts
 

� 
1 d

air
y p
rod

uc
ts 

 

Page 45



 
10

 

2.4
.4 

To
we
r H
am

let
’s 
foo

d b
us
ine
ss
es
 ar
e p

rim
ari
ly 
ca
ter
ers

 an
d r
eta

ile
rs.
   

 2.4
.5 

Th
ere

 ha
s b
ee
n a

 ris
e i
n t
he
 pr
op
ort
ion
 of
 im
po
rte
d f
oo
ds
 (fr
om

 no
n E

C 
Co
un
trie

s) 
en
ter
ing
 th
e b

oro
ug
h, 
eit
he
r d
ire
ctl
y i
mp

ort
ed
 

by
 bu

sin
es
se
s o
r b
y t
hir
d p

art
ies
 lo
ca
ted

 el
se
wh
ere

. M
an
y o
f th

es
e f
oo
ds
 ca
n b

e i
lle
ga
l (i
.e.
 ba

nn
ed
 fro

m 
im
po
rta
tio
n) 
or 
do
 no

t 
co
mp

ly 
wit
h c

om
po
sit
ion
al 
or 
lab
ell
ing
 re
qu
ire
me

nts
. T
his
 ar
ea
 of
 w
ork

 is
 co

nti
nu
all
y i
nc
rea

sin
g d

ue
 to
 ch
ea
p i
mp

ort
s a
nd
 

co
ns
um

er 
de
ma

nd
. H
ow
ev
er,
 th
is 
foo

d g
ive
s r
ise
 to
 a 
ris
k t
o h

um
an
 he

alt
h. 
Vo
lun
tar
y s
urr
en
de
r a
nd
 se
izu
re 
of 
thi
s f
oo
d h

as
 

be
en
 on

 th
e i
nc
rea

se
. 

 2.4
.6 

W
ith
 co
nti
nu
al 
de
ve
lop
me

nt 
an
d r
eg
en
era

tio
n t
ak
ing
 pl
ac
e i
n t
he
 bo

rou
gh
, th

ere
 is
 a 
co
nti
nu
al 
inc
rea

se
 in
 th
e n

um
be
r o
f fo

od
 

bu
sin
es
se
s. 
W
e a

re 
alr
ea
dy
 w
ork

ing
 in
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w
ith
 ou

r n
eig
hb
ou
rin
g B

oro
ug
hs
 in
 as
se
ss
ing
 th
e l
ike
ly 
im
pa
ct 
of 
the

 20
12
 

Ol
ym
pic
s. 

 2.4
.7 

W
he
n c

arr
yin
g o

ut 
a f
oo
d h

yg
ien
e o

r fo
od
 st
an
da
rds

 in
sp
ec
tio
n, 
off
ice
rs 
ma

y a
lso
 ca

rry
 ou

t a
 he

alt
h &

 sa
fet
y i
ns
pe
cti
on
 w
he
re 

the
 co

un
cil 
is 
the

 en
for
cin
g a

uth
ori
ty 
for
 th
e r
ele
va
nt 
leg
isla

tio
n. 
Fo
r 2
00
8/9

 th
es
e i
ns
pe
cti
on
s w

ill 
be
 on

 a 
pro

jec
t b
as
is.
  T

he
 

pro
jec
ts 
wil
l lo
ok
 at
 fa
lls 
fro
m 
he
igh
t, m

ac
hin
e g

ua
rdi
ng
, y
ou
ng
 w
ork

ers
 an

d g
as
 sa
fet
y 

 2.4
.8 

On
e t
hir
d o

f th
e p

op
ula
tio
n i
s o
f B
an
gla
de
sh
i o
rig
in 
an
d o

ve
r h
alf
 th
e p

op
ula
tio
n a

re 
fro
m 
eth

nic
 m
ino
riti
es
.  T

he
 m
ak
e u

p o
f fo

od
 

bu
sin
es
se
s r
efl
ec
ts 
thi
s p

rof
ile
, a
lth
ou
gh
 de

ma
nd
 fo
r tr
an
sla
tio
n a

nd
 m
ate

ria
ls 
in 
oth

er 
lan
gu
ag
es
 is
 no

t h
igh
. E
thn

ic 
mi
no
rity
 

foo
d b

us
ine
ss
 pr
op
rie
tor
s g
en
era

lly 
pre

fer
 w
ritt
en
 in
for
ma

tio
n t
o b

e p
rov

ide
d i
n E

ng
lish

. A
 tra

ns
lat
ion
 an

d i
nte

rpr
eti
ng
 se

rvi
ce
 is
 

av
ail
ab
le 
if r
eq
uir
ed
. 

 2.4
.9 

Re
ce
pti
on
 an

d I
nfo

rm
ati
on
 Se

rvi
ce
 

 2.4
.10

 
Th
e r
ec
ep
tio
n a

nd
 in
for
ma

tio
n p

oin
t fo

r th
e T

rad
ing
 St
an
da
rds

 an
d E

nv
iro
nm

en
tal
 H
ea
lth
 (C
om

me
rci
al)
 D
ep
art
me

nt 
is 
loc
ate

d 
at:
 

 
An
ch
ora

ge
 H
ou
se
 

Clo
ve
 C
res

ce
nt 

Lo
nd
on
 E1

4 
 

2.4
.11

 
W
e o

pe
rat
e a

n o
ut-
of-
ho
urs

 em
erg

en
cy
 ca

ll-o
ut 
se
rvi
ce
, w
hic
h o

pe
rat
es
 fro

m 
5p
m 
to 
8a
m 
on
 a 
we
ek
da
y a
nd
 24

hrs
 at
 w
ee
ke
nd
s 

an
d B

an
k H

oli
da
ys
.  T

his
 se

rvi
ce
 op

era
tes
 on

ly 
for
 fo
od
 po

iso
nin
g o

utb
rea

ks
 or
 m
ajo
r fo

od
 sa
fet
y i
nc
ide
nts

 an
d o

the
r n
on
-fo
od
 

sa
fet
y r
ela
ted

 em
erg

en
cie
s. 

 

Page 46



 
11

 

2.4
.12

 
To
we
r H
am

let
s a

lso
 ha

s a
 w
eb
sit
e a

t w
ww

.to
we
rha

ml
ets

.go
v.u
k a
nd
 th
e E

nv
iro
nm

en
tal
 H
ea
lth
 C
om

me
rci
al 
Te
am

 ha
ve
 an

 E-
ma

il a
dd
res

s, 
na
me

ly:
 fo
od
sa
fet
y@

tow
erh

am
let
s.g
ov
.uk

 an
d h

ea
lth
an
ds
afe

ty@
tow

erh
am

let
s.g
ov
.uk

 Th
is 
ad
dre

ss
 is
 al
so
 us
ed
 

for
 th
e n

ati
on
al 
ele
ctr
on
ic 
co
mm

un
ica
tio
n s

ys
tem

 fo
r E
nv
iro
nm

en
tal
 H
ea
lth
 D
ep
art
me

nts
, k
no
wn
 as

 EH
CN

et.
 

 2.5
  

En
for
ce
me

nt 
Po
licy

 
 2.5

.1 
Th
e c

urr
en
t e
nfo

rce
me

nt 
po
licy

 is
 do

cu
me

nte
d a

nd
 ou

tlin
es
 al
l e
nfo

rce
me

nt 
ac
tio
n c
arr
ied
 ou

t b
y o
ffic
ers

.  I
t s
ee
ks
 to
 en

su
re 

tha
t fo

rm
al 
en
for
ce
me

nt 
is 
foc
us
ed
 w
he
re 
the

re 
is 
a r
ea
l ri
sk
 to
 pu

bli
c h

ea
lth
 an

d t
ha
t o
ffic
ers

 ca
rry
 ou

t a
cti
on
 in
 a 
fai
r, p

rac
tic
al 

an
d c
on
sis
ten

t m
an
ne
r. T

his
 po

licy
 w
ill n

ee
d t
o b

e r
ev
iew

ed
 in
 lig
ht 
of 
the

 R
eg
ula
tor
s C

om
pli
an
ce
 C
od
e, 
wh
ich
 re
pla
ce
d t
he
 

En
for
ce
me

nt 
Co
nc
ord

at 
for
 ou

r S
erv

ice
. 

 3.0
 

 
Se

rvi
ce
 D
eli
ve
ry 

 3.1
 

Ins
pe
cti
on
 Pr
og
ram

me
s 

  
Th
e n

ew
 pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 in
dic
ato

r 1
84
 – 
Fo
od
 es
tab

lish
me

nts
 in
 th
e a

rea
 th
at 
are

 br
oa
dly
 co

mp
lia
nt 
wit
h f
oo
d h

yg
ien
e l
aw
 – 
ha
s 

sig
nif
ica
ntl
y c
ha
ng
ed
 th
e w

ay
 th
at 
we
 pl
an
 th
e f
oo
d h

yg
ien
e i
ns
pe
cti
on
s. 
Th
is 
ind
ica
tor
 co

ve
rs 
all
 th
e f
oo
d p

rem
ise
s i
n t
he
 

Bo
rou

gh
, n
ot 
jus
t th

os
e t
ha
t a
re 
du
e f
or 
ins
pe
cti
on
 th
is 
ye
ar.
 Th

e c
rite

ria
 fo
r th

is 
me

as
ure

 ar
e a

 sc
ore

 of
 10

 po
int
s o

r b
elo
w 
in 
the

 
co
mp

lia
nc
e o

f p
rem

ise
s s
tru
ctu

re 
an
d h

yg
ien
e l
aw
s a

nd
 th
e c
on
fid
en
ce
 in
 m
an
ag
em

en
t th

at 
the

 fo
od
 bu

sin
es
s o
pe
rat
or 
is 
in 

co
ntr
ols
 of
 th
e h

az
ard

s w
ith
in 
the

ir b
us
ine
ss
, th

is 
me

an
s t
he
 in
tro
du
cti
on
 of
 a 
do
cu
me

nte
d m

an
ag
em

en
t s
ys
tem

.  
 

 
 

Th
e F

SA
 ne

w 
co
de
 of
 pr
ac
tic
e t
ha
t c
om

pli
me

nts
 th
e N

I 1
84
 pe

rm
its
 su
rve

illa
nc
e/v
eri
fic
ati
on
 vi
sit
s t
o b

e u
nd
ert
ak
en
 on

 th
os
e 

bu
sin
es
se
s t
ha
t a
re 
de
em

ed
 br
oa
dly
 co

mp
lia
nt 
in 
the

 lo
we
r ri
sk
 ca

teg
ori
es
 of
 C
 an

d D
 fo
r fo

od
 hy
gie
ne
 an

d n
on
 vi
sit
s f
or 
tho

se
 

in 
ca
teg

ory
 E 
 

  
W
e w

ill p
ilo
t a
 ha

za
rd 
sp
ott
ing
 ap

pro
ac
h t
o t
ho
se
 pr
em

ise
s t
ha
t a
re 
de
em

ed
 to
 be

 br
oa
dly
 co

mp
lia
nt.
 Th

is 
wil
l re

du
ce
 bu

rde
n o

n 
bu
sin
es
s a
nd
 co
nc
en
tra
te 
ou
r re

so
urc

es
 on

 th
e n

on
 co
mp

lia
nt 
bu
sin
es
se
s. 
Ho
we
ve
r, a

 fu
ll in

sp
ec
tio
n w

ill b
e c

arr
ied
 ou

t if
 th
es
e 

co
mp

lia
nt 
bu
sin
es
se
s a
re 
no
t in

 co
ntr
ol 
of 
the

 ris
ks
 or
 a 
pu
bli
c h

ea
lth
 ris
k i
s i
de
nti
fie
d. 

  
It i
s e

nv
isa
ge
d t
ha
t a
 si
gn
ific
an
t n
um

be
r o
f b
us
ine
ss
es
 w
ill c

on
tin
ua
lly 
mo

ve
 be

tw
ee
n b

roa
dly
 co

mp
lia
nt 
an
d n

ot 
bro

ad
ly 

co
mp

lia
nt.
 W
e a

lso
 en

vis
ag
e a

 si
gn
ific
an
t n
um

be
r o
f re

-in
sp
ec
tio
ns
 w
ill b

e u
nd
ert
ak
en
 to
 en

su
re 
tha

t w
e k

ee
p t
he
 up

wa
rd 
tre
nd
 

tow
ard

s b
roa

dly
 co

mp
lia
nt.
 

  
W
e h

av
e d

ete
rm
ine
d t
ha
t w
e h

av
e 5

7%
 of
 al
l fo
od
 pr
em

ise
s c
urr
en
tly
 br
oa
dly
 co

mp
lia
nt.
 

 

Page 47



 
12

 

3.1
.1 

Th
e F

oo
d S

afe
ty 
Of
fic
ers

 ca
rry
 ou

t p
rog

ram
me

d f
oo
d h

yg
ien
e/s

tan
da
rds

 in
sp
ec
tio
ns
 at
 fre

qu
en
cie
s d
ete

rm
ine
d b

y t
he
 FS

A. 
A 

pro
gra

mm
ed
 fo
od
 sa
fet
y i
ns
pe
cti
on
 w
ill t
he
ref
ore

 co
ve
r fo

od
 hy
gie
ne
 an

d f
oo
d s

tan
da
rds

, w
he
re 
thi
s f
all
s d
ue
 (a
lth
ou
gh
 so
me

 
pre

mi
se
s w

ill f
all
 du

e f
or 
foo

d s
tan

da
rds

 in
sp
ec
tio
n o

nly
) a
nd
 w
ill a

lso
 de

al 
wit
h i
ss
ue
s r
ela
tin
g t
o e

nfo
rce

me
nt 
an
d a

dv
ice
 un

de
r 

he
alt
h a

nd
 sa
fet
y l
aw
, e
ith
er 
in 
ve
ry 
bro

ad
 te
rm
s o

r a
s p
art
 of
 a 
foc
us
ed
 he

alt
h &

 sa
fet
y p
roj
ec
t a
ud
it. 
 Th

e i
ns
pe
cti
on
 

pro
gra

mm
e i
s d

ict
ate

d b
y t
he
 fo
od
 hy
gie
ne
 in
sp
ec
tio
n r
ati
ng
 al
loc
ate

d t
o a

 bu
sin
es
s b
ec
au
se
 th
is 
ge
ne
ral
ly 
lea
ds
 to
 m
ore

 
fre
qu
en
t in

sp
ec
tio
ns
. H
ow
ev
er,
 C
ate

go
ry 
A r
isk
 fo
od
 st
an
da
rds

 in
sp
ec
tio
n d

ue
 da

tes
 ar
e c
he
ck
ed
 to
 en

su
re 
tha

t th
es
e a

re 
ins
pe
cte
d. 
 So

me
 pr
em

ise
s s
uc
h a

s i
mp

ort
ers

 w
ho
 do

 no
t a
ctu
all
y h
an
dle
 or
 st
ore

 fo
od
 ar
e s

ub
jec
t o
nly
 to
 fo
od
 st
an
da
rds

 
ins
pe
cti
on
s. 

 3.1
.2 

Ca
teg

ory
 E 
foo

d h
yg
ien

e a
nd
 C
ate

go
ry 
C 
foo

d s
tan

da
rds

 in
sp
ec
tio
ns
 w
ill b

e a
dd
res

se
d b

y u
sin
g a

lte
rna

tiv
e e

nfo
rce

me
nt 

str
ate

gie
s, 
su
ch
 as

 a 
se
lf a
ud
it q
ue
sti
on
na
ire
. T
he
se
 qu

es
tio
nn
air
es
 w
ill b

e s
en
t to

 al
l C
ate

go
ry 
E a

nd
 C
 ra
ted

 pr
em

ise
s. 

Ve
rifi
ca
tio
n f
oll
ow
 up

 w
ill b

e c
arr
ied
 ou

t o
n 5

% 
of 
the

se
 pr
em

ise
s. 

 
3.1

.3 
Fo
r 2
00
8/9

 th
e n

um
be
r o
f fo

od
 hy
gie
ne
 in
sp
ec
tio
ns
 du

e i
s s
ho
wn
 in
 Ta

ble
 3 
an
d t
he
 nu

mb
er 
of 
foo

d s
tan

da
rds

 in
sp
ec
tio
ns
 du

e 
is 
sh
ow
n i
n T

ab
le 
4: 

 
Ta
ble

 3 
 

Th
e n

um
be
r o
f fo

od
 hy
gie
ne
 in
sp
ec
tio
ns
 du

e t
o b

e c
arr
ied

 ou
t in
 20

08
/9.
  

   

Ins
pe
cti
on

 R
ati
ng

 
Nu

mb
er 

of 
foo

d h
yg
ien

e i
ns
pe
cti
on
s d

ue
 

A 
19
 x 
2 =

 38
 

B 
38
0 

C 
Br
oa
dly
 co

mp
lia
nt 

56
1 

C 
no
t B
roa

dly
 

co
mp

lia
nt 

26
4 

D 
Br
oa
dly
 co

mp
lia
nt 

11
8 

D 
no
t b
roa

dly
 

co
mp

lia
nt 

6 
E (
ve
rifi
ca
tio
n) 
 

6 
Un
rat
ed
 

16
1 

To
tal
 In
sp
ec
tio

ns
 

85
5 

To
tal
 Su

rve
illa

nc
e 

vis
its
 

67
9 

To
tal
 In
ter

ve
nti

on
s 

15
34
 

Page 48



 
13

 

  
Ta
ble

 4 
     
    
    
 

Th
e n

um
be
r o
f fo

od
 st
an
da
rds

 in
sp
ec
tio
ns
 du

e i
n 2

00
8/9

 an
d t
he
 in
sp
ec
tio
n t
arg

ets
. 

 
Ins

pe
cti
on

 
Ra

tin
g 

Nu
mb

er 
of 

foo
d s

tan
da
rd
s 

ins
pe
cti
on

s d
ue
 

A 
21
 

B 
40
6 

C 
(ve

rifi
ca
tio
n) 

22
 

Un
rat
ed
 

26
0 

To
tal
 

70
9 

 3.1
.4 

Mo
st 
foo

d s
tan

da
rds

 in
sp
ec
tio
ns
 w
ill b

e c
arr
ied
 ou

t a
t th

e s
am

e t
im
e a

s a
 fo
od
 hy
gie
ne
 in
sp
ec
tio
n. 
It i
s t
he
 te
am

s’ 
tar
ge
t to

 
ac
hie
ve
 10

0%
 of
 al
l A
-C
 hy
gie
ne
 in
sp
ec
tio
ns
 an

d A
 st
an
da
rds

 in
sp
ec
tio
ns
 du

e. 
W
e a

im
 to
 ac
hie
ve
 80

% 
of 
the

 su
rve

illa
nc
e 

ins
pe
cti
on
s. 
 

 
As
 di
rec

ted
 by
 th
e n

ew
 N
ati
on
al 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 In
dic
ato

r 1
84
– w

e a
im
 to
 co
nc
en
tra
te 
ou
r re

so
urc

es
 to
 in
cre

as
e o

ur 
cu
rre
nt 
rat
e 

by
 5%

 to
 63

%.
  

 3.1
.5 

W
he
re 
po
ss
ibl
e n

ew
 pr
em

ise
s i
de
nti
fie
d w

ill b
e a

dd
ed
 to
 th
e w

ork
 pr
og
ram

me
 to
 be

 in
sp
ec
ted

 du
rin
g t
he
 ye
ar.
 Th

es
e ‘
un
rat
ed
’ 

bu
sin
es
se
s w

ill c
ou
nt 
ag
ain
st 
the

 N
I 1
84
, h
en
ce
 re
so
urc

es
 w
ill b

e a
llo
ca
ted

 to
 ca

rry
 ou

t in
sp
ec
tio
ns
 on

 th
e u

nra
ted

 bu
sin
es
se
s. 

 3.1
.6 

Fo
od
 hy
gie
ne
 an

d f
oo
d s
tan

da
rds

 in
sp
ec
tio
n p

roc
ed
ure

s d
eta

il t
he
 st
ep
s t
o b

e f
oll
ow
ed
 by
 of
fic
ers

. T
he
y t
ak
e a

cc
ou
nt 
of 

rel
ev
an
t C
od
es
 of
 Pr
ac
tic
e, 
LA
CO

RS
 an

d F
SA
 gu

ida
nc
e a

nd
 re
lev
an
t In

du
str
y G

uid
es
. 

 3.1
.7 

Hy
gie
ne
 re
vis
its
 w
ill b

e c
arr
ied
 ou

t w
he
re 
en
for
ce
me

nt 
no
tic
es
 ha

ve
 be

en
 is
su
ed
, th

ere
 is
 a 
sig
nif
ica
nt 
pu
bli
c h

ea
lth
 ris
k o

r th
e 

pre
mi
se
s i
n n

ot 
bro

ad
ly 
co
mp

lia
nt.
 

 3.1
.8 

Fo
od
 St
an
da
rds

 re
vis
its
 ar
e o

f a
 lo
we
r p
rio
rity
 an

d n
ot 
req

uir
ed
 as
 of
ten

 as
 fo
r fo

od
 hy
gie
ne
.  

 3.1
.9 

Th
e r
es
ou
rce

 es
tim

ate
d f
or 
pro

gra
mm

ed
 in
sp
ec
tio
ns
, in
clu
din
g a

lte
rna

tiv
e e

nfo
rce

me
nt 
str
ate

gie
s f
or 
low

er 
ris
k p
rem

ise
s i
s 4

.0 
Fu

ll T
im
e E

qu
iva

len
t (F

TE
). R

e i
ns
pe
cti
on
s a
llo
ca
tio
n t
o b

e 0
.86

 FT
E  

An
ne
xe
 A
 gi
ve
s d

eta
ils 
of 
the

 as
se
ss
me

nt 
of 
res

ou
rce

s 
for
 al
l fu
nc
tio
ns
 w
ith
in 
the

 pl
an
. 

 

Page 49



 
14

 

3.1
.10

  
Ad
dit
ion
al 
pri
ori
tie
s h
av
e b

ee
n i
de
nti
fie
d f
or 
ac
tio
n i
nc
lud
ing
: - 
 

 
� 

Ins
pe
cti
on
s w

ill b
e c

arr
ied
 ou

t a
t m

ajo
r fe

sti
va
ls.
 

� 
Ro
uti
ne
 at
ten

da
nc
e a

t B
illin

gs
ga
te 
Ma

rke
t. 

� 
All
 pr
em

ise
s s
ub
jec
t to

 ap
pro

va
l w
ill r
eq
uir
e a

dd
itio
na
l a
tte
nti
on
 an

d i
ns
pe
cti
on
 tim

e d
ue
 to
 th
e r
isk
 th
ey
 pr
es
en
t. 

� 
Fo
od
 St
an
da
rds

 w
ill b

e c
om

bin
ed
 w
ith
 Fo

od
 H
yg
ien
e i
ns
pe
cti
on
s. 

 
� 

He
alt
h &

 Sa
fet
y i
ns
pe
cti
on
s w

ill b
e o

n a
 th
em

ed
 ba

sis
.  

� 
Clo

su
re 
an
d f
oll
ow
-up

 en
for
ce
me

nt 
ac
tio
n, 
inc
lud
ing
 pr
os
ec
uti
on
 of
 bu

sin
es
se
s a

s a
pp
rop

ria
te.
 

� 
W
e w

ill s
pe
cif
ica
lly 
tar
ge
t A
 ris
k p

rem
ise
s w

ith
 ad

vic
e a

nd
 en

for
ce
me

nt 
� 

W
e w

ill u
se
 al
ter
na
tiv
e e

nfo
rce

me
nt 
str
ate

gie
s i
n l
ow
 ris
k p

rem
ise
s. 
 

 
3.2

 
Fo
od
 C
om

pla
int
s/R

eq
ue
sts
 fo
r S
erv

ice
 

 3.2
.1 

Th
e E

nv
iro
nm

en
tal
 H
ea
lth
 C
om

me
rci
al 
Te
am

 w
ill r
ec
ord

, a
ss
es
s, 
pri
ori
tis
e a

nd
 de

al 
ap
pro

pri
ate

ly 
wit
h a

ll r
eq
ue
sts
 fo
r s
erv

ice
.  

Re
qu
es
ts 
for
 se
rvi
ce
 w
ill b

e c
las
se
d a

s h
igh
er 
ris
k i
ss
ue
s o

r lo
we
r ri
sk
 is
su
es
.  T

he
 ta
rge

t re
sp
on
se
 tim

e f
or 
se
rvi
ce
 re
qu
es
ts 

are
: 

 
• 

To
 gi

ve
 a 

1st
 re

sp
on

se
 to

 99
% 

of 
se

rvi
ce

 re
qu

es
ts 

wit
hin

 5 
wo

rki
ng

 da
ys
 

 
• 

To
 re

sp
on

d t
o1

00
% 

of 
hig

he
r ri

sk
 is

su
e s

erv
ice

 re
qu

es
ts 

wit
hin

 24
 ho

urs
. 

 
• 

To
 re

gis
ter

 al
l n

ew
 pr

em
ise

s w
ith

in 
28

 da
ys

 of
 re

ce
ipt

 of
 ap

pli
ca

tio
n f

orm
. 

 3.2
.2 

Th
e n

um
be
r o
f s
erv

ice
 re
qu
es
ts 
for
 20

07
/8 
wa
s 9

83
, a
 up

wa
rd 
tre
nd
 on

 th
e l
as
t y
ea
r.  

 3.2
.3 

Th
e r
es
ou
rce

 es
tim

ate
d f
or 
de
ali
ng
 w
ith
 se

rvi
ce
 re
qu
es
ts 
is 
2.2

 FT
E. 

 3.3
 

Ho
me

 Au
tho

rity
 Pr
inc
ipl
e  

 3.3
.1 

Th
e C

ou
nc
il f
orm

all
y a
do
pte

d t
he
 Lo

ca
l A
uth

ori
ty 
Co
-or
din
ati
ng
 Bo

dy
 on

 R
eg
ula
tor
y S

erv
ice
s (
LA
CO

RS
) H
om

e A
uth

ori
ty 

Pr
inc
ipl
e a

t th
e P

lan
nin
g a

nd
 En

vir
on
me

nta
l S
erv

ice
s C

om
mi
tte
e m

ee
tin
g o

f 1
3th
 Ju

ne
 19

95
.  A

 H
om

e A
uth

ori
ty 
is 
the

 lo
ca
l 

au
tho

rity
 w
he
re 
the

 de
cis
ion
 m
ak
ing
 ba

se
 of
 an

 en
ter
pri
se
 is
 si
tua

ted
.  T

he
 lo
ca
l a
uth

ori
ty 
pro

vid
es
 ad

vic
e t
o t
he
 en

ter
pri
se
 an

d 
de
als
 w
ith
 en

qu
irie
s f
rom

 ot
he
r c
ou
nc
ils 
in 
rel
ati
on
 to
 th
e b

us
ine
ss
.  A

n O
rig
ina
tin
g A

uth
ori
ty 
pre

mi
se
s i
s o

ne
 w
he
re 
the

 fo
od
 is
 

ma
nu
fac
tur
ed
, s
tor
ed
 or
 fir
st 
im
po
rte
d t
o, 
bu
t to

 w
hic
h t
he
 de

fin
itio
n o

f H
om

e A
uth

ori
ty 
do
es
 no

t a
pp
ly.
 

 

Page 50



 
15

 

3.3
.2 

Ap
pro

xim
ate

ly 
20
0 b

us
ine
ss
es
 ha

ve
 be

en
 id
en
tifi
ed
 as
 pr
ob
ab
le 
Ho
me

 or
 O
rig
ina
tin
g A

uth
ori
ty 
pre

mi
se
s. 
En
qu
irie
s f
or 
ad
vic
e 

fro
m 
loc
al 
bu
sin
es
se
s o
r o
the

r e
nfo

rce
me

nt 
au
tho

riti
es
 w
ill b

e t
rea

ted
 as

 re
qu
es
ts 
for
 se
rvi
ce
 an

d w
ill b

e p
rio
riti
se
d a

cc
ord

ing
ly.
 

 3.3
.3 

Th
e r
es
ou
rce

 es
tim

ate
d f
or 
thi
s a

rea
 of
 w
ork

 is
 0.
25
 FT

E. 
 3.4

 
Ad
vic
e t
o b

us
ine
ss
 

 3.4
.1 

Ad
vic
e i
s f
ree

ly 
av
ail
ab
le 
to 
foo

d b
us
ine
ss
es
 an

d i
s p

rov
ide
d d

uri
ng
 vi
sit
s a

nd
 up

on
 re
qu
es
t.  
Bu
sin
es
s i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 pa

ck
s h
av
e 

be
en
 pr
od
uc
ed
 fo
r p
eo
ple
 co
ns
ide
rin
g s
ett
ing
 up

 a 
foo

d b
us
ine
ss
 an

d a
re 
se
nt 
to 
rel
ev
an
t a
pp
lica

nts
 fo
r p
lan
nin

g p
erm

iss
ion
.  A

 
va
rie
ty 
of 
inf
orm

ati
on
 le
afl
ets
, in

 co
mm

un
ity
 la
ng
ua
ge
s, 
are

 al
so
 av
ail
ab
le.
 

 3.4
.3 

A b
us
ine
ss
 ne

ws
let
ter
 (F
oo
d a

nd
 D
rin
k) 
wa
s e

sta
bli
sh
ed
 in
 20

03
/4,
 pu

bli
sh
ed
 3 
tim
es
 a 
ye
ar.
  T
his
 ha

s b
ee
n w

ell
 re
ce
ive
d a

nd
 

wil
l c
on
tin
ue
 in
 20

08
/9.
 

 3.4
.4 

 
Th
e r
es
ou
rce

 re
qu
ire
d f
or 
thi
s w

ork
 is
 es

tim
ate

d t
o b

e 0
.32

 FT
E. 

 3.5
 

Fo
od
 In
sp
ec
tio
n a

nd
 Sa

mp
lin
g  

 3.5
.1 

Fo
od
 is
 in
sp
ec
ted

 in
 ac
co
rda

nc
e w

ith
 U
K a

nd
 EU

 le
gis
lat
ion
.  A

 do
cu
me

nte
d s
am

pli
ng
 pr
og
ram

me
 is
 pr
od
uc
ed
 ea

ch
 fin
an
cia
l 

ye
ar 
co
ve
rin
g p

lan
ne
d m

icr
ob
iol
og
ica
l a
nd
 ch
em

ica
l s
am

pli
ng
. O

ur 
sa
mp

lin
g p

oli
cy
 is
 at
 An

ne
x F

 
 3.5

.2 
Th
e p

rog
ram

me
 in
clu
de
s p

art
icip

ati
on
 in
 co

-or
din
ate

d p
roj
ec
ts 
org

an
ise
d b

y t
he
 Fo

od
 St
an
da
rds

 Ag
en
cy
, H
ea
lth
 Pr
ote

cti
on
 

Ag
en
cy
 (H
PA

), L
oc
al 
Au
tho

rity
 C
oo
rdi
na
tin
g B

od
y o
n R

eg
ula
tor
y S

erv
ice
s (
LA
CO

RS
), E

U,
 Lo

nd
on
 Fo

od
 C
o-o

rdi
na
tin
g G

rou
p 

an
d N

ort
h E

as
t L
on
do
n F

oo
d L

iai
so
n G

rou
p. 
 Pl
an
ne
d l
oc
al 
pro

jec
ts 
an
d H

om
e A

uth
ori
ty 
sa
mp

lin
g a

re 
als
o i
nc
lud
ed
. 

 3.5
.3 

Th
e t
arg

et 
for
 20

08
/09

 is
 ap

pro
xim

ate
ly 
20
0 s
am

ple
s t
o b

e t
ak
en
 by
 th
e e

nd
 of
 th
e f
ina
nc
ial
 ye
ar.
  T
he
 bu

dg
et 
for
 sa
mp

lin
g i
s 

£1
2,0

00
. 

 3.5
.4 

Th
e t
ota

l n
um

be
r o
f s
am

ple
s t
ak
en
 fo
r 2
00
7/0

8 w
as
 25

6 o
f w
hic
h 5

0 f
ail
ed
 an

d f
oll
ow
 up

 ac
tio
n w

as
 re
qu
ire
d. 

 3.5
.5 

Th
e L

ab
ora

tor
ies
 to
 w
hic
h s

am
ple
s a
re 
se
nt 
are

 su
bje
ct 
to 
the

 ap
pro

pri
ate

 ac
cre

dit
ati
on
. A
na
lys
is 
is 
un
de
rta
ke
n b

y t
he
 C
ou
nc
il’s
 

no
mi
na
ted

 Pu
bli
c A

na
lys
ts:
- 

 
Du
nc
an
 Ar
thu

r 
Je
rem

y W
oo
ten

 
Eu
rof
ins
 Sc

ien
tifi
c L
ab
ora

tor
ies
, 4
45
 N
ew
 C
ros

s R
oa
d, 
Lo
nd
on
, S
E1
4 

Page 51



 
16

 

 Mi
cro

bio
log
ica
l e
xa
mi
na
tio
n i
s u
nd
ert
ak
en
 by
:- 

Su
sa
n S

urm
an
 (F
oo
d E

xa
mi
ne
r) 

He
alt
h P

rot
ec
tio
n A

ge
nc
y, 
Fo
od
, W

ate
r &
 En

vir
on
me

nta
l M
icr
ob
iol
og
y U

nit
 (L
on
do
n),
 Fo

od
 Sa

fet
y M

icr
ob
iol
og
y L

ab
ora

tor
y, 

Ce
ntr
al 
Pu
bli
c H

ea
lth
 La

bo
rat
ory

, 6
1, 
Co
lin
da
le 
Av
en
ue
, L
on
do
n, 
NW

9 5
HT
. 

 On
 oc

ca
sio
ns
, s
am

ple
s f
or 
mi
cro

bio
log
ica
l e
xa
mi
na
tio
n w

ill b
e s

en
t to

 Eu
rof
ins
 Sc

ien
tifi
c L
ab
ora

tor
ies
. 

 
3.5

.6 
Th
e r
es
ou
rce

 re
qu
ire
d f
or 
foo

d s
am

pli
ng
 is
 es

tim
ate

d t
o b

e 0
.7F

TE
 

 3.6
 

Ou
tbr
ea
k C

on
tro
l a
nd
 In
fec

tio
us
 D
ise
as
e C

on
tro
l 

 3.6
.1 

W
e w

ill i
nv
es
tig
ate

 al
l s
us
pe
cte
d a

nd
 co

nfi
rm
ed
 ou

tbr
ea
ks
 of
 fo
od
 po

iso
nin
g a

nd
 th
e O

utb
rea

k C
on
tro
l P
lan
 w
ill b

e i
mp

lem
en
ted

 
in 
the

 ca
se
 of
 a 
ma

jor
 ou

tbr
ea
k (
i.e
. 4
 or
 m
ore

 ca
se
s).
 

 3.6
.2 

Ind
ivid

ua
l a
lle
ga
tio
ns
 of
 fo
od
 po

iso
nin
g c
au
se
d f
rom

 co
ns
um

pti
on
 of
 fo
od
 w
ith
in 
the

 bo
rou

gh
, b
ut 
wh
ich
 ar
e n

ot 
su
pp
ort
ed
 by
 

me
dic
al 
ev
ide
nc
e w

ill b
e t
rea

ted
 as
 se

rvi
ce
 re
qu
es
ts.
 Th

e l
ev
el 
of 
res

ou
rce

 is
 es
tim

ate
d a

t 0
.8 
FT

E  
 3.7

 
Fo
od
 Sa

fet
y I
nc
ide
nts

 
 3.7

.1 
W
e d

ea
l w
ith
 Fo

od
 Al
ert
s i
n a

cc
ord

an
ce
 w
ith
 th
e C

od
e o

f P
rac

tic
e a

nd
 gu

ida
nc
e i
ss
ue
d b

y t
he
 Fo

od
 St
an
da
rds

 Ag
en
cy
.  A

ler
ts 

req
uir
ing
 ac

tio
n b

y t
he
 de

pa
rtm

en
t w
ill t
ak
e p

rio
rity
 ov

er 
all
 ot
he
r w
ork

. T
he
 ou

t-o
f-h
ou
rs 
em

erg
en
cy
 se

rvi
ce
 w
ill n

oti
fy 
the

 du
ty 

off
ice
r in

 th
e e

ve
nt 
tha

t th
e F

oo
d S

tan
da
rds

 Ag
en
cy
 no

tifi
es
 th
em

 of
 a 
ma

jor
 in
cid
en
t o
f fo

od
 co

nta
mi
na
tio
n w

hic
h o

cc
urs

 ou
tsi
de
 

no
rm
al 
off
ice
 ho

urs
.  

 3.7
.2 

Th
ere

 is
 a 
po
licy

 do
cu
me

nt 
an
d p

roc
ed
ure

 no
te 
on
 de

ali
ng
 w
ith
 Fo

od
 H
az
ard

 W
arn

ing
s. 

 3.7
.3 

Re
so
urc

es
 fo
r th

is 
wo
rk 
are

 de
pe
nd
en
t o
n t
he
 de

ma
nd
. In

 20
07
/8 
the

re 
we
re 
14
6 F

oo
d A

ler
ts 
iss
ue
d b

y t
he
 FS

A. 
Re
so
urc

es
 ar
e 

the
ref
ore

 es
tim

ate
d a

t 0
.3 
FT

E. 
(In
clu
de
d i
n S

erv
ice
 R
eq
ue
sts
 ab

ov
e) 

 3.8
 

Lia
iso
n w

ith
 O
the

r O
rga

nis
ati
on
s  

 3.8
.1 

Lia
iso
n a

rra
ng
em

en
ts 
are

 in
 pl
ac
e t
o e

ns
ure

 th
at 
en
for
ce
me

nt 
ac
tio
n i
n T

ow
er 
Ha
ml
ets

 is
 co
ns
ist
en
t w
ith
 ne

igh
bo
uri
ng
 

au
tho

riti
es
 an

d i
n p

art
icu
lar
: - 

 
� 

To
we
r H
am

let
s i
s a

 m
em

be
r o
f th

e N
ort
h E

as
t L
on
do
n F

oo
d L

iai
so
n G

rou
p w

hic
h m

ee
ts 
ev
ery

 ei
gh
t w
ee
ks
.   

Page 52



 
17

 

� 
A P

EH
O 
att
en
ds
 re
gu
lar
 su

b-g
rou

p m
ee
tin
gs
 to
 di
sc
us
s a
nd
 ar
ran

ge
 co

-or
din
ate

d s
am

pli
ng
 ac

tiv
itie
s. 

� 
To
we
r H
am

let
s i
s a

 ke
y m

em
be
r o
f a
 fu
rth
er 
su
b-g

rou
p o

n a
pp
rov

ed
 pr
em

ise
s. 

� 
A m

em
be
r o
f th

e t
ea
m 
is 
the

 Jo
int
 Se

cre
tar
y o
f th

e C
IEH

 Lo
nd
on
 Fo

od
 St
ud
y G

rou
p a

nd
 st
aff
 re
gu
lar
ly 
att
en
ds
 th
eir
 

me
eti
ng
s. 

� 
Pla

nn
ed
 lia
iso
n m

ee
tin
gs
 ta
ke
 pl
ac
e b

etw
ee
n t
he
 H
ea
lth
 Pr
ote

cti
on
 Ag

en
cy
. 

 3.8
.2 

Th
e r
es
ou
rce

 re
qu
ire
d f
or 
the

se
 ac
tiv
itie
s i
s e

sti
ma

ted
 at
 0.
2 F

TE
. 

 3.9
 

Fo
od
 Sa

fet
y P

rom
oti
on
 

 3.9
.1 

Th
e F

oo
d S

afe
ty 
Of
fic
ers

 w
ill, 
su
bje
ct 
to 
av
ail
ab
le 
res

ou
rce

s, 
ca
rry
 ou

t fo
od
 sa
fet
y p
rom

oti
on
al 
wo
rk 
thr
ou
gh
 pa

rtic
ipa
tio
n i
n 

ce
rta
in 
na
tio
na
l c
am

pa
ign
s a

nd
 lo
ca
l p
roj
ec
ts,
 m
ore

 sp
ec
ific
all
y: 

 
� 

A l
oc
al 
ca
mp

aig
n, 
inc
lud
ing
 a 
pre

ss
 re
lea
se
 is
 pl
an
ne
d t
o h

igh
lig
ht 
rel
ev
an
t fo

od
 sa
fet
y i
ss
ue
s p

rio
r to

 C
hri
stm

as
. 

� 
It i
s i
nte

nd
ed
 to
 ex
am

ine
 op

po
rtu
nit
ies
 to
 pa

rtic
ipa
te 
in 
ap
pro

pri
ate

 sc
he
me

s, 
de
live

r ta
lks
, a
nd
 pr
ov
ide
 di
sp
lay
s f
or 
su
ita
ble
 

gro
up
s o

r a
t e
ve
nts

 or
 lo
ca
tio
ns
 th
rou

gh
ou
t th

e y
ea
r. 

� 
Na
tio
na
l O
be
sit
y S

tra
teg

y w
ork

ing
 w
ith
 th
e P

CT
. 

� 
Nu
trit
ion
al 
req

uir
em

en
ts 
of 
Sc
ho
ol 
me

als
 

 
3.9

.2 
Th
e r
es
ou
rce

 re
qu
ire
d f
or 
the

se
 ac
tiv
itie
s i
s e

sti
ma

ted
 at
 0.
6 F

TE
. 

 3.1
0 

Ad
mi
nis
tra
tio
n  

 3.1
0.1

 
Th
e S

erv
ice
’s 
ce
ntr
al 
Ad
mi
n t
ea
m 
pro

vid
es
 ad

mi
nis
tra
tio
n s
up
po
rt. 
 

 3.1
1 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt  
 3.1

1.1
 

Th
e E

nv
iro
nm

en
tal
 H
ea
lth
 C
om

me
rci
al 
Se
rvi
ce
s M

an
ag
er 
pro

vid
es
 m
an
ag
em

en
t, w

ith
 su

pp
ort
 fro

m 
the

 3 
PE

HO
’s 
wh
o a

lso
 

ha
ve
 fie
ldw

ork
 du

tie
s. 
 M
an
ag
em

en
t a
cc
ou
nts
 fo
r a
pp
rox

im
ate

ly 
1.2

5 F
TE
. 

 4.0
 

Re
so
ur
ce
s  

 4.1
 

 
Fin

an
cia
l A
llo
ca
tio
n  

 4.1
.1 

Th
e F

oo
d S

afe
ty 
fin
an
cia
l a
llo
ca
tio
n i
s p
art
 of
 th
e E

nv
iro
nm

en
tal
 H
ea
lth
 (C
om

me
rci
al)
 co

st 
ce
ntr
e. 
Th
e b

ud
ge
t a
llo
ca
tio
n i
s a

s 
sh
ow
n i
n T

ab
le 
5. 
 

Page 53



 
18

 

 4.1
.2 

Tra
ini
ng
 co

sts
 ar
e i
nc
lud
ed
 in
 th
e E

mp
loy
ee
 re
lat
ed
 ex
pe
ns
es
. T
he
re 
is 
an
 al
loc
ati
on
 of
 ap

pro
xim

ate
ly 
£2
20
 pe

r m
em

be
r o
f s
taf
f. 

Ho
we
ve
r th

is 
is 
oft
en
 su
pp
lem

en
ted

 fro
m 
oth

er 
pa
rts
 of
 th
e d

ep
art
me

nta
l b
ud
ge
t. 

 4.1
.3 

Pr
ov
isio

n o
f o
the

r c
en
tra
l, d

ire
cto

rat
e s

up
po
rt s

erv
ice
s w

hic
h i
nc
lud
es
 le
ga
l s
erv

ice
s i
s a

dd
ed
 at
 th
e e

nd
 of
 th
e f
ina
nc
ial
 ye
ar 
to 

se
rvi
ce
 co

sts
. T
his
 re
ch
arg

e i
s o

n a
 di
vis
ion
al 
ba
sis
 an

d n
ot 
bro

ke
n d

ow
n i
nto

 in
div
idu
al 
tea

ms
. 

 Ta
ble

 5 
Bu

dg
et 
for

 En
vir
on

me
nta

l H
ea
lth

 C
om

me
rci

al 
– F

oo
d S

afe
ty 
20
08
/09

  
 

EX
PE

ND
ITU

RE
 

 
Sa

lar
ies

    
    

    
    

 
59

8,2
00

 
Em

plo
ye

e R
ela

ted
 

Ex
pe

nd
itu

re 
8,0

00
 

Ca
r A

llo
wa

nc
es

    
    

  
12

,90
0 

Pa
rki

ng
 Pe

rm
its
/C
ha

rge
s 

60
0 

Pu
bli
c T

ran
sp

ort
 C
os

ts 
 

20
0 

Eq
uip

me
nt 

& F
urn

itu
re 

  
2,8

00
 

Ma
ter

ial
s ,

 Sa
mp

les
 & 

Te
sti
ng

    
    

    
  

13
,00

0 
Clo

thi
ng

, U
nif

orm
s &

 
La

un
dry

 
20

0 

Of
fic

e E
xp

en
se

s  
    

   
1,6

00
 

Ex
ter

na
l S

erv
ice

s 
5,7

00
 

Co
mm

un
ica

tio
n C

os
ts 

    
1,0

00
 

Mi
sc

ell
an

eo
us

 Ex
pe

ns
es

  
60

0 
GR

OS
S 

EX
PE

ND
ITU

RE
 

 
64

4,8
00

 
 

 
IN
CO

ME
 

 
Fe

es
 an

d C
ha

rge
s  

    
  

(2,
50

0) 
Ot

he
r F

ee
s a

nd
 C
ha

rge
s  

(1,
10

0) 
GR

OS
S I

NC
OM

E 
(3,

60
0) 

NE
T E

XP
EN

DI
TU

RE
 

 
64

1,2
00

 
 

 
  

Page 54



 
19

 

  4.2
 

Sta
ffin

g A
llo
ca
tio
n 

 4.2
.1 

Th
e s

taf
fin
g f
or 
foo

d s
afe

ty 
wo
rk,
 is
 as

 fo
llo
ws
: 

 
0.5

 x 
En
vir
on
me

nta
l H
ea
lth
 C
om

me
rci
al 
Se
rvi
ce
 M
an
ag
er 
 

3 x
 Pr
inc
ipa
l E
nv
iro
nm

en
tal
 H
ea
lth
 O
ffic
er 
(P
EH

O)
 

3 x
 Se

nio
r E
nv
iro
nm

en
tal
 H
ea
lth
 O
ffic
er 
(S
EH

O)
   

4 x
 En

vir
on
me

nta
l H
ea
lth
 O
ffic
er 
(E
HO

) 
2 x
 Fo

od
 Sa

fet
y O

ffic
er 
(FS

O)
  

(To
tal
 Te

ch
nic
al 
Sta

ff f
or 
wo
rk 
ide
nti
fie
d i
n p

lan
 = 
12
.5 
FT

E)
 

 
4.2

.3 
Ad
dit
ion
al 
res

ou
rce

s l
oc
ate

d o
uts
ide
 of
 th
e E

nv
iro
nm

en
tal
 H
ea
lth
 C
om

me
rci
al 
Te
am

 ar
e a

s f
oll
ow
s: 

 
TS
O/
CS

O 
–A
nim

al 
Fe
ed
ing
-st
uff
s –
 re
so
urc

es
 al
loc
ate

d a
s r
eq
uir
ed
 

 En
vir
on
me

nta
l H
ea
lth
 C
om

me
rci
al 
& T

rad
ing
 St
an
da
rds

 Te
am

s s
ha
re 
ad
mi
nis
tra
tio
n R

es
ou
rce

s: 
 Fo
od
 Sa

fet
y a
llo
ca
tio
n i
s a

pp
rox

im
ate

ly:
 

 1 x
 Ad

mi
nis
tra
tio
n T

ea
m 
Le
ad
er 
(0.
3 F

TE
) 

1 x
 Se

nio
r A
dm

ini
str
ati
on
 O
ffic
er 
(0.
3 F

TE
) 

4 x
 Ad

mi
nis
tra
tio
n O

ffic
ers

 (1
.2 
FT
E)
 

(To
tal
 Ad

mi
n s
taf
f =
 1.
8 F

TE
) 

 
4.2

.4 
Au
tho

ris
ati
on
 an

d c
om

pe
ten

cie
s  

 
EH

 C
om

 Se
rvi
ce
 M
an
ag
er/
PE

HO
s/E

HO
s: 

 
 • 

Fu
lly 
qu
ali
fie
d t
o D

ipl
om

a/D
eg
ree

 le
ve
l 

• 
Au
tho

ris
ed
 to
 in
sp
ec
t a
ll c
ate

go
rie
s (
wit
h t
he
 ex
ce
pti
on
 of
 an

y o
ffic
ers

 w
ho
 ha

ve
 no

t b
ee
n q

ua
lifie

d f
or 
6 m

on
ths

 or
 ha

ve
 

ins
uff
icie

nt 
ex
pe
rie
nc
e) 

• 
Ta
ke
 al
l le
ve
ls 
of 
en
for
ce
me

nt 
ac
tio
n (
wit
h t
he
 ex
ce
pti
on
 of
 an

y o
ffic
ers

 w
ho
 ha

ve
 no

t b
ee
n q

ua
lifie

d f
or 
2 y
rs)
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 55



 
20

 

4.3
    
   

Sta
ff D

ev
elo
pm

en
t P
lan
 

 4.3
.1 

Th
e c

ou
nc
il u
se
s i
ts 
Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 D
ev
elo
pm

en
t a
nd
 R
ev
iew

 Sc
he
me

 to
: 

 
• 

Se
t in
div
idu
al 
aim

s a
nd
 ob

jec
tiv
es
 fo
r s
taf
f.  

• 
Mo

nit
or 
an
d a

pp
rai
se
 pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
.  

• 
As
se
ss
 th
e d

ev
elo
pm

en
t n
ee
ds
 of
 al
l s
taf
f.  

 
At 
the

 st
art
 of
 th
e p

erf
orm

an
ce
 ye
ar 
all
 st
aff
 w
ill h

av
e t
he
ir o

wn
 Pe

rso
na
l P
lan
, w
hic
h w

ill c
om

pri
se
 of
 th
eir
 m
ain

 ob
jec
tiv
es
 w
ith
 

tar
ge
ts 
an
d t
he
ir o

wn
 de

ve
lop
me

nt 
pla
n. 

 4.3
.2 

Ind
ivid

ua
l a
nd
 Te

am
 tra

ini
ng
 pl
an
s r
efl
ec
t th

e f
oll
ow
ing
 

 
• 

Co
mm

on
 tra

ini
ng
 is
su
es
 fo
r th

e s
erv

ice
 

• 
Tra

ini
ng
 is
su
es
 lin
ke
d t
o C

orp
ora

te 
an
d D

ire
cto
rat
e p

rio
riti
es
 

• 
Tra

ini
ng
 lin
ke
d t
o n

ew
 le
gis
lat
ion
, p
rof
es
sio
na
l d
ev
elo

pm
en
ts 

• 
Tra

ini
ng
 re
lat
ing
 to
 or
ga
nis
ati
on
al 
ma

tte
rs 
(IT
, s
ys
tem

s a
nd
 pr
oc
ed
ure

s) 
 4.3

.3 
Tra

ini
ng
 fo
r th

e f
ina
nc
ial
 ye
ar 
20
08
/9 
is 
pri
ori
tis
ed
 as

 fo
llo
ws
:- 

 
Fo
od
 Is
su
es
 

Im
po
rte
d F

oo
d 

Ap
pro

ve
d P

rod
uc
ts 

Eth
nic
 fo
od
s 

Up
da
te 
Se
mi
na
rs 

 Ge
ne
ral
 Is
su
es
 

Te
am

 Bu
ild
ing
 

Le
ga
l P
roc

ed
ure

s 
Eq
ua
litie

s 
 

 4.4
 

All
oc
ati
on
 of
 R
es
ou
rce

s  
 4.4

.1 
Ta
ble

 6 
in 
An

ne
xe
 A
 se

ts 
ou
t th

e t
ota

l re
so
urc

es
 av
ail
ab
le 
(i.e

. 1
2.5

 FT
E o

ffic
ers

) a
nd
 ho

w 
the

 re
so
urc

es
 id
en
tifi
ed
 to
 co
mp

let
e 

the
 pl
an
 in
 20

07
/8.
 w
ere

 al
loc
ate

d. 
 Th

e t
ab
le 
als
o s

ets
 ou

t th
e r
es
ou
rce

s r
eq
uir
ed
 to
 fu
lfil 
the

 pl
an
 fo
r 2
00
8/9

 (1
2.6

8 F
TE

). 

Page 56



 
21

 

 4.4
.2 

It w
ill b

e p
os
sib
le 
to 
de
live

r o
n t
his
 pl
an
, p
rov

idi
ng
 th
at 
the

 cu
rre
nt 
va
ca
nt 
po
sts
 co
nti
nu
e t
o b

e f
ille
d b

y a
ge
nc
y s
taf
f . 

 4.4
.3 

Se
cti
on
 6.
0 o

f th
is 
Pla

n s
ets

 ou
t th

e a
ch
iev
em

en
ts 
of 
the

 te
am

 in
 20

07
/8 

 4.4
.4 

Th
e a

rea
s o
f w
ork

 w
hic
h w

ere
 no

t c
om

ple
ted

 w
ere

: 
 

� 
Ho
me

 Au
tho

rity
 ac

tiv
ity
 – 
no
 fo
rm
al 
ag
ree

me
nts
 w
ere

 es
tab

lish
ed
.  

� 
Pr
og
ram

me
d i
ns
pe
cti
on
s w

ere
 99

.6%
 of
 th
os
e p

lan
ne
d f
or 
hy
gie
ne
 an

d 5
7.3

% 
for
 st
an
da
rds

. (e
xc
lud
ing
 un

rat
ed
) 

 
5.0

 
 

Qu
ali
ty 
As

se
ss
me

nt 
 5.1

 
Th
e m

ea
su
res

 to
 be

 ta
ke
n b

y t
he
 En

vir
on
me

nta
l H
ea
lth
 C
om

me
rci
al 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
to 
as
se
ss
 qu

ali
ty 
an
d p

rom
ote

 co
ns
ist
en
cy
 

inc
lud
e: 
- 

 
 

• 
De
sk
top

 re
vie
ws
 of
 pr
oa
cti
ve
 an

d r
ea
cti
ve
 ca

se
 pa

pe
rw
ork

 an
d f
ile
s w

ill b
e u

nd
ert
ak
en
 by
 a 
PE

HO
. 

• 
Ne
w 
or 

Ag
en
cy
 s
taf
f w

ill 
be
 in

du
cte
d 
int
o 
the

 d
ep
art
me

nts
 p
roc

ed
ure

s 
an
d 
sh
ad
ow
ed
 o
n 
ins
pe
cti
on
s 
to 

en
su
re 

co
mp

ete
nc
y a
nd
 co
ns
ist
en
cy
. 

• 
All
 st
aff
 w
ill h

av
e a

 6 
we
ek
ly 
1 t
o 1

 w
ith
 th
eir
 im
me

dia
te 
su
pe
rvi
so
r to

 di
sc
us
s c
as
ew
ork

. 
• 

Ac
co
mp

an
ied
 in
sp
ec
tio
ns
 w
ill b

e c
arr
ied
 ou

t w
ith
 ea

ch
 m
em

be
r o
f s
taf
f. 

• 
Do
cu
me

nte
d p

roc
ed
ure

s 
• 

Bi 
-m
on
thl
y d
oc
um

en
ted

 te
am

 m
ee
tin
g  

• 
Oc
ca
sio
na
l tr
ain
ing
 se

ss
ion
s a

nd
 ot
he
r e
xe
rci
se
s w

hic
h a

re 
org

an
ise
d t
o a

id 
co
ns
ist
en
cy
, s
taf
f a
pp
rai
sa
ls 
an
d 6

 m
on
th 

rev
iew

s. 
• 

Mo
nth

ly 
mo

nit
ori
ng
 re
po
rts
 w
ill b

e p
rod

uc
ed
 us
ing
 th
e F

LA
RE

 so
ftw
are

 sy
ste

m.
 

 6.0
 

 
Re

vie
w 

 6.1
 

 
Re
vie
w 
ag
ain
st 
the

 Se
rvi
ce
 Pl
an
 

 6.1
.1 

Th
e E

nv
iro
nm

en
tal
 H
ea
lth
 C
om

me
rci
al 
Se
rvi
ce
 M
an
ag
er 
wil
l p
res

en
t re

po
rts
 to
 th
e S

erv
ice
 M
an
ag
em

en
t T
ea
m 
on
 pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 

of 
the

 fo
od
 sa
fet
y i
ns
pe
cti
on
s a
ga
ins
t p
erf
orm

an
ce
 ta
rge

ts 
de
tai
led
 in
 th
e S

erv
ice
 Pl
an
. 

 6.1
.2 

At 
the

 en
d o

f th
e f
ina
nc
ial
 ye

ar,
 a 
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 re
vie
w 
is 
ca
rrie

d o
ut 
by
 th
e E

nv
iro
nm

en
tal
 H
ea
lth
 C
om

me
rci
al 
Se
rvi
ce
 M
an
ag
er 

wit
h i
np
ut 
fro
m 
tea

m 
me

mb
ers

, w
hic
h w

ill 
inc
lud
e i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 on

 th
e p

as
t y
ea
r’s
 pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 an

d p
rog

res
s o

n a
ny
 sp

ec
ifie
d 

Page 57



 
22

 

pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 ta
rge

ts,
 se

rvi
ce
 im

pro
ve
me

nts
 an

d t
arg

ete
d o

utc
om

es
.  
It w

ill 
als
o i
de
nti
fy 
se
rvi
ce
 pr
ior
itie
s f
or 
the

 co
mi
ng
 ye

ar.
  

Th
e r
ev
iew

 of
 20

07
/8 
is 
se
t o
ut 
in 
6.4

 be
low

. 
 6.2

 
 

Ide
nti
fic
ati
on
 of
 an

y v
ari
an
ce
 fro

m 
the

 Se
rvi
ce
 Pl
an
. 

 
6.2

.1 
An
y v
ari
an
ce
 in
 m
ee
tin
g t
he
 Fo

od
 La

w 
En
for
ce
me

nt 
Se
rvi
ce
 P
lan
 is
 id
en
tifi
ed
 in
 th
e r
ev
iew

 in
 6.
4 t
og
eth

er 
wit
h a

ny
 re
as
on
s f
or 

the
 va
ria
nc
e. 
 W
he
re 
ne
ce
ss
ary

 an
y v
ari
an
ce
 w
ill b

e a
dd
res

se
d i
n t
his
 ye
ars

 pl
an
. 

 6.3
 

 
Ar
ea
s o
f Im

pro
ve
me

nt 
 

 6.3
.1 

W
he
re 

a 
se
rvi
ce
 im

pro
ve
me

nt 
or 

a 
se
rvi
ce
 d
ev
elo
pm

en
t i
s 
ide
nti
fie
d 
as
 p
art
 o
f t
he
 re

vie
w 
pro

ce
ss
 o
r t
hro

ug
h 
qu
ali
ty 

as
se
ss
me

nts
, it
 w
ill 
be
 in
co
rpo

rat
ed
 in
to 
thi
s y

ea
rs 
pla
n. 
Ke
y a

rea
s f
or 
im
pro

ve
me

nt 
ide
nti
fie
d f
rom

 th
e r
ev
iew

 ar
e d

eta
ile
d i
n 

pa
rag

rap
h 6

.18
. 

 6.4
 

Ins
pe
cti
on
 Pr
og
ram

me
s 

 6.4
.1 

Th
e m

on
ito
rin
g f
or 
the

 FS
A 
wa
s o

nly
 fo
r th

e f
irs
t th

ree
 qu

art
ers

 of
 th
e y

ea
r d
ue
 to
 ch

an
ge
s t
o t
he
 m
on
ito
rin
g p

roc
ed
ure

s. 
Th
is 

se
cti
on
 co

ve
rs 
a 
rep

ort
 b
ac
k f
or 
the

 fu
ll y

ea
r. 
99
.6%

 o
f a
ll f
oo
d 
hy
gie
ne
 p
rem

ise
s t
ha
t w

ere
 d
ue
 fo
r i
ns
pe
cti
on
 h
ad
 a
 fo
od
 

hy
gie
ne
 in
ter
ve
nti
on
 (th

is 
fig
ure

 ex
clu
de
s t
he
 un

rat
ed
s a

s t
he
se
 ar
e n

ot 
inc
lud
ed
 in
 th
is 
sta
tis
tic
 to
 th
e F

SA
). 6

 in
sp
ec
tio
ns
 w
ere

 
mi
ss
ed
.  H

ow
ev
er,
 th
is 
wa
s m

ad
e u

p f
rom

 1 
B, 
2 C

, 3
 D
 (3
4 u

nra
ted

 pr
em

ise
s w

ere
 al
so
 no

t v
isit
ed
). A

ll o
ve
rdu

e p
rem

ise
s h

av
e 

be
en
 ca

rrie
d f
orw

ard
 to
 th
e 2

00
8/9

 pr
og
ram

me
. T
his
 is
 an

 im
pro

ve
me

nt 
on
 la
st 
ye
ar.
  

 6.4
.2 

W
e c
arr
ied
 ou

t 6
43
 re
vis
its
, th

is 
is 
an
 in
cre

as
e f
rom

 th
e p

rev
iou
s y
ea
r. 

   6.4
.3 

57
% 
of 
the

 fo
od
 st
an
da
rds

 pr
og
ram

me
 w
as
 ca

rrie
d o

ut.
  

 6.5
 

En
for
ce
me

nt  
 6.5

.1 
5 
bu
sin
es
se
s 
or 

ind
ivid

ua
ls 
we
re 

pro
se
cu
ted

 a
s 
a 
res

ult
 o
f e

ith
er 

pro
gra

mm
ed
 in
sp
ec
tio
ns
 o
r c
om

pla
int
 in
sp
ec
tio
ns
. T

his
 

res
ult
ed
 in
 to
tal
 fin

es
 of
 £2

2,3
50
 an

d c
os
ts 
aw
ard

ed
 of
 £5

,20
7. 
14
 S
im
ple
 C
au
tio
ns
 w
ere

 is
su
ed
 on

 th
e t
rad

ers
 at
 B
illin

gs
ga
te 

Ma
rke

t in
 a 
ini
tia
tiv
e t
o d

riv
e u

p c
om

pli
an
ce
 on

 Fi
sh
 La

be
llin
g r
eq
uir
em

en
ts.
 

 6.5
.2 

18
0 
for
ma

l im
pro

ve
me

nt 
no
tic
es
 w
ere

 is
su
ed
 a
nd
 2
25
0 
wa
rni
ng
 le
tte
rs 
or 

ha
nd
 w
ritt
en
 w
arn

ing
s 
we
re 

giv
en
 to
 b
us
ine
ss
es
 

thr
ou
gh
ou
t th

e y
ea
r.  
 

 6.5
.3 

9 p
rem

ise
s w

ere
 cl
os
ed
 by
 Em

erg
en
cy
 Pr
oh
ibi
tio
n N

oti
ce
s a
nd
 4 
vo
lun
tar
y c
los
ed
, m

ain
ly 
for
 un

co
ntr
oll
ed
 pe

st 
inf
es
tat
ion
.  

Page 58



 
23

 

 6.6
 

Ad
dit
ion
al 
Pr
ior
itie
s 

 6.6
.1 

Re
gu
lar
 ea

rly
 m
orn

ing
 in
sp
ec
tio
ns
 w
ere

 ca
rrie

d o
ut 
at 
Bil
lin
gs
ga
te 
Ma

rke
t. P

rog
ram

me
d i
ns
pe
cti
on
s w

ere
 ca

rrie
d o

ut 
as
 w
ell
 as

 
ge
ne
ral
 su

pe
rvi
sio
n 
of 
the

 m
ark

et.
 T
he
 C
orp

ora
tio
n 
of 
Lo
nd
on
 w
ere

 a
lso
 is
su
ed
 w
ith
 th
eir
 a
pp
rov

al 
to 
run

 th
e 
Ma

rke
t. 
W
e 

co
nti
nu
e t
o w

ork
 w
ith
 th
e 4

0 p
lus
 tra

de
rs 
so
 th
at 
the

y c
an
 ac
hie
ve
 th
eir
 ap

pro
va
l s
tat
us
. 

 6.7
 

Fo
od
 C
om

pla
int
s/R

eq
ue
sts
 fo
r S
erv

ice
 

 6.7
.1 

A 
tot
al 
of 
98
3 s

erv
ice
 re
qu
es
ts 
we
re 
rec

eiv
ed
.  
Th
e l
ev
el 
of 
se
rvi
ce
 in
 re
sp
on
se
 to
 S
erv

ice
 R
eq
ue
sts
 w
as
 in
 lin

e w
ith
 se

rvi
ce
 

pri
ori
tie
s. 
 

 6.7
.2 

Th
e 
se
rvi
ce
 re

qu
es
ts 
co
ns
ist
ed
 o
f s
om

e 
of 
the

 fo
llo
win

g, 
76
 co

mp
lai
nts

 a
lle
ge
d 
foo

d 
po
iso
nin
g 
du
e 
to 
ea
tin
g 
ou
t in

 T
ow
er 

Ha
ml
ets

. 1
7 c

om
pla
int
s w

ere
 ab

ou
t d
irty
 pr
em

ise
s, 
78
 ab

ou
t u
nh
yg
ien
ic 
pra

cti
ce
s, 
88
 ab

ou
t p
es
t in

fes
tat
ion
s a

nd
 92

 co
mp

lai
nts
 

we
re 
rec

eiv
ed
 ab

ou
t fo

od
 st
an
da
rds

 is
su
es
, s
uc
h a

s f
oo
d l
ab
ell
ing
 (U
se
 by
 da

tes
).  

 6.8
 

 
Ho
me

 Au
tho

rity
 Pr
inc
ipl
e 

 
6.8

.1 
No
 fo

rm
al 
Ho
me

 A
uth

ori
ty 
Pa
rtn
ers

hip
s 
we
re 

es
tab

lish
ed
 d
uri
ng
 th

e 
ye
ar.
  
Mi
nim

al 
wo
rk 

wa
s 
do
ne
 o
n 
de
ve
lop

ing
 H
om

e 
Au
tho

rity
 re
lat
ion
sh
ips
 w
ith
 bu

sin
es
se
s, 
du
e t
o t
he
 de

ma
nd
s o

f o
the

r a
rea

s o
f w

ork
. H

ow
ev
er 
a n

um
be
r o
f th

e c
on
tac
ts 
fro
m 

ou
tsi
de
 bo

die
s w

ere
 H
om

e A
uth

ori
ty 
en
qu
irie
s f
rom

 ot
he
r a
uth

ori
tie
s. 
Ea
ch
 of
 th
es
e w

as
 de

alt
 w
ith
 as

 ap
pro

pri
ate

 an
d i
n l
ine
 

wit
h t
he
 H
om

e A
uth

ori
ty 
Pr
inc
ipl
e. 

 6.9
 

Ad
vic
e t
o B

us
ine
ss
 

 
6.9

.1 
Bu
sin
es
s 
pa
ck
s 
for
 n
ew
 b
us
ine
ss
es
 c
on
tin
ue
d 
to 
be
 is
su
ed
, a

lon
g 
wit
h 
a 
bo
ok
let
 g
ivin

g 
ad
vic
e 
on
 c
arr
yin
g 
ou
t a
 h
az
ard

 
an
aly
sis
. 

 6.9
.2 

Th
e b

us
ine
ss
 ne

ws
let
ter
 “F
oo
d a

nd
 D
rin
k” 
wa
s p

ub
lish

ed
 3 
tim
es
 du

rin
g t
he
 ye
ar 
an
d s
en
t to

 al
l b
us
ine
ss
es
. 

 6.1
0 

Fo
od
 In
sp
ec
tio
n &

 Sa
mp

lin
g  

 
6.1

0.1
 

25
6 F

oo
d s
am

ple
s w

ere
 ta
ke
n i
n t
ota

l o
f w
hic
h t
he
re 
we
re 
50
 fa
ilu
res

. T
he
se
 w
ere

 su
bs
eq
ue
ntl
y f
oll
ow
ed
 up

.  
 6.1

0.2
 

A 
ful
l S
am

pli
ng
 P
lan
 ha

s b
ee
n p

rod
uc
ed
 fo
r 2
00
8/9

 an
d i
t is

 pr
op
os
ed
 to
 en

su
re 
tha

t e
ve
ry 
eff
ort
 is
 m
ad
e t
o f
ulf
il i
t, a

s f
oo
d 

sa
mp

lin
g i
s s
ee
n a

s a
n i
mp

ort
an
t p
art
 of
 th
e w

ork
 fo
r fo

od
 sa
fet
y. 

Page 59



 
24

 

 6.1
1 

 
Ou

tbr
ea
k C

on
tro
l &
 In
fec
tio
us
 D
ise
as
e C

on
tro
l 

 
6.1

1.1
 

So
me

 7
6 
se
rvi
ce
 re

qu
es
ts 
all
eg
ed
 fo

od
 p
ois
on
ing
 o
rig
ina
tin
g 
fro
m 

foo
d 
co
ns
um

ed
 in
 th

e 
bo
rou

gh
 b
ut 

no
 fi
rm
 lin

ks
 w
ere

 
es
tab

lish
ed
. 

 6.1
2 

 
Fo
od
 Al
ert
s 

 
6.1

2.1
 

14
6 F

oo
d A

ler
ts 
we
re 
rec

eiv
ed
 fro

m 
the

 FS
A, 
mo

st 
of 
the

se
 di
d n

ot 
req

uir
e a

ny
 ac

tio
n, 
ho
we
ve
r a
 nu

mb
er 
did
 re
su
lt i
n t
he
 is
su
e 

of 
Pr
es
s R

ele
as
es
 to
 no

tify
 th
e p

ub
lic 
an
d s
om

e r
eq
uir
ed
 a 
lar
ge
 nu

mb
er 
of 
bu
sin
es
se
s t
o b

e n
oti
fie
d i
n w

riti
ng
. 

 6.1
2.2

  
Fo
od
 A
ler
ts 
att
rac

t a
 hi
gh
 pr
ior
ity
 an

d i
mm

ed
iat
e r
es
po
ns
e. 
 S
ign
ific
an
t r
es
ou
rce

s w
ere

 sp
en
t o
n r
es
po
nd
ing
 to
 th
es
e A

ler
ts,
 

wh
ich
 co

uld
 ot
he
rw
ise
 ha

ve
 be

en
 sp
en
t o
n o

the
r s
ign
ific
an
t a
cti
vit
ies
. 

 6.1
3 

Lia
iso
n w

ith
 O
the

r O
rga

nis
ati
on
s 

 
6.1

3.1
 

Th
e f
oo
d s
afe

ty 
un
it f
ulf
ille
d a

ll o
f it
s l
iai
so
n a

cti
vit
ies
 in
 th
e 2

00
7/8

 pl
an
.   

 6.1
4 

Fo
od
 Sa

fet
y P

rom
oti
on
 

 
6.1

4.1
 

A 
loc
al 
ca
mp

aig
n t
oo
k p

lac
e b

efo
re 
Ch
ris
tm
as
 on

 ho
w 
to 
pre

pa
re 
& 
co
ok
 tu
rke

y s
afe

ly 
fea

tur
ing
 a 

pre
ss
 ar
tic
le,
 pu

bli
sh
ed
 in
 

Ea
st 
En
d L

ife
.  

 6.1
4.2

 
W
e c
on
du
cte
d p

rom
oti
on
al 
ac
tiv
itie
s o

n h
an
d w

as
hin

g d
uri
ng
 Fo

od
 Sa

fet
y W

ee
k. 

 6.1
5 

Sta
ffin

g  
 

6.1
5.1

 
Th
e t
ea
m 
wa
s n

ot 
ful
ly 
sta
ffe
d d

uri
ng
 th
e y
ea
r e
xc
ep
t fo

r th
e f
oll
ow
ing
: 

 
� 

Ag
en
cy
 st
aff
 w
ere

  u
se
d t
o c
ov
er 
so
me

 of
 th
e v
ac
an
cie
s, 
ho
we
ve
r s
om

e d
ay
 to
 da

y w
ork

 fe
ll t
o o

the
r m

em
be
rs 
of 
the

 te
am

. 
� 

1 n
ew
 st
aff
 w
as
 re
cru

ite
d. 

� 
W
e h

av
e a

 nu
mb

er 
of 
en
thu

sia
sti
c n
ew
ly 
qu
ali
fie
d s
taf
f. 

� 
A E

HO
 po

st 
wa
s d

ele
ted

 to
 fu
nd
 th
e F

oo
d S

afe
ty 
Of
fic
ers

 w
ho
 qu

ali
fie
d d

uri
ng
 th
e y
ea
r 

 6.1
6 

Tra
ini
ng
 

 

Page 60



 
25

 

6.1
6.1

 
Th
e f
oo
d s
afe

ty 
off
ice
rs 
un
de
rto
ok
 a 
wid

e r
an
ge
 of
 tra

ini
ng
 ac
tiv
itie
s d

uri
ng
 th
e y
ea
r, t
he
se
 in
clu
de
d: 

 
• 

Fo
od
 Ap

pro
va
ls 

• 
FS
A i
nte

rve
nti
on
s p

rog
ram

me
 

• 
Eth

nic
 Fo

od
s 

• 
Im
po
rte
d F

oo
ds
 

• 
HP

A F
oo
d U

pd
ate

 Tr
ain
ing
 D
ay
 

• 
Fla

re 
Us
er 
Gr
ou
p A

nn
ua
l S
em

ina
r 

• 
Fo
od
 St
an
da
rds

 R
eg
ion
al 
Sa
mp

lin
g M

ee
tin
g 

• 
Lo
nd
on
 Fo

od
 St
ud
y G

rou
p 

• 
Fo
od
 La

w 
Ch
an
ge
s 

 
6.1

6.2
 

Qu
ali
ty 
As
se
ss
me

nt 
 

6.1
6.3

 
In 
ho
us
e p

roc
ed
ure

s h
av
e b

ee
n r
ev
iew

ed
 in
 lig
ht 
of 
the

 ne
w 
Na
tio
na
l In
dic
ato

r a
nd
 re
-w
ritt
en
. 

   6.1
6.4

 
Do
cu
me

nte
d t
ea
m 
me

eti
ng
s t
oo
k p
lac
e. 

 6.1
6.5

 
Mo

nth
ly 
mo

nit
ori
ng
 re
po
rts
 ar
e n

ow
 pr
od
uc
ed
 on

 a 
reg

ula
r b
as
is 

  6.1
7 

Ke
y a
rea

s f
or 
Im
pro

ve
me

nt/
De
ve
lop
me

nt  
 6.1

7.1
 

Fu
rth
er 
wo
rk 
mu

st 
be
 ca
rrie

d o
ut 
to 
ac
hie
ve
 co
mp

lia
nc
e w

ith
 th
e a

pp
rov

al 
of 
bu
sin
es
se
s l
oc
ate

d a
t B
illin

gs
ga
te 
Ma

rke
t. 

 6.1
7.2

  
W
e a

re 
wo
rki
ng
 w
ith
 th
e p

riv
ate

 m
ark

ets
 to
 co
ntr
ol 
the

 ha
za
rds

 pr
od
uc
ed
 by
 st
all
 ho

lde
rs.
 

 6.1
7.3

  
Pr
oc
ed
ure

s a
re 
sy
ste
ma

tic
all
y r
ev
iew

ed
 an

d c
om

ple
ted

 an
d k
ep
t u
p t
o d

ate
. 

 6.1
7.4

 
Qu

ali
ty 
mo

nit
ori
ng
 is
 co

nti
nu
ing
. 

 6.1
7.5

  
De
ve
lop
me

nt 
of 
alt
ern

ati
ve
 en

for
ce
me

nt 
str
ate

gie
s f
or 
low

 ris
k p

rem
ise
s. 

 6.1
7.6

 
To
 im

ple
me

nt 
the

 R
eg
ula
tor
s C

om
pli
an
ce
 C
od
e i
nto

 ou
r E
nfo

rce
me

nt 
Po
licy

. 
 6.1

7.7
 

To
 re
vie
w 
the

 FS
A g

uid
an
ce
 to
 Lo

ca
l A
uth

ori
tie
s o

n t
he
 Sc

ore
s o
n t
he
 D
oo
rs 
sc
he
me

 w
he
n i
t is
 re
lea
se
d a

t th
e e

nd
 of
 th
is 
ye
ar.
 

 
 

Page 61



 
26

 

6.1
7.8

 
To
 re
vie
w 
ou
r d
ata

 ca
ptu

re 
sy
ste

ms
 to
 re
fle
ct 
the

 na
tio
na
l p
erf
orm

an
ce
 in
dic
ato

rs 
an
d d

ata
 re
qu
ire
d b

y t
he
 FS

A 
 

 
6.1

7.9
 

Re
vie
w 
the

 ne
w 
Co
de
 of
 Pr
ac
tic
e w

he
n r
ele
as
ed
 by
 th
e F

SA
 

 
 

6.1
7.1

0 
To
 co

ns
ide
r th

e i
mp

ac
t o
f th

e B
ett
er 
Re
gu
lat
ion
 Ex

ec
uti
ve
 

   7.0
 

 
An

ne
xe
s  

 
An
ne
xe
 A:
 As

se
ss
me

nt 
of 
res

ou
rce

s 
An
ne
xe
 B:
 Tr
ad
ing
 St
an
da
rds

 & 
En
vir
on
me

nta
l H
ea
lth
 (C
om

me
rci
al)
 St
ruc

tur
e  

An
ne
xe
 C
: C
urr
en
t C
ou
nc
il A

dm
ini
str
ati
ve
 St
ruc

tur
e 

An
ne
xe
 D
: C
urr
en
t C
ou
nc
il C

orp
ora

te 
Str
uc
tur
e  

An
ne
xe
 E:
 Fo

od
 Sa

fet
y T

ea
m 
Pla

n 2
00
7/2

00
8 

An
ne
xe
 F:
 Fo

od
 Sa

mp
lin
g P

oli
cy
 20

07
/20

08
 

 

Page 62



 
27

 

 
An

ne
x A

 
 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
of 

Re
so
ur
ce
s 

 
Re
so
urc

es
 fo
r 2
00
8/2

00
9 

 Ta
ble

 6 
Es
tim

ati
on
 of
 Fu

ll T
im
e E

qu
iva
len
t (F

TE
) 

 1 y
ea
r 

36
5 d

ay
s 

An
nu
al 
Le
av
e  

31
 da

ys
 

Tra
ini
ng
 / t
ea
m 
me

eti
ng
s 

24
 da

ys
 

Ba
nk
 H
oli
da
ys
/St
atu

tor
y l
ea
ve
 

12
 da

ys
 

Sic
k l
ea
ve
/de

pe
nd
en
cy
/Sp

ec
ial
 le
av
e 

etc
 

5 d
ay
s 

W
ee
ke
nd
s 

10
4 d

ay
s 

Do
wn
tim

e –
 re
ad
ing
, re

se
arc

h e
tc.
 

18
 da

ys
 

Of
fic
er 
Ad
mi
nis
tra
tio
n 

10
 da

ys
 

Nu
mb

er 
of 
wo
rki
ng
 da

ys
 

16
1 d

ay
s 

1 F
TE

 
16
1 d

ay
s (
11
27
 ho

ur
s) 

 Pr
og

ram
me

d I
ns
pe
cti
on

s 
 Hig

h r
isk
 pr
em

ise
s (
Ca
t A
,B 
an
d n

ot 
bro

ad
ly 
co
mp

lia
nt 
pre

mi
se
s) 
= 6

88
 in
sp
ec
tio
ns
 du

e, 
at 
3 ½

 ho
urs

 pe
r in

sp
ec
tio
n (
thi
s i
s i
n l
ine
 w
ith
 th
e 

av
era

ge
 Lo

nd
on
 au

tho
rity
 – 
LF
GG

 be
nc
h m

ark
ing
 ex
erc

ise
 ca

rrie
d o

ut 
in 
Se
pte

mb
er 
19
99
), t
he
ref
ore

 24
08
 ho

urs
 to
 in
sp
ec
t 1
00
%.
 

 Br
oa
dly
 co

mp
lia
nt 
pre

mi
se
s =

 67
9 i
ns
pe
cti
on
s d

ue
 at
 1.
5 h

ou
rs 
pe
r in

sp
ec
tio
n, 
the

ref
ore

 10
18
 ho

urs
 to
 in
sp
ec
t 1
00
%.
 

 Un
rat
ed
 pr
em

ise
s t
o r
ec
eiv
e a

 fu
ll in

sp
ec
tio
n 1

61
 at
 3.
5 h

ou
rs 
= 5

63
.5 

 To
tal
 fo
r in

sp
ec
tio
ns
/su
rve

illa
nc
e t
he
ref
ore

 = 
39
89
 ho

urs
 (5
70
 da

ys
)  

 Lo
w 
ris
k (
E h

yg
ien
e a

nd
 C
 st
an
da
rds

) p
rem

ise
s a

re 
like

ly 
to 
be
 su
bje
ct 
to 
alt
ern

ati
ve
 en

for
ce
me

nt 
str
ate

gie
s: 

 All
ow
 10

 hr
s f
or 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
of 
sc
he
me

. A
llo
w 
0.1

6 h
rs 
pe
r p
rem

ise
s (
54
9) 
for
 im

ple
me

nta
tio
n o

f s
ch
em

e =
 98

 ho
urs

  

Page 63



 
28

 

 All
ow
 5%

 w
ill r
eq
uir
e i
ns
pe
cti
on
, i.
e. 
30
 pr
em

ise
s a

t 1
.5 
hrs

 ea
ch
 = 
45
 hr
s  

 To
tal
 fo
r A
lte
rna

tiv
e E

nfo
rce

me
nt 
Str
ate

gie
s =

 14
3 h

rs 
(20

.5 
da
ys
) 

 Fo
od
 St
an
da
rds

 In
sp
ec
tio
ns
 A 
rat
ed
: 2
1 p

rem
ise
s d
ue
 fo
r fo

od
 st
an
da
rds

 on
ly 
@
 2 
½ 
hrs

 ea
ch
 = 
52
.5 
hrs

 (7
.5 
da
ys
) 

 Ap
pro

ve
d p

rem
ise
s 5
3 a

pp
rov

als
 du

e @
 5 
ho
urs

 ea
ch
 = 
26
5 h

ou
rs 
(38

 da
ys
) 

Page 64



 
29

 

 Re
so
urc

e r
eq
uir
ed
 to
 ac
hie
ve
 10

0%
 in
sp
ec
tio
n r
ate

 = 
4 F

TE
. 

 Re
 in
sp
ec
tio

ns
 fo

llo
wi
ng

 pr
og

ram
me

d i
ns
pe
cti
on

s  
 All
 C
ate

go
ry 
A p

rem
ise
s w

ill r
eq
uir
e a

 re
vis
it a

s w
ill p

rem
ise
s t
ha
t fa

ll o
ut 
of 
the

 br
oa
dly
 co

mp
lia
nt 
ran

ge
.  

 A =
 19

 @
 3.
5h
rs 
= 3

8 h
rs 
(5.
5 d

ay
s) 

Pr
em

ise
s f
all
ing
 ou

t o
f b
roa

dly
 co

mp
lia
nt 
ca
teg

ory
 27

0@
 3.
5 h

ou
rs 
= 9

45
 ho

urs
 (1
35
 da

ys
) 

 Re
so
urc

e r
eq
uir
ed
 fo
r re

 in
sp
ec
tio
ns
 = 
14
0 d

ay
s =

 0.
86
 FT

E 
  Fo
od
 st
an
da
rds

 in
sp
ec
tio
ns
 re
vis
its
 50

 @
 2h

rs 
= 1

00
 hr
s (
14
.28

 da
ys
) 

 Re
so
urc

es
 re
qu
ire
d f
or 
foo

d s
tan

da
rd 
rev

isit
s =

 0.
1F
TE

  
 Se

rvi
ce
 re

qu
es
ts 

 It 
is 
ex
pe
cte

d 
tha

t s
om

e 
90
0 
foo

d 
sa
fet
y r
ela
ted

 se
rvi
ce
 re
qu
es
ts 
wil
l b
e 
rec

eiv
ed
 d
uri
ng
 th
e 
ye
ar.
 It
 is
 e
sti
ma

ted
 th
at 
ea
ch
 w
ill 
tak

e 
an
 

av
era

ge
 of
 1.
5 h

rs,
 th
ere

for
e 1

35
0 h

rs 
wil
l b
e r
eq
uir
ed
 to
 de

al 
wit
h t
he
se
. 

 To
tal
 fo
r S
erv

ice
 R
eq
ue
sts
 13

50
 ho

urs
 (1
93
 da

ys
)  

 In 
ad
dit
ion
: 

98
 Pl
an
nin
g A

pp
lica

tio
ns
 @
 1 
hr 
ea
ch
 = 
98
 hr
s 

 To
tal
 tim

e f
or 
Pla

nn
ing
 Ap

pli
ca
tio
ns
 = 
98
 hr
s (
14
 da

ys
)  

 77
 Pr
em

ise
s L
ice
nc
e A

pp
lica

tio
ns
 @
 1 
hr 
ea
ch
 = 
77
 hr
s 

 To
tal
 tim

e f
or 
Pr
em

ise
s L

ice
nc
e A

pp
lica

tio
ns
 = 
77
 hr
s (
11
 da

ys
)  

 14
6 f
oo
d a

ler
ts 
@
 1 
hr 
ea
ch
 = 
14
6 h

rs 
 10
% 
ap
pro

x w
ill r
eq
uir
e e

xte
ns
ive
 in
ve
sti
ga
tio
ns
 et
c. 
@
 ap

pro
x. 
15
 hr
s e

ac
h =

 21
0 h

rs 

Page 65



 
30

 

 To
tal
 tim

e f
or 
Fo
od
 Al
ert
s =

 35
6 h

rs 
(51

 da
ys
) 

 Ap
pro

xim
ate

ly 
15
0 n

ew
 pr
em

ise
s t
o o

pe
n d

uri
ng
 ye
ar 
@
 av
e o

f 3
 ½
 hr
s e

ac
h =

 52
5 h

rs 
 To
tal
 tim

e f
or 
Ne
w 
Pr
em

ise
s =

 52
5 h

rs 
(75

 da
ys
) 

 To
tal
 fo
r S
erv

ice
 R
eq
ue
sts
 = 
34
4 d

ay
s =

 2.
2 F

TE
 

 Ho
me

 A
uth

or
ity
 Pr

em
ise

s 
 Th
ere

 ar
e a

pp
rox

im
ate

ly 
29
0 p

rem
ise
s c
on
sid
ere

d t
o b

e e
ith
er 
Ho
me

 or
 O
rig
ina
tin
g A

uth
ori
ty.
  M

os
t o
f th

es
e w

ill s
im
ply
 be

 de
alt
 w
ith
 du

rin
g 

rou
tin
e i
ns
pe
cti
on
s. 
 H
ow
ev
er 
it i
s e

sti
ma

ted
 th
at 
ap
pro

xim
ate

ly 
15
 pr
em

ise
s w

ill r
eq
uir
e g

rea
ter
 at
ten

tio
n. 

 15
 pr
em

ise
s @

 7 
hrs

 ea
ch
 = 
10
5 h

rs 
 18
5 p

rem
ise
s @

 1 
hr 
ea
ch
 = 
18
5 h

rs 
 To
tal
 tim

e f
or 
Ho
me

 Au
tho

rity
 = 
29
0 h

rs 
(41

.4 
da
ys
) =
 0.
25
 FT

E 
 Ad

vic
e t
o B

us
ine

ss
es
 

 As
 w
ell
 as

 on
go
ing
 ad

vic
e t
hro

ug
ho
ut 
the

 ye
ar 
on
 an

 ad
-ho

c b
as
is,
 a 
Bu
sin
es
s N

ew
sle
tte
r P
rod

uc
ed
. B
us
ine
ss
 se
mi
na
rs 
wil
l b
e r
un
 fo
r th

e 
no
n b

roa
dly
 co

mp
lia
nt 
pre

mi
se
s 

 Ne
ws
let
ter
 – 
3 @

 25
 hr
s =

 75
 hr
s  

Ad
-ho

c s
up
po
rt &

 ad
vic
e =

 25
0 h

rs 
Bu
sin
es
s s
em

ina
rs 
= 3

5 h
rs 
 

 To
tal
 fo
r B
us
ine
ss
 Ad

vic
e &

 Su
pp
ort
 = 
36
0 h

rs 
(51

.4 
da
ys
) =
 0.
32
 FT

E 
 Fo

od
 Sa

mp
lin
g 

 Sa
mp

lin
g w

ill b
e b

as
ed
 on

 th
e S

am
pli
ng
 Pl
an
 - w

hic
h c

on
sis
ts 
of 
a n

um
be
r o
f p
roj
ec
ts 
co
-or
din
ate

d, 
by
 ei
the

r: E
U,
 LA

CO
RS

/H
PA
 or
 th
e N

E 
Se
cto

r L
iai
so
n G

rou
p, 
plu
s a

 nu
mb

er 
of 
loc
al 
pro

jec
ts 
an
d h

om
e a

uth
ori
ty 
sa
mp

lin
g. 

 

Page 66



 
31

 

20
0 s
am

ple
s @

 av
era

ge
 of
 3.
5 h

rs 
pe
r s
am

ple
 = 
60
0 h

ou
rs 

 Fo
llo
w 
up
 to
 ad

ve
rse

 re
su
lts
 20

% 
= 4

0 @
 4 
ho
urs

 pe
r s
am

ple
 = 
16
0 h

ou
rs 

 To
tal
 fo
r S
am

pli
ng
 = 
76
0 h

rs 
(10

8.5
 da

ys
) =
 0.
7 F

TE
 

 Ou
tbr

ea
k C

on
tro

l 
 Th
e r
es
ou
rce

 re
qu
ire
d t
o d

ea
l w
ith
 an

 ou
tbr
ea
k w

ill d
ep
en
d o

n t
he
 si
ze
 an

d c
om

ple
xit
y o
f th

e i
nc
ide
nt.
 Es

tim
ate

d 0
.8 
FT

E. 
 Lia

iso
n 

 Att
en
da
nc
e a

t S
ec
tor
 G
rou

p m
ee
tin
gs
, s
tud

y g
rou

ps
 et
c a
nd
 fo
llo
w-
up
 w
ork

 = 
25
 da

ys
 

Pla
nn
ed
 lia
iso
n m

ee
tin
gs
 w
ith
 tra

din
g s
tan

da
rds

, le
ga
l s
erv

ice
s e

tc 
= 1

0 d
ay
s 

To
tal
 re
so
urc

e r
eq
uir
ed
 is
 = 
0.2

 FT
E  

 Fo
od

 Sa
fet

y P
ro
mo

tio
n 

 A n
um

be
r o
f in
itia
tiv
es
 ar
e p

lan
ne
d, 
as
 fo
llo
ws
: 

 • 
Fo
od
 Sa

fet
y W

ee
k @

 14
0 h

rs 
(20

 da
ys
) 

• 
Mi
sc
ell
an
eo
us
 pr
es
s r
ele
as
es
 an

d e
ve
nts

 @
 35

 hr
s (
5 d

ay
s) 

 To
tal
 tim

e f
or 
He
alt
h P

rom
oti
on
 = 
17
5 h

rs 
(25

 da
ys
) =
 0.
6 F

TE
 

 Ot
he
r A

cti
vit
ies

 
 Ins

pe
cti
on
s w

ill b
e c

arr
ied
 ou

t a
t m

ajo
r fe

sti
va
ls 
an
d o

uts
ide
 ev
en
ts 
su
ch
 as
 th
e B

ric
k L

an
e F

es
tiv
al 
an
d e

ve
nts
 in
 Vi
cto

ria
 Pa

rk.
  

 To
tal
 fo
r fe

sti
va
ls 
10
0h
rs 
(14

.3 
da
ys
)  

 Bil
lin
gs
ga
te 
Ma

rke
t: 

 All
ow
 4 
hrs

 pe
r w
ee
k f
or 
Pr
oa
cti
ve
 vi
sit
s, 
inc
lud
ing
 de

ali
ng
 w
ith
 se

rvi
ce
 re
qu
es
ts.
 

 All
ow
 12

5 h
ou
rs 
for
 pr
og
res

sio
n o

f in
div
idu
al 
bu
sin
es
se
s t
o A

pp
rov

al 

Page 67



 
32

 

 To
tal
 fo
r B
illin

gs
ga
te 
Ma

rke
t =
 33

3 h
rs 
(47

.57
 da

ys
) 

 Im
po
rte
d F

oo
d P

roj
ec
ts/
Su
rve

illa
nc
e a

llo
w 
14
0 h

rs 
 To
tal
 fo
r Im

po
rte
d F

oo
d C

on
tro
l =
 14

0 h
rs 
(20

 da
ys
) 

 Ap
pro

ve
d P

rem
ise
s: 

 All
ow
 70

 hr
s f
or 
pro

ce
ss
ing
 ad

dit
ion
al 
pre

mi
se
s i
de
nti
fie
d d

uri
ng
 ye
ar 

 To
tal
 fo
r a
pp
rov

ed
 = 
70
 hr
s (
10
 da

ys
) 

 Fo
od
 St
an
da
rds

 Pr
oje
cts
: 

 All
ow
 14

0 h
rs 
for
 Fo

od
 St
an
da
rds

 Pr
oje
cts
 

 To
tal
 fo
r F
oo
d S

tan
da
rds

 Pr
oje
cts
 = 
14
0 h

rs 
(20

 da
ys
)  

 Ap
pro

xim
ate

ly 
5 c

los
ure

s @
 up

 to
 50

 hr
s e
ac
h (
inc
 of
 le
ga
l a
cti
on
) =
 25

0 h
rs 

 To
tal
 tim

e f
or 
Clo

su
res

 = 
25
0h
rs 
(35

.7 
da
ys
)  

  To
tal
 fo
r o
the

r a
cti
vit
ies
 = 
14
7.5

7 d
ay
s=
 0.
9 F

TE
 

 Te
ch
nic

al 
Su

pp
or
t 

 Th
e F

oo
d S

afe
ty 
Of
fic
ers

 ar
e r
es
po
ns
ibl
e f
or 
su
pp
ort
ing
 of
fic
ers

 in
 th
eir
 ac

tiv
itie
s a

nd
 fo
r m

ain
tai
nin
g b

ac
k-u

p s
ys
tem

s a
nd
 eq

uip
me

nt 
an
d 

oth
er 
res

ou
rce

s. 
 Al
on
g w

ith
 th
eir
 ow

n i
ns
pe
cti
on
 ta
rge

ts 
0.5

FT
E 

 Ad
mi
n S

up
po

rt 
 Th
e e

xis
tin
g a

dm
in 
su
pp
ort
 of
 5 
sta
ff i
s s

ha
red

 be
tw
ee
n 3

 te
am

s a
nd
 th
e F

TE
 fo
r f
oo
d s

afe
ty 
is 
1.8

, A
 su

bs
tan

tia
l p
art
 of
 th
e A

dm
in 
tea

ms
 

wo
rk 
is 
for
 fo
od
 sa

fet
y. 
Va
rio
us
 ad

mi
nis
tra
tiv
e f
un
cti
on
s s
uc
h a

s i
np
utt
ing
 da

ta 
on
to 
the

 FL
AR

E s
ys
tem

, p
rep

ari
ng
 co

rre
sp
on
de
nc
e e

tc.
 w
ill b

e 
ca
rrie

d o
ut 
by
 te
ch
nic
al 
sta
ff a

t th
e e

xp
en
se
 of
 fie
ldw

ork
 du

e t
o t
he
 in
cre

as
ed
 de

ma
nd
s o
n t
he
 Ad

mi
n t
ea
m.
  

Page 68



 
33

 

 Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
 Th
e E

nv
iro
nm

en
tal
 H
ea
lth
 C
om

me
rci
al 
Se
rvi
ce
 M
an
ag
er 
is 
res

po
ns
ibl
e f
ull
 tim

e f
or 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
fun

cti
on
s a

nd
 ap

pro
xim

ate
ly 
0.2

5 F
TE
 of
 th
e 

3 P
EH

O’
s i
s a
cc
ou
nte

d f
or 
in 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
fun

cti
on
s. 
To
tal
 fo
r m

an
ag
em

en
t is
 th
ere

for
e 1

.25
FT

E  
 A 
su
mm

ary
 of
 re
so
urc

es
 re
qu
ire
d t
o m

ee
t th

e r
eq
uir
em

en
ts 
of 
the

 se
rvi
ce
 pl
an
 fo
r 2
00
8/9

, a
llo
win

g T
ow
er 
Ha
ml
ets

 to
 ob

tai
n a

 po
sit
ion
 in
 th
e 

top
 qu

art
ile
 of
 hi
gh
 pe

rfo
rm
ing
 co

un
cils

 in
 re
lat
ion
 to
 th
e n

um
be
r o
f h
igh
 ris

k i
ns
pe
cti
on
s c
arr
ied
 ou

t th
at 
are

 du
e t
o b

e c
arr
ied
 ou

t is
 sh

ow
n i
n 

Ta
ble
 7:
 

 Ta
ble

 7 
 

Ac
tiv
ity
 

Tim
e i
de
nti

fie
d t
o 

co
mp

let
e w

or
k i
n 

Se
rvi
ce
 Pl

an
 

(20
08
/20

09
) 

Tim
e i
de
nti

fie
d t
o 

co
mp

let
e w

or
k i
n 

Se
rvi
ce
 Pl

an
 

(20
07
/20

08
) 

Pr
og

ram
me

d 
Ins

pe
cti
on

s 
4 

4.9
 

Re
-in

sp
ec
tio

n 
0.8

6 
0.6

 
Re

 vi
sit
s 

0.1
 

nil
 

Se
rvi
ce
 R
eq
ue
sts

 
2.2

 
2 

Ho
me

 A
uth

or
ity
 

0.2
5 

0.3
 

Ad
vic

e t
o b

us
ine

ss
es
 

0.3
2 

0.3
 

Fo
od

 sa
mp

lin
g 

0.7
 

0.7
 

Lia
iso

n 
0.2

 
0.2

 
Fo

od
 Sa

fet
y 

Pr
om

oti
on

 
0.6

 
0.6

 
Fo

od
 Po

iso
nin

g 
ou

tbr
ea
ks
  

0.8
 

0.8
 

Ot
he
r A

cti
vit
ies

 
0.9

 
0.9

 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 
1.2

5 
1.2

5 
Te
ch
nic

al 
Of
fic
er 

Su
pp

or
t 

0.5
 

1.0
 

Page 69



 
34

 

To
tal
 

12
.68

 
(A
ctu

al 
av
ail
ab
le 

12
.5)
 

13
.55

 
(A
ctu

al 
av
ail
ab
le 

13
.5)
 

 Th
e 
sh
ort
fal
l id

en
tifi
ed
 is
 0
.18

FT
E 
sh
ou
ld 
no
t p
rev

en
t u
s f
rom

 fu
lfill
ing
 th
e 
pla
n p

rov
idi
ng
 w
e 
ca
n 
ret
ain
 o
ur 
cu
rre
nt 
ag
en
cy
 st
aff
 w
hil
e 
we
 

rec
rui
t. A

 m
em

be
r o
f s
taf
f w
ill 
be
 on

 m
ate

rni
ty 
lea
ve
 th
rou

gh
ou
t th

is 
ye
ar,
 he

nc
e w

e m
ay
 ha

ve
 to
 re
du
ce
 ou

r p
roa

cti
ve
 pr
og
ram

me
 in
 or
de
r to

 
co
nc
en
tra
te 
on
 th
e n

ati
on
al 
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 in
dic
ato

rs 
an
d t
he
 pe

rfo
rm
an
ce
 th
at 
is 
ex
pe
cte

d b
y t
he
 FS

A. 
 

 W
e 
als
o 
de
let
ed
 a
 p
os
t f
rom

 th
e 
str
uc
tur
e 
to 
en
ab
le 
the

 co
nv
ers

ion
 o
f t
he
 tr
ain
ee
 te
ch
nic
al 
off
ice
rs 
to 
Fo
od
 S
afe

ty 
Of
fic
ers

 a
s t
he
y h

ad
 

pa
ss
ed
 th
eir
 fin
al 
ex
am

ina
tio
ns
 in
 or
de
r in

sp
ec
t p
rem

ise
s f
or 
foo

d h
yg
ien
e. 
As
 ag

ree
d i
n o

ur 
res

tru
ctu

rin
g p

rog
ram

me
 in
 20

05
/06

.  
                          

Page 70



 
35

 

An
ne

x B
: E

nv
iro

nm
en

tal
 H
ea

lth
 C
om

me
rci

al 
St
ru
ctu

re 
    

 
   

EH
 C
om

me
rci
al 
Se

rvi
ce
 M
an
ag
er 

 

PE
HO

 Fo
od
 - R

e a
cti
ve
  

 
Fo

od
 Pr

o a
cti
ve
 Te

am
 Le

ad
er 

 
PE

HO
 Fo

od
 Su

pp
ort

  
 

 PE
HO

 H
 & 

S S
up
po
rt 

 
PE

HO
 H
&S

  
 

1 x
 SE

HO
 

 

2 x
 EH

O 
 

1 x
 SE

HO
 

 

1 x
 EH

O 
 

1 x
 Fo

od
 Sa

fet
y O

ffic
er 

 

1 x
 SE

HO
 

 

1 x
 EH

O 
 

1 x
 Fo

od
 Sa

fet
y O

ffic
er 

 

2 x
 LS

O 
(1.

6 F
TE

's)
 

 

1 x
 EH

O 
 

(0.
5F

TE
) 

 

1 x
 SE

HO
 

 

1 x
 EH

O 
 

 

1 x
 TO

 
 

1 H
&S

 Tr
ain

ee
 

 

Pr
inc

ipa
l T
ob
ac
co
 

Co
ntr

ol 
Of
fic
er 

Sm
ok
e F

ree
 

Of
fic
ers

 
X2

 

Page 71



 
36

 

 
An

ne
x 

C:
 T

O
W

ER
 H

AM
LE

TS
 D

EC
IS

IO
N 

M
AK

IN
G

 S
TR

UC
TU

RE
  

       
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

            
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
CA

BI
NE

T 
LIC

EN
SIN

G 
CO

MM
ITT

EE
 

  

OV
ER

VIE
W 

& 
SC

RU
TIN

Y 
CO

MM
ITT

EE
 

 

 ST
AN

DA
RD

S 
CO

MM
ITT

EE
 

 

 DE
VE

LO
PM

EN
T 

CO
MM

ITT
EE

 
 

Pa
ne
ls 
of 

Ca
bin

et 
• 
Gr
an
ts 
Pa
ne
l 

• 
Kin

g G
eo
rge

’s 
Fie

ld 
Ch
ari
ty 

Bo
ard

 

He
alt
h S

cru
tin
y 

Pa
ne
l 

Ot
he
r B

od
ies

 Es
tab

lis
he
d b

y 
Co

un
cil
 

• 
Ap
pe
als
 C
om

mi
tte
e 

• 
Ge

ne
ral
 Pu

rpo
se
s C

om
mi
tte
e  

• 
Hu
ma

n R
es
ou
rce

s C
om

mi
tte
e 

• 
Pe
ns
ion
s C

om
mi
tte
e 

• 
Str
ate

gic
 D
ev
elo
pm

en
t C
om

mi
tte
e 

• 
Fo
ste

rin
g A

pp
ea
ls 
Pa
ne
l 

• 
Pe
rm
an
en
t P
lac
em

en
t P
an
el 

• 
So
cia
l S
erv

ice
s C

om
pla
int
s R

ev
iew

 
Pa
ne
l† 

• 
Sta

nd
ing
 Ad

vis
ory

 C
om

mi
tte
e o

n 
Re
lig
iou
s E

du
ca
tio
n (
SA
CR

E)
 

• 
Se
cu
re 
Ac
co
mm

od
ati
on
 Pa

ne
l† 

• 
Sc
ho
ols
 Fo

rum
 

• 
So
cia
l S
erv

ice
s A

cc
es
s t
o F

ile
s 

Ap
pe
al 
Pa
ne
l 

 CO
UN

CI
L 

  

Ad
vis

or
y B

od
ies

 &
 W

or
kin

g P
art

ies
 es

tab
lis
he
d u

nd
er 
Pa

ra 
3.7

.1 
of 

Pa
rt 
3 o

f th
e C

on
sti
tut

ion
  

• 
Ac
ce
ss
ibl
e T

ran
sp
ort
 

Co
ns
ult
ati
ve
 Fo

rum
 

• 
Jo
int
 C
on
su
lta
tiv
e 

Ad
vis
ory

 G
rou

p 
• 
To
we
r H
am

let
s H

om
es
 

Sh
ad
ow
 Bo

ard
 

 
• 

Le
ad
ers

 Ad
vis
ory

 Bo
ard

 

• 
Me

mb
ers

 Pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 & 

Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Gr
ou
p 

• 
Me

mb
ers

 Le
arn

ing
 & 

De
ve
lop
me

nt 
W
ork

ing
 

Pa
rty
 

• 
Ch
ild
ren

’s 
Tru

st 
Ad
vis
ory

 
Bo
ard

 
• 

Pu
bli
c T

ran
sp
ort
 

Co
ns
ult
ati
ve
 Fo

rum
 

• 
Cr
os
sra

il W
ork

ing
 Pa

rty
 

• 
Co
rpo

rat
e P

are
nti
ng
  

Ste
eri
ng
 G
rou

p 
• 
Co
ns
titu

tio
n W

ork
ing
 Pa

rty
  

• 
To
we
r H
am

let
s R

efu
ge
e 

Fo
rum

† 
 

Ot
he

r 
• 
Bo
rou

gh
 Po

lici
ng
 

Fo
rum

 (P
CC

G)
 † 

• 
Co
rpo

rat
e 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
Te
am

 
(C
MT

)† 
• 
CM

T/P
CT

† 
• 
Ed
uc
ati
on
 Ap

pe
als

† 

Lic
en
sin
g 

Su
b-

Co
mm

itte
e 

Ke
y 

† 
No

n-M
em

be
r L

ev
el B

od
ies

 

 
AU

DI
T 

CO
MM

ITT
EE
 

 

He
ari
ng
s S

ub
-

Co
mm

itte
e 

Page 72



 
37

 

An
ne

x D
 -  

LB
 To

we
r H

am
let

s –
 To

p L
ev
el 

St
ru
ctu

re 
                       

Ch
ief
 Ex

ec
uti
ve
 

Co
rpo

rat
e D

ire
cto

r 
(D
ev
elo
pm

en
t  

an
d R

en
ew
al)
 

Co
rpo

rat
e D

ire
cto

r 
(C
om

mu
nit
ies
, 

Lo
ca
litie

s 
an
d C

ult
ure

) 

Co
rpo

rat
e D

ire
cto

r 
(A
du
lt /
Eld

er 
Se
rvi
ce
s) 

Co
rpo

rat
e D

ire
cto

r 
(C
hil
dre

n’s
 

Se
rvi
ce
s) 

He
ad
 of
 

En
vir
on
me

nta
l 

 C
on
tro
l 

Co
rpo

rat
e D

ire
cto

r 
Re
so
urc

es
  

 

He
ad

 of
 Tr

ad
ing

  
Sta

nd
ard

s  
an

d E
nv

iro
nm

en
tal

  
He

alt
h (

Co
mm

erc
ial

) En
vir
on
me

nta
l  

He
alt
h  

(C
om

me
rci
al)
  

Se
rvi
ce
 M
an
ag
er 

Page 73



 
38

 

An
ne

x 
E 

 
En

vir
on

me
nta

l H
ea

lth
 C
om

me
rci

al 
Te

am
 Pl

an
 20

08
/20

09
 

 Inc
lud

ing
: 

Fo
od

 Sa
fet

y 
 

He
alt

h a
nd

 Sa
fet

y  
 

Inf
ec

tio
us

 D
ise

as
e 

 
 

En
vir

on
me

nta
l H

ea
lth

 Li
ce

ns
ing

 
 

  

Page 74



 
39

 

 Re
gu
lat
ors

’ C
om

pli
an
ce
 C
od
e: 
Sta

tut
ory

 C
od
e o

f P
rac

tic
e f
or 
Re
gu
lat
ors

 
 Th
is 
Te
am

 Pl
an
 ha

s b
ee
n c
om

pil
ed
 by
 us

ing
 th
e c
urr
en
t in
for
ma

tio
n a

va
ila
ble
 on

 th
e l
ev
el 
of 
ris
k p

res
en
ted

 by
 bu

sin
es
s i
n t
he
 Bo

rou
gh
 at
 th
e 

co
mm

en
ce
me

nt 
of 
the

 ca
len
da
r y
ea
r 2
00
8. 
Th
e a

im
 of
 th
e T

ea
m 
Pla

n i
s t
o p

rov
ide
 a 
ris
k b

as
ed
 pr
op
ort
ion
ate

 an
d t
arg

ete
d a

pp
roa

ch
 to
 

reg
ula
tor
y i
ns
pe
cti
on
 an

d e
nfo

rce
me

nt 
in 
rel
ati
on
 to
 th
e E

nv
iro
nm

en
tal
 H
ea
lth
 C
om

me
rci
al 
fun

cti
on
. 

 Th
e r
isk
 ba

se
d f
oc
us
 of
 th
e P

lan
 is
 de

riv
ed
 fro

m 
the

 re
lev
an
t ri
sk
 ra
tin
g f
or 
the

 pr
em

ise
s a
nd
 th
e i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 pr
ov
ide
d b

y t
he
 FI
T 3

 
pro

gra
mm

es
 fro

m 
the

 H
ea
lth
 an

d S
afe

ty 
Ex
ec
uti
ve
. 

 Ris
k a

ss
es
sm
en
t h
as
 in
for
me

d t
he
 se

ttin
g u

p o
f th

e P
lan
 in
 its
 br
oa
de
st 
se
ns
e a

nd
 sp

ec
ific
 ris
k a

ss
es
sm
en
ts 
are

 un
de
rta
ke
n, 
wh
ere

 po
ss
ibl
e 

at 
the

 pr
em

ise
s t
o i
nfo

rm
 fu
tur
e i
nte

rve
nti
on
s. 

 Bu
sin
es
s c
on
su
lta
tio
n w

ill t
ak
e p

lac
e a

s p
art
 of
 th
e C

orp
ora

te 
Pr
og
ram

me
 an

d f
ee
db
ac
k w

ill b
e s

ort
 fo
rm
all
y f
rom

 bu
sin
es
se
s a
nd
 in
for
ma

lly 
fro
m 
Ins
pe
cto

rs.
   

 Th
is 
Pla

n w
ill a

llo
w 
us
 to
 us
e o

ur 
res

ou
rce

s m
ore

 ef
fec
tiv
ely
 w
hil
st 
as
se
ss
ing
 hi
gh
 ris
k a

cti
vit
ies
 bu

t d
eli
ve
rin
g b

en
efi
ts 
to 
low

 ris
k a

nd
 

co
mp

lia
nt 
bu
sin
es
se
s. 

 W
e h

av
e d

ev
elo
pe
d b

us
ine
ss
 tra

ini
ng
 an

d s
em

ina
rs 
as
 pa

rt o
f o
ur 
pro

gra
mm

e o
f w
ork

 ac
tiv
ity
 an

d h
av
e a

n e
nfo

rce
me

nt 
po
licy

 th
at 
res

po
nd
s 

pro
po
rtio

na
tel
y t
o r
eg
ula
tor
y b
rea

ch
es
. 

 Th
e i
nte

rve
nti
on
s p

rop
os
ed
 in
 th
is 
Pla

n w
ill b

e r
ev
iew

ed
 re
gu
lar
ly 
to 
en
su
re 
un
ne
ce
ss
ary

 ar
e n

ot 
pla
ce
d o

n b
us
ine
ss
es
.   
  

 Inf
orm

ati
on
 an

d a
dv
ice
 w
ill b

e p
rov

ide
d t
o b

us
ine
ss
es
 in
 th
e f
orm

 of
 le
tte
rs,
 pr
ofo

rm
as
 du

rin
g t
he
 vi
sit
 an

d c
en
tra
l a
ge
nc
y p
rod

uc
ed
 gu

ida
nc
e. 

Su
ch
 w
ritt
en
 ad

vic
e w

ill s
tip
ula
te 
leg
al 
req

uir
em

en
ts 
an
d r
ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s a
nd
 go

od
 pr
ac
tic
e w

he
re 
no
ted

. 
 W
e w

ill a
tte
mp

t a
t jo

int
 in
sp
ec
tio
ns
 w
he
re 
ris
k a

ss
es
sm
en
t s
ch
em

es
 in
dic
ate

 th
at 
thi
s w

ill b
e n

ec
es
sa
ry 
an
d a

ss
ist
 in
 re
du
cin
g b

urd
en
s t
o t
he
 

reg
ula
ted

 en
tity
. 

 W
e w

ill m
ak
e c

lea
r th

e r
ea
so
ns
 fo
r a
ny
 fo
rm
al 
ac
tio
n, 
the

se
 re
as
on
s w

ill b
e i
nfo

rm
ed
 in
 w
riti
ng
 an

d d
eta

ils 
of 
ap
pe
al 
pro

ce
du
res

 w
ill a

lso
 be

 
giv
en
.  

   

Page 75



 
40

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
Fu
nc
tio
na
l A
rea

s (
Sc
op
e o

f th
e S

erv
ice
) 

• 
Ac
co
un
tab

ility
 to
 Fo

od
 St
an
da
rds

 Ag
en
cy
 (F
SA

): T
o m

ee
t s
pe
cif
ied
 le
ve
ls 
an
d s

tan
da
rds

 of
 se

rvi
ce
 as

 la
id 
do
wn
 by
 th
e F

SA
 

an
d s
ub
mi
t a
nd
 pu

bli
sh
 in
for
ma

tio
n o

n p
erf
orm

an
ce
 as
 re
qu
ire
d. 

• 
Ac
co
un
tab

ility
 to
 H
ea
lth
 an

d S
afe

ty 
Co
mm

iss
ion
 (H
SC

): T
o m

ee
t s
pe
cif
ied
 le
ve
ls 
an
d s

tan
da
rds

 of
 se

rvi
ce
 as

 la
id 
do
wn
 by
 th
e 

HS
C 
an
d s
ub
mi
t in
for
ma

tio
n o

n p
erf
orm

an
ce
 as

 re
qu
ire
d. 

• 
Fo
od
 H
yg
ien
e E

nfo
rce

me
nt:
 Pr
o-a

cti
ve
 an

d r
ea
cti
ve
 in
sp
ec
tio
ns
 an

d r
ev
isit
s o

f fo
od
 bu

sin
es
se
s t
o p

rot
ec
t p
ub
lic 
he
alt
h &

 to
 

as
se
ss
 & 
se
ek
 co
mp

lia
nc
e w

ith
 fo
od
 sa
fet
y l
eg
isla

tio
n &

 to
 pr
ov
ide
 ad

vic
e o

n g
oo
d h

yg
ien
e p

rac
tic
e. 
 

• 
He
alt
h a

nd
 Sa

fet
y E

nfo
rce

me
nt:
 To

 em
bra

ce
 an

d l
oc
ali
se
 th
e H

EL
A S

tra
teg

ic 
Pla

n a
nd
 id
en
tify
 lo
ca
l p
rio
riti
se
s. 
Un
de
rta
ke
 

ag
ree

d p
roj
ec
t/p
rio
rity
 in
sp
ec
tio
ns
 as
 ag

ree
d w

ith
 th
e L

oc
al 
Pa
rtn
ers

hip
 M
an
ag
er.
 

• 
Fo
od
 St
an
da
rds

 En
for
ce
me

nt:
 Pr
o-a

cti
ve
 an

d r
ea
cti
ve
 in
sp
ec
tio
ns
 an

d r
ev
isit
s o
f fo

od
 bu

sin
es
se
s t
o a

ss
es
s &

 se
ek
 co
mp

lia
nc
e 

wit
h f
oo
d s

tan
da
rds

 le
gis
lat
ion
 in
 re
lat
ion
 to
 fo
od
 sa
fet
y &

 to
 pr
ov
ide
 ad

vic
e o

n g
oo
d p

rac
tic
e. 
 

• 
Pr
og
ram

me
d I
ns
pe
cti
on
: P
ro-
ac
tiv
e i
ns
pe
cti
on
s o
f b
us
ine
ss
es
 fo
r F
oo
d H

yg
ien
e/S

tan
da
rds

 an
d H

ea
lth
 an

d S
afe

ty 
are

 ca
rrie

d 
ou
t in
 ac

co
rda

nc
e w

ith
 a 
ris
k-b

as
ed
 In
sp
ec
tio
n P

rog
ram

me
 ba

se
d u

po
n n

ati
on
al 
cri
ter
ia 
an
d g

uid
an
ce
. 

• 
Im
po
rte
d F

oo
d C

on
tro
l: P

ro-
ac
tiv
e a

nd
 re
ac
tiv
e v
isit
s t
o p

rem
ise
s t
o c
he
ck
 fo
r c
om

pli
an
ce
 w
ith
 Im

po
rte
d F

oo
d C

on
tro
ls.
 

Ide
nti
fic
ati
on
 of
 ille

ga
lly 
im
po
rte
d p

rod
uc
ts,
 sa
mp

lin
g, 
se
izu
re 
an
d d

ete
nti
on
. 

• 
Tra

ini
ng
: P
rov

isio
n o

f tr
ain
ing
 & 
he
lp 
& a

dv
ice
 to
 bu

sin
es
se
s o
n s

afe
ty 
iss
ue
s, 
an
d c
om

pli
an
ce
 w
ith
 sa
fet
y l
aw
. P
rom

ote
 lo
w 

co
st 
tra
ini
ng
 to
 Sm

all
 to
 M
ed
ium

 En
ter
pri
se
’s,
 yo
un
g w

ork
ers

 an
d v
uln
era

ble
 gr
ou
ps
.   

• 
Fo
od
 Sa

mp
lin
g: 
Th
e s
am

pli
ng
, a
na
lys
is 
an
d e

xa
mi
na
tio
n o

f fo
od
stu
ffs
 to
 as
se
ss
 co
mp

lia
nc
e w

ith
 ch

em
ica
l, c
om

po
sit
ion
al,
 

lab
ell
ing
 or
 m
icr
ob
iol
og
ica
l c
rite

ria
 in
 ac

co
rda

nc
e w

ith
 le
gis
lat
ive
 st
an
da
rds

 or
 fo
od
 sa
fet
y r
eq
uir
em

en
ts.
  S
am

ple
s a
re 
tak
en
 as
 

pa
rt o

f lo
ca
l, r
eg
ion
al,
 na

tio
na
l, o

r E
U 
pro

gra
mm

es
 an

d t
he
 se

rvi
ce
 ha

s a
 pr
og
ram

me
 of
 sa
mp

lin
g f
rom

 lo
ca
l m
an
ufa

ctu
rin
g 

bu
sin
es
se
s. 

• 
En
vir
on
me

nta
l S
am

pli
ng
: T
o u

nd
ert
ak
e a

 pr
og
ram

 of
 re
lev
an
t s
afe

ty,
 he

alt
h a

nd
 en

vir
on
me

nta
l s
am

pli
ng
, w
he
re 
the

 de
ter
mi
ne
d 

ris
k w

arr
an
ts 
su
ch
 ac
tio
n i
.e.
 le
gio
ne
lla
. 

• 
Co
ns
um

er 
Ad
vic
e, 
Ed
uc
ati
on
 an

d H
ea
lth
 Pr
om

oti
on
: T
he
 pr
ov
isio

n o
f s
afe

ty 
ad
vic
e t
o c
on
su
me

rs 
or 
ind
ivid

ua
ls 
or 
gro

up
s, 

inc
lud
ing
 th
os
e p

rop
os
ing
 to
 pr
ov
ide
 fo
od
stu
ffs
 at
 ev
en
ts 
etc

.  D
isp
lay
s a

nd
 in
for
ma

tio
n a

re 
pro

vid
ed
 on

 sa
fet
y i
ss
ue
s. 
 Ta

lks
 

are
 gi
ve
n t
o i
nte

res
ted

 gr
ou
ps
.  P

rom
oti
on
 of
 sa
fet
y r
ela
ted

 in
itia
tiv
es
 an

d r
ew
ard

 sc
he
me

s. 
• 

Bu
sin
es
s A

dv
ice
: U
po
n r
eq
ue
st,
 pe

rso
ns
 se

ttin
g u

p n
ew
 bu

sin
es
se
s a
nd
 pr
op
rie
tor
s o
f e
xis
tin
g b

us
ine
ss
es
 ar
e p

rov
ide
d w

ith
 

ad
vic
e, 
gu
ida
nc
e &

 in
for
ma

tio
n o

n m
ee
tin
g s
afe

ty 
leg
isla

tio
n. 
Su
pp
ort
 SM

E’s
 to
 re
ce
ive
 tra

ini
ng
 an

d a
dv
ice
 on

 he
alt
h, 
sa
fet
y 

an
d w

elf
are

 is
su
es
 vi
a t
arg

ete
d p

roj
ec
ts 
to 
as
sis
t th

eir
 de

ve
lop
me

nt 
an
d r
eg
en
era

tio
n. 
De
ve
lop
 lin
ks
 an

d u
tilis

e o
pp
ort
un
itie
s 

wit
h t
he
 Lo

ca
l A
rea

 Pa
rtn
ers

hip
s t
hro

ug
h t
he
 Pr
im
ary

 C
are

 Tr
us
t a
nd
 C
om

mu
nit
y P

an
 Ac

tio
n G

rou
ps
.   

• 
Ho
me

 Au
tho

rity
 Ad

vic
e: 
Ac
tin
g a

s H
om

e A
uth

ori
ty 
or 
Or
igi
na
tin
g A

uth
ori
ty 
for
 m
an
y f
oo
d m

an
ufa

ctu
rer
s, 
pro

ce
ss
ors

 an
d 

dis
trib

uto
rs 
in 
the

 bo
rou

gh
, a
dv
isin

g o
n f
oo
d h

yg
ien
e a

nd
 fo
od
 st
an
da
rds

 is
su
es
.  T

he
 se

rvi
ce
 al
so
 pr
ov
ide
s i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 to
 an

d 
lia
se
s w

ith
 ot
he
r e
nfo

rce
me

nt 
au
tho

riti
es
 an

d t
he
 lo
ca
l b
us
ine
ss
es
. 

Page 76



 
41

 

• 
Sm

ok
e F

ree
 Pu

bli
c P

lac
es
: T
o d

ev
ise
 co
mp

lia
nc
e s

tra
teg

ies
 fo
r th

e l
eg
isla

tio
n. 
W
ork

 w
ith
 th
e P

CT
 an

d d
ev
elo
p s
tra
teg

ies
 fo
r 

sm
ok
ing
 ce

ss
ati
on
.  

• 
Ap
pro

va
l F
un
cti
on
s: 
Ins
pe
cti
ng
 bu

sin
es
se
s s
ub
jec
t to

 ap
pro

va
l (e

.g.
 fis
h, 
me

at 
pro

du
cts
, d
air
y p
rod

uc
ts)
, a
nd
 pr
ov
idi
ng
 de

tai
led
 

sc
he
du
les
 of
 w
ork

s a
nd
 up

on
 sa
tis
fac
tor
y c
om

ple
tio
n i
ss
uin
g a

 un
iqu
e e

sta
bli
sh
me

nt 
“A
pp
rov

al”
 N
um

be
r (o

r H
ea
lth
 M
ark

). 
• 

He
alt
h C

ert
ific
ate

s a
nd
 C
on
de
mn

ati
on
 C
ert
ific
ate

s: 
At 
the

 re
qu
es
t o
f lo
ca
l b
us
ine
ss
es
, fo

od
stu
ffs
 ar
e i
ns
pe
cte
d a

nd
 ce

rtif
ica
tes
 

iss
ue
d f
or 
foo

ds
 pr
op
os
ed
 to
 be

 ex
po
rte
d o

uts
ide
 th
e E

U,
 or
 fo
r c
on
de
mn

ati
on
 an

d d
isp
os
al 
of 
un
fit,
 un

so
un
d o

r u
nw
ho
les
om

e 
foo

d. 
• 

Fo
od
 Al
ert
s/F

oo
d S

afe
ty 
Inc

ide
nts

: In
 re
sp
on
se
 to
 no

tifi
ca
tio
ns
 fro

m 
the

 Fo
od
 St
an
da
rds

 Ag
en
cy
, in

ve
sti
ga
tio
ns
 ar
e c

arr
ied
 ou

t 
int
o f
oo
d a

ler
ts 
wh
ere

 fo
od
stu
ffs
 ar
e c

on
sid
ere

d t
o b

e a
 da

ng
er 
to 
he
alt
h h

av
e o

r m
ay
 be

 di
str
ibu
ted

 in
 th
e b

oro
ug
h. 
 

Inv
es
tig
ati
on
s (
so
me

tim
es
 m
ajo
r) a

re 
als
o c
arr
ied
 ou

t in
to 
oth

er 
inc
ide
nts
 re
lat
ing
 to
 fo
od
 sa
fet
y. 

• 
Se
rvi
ce
 R
eq
ue
sts
: In

ve
sti
ga
tio
ns
 ar
e c

arr
ied
 ou

t in
to 
co
mp

lai
nts

 by
 co

ns
um

ers
, m

em
be
rs 
of 
the

 pu
bli
c, 
bu
sin
es
se
s, 
oth

er 
au
tho

riti
es
 an

d a
ge
nc
ies
 re
ga
rdi
ng
 fo
od
 sa
fet
y a
nd
 he

alt
h a

nd
 sa
fet
y i
n p

rem
ise
s w

ith
in 
the

 bo
rou

gh
.   

• 
Bil
lin
gs
ga
te 
Fis
h M

ark
et:
 Su

pe
rvi
sio
n o

f fo
od
 hy
gie
ne
 an

d f
oo
d s

tan
da
rds

 w
ith
in 
the

 m
ark

et.
  S
am

pli
ng
 an

d i
ns
pe
cti
on
 of
 fis
h f
or 

fitn
es
s. 
 En

for
ce
me

nt 
of 
foo

d h
yg
ien
e a

nd
 fo
od
 st
an
da
rds

.  L
iai
so
n w

ith
 M
ark

et 
Au
tho

rity
 an

d e
nfo

rce
me

nt 
of 
iss
ue
s u
nd
er 
the

 
co
ntr
ol 
of 
the

 M
ark

et 
Au
tho

rity
. 

• 
Ma

int
en
an
ce
 of
 In
for
ma

tio
n o

n B
us
ine
ss
es
: A
n a

cc
ura

te 
rec

ord
 of
 al
l k
no
wn
 bu

sin
es
se
s l
oc
ate

d i
n t
he
 bo

rou
gh
 is
 ke
pt 
an
d a

 
reg

ist
er 
of 
foo

d b
us
ine
ss
es
 m
ain
tai
ne
d. 
 N
ew
 bu

sin
es
se
s a

re 
ide
nti
fie
d a

nd
 ad

de
d t
o t
he
 da

tab
as
e a

nd
 bu

sin
es
se
s t
ha
t c
ea
se
 

tra
din
g a

re 
rem

ov
ed
. 

• 
So
cia
l S
erv

ice
s a

nd
 Ed

uc
ati
on
 Se

rvi
ce
 Ad

vic
e: 
Ins
pe
cti
on
s a
re 
ca
rrie

d o
ut 
of 
loc
al 
au
tho

rity
 co

ntr
oll
ed
 fo
od
 pr
em

ise
s (
e.g

. 
sc
ho
ols
, d
ay
 ca

re 
ce
ntr
es
, a
nd
 re
sid
en
tia
l h
om

es
) a
nd
 ad

vic
e a

nd
 in
for
ma

tio
n p

rov
ide
d t
o b

oth
 cl
ien
t a
nd
 co

ntr
ac
tor
 as

 
ap
pro

pri
ate

. 
• 

Lia
iso
n A

rra
ng
em

en
ts:
 Th

e s
erv

ice
 m
ain
tai
ns
 lin
ks
 an

d l
ias
es
 w
ith
 ot
he
r a
uth

ori
tie
s a
s p
art
 of
 th
e L

on
do
n F

oo
d C

o-o
rdi
na
tin
g 

Gr
ou
p (
No
rth
ea
st 
Se
cto
r L
iai
so
n G

rou
p).
  T
he
 se

rvi
ce
 al
so
 lia
se
s a
nd
 co
ns
ult
s w

ith
 LA

CO
RS

, F
oo
d S

tan
da
rds

 Ag
en
cy
 H
SC

/E 
an
d t
he
 Al
l L
on
do
n B

oro
ug
hs
 H
ea
lth
 an

d S
afe

ty 
Lia
iso
n G

rou
p. 

• 
Ma

jor
 In
ve
sti
ga
tio
ns
: T
he
 se

rvi
ce
 m
ay
 ha

ve
 to
 ca

rry
 ou

t m
ajo
r in

ve
sti
ga
tio
ns
 in
to 
ille
ga
l fo
od
 ac

tiv
itie
s a

nd
 fa
tal
/m
ajo
r a
cc
ide
nts

 
tha

t m
ay
 oc

cu
r th

rou
gh
ou
t th

e y
ea
r. 

• 
Cu
sto

me
r C

are
: T

o 
en
su
re 

sta
ff 
ac
co
un
tab

ility
, f
air
ne
ss
, o
pe
nn
es
s, 
he
lpf
uln
es
s 
an
d 
co
ns
ist
en
cy
 in
 re

lat
ion
 to
 th
e 
Te
am

’s 
en
for
ce
me

nt 
pro

ce
ss
es
, th

rou
gh
 re
gu
lar
 ca

se
 re
vie
ws
. 

• 
Int
erm

ed
iar
y: 
Pr
om

ote
 th
e r
ole
 of
 th
e T

ea
m,
 as
 an

 in
ter
me

dia
ry 
be
tw
ee
n S

ma
ll t
o M

ed
ium

 En
ter
pri
se
’s,
 th
e P

rim
ary

 C
are

 Tr
us
t 

an
d C

orp
ora

te 
Bu
sin
es
s. 
De
ve
lop
me

nt 
to 
rev

olv
e a

rou
nd
 th
e h

ea
lth
 ag

en
da
. 

• 
Co
mm

un
ity
 Sa

fet
y: 
De
ve
lop
 pr
oje
ct 
are

as
 an

d a
dv
ise
 em

plo
ye
rs,
 em

plo
ye
es
 an

d t
he
 pu

bli
c o

n a
sp
ec
ts 
of 
sa
fet
y i
n t
he
 

wo
rkp

lac
e a

nd
 ris
ks
 ar
isin

g o
ut 
of 
wo
rk 
ac
tiv
itie
s. 
Se
ek
 co
mp

lia
nc
e w

ith
 le
gis
lat
ion
 an

d g
oo
d p

rac
tic
e. 

Page 77



 
42

 

• 
Lic
en
sin
g P

roc
es
s, 
ins
pe
ct 
an
d r
eg
ula
te 
Ma

ss
ag
e a

nd
 Sp

ec
ial
 Tr
ea
tm
en
t L
ice
ns
ed
 pr
em

ise
s a

nd
 An

im
al 
W
elf
are

 Li
ce
nc
e-

ho
lde
rs 
to 
ma

int
ain
 th
e C

ou
nc
il’s
 ag

ree
d s
tan

da
rds

. 
• 

Fo
od
 Po

iso
nin
g O

utb
rea

k I
nv
es
tig
ati
on
: In

ve
sti
ga
tio
ns
 at
 pr
em

ise
s, 
wh
ich
 m
ay
 be

 lin
ke
d t
o o

utb
rea

ks
 or
 ca

se
s o
f fo

od
 

po
iso
nin
g. 

• 
Inf
ec
tio
us
 D
ise
as
e C

on
tro
l: R

ec
eiv
e n

oti
fic
ati
on
s o
f In

fec
tio
us
 D
ise
as
e (
ba
cte
ria
l a
nd
 vi
ral
) m

on
ito
r c
as
es
, c
on
tac

ts 
an
d 

ou
tbr
ea
ks
 to
 co
ntr
ol 
the

 sp
rea

d o
f d
ise
as
e. 

• 
Lia
iso
n w

ith
 In
fec
tio
us
 D
ise
as
e C

on
tro
l O
rga

nis
ati
on
s: 
Lia

se
 w
ith
 th
e H

ea
lth
 Pr
ote

cti
on
 Ag

en
cy
 re
pre

se
nta

tiv
e (
CC

DC
) 

reg
ard

ing
 th
e n

oti
fic
ati
on
 of
 in
fec
tio
us
 di
se
as
e. 
Inv
ok
e t
he
 lo
ca
l o
utb

rea
k p

lan
s a
s n
ec
es
sa
ry.
 Ac

t a
s t
he
 pr
op
er 
off
ice
r u
nd
er 

the
 Pu

bli
c H

ea
lth
 (C
on
tro
l o
f D
ise
as
e) 
Ac
t 1
98
4. 

• 
Ed
uc
ati
on
 an

d A
dv
ice
: E
du
ca
te 
an
d a

dv
ice
 or
ga
nis
ati
on
s a
nd
 in
div
idu
als
 on

 in
fec
tio
us
 di
se
as
es
, to

 ra
ise
 aw

are
ne
ss
 of
 co
ntr
ol 

an
d t
o a

ss
ist
 in
 th
e p

rev
en
tio
n o

f s
pre

ad
 of
 ill 
he
alt
h i
n t
he
 Bo

rou
gh
. 

• 
Te
mp

ora
ry 
Ev
en
t N
oti
fic
ati
on
s: 
Be
 a 
foc
us
 of
 te
ch
nic
al 
ex
pe
rtis
e; 
as
sis
t w
ith
 th
e d

ete
rm
ina
tio
n o

f O
cc
as
ion
al 
Pu
bli
c 

En
ter
tai
nm

en
t L
ice
nc
es
, im

pro
vin
g t
he
 pr
ov
isio

n f
or 
art
s a
nd
 sp
ort
 w
ith
in 
the

 Bo
rou

gh
.  

• 
Ac
t a
s a
 re
sp
on
sib
le 
au
tho

rity
: T
o b

e a
 co

ns
ult
ee
 on

 ne
w 
an
d v
ari
ed
 ap

pli
ca
tio
ns
 fo
r li
ce
nc
es
 un

de
r th

e L
ice
ns
ing
 Ac

t 2
00
3. 

• 
Co
ns
ult
ati
on
s: 
Ad
vic
e a

nd
 or
 ob

se
rva

tio
ns
 ar
e g

ive
n i
n r
es
po
ns
e t
o v
ari
ou
s c
on
su
lta
tio
ns
 ab

ou
t p
rem

ise
s (
e.g

. p
lan
nin
g 

ap
pli
ca
tio
ns
, n
igh
t c
afe

 lic
en
ce
s, 
pre

mi
se
s l
ice
nc
es
, ju
sti
ce
’s 
lice

nc
es
, m

ark
et 
se
rvi
ce
 re
fer
ral
s a

nd
 bu

ild
ing
 co

ntr
ol 

ap
pli
ca
tio
ns
). 

                  

Page 78



 
43

 

Fu
nc
tio
na
l A
im
s a
nd
 O
bje
cti
ve
s 

Ac
tio
n &

 Ta
rge

t 
Re
sp
on
sib
ility

 
Fo
od
 H
yg
ien
e 

• 
To
 ca

rry
 ou

t a
 pr
og
ram

me
 of
 ris
k b
as
ed
 fo
od
 

hy
gie
ne
 in
sp
ec
tio
ns
 an

d t
o t
ak
e a

pp
rop

ria
te 

fol
low

-up
/en

for
ce
me

nt 
ac
tio
n i
n a

cc
ord

an
ce
 w
ith
 

de
pa
rtm

en
tal
 po

lici
es
 an

d p
roc

ed
ure

s, 
Co
de
 of
 

Pr
ac
tic
e, 
Fo
od
 St
an
da
rds

 Ag
en
cy
 an

d L
AC

OR
S 

gu
ida
nc
e. 

• 
An
nu
al 
ins
pe
cti
on
 pr
og
ram

me
 to
 be

 pr
od
uc
ed
 du

rin
g 1

st
 

we
ek
 Ap

ril 
20
08
. 

• 
Pr
og
ram

me
 of
 in
sp
ec
tio
ns
 to
 be

 pr
od
uc
ed
 qu

art
erl
y. 

• 
Up
 to
 57

9 i
ns
pe
cti
on
s (
Ca
teg

ori
es
 A-
B a

nd
 un

rat
ed
) to

 
be
 ca

rrie
d. 
Inc

lud
es
 6 
ins
pe
cti
on
s c
arr
ied
 ov
er 
fro
m 

20
07
/8 
an
d 1

61
 un

-ra
ted

 pr
em

ise
s a
t b
eg
inn
ing
 of
 ye
ar.
 

• 
C 
–D
 ra
ted

 pr
em

ise
s t
ha
t a
re 
bro

ad
ly 
co
mp

lia
nt 
ha
ve
 an

 
off
icia

l c
on
tro
l w
hic
h i
s n

ot 
a f
ull
 in
sp
ec
tio
n. 
Th
is 
eq
ua
tes
 

to 
67
9 p

rem
ise
s  
    
 

• 
C-
D 
rat
ed
 pr
em

ise
s t
ha
t a
re 
no
t b
roa

dly
 co

mp
lia
nt 
wil
l 

ha
ve
 a 
ful
l in
sp
ec
tio
n. 
Th
is 
eq
ua
tes
 to
 27

0 p
rem

ise
s  
 

• 
Alt
ern

ati
ve
 En

for
ce
me

nt 
Str
ate

gie
s w

ill b
e c

arr
ied
 ou

t fo
r 

10
9 E

 ra
ted

 pr
em

ise
s. 
    
 

• 
Of
fic
ers

 to
 co
mp

let
e 1

5 p
rog

ram
me

d i
ns
pe
cti
on
s p

ro-
rat
a p

er 
mo

nth
, s
ub
jec
t to

 ot
he
r a
llo
ca
ted

 
res

po
ns
ibi
litie

s. 
 

• 
Ins

pe
cti
on
 ca
pa
cit
y f
rom

 cu
rre
nt 
sta
ff 1

09
2 

• 
Pr
om

ote
 SF

BB
 du

rin
g i
ns
pe
cti
on
s 

• 
Pr
em

ise
s t
o b

e r
isk
 ra
ted

 w
he
n i
nv
es
tig
ati
ng
 a 
Se
rvi
ce
 

Re
qu
es
t 

DT
, S
EW

, F
B, 
ID
, 

AK
, E
V, 
BM

I, H
C,
 

RZ
, J
OS

 

• 
To
 ca

rry
 ou

t re
vis
its
 to
 pr
em

ise
s i
de
nti
fie
d a

s 
req

uir
ing
 re
me

dia
l a
cti
on
 up

on
 in
sp
ec
tio
n a

nd
 to
 

tak
e a

pp
rop

ria
te 
fol
low

-up
/en

for
ce
me

nt 
ac
tio
n i
n 

ac
co
rda

nc
e w

ith
 de

pa
rtm

en
tal
 po

lici
es
 an

d 
pro

ce
du
res

, C
od
es
 of
 Pr
ac
tic
e, 
Fo
od
 St
an
da
rds

 
Ag
en
cy
 an

d L
AC

OR
S g

uid
an
ce
. 

• 
10
0%

 of
 al
l C
ate

go
ry 
A p

rem
ise
s. 

• 
All
 C
ate

go
ry 
B p

rem
ise
s w

ith
 a 
hig
h s

co
re 
for
 si
gn
ific
an
t 

ris
k o

r w
he
re 
sc
ore

 is
 20

+ f
or 
Co
nfi
de
nc
e i
n 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
or 
the

 pr
em

ise
s i
s n
ot 
bro

ad
ly 
co
mp

lia
nt.
 

• 
All
 ot
he
r p
rem

ise
s r
ev
isit
ed
 ac

co
rdi
ng
 to
 in
sp
ec
tin
g 

off
ice
r’s
 ju
dg
em

en
t. 

• 
Re
 in
sp
ec
ted

 pr
em

ise
s w

ill b
e r
isk
 ra
ted

 ag
ain
 as

 pe
r th

e 
gu
ida
nc
e i
n t
he
 FS

A c
od
e o

f p
rac

tic
e. 

  

DT
, S
EW

, F
B, 
ID
, 

AK
, E
V, 
BM

I, H
C,
 

RZ
, J
OS

 

Fo
od
 St
an
da
rds

 
• 
To
 ca

rry
 ou

t a
 pr
og
ram

me
 of
 ris
k b
as
ed
 fo
od
 

sta
nd
ard

s i
ns
pe
cti
on
s a
nd
 to
 ta
ke
 ap

pro
pri
ate

 
fol
low

-up
/en

for
ce
me

nt 
ac
tio
n i
n a

cc
ord

an
ce
 w
ith
 

• 
An
nu
al 
ins
pe
cti
on
 pr
og
ram

me
 to
 be

 pr
od
uc
ed
 du

rin
g 1

st
 

we
ek
 Ap

ril 
20
08
. 

• 
Pr
og
ram

me
 of
 in
sp
ec
tio
ns
 to
 be

 pr
od
uc
ed
 qu

art
erl
y. 

DT
, S
EW

, F
B, 
ID
, 

AK
, E
V, 
BM

I, H
C,
 

RZ
, J
OS

  

Page 79



 
44

 

de
pa
rtm

en
tal
 po

lici
es
 an

d p
roc

ed
ure

s, 
Co
de
s o
f 

Pr
ac
tic
e, 
Fo
od
 St
an
da
rds

 Ag
en
cy
 an

d L
AC

OR
S 

gu
ida
nc
e. 

• 
Up
 to
 68

7 i
ns
pe
cti
on
s (
Ca
teg

ori
es
 A 
– B

 an
d U

n-r
ate

d) 
to 
be
 ca

rrie
d o

ut 
by
 te
am

.  I
nc
lud
es
 ap

pro
xim

ate
ly 
39
5 

ins
pe
cti
on
s c
arr
ied
 ov
er 
fro
m 
20
07
/8 
an
d 2

60
 un

-ra
ted

 
pre

mi
se
s a
t b
eg
inn
ing
 of
 ye
ar.
  

• 
Of
fic
ers

 to
 co
mp

let
e p

rog
ram

me
d i
ns
pe
cti
on
s a
s 

all
oc
ate

d e
ac
h p

eri
od
. W

he
re 
foo

d h
yg
ien
e a

nd
 fo
od
 

sta
nd
ard

s a
re 
bo
th 
du
e d

uri
ng
 th
e f
ina
nc
ial
 ye
ar,
 

ins
pe
cti
on
s w

ill b
e c

arr
ied
 ou

t a
t th

e s
am

e t
im
e. 
  

• 
Ap
art
 fro

m 
A c

ate
go
ry,
 it 
is 
un
like

ly 
tha

t F
oo
d S

tan
da
rds

 
ins
pe
cti
on
s w

ill b
e c

arr
ied
 ou

t o
n t
he
ir o

wn
. F
oo
d 

Hy
gie
ne
 w
ill b

e t
he
 le
ad
 ris
k i
nd
ica
tor
.  

 
• 
To
 ca

rry
 ou

t re
vis
its
 to
 pr
em

ise
s i
de
nti
fie
d a

s 
req

uir
ing
 re
me

dia
l a
cti
on
 up

on
 in
sp
ec
tio
n a

nd
 to
 

tak
e a

pp
rop

ria
te 
fol
low

-up
/en

for
ce
me

nt 
ac
tio
n i
n 

ac
co
rda

nc
e w

ith
 de

pa
rtm

en
tal
 po

lici
es
 an

d 
pro

ce
du
res

, C
od
es
 of
 Pr
ac
tic
e, 
Fo
od
 St
an
da
rds

 
Ag
en
cy
 an

d L
AC

OR
S g

uid
an
ce
. 

• 
All
 C
ate

go
ry 
A p

rem
ise
s w

he
re 
sc
ore

 is
 30

 fo
r 

Co
nfi
de
nc
e i
n M

an
ag
em

en
t. 

• 
All
 ot
he
r p
rem

ise
s r
ev
isit
ed
 ac

co
rdi
ng
 to
 in
sp
ec
tin
g 

off
ice
r’s
 ju
dg
em

en
t. 

• 
Re
vis
ite
d p

rem
ise
s w

ill n
ot 
be
 ris
k r
ate

d a
ga
in 
as
 pe

r th
e 

gu
ida
nc
e i
n t
he
 FS

A c
od
e o

f p
rac

tic
e. 

  

DT
, S
EW

, F
B, 

ID
, A
K, 
EV

, 
BM

I, H
C,
 R
Z, 

JO
S  

Alt
ern

ati
ve
 En

for
ce
me

nt 
Str
ate

gie
s 

• 
To
 ca

rry
 ou

t s
uit
ab
le 
alt
ern

ati
ve
 en

for
ce
me

nt 
str
ate

gie
s f
or 
low

 ris
k p

rem
ise
s f
or 
bo
th 
foo

d 
hy
gie
ne
 an

d f
oo
d s

tan
da
rds

. 
• 
Alt
ern

ati
ve
 en

for
ce
me

nt 
str
ate

gie
s t
o b

e a
pp
lie
d o

n a
 

pro
jec
t b
as
is 
to 
all
 pr
em

ise
s r
ate

d C
ate

go
ry 
E f
or 

hy
gie
ne
 an

d C
ate

go
ry 
C 
for
 st
an
da
rds

 du
e f
or 
20
08
/9.
  

• 
Ap
pro

xim
ate

ly 
5%

 of
 AE

S p
rem

ise
s t
o r
eq
uir
e a

n 
ins
pe
cti
on
. 6
 in
sp
ec
tio
ns
 fo
r F
oo
d H

yg
ien
e a

nd
 22

 fo
r 

Fo
od
 St
an
da
rds

.  
• 

Un
ret
urn

ed
 qu

es
tio
nn
air
es
 to
 be

 fo
llo
we
d u

p b
y F

oo
d 

Sa
fet
y O

ffic
er’
s  

DT
, S
EW

, F
B, 

ID
, A
K, 
EV

, 
BM

I, H
C,
 R
Z, 

JO
S 

Ille
ga
l F
oo
d I
nv
es
tig
ati
on
s  

Page 80



 
45

 

• 
To
 un

de
rta
ke
 in
ve
sti
ga
tio
ns
 in
to 
pre

mi
se
s a
nd
 

bu
sin
es
se
s e
ng
ag
ed
 in
 pr
od
uc
tio
n, 
dis
trib

uti
on
, 

im
po
rta
tio
n a

nd
 se

llin
g o

f il
leg
al 
foo

ds
 in
clu
din
g 

me
at 
an
d f
ish
. 

• 
To
 ca

rry
 ou

t ro
uti
ne
 ch
ec
ks
 fo
r il
leg
al 
foo

d w
he
n 

un
de
rta
kin
g r
ou
tin
e i
ns
pe
cti
on
s. 

• 
Inv
es
tig
ate

 ca
se
s o
f il
leg
al 
foo

ds
 an

d i
lle
ga
l im

po
rta
tio
n 

of 
foo

ds
 an

d t
ak
e a

pp
rop

ria
te 
fol
low

 up
 ac
tio
ns
. 

• 
To
 bu

ild
 in
 a 
pro

jec
t s
pe
cif
ica
lly 
loo
kin
g f
or 
ille
ga
l 

im
po
rte
d f
oo
ds
. B
as
ed
 on

 pr
od
uc
ts 
of 
an
im
al 
ori
gin
. T
his
 

pro
jec
t w
ill s

ee
k t
o l
ink
 in
 w
ith
 a 
No
rth
 Ea

st 
Lo
nd
on
 

pro
gra

mm
e o

f w
ork

. 

DT
, S
EW

, F
B, 

ID
, A
K, 
EV

, 
BM

I, H
C,
 R
Z, 

JO
S 

He
alt
h a

nd
 Sa

fet
y 

• 
To
 ca

rry
 ou

t a
 pr
og
ram

me
 of
 he

alt
h a

nd
 sa
fet
y 

ins
pe
cti
on
s i
n f
oo
d p

rem
ise
s, 
wh
ere

ve
r p
os
sib
le 

at 
the

 sa
me

 tim
e a

s c
arr
yin
g o

ut 
foo

d s
afe

ty 
ins
pe
cti
on
s a
nd
 to
 ta
ke
 ap

pro
pri
ate

 fo
llo
w-

up
/en

for
ce
me

nt 
ac
tio
n i
n a

cc
ord

an
ce
 w
ith
 

de
pa
rtm

en
tal
 po

lici
es
 an

d p
roc

ed
ure

s, 
Co
de
s o
f 

Pr
ac
tic
e a

nd
 H
SE
/H
EL
A g

uid
an
ce
. 

• 
Jo
int
 in
sp
ec
tio
ns
 to
 be

 ca
rrie

d o
ut 
wit
h r
eg
ard

s t
o 

W
are

ho
us
e S

afe
ty 
in 
Ju
ne
 – 
Au
gu
st.
  

• 
Sta

ff t
o a

tte
nd
 aw

are
ne
ss
 se
mi
na
rs 
an
d u

nd
ert
ak
e 

pro
jec
ts 
on
 he

alt
h a

nd
 sa
fet
y i
ss
ue
s i
n r
ela
tio
n t
o: 

La
dd
ers

 
    
 G
as
 Sa

fet
y 

    
 Pl
an
t a
nd
 Eq

uip
me

nt 
in 
Fo
od
 pr
em

ise
s 

    
 Yo

un
g W

ork
ers

 
    
 M
igr
an
t W

ork
ers

 
 

DT
, S
EW

, F
B, 

ID
, A
K, 
EV

, 
BM

I, H
C,
 R
Z, 

JO
S 

Im
po
rte
d F

oo
d C

on
tro
l 

• 
To
 un

de
rta
ke
 pl
an
ne
d i
ns
pe
cti
on
, s
am

pli
ng
 an

d 
inv
es
tig
ati
on
 of
 im
po
rte
d f
oo
ds
 an

d t
o r
em

ov
e 

ille
ga
lly 
im
po
rte
d f
oo
d f
rom

 th
e f
oo
d c

ha
in 
an
d t
o 

ed
uc
ate

 bu
sin
es
s. 

• 
Ide

nti
fy 
du
rin
g a

ll r
ou
tin
e i
ns
pe
cti
on
s w

he
the

r b
us
ine
ss
 

is 
an
 im
po
rte
r. 

 
DT
, S
EW

, F
B, 

ID
, A
K, 
EV

, 
BM

I, H
C,
 R
Z, 

JO
S 

Sp
ec
ial
 Pr
oje
cts
 

• 
To
 de

vis
e a

nd
 im
ple
me

nt 
rel
ev
an
t p
roj
ec
ts 
on
 

iss
ue
s i
de
nti
fie
d o

n a
 pl
an
ne
d b

as
is 
or 
as
 is
su
es
 

ari
se
 th
rou

gh
ou
t th

e y
ea
r.  

    

• 
To
 ca

rry
 ou

t p
roj
ec
ts 
in 
the

 fo
llo
win

g a
rea

s. 
Pr
oje
cts
 to
 

ha
ve
 de

fin
ed
 ai
ms
 an

d o
bje
cti
ve
s w

ith
 a 
pro

jec
t p
rop

os
al 
in 

ea
ch
 ca
se
. 

• 
SF
BB

 to
 ta
rge

t th
e A

 ra
ted

 pr
em

ise
s w

ith
 12

1 c
oa
ch
ing
 

• 
 C
 ra
ted

 C
ate

rin
g/R

eta
il p
rem

ise
s t
ha
t a
re 
bro

ad
ly 

co
mp

lia
nt 
to 
be
 vi
sit
ed
 on

 a 
ve
rifi
ca
tio
n b

as
is.
 To

 ve
rify
 

sta
tus

 in
 re
ga
rd 
to 
tem

pe
rat
ure

 co
ntr
ol,
 ha

nd
 w
as
hin
g, 
pe
st 

co
ntr
ol 
an
d c

ros
s c
on
tam

ina
tio
n. 
56
1 p

rem
ise
s 

• 
 Th

e p
riv
ate

 M
ark

ets
 w
ill b

e r
ev
iew

ed
 w
ith
 re
ga
rds

 to
 

fac
iliti
es
 pr
ov
ide
d t
o t
rad

ers
. 

DT
, S
EW

, F
B, 

ID
, A
K, 
EV

, 
BM

I, H
C,
 R
Z, 

JO
S 

Page 81



 
46

 

Ap
pro

va
l P
roc

es
se
s 

• 
Bil
lin
gs
ga
te 
 

• 
Pr
ov
ide
 at
ten

da
nc
e a

t B
illin

gs
ga
te 
Ma

rke
t to

 en
su
re 

sta
tut
ory

 fu
nc
tio
ns
 ar
e f
ulf
ille
d a

nd
 pu

bli
c h
ea
lth
 

pro
tec

ted
.  

• 
Ad
vis
e a

nd
 su
pp
ort
 C
orp

ora
tio
n o

f L
on
do
n a

nd
 

ind
ivid

ua
l m

erc
ha
nts
 in
 th
e m

ark
et 
on
 w
ork

s r
eq
uir
ed
 

ac
hie
vin
g a

pp
rov

al.
 

• 
 Ap

pro
ve
 or
 co
nd
itio
na
lly 
ap
pro

ve
 al
l b
us
ine
ss
es
 w
ith
in 

the
 m
ark

et.
 

• 
Ap
pro

va
l o
r e
nfo

rce
me

nt 
wit
hin
 6 
mo

nth
s o
f is
su
ing
 

sc
he
du
les
. 

SE
W
 Le

ad
 

 DT
, S
EW

, F
B, 

ID
, A
K, 
EV

, 
BM

I, H
C,
 R
Z, 

JO
S  

• 
Ap
pro

va
l P
roc

es
se
s –

 En
su
re 
ide
nti
fic
ati
on
 an

d 
ap
pro

va
l o
r e
nfo

rce
me

nt 
of 
an
y r
ele
va
nt 

Es
tab

lish
me

nts
. 

• 
Ap
pro

va
l o
r e
nfo

rce
me

nt 
wit
hin
 6 
mo

nth
s o
f is
su
ing
 

sc
he
du
les
.  

• 
Ex
am

ine
 th
e n

ec
es
sit
y o
f a
pp
rov

al 
for
 fis
h i
mp

ort
ers

 an
d 

wh
ole
sa
ler
s a

nd
 pr
og
res

s i
f a
pp
rop

ria
te.
 

 

DT
, S
EW

, F
B, 

ID
, A
K, 
EV

, R
W
, 

BM
,  

• 
Ap
pro

va
l P
roc

es
se
s -
 En

su
re 
ins
pe
cti
on
 of
 al
l 

ap
pro

ve
d p

rem
ise
s i
n l
ine
 w
ith
 th
e C

od
e o

f 
Pr
ac
tic
e r
eq
uir
em

en
ts.
 

• 
De
vis
e i
ns
pe
cti
on
 pr
og
ram

me
 fo
r a
pp
rov

ed
 

es
tab

lish
me

nts
 in
 lin
e w

ith
 th
eir
 ris
k r
ati
ng
. 

 
DT
, S
EW

, F
B, 

ID
, A
K, 
EV

, 
BM

I, H
C,
 R
Z, 

JO
S 

• 
Ap
pro

va
l P
roc

es
se
s –

 C
on
tin
ue
 pr
o-a

cti
ve
 ro
le 
in 

the
 N
ort
he
as
t S
ec
tor
 Li
ais
on
 G
rou

p V
ert
ica
l 

Pr
od
uc
ts 
Su
b-G

rou
p. 

• 
Att
en
d m

ee
tin
gs
. C
om

ple
te 
all
oc
ate

d t
as
ks
 w
ith
in 

tim
es
ca
les
 se

t. C
irc
ula
te 
me

eti
ng
 m
inu
tes

 to
 te
am

. 
SE
W
 

Fo
od
 Sa

mp
lin
g 

• 
Pu
bli
sh
 an

d f
oll
ow
 sa

mp
lin
g p

rog
ram

me
 fo
r 

20
08
/20

09
. 

 
• 
Pu
bli
sh
 Ap

ril 
20
08
.  S

am
pli
ng
 on

go
ing
. 

• 
Fin

ali
se
 an

d p
rod

uc
e d

raf
t p
lan
 by
 M
arc

h 2
00
9. 
 

• 
Pa
rtic
ipa
te 
in 
No
rth
ea
st 
Se
cto
r L
iai
so
n G

rou
p S

am
pli
ng
 

Su
b-G

rou
p m

ee
tin
gs
 an

d a
ny
 co

-or
din
ate

d s
am

pli
ng
 

pro
gra

mm
es
. 

• 
Ca
rry
 ou

t s
am

pli
ng
 ac
tiv
itie
s i
n a

cc
ord

an
ce
 w
ith
 pl
an
. 

FB
 

FB
 

FB
 

  FB
 

  DT
, S
EW

, F
B, 

ID
, A
K, 
EV

, 
BM

I, H
C,
 R
Z, 

Page 82



 
47

 

JO
S 

• 
Mo

nit
or 
sp
en
din
g f
or 
sa
mp

lin
g b

ud
ge
t to

 en
su
re 

pla
nn
ed
 sp
en
din
g i
s c
om

ple
ted

. 
• 
Mo

nit
or 
sp
en
d a

nd
 re
su
lts
 & 
rep

ort
 to
 EH

CS
M.
 

 
FB
, D
T 

Fo
od
 Sa

fet
y T

rai
nin
g/B

us
ine
ss
 Su

pp
ort
 

• 
To
 pr
ov
ide
 tra

ini
ng
 co
urs

es
 an

d s
em

ina
rs 
for
 

bu
sin
es
s t
hro

ug
ho
ut 
the

 ye
ar.
 

Pr
ov
ide
 in
for
ma

tio
n t
o b

us
ine
ss
es
 on

 av
ail
ab
ility

 of
 tra

ini
ng
 

co
urs

es
, in

clu
din
g f
ree

 an
d l
ow
 co

st 
tra
ini
ng
 fro

m 
rel
ev
an
t 

pro
vid
ers

. 
DT
, S
EW

, F
B, 

ID
, A
K, 
EV

, 
BM

I, H
C,
 R
Z, 

JO
S 

• 
To
 pr
ov
ide
 in
for
ma

tio
n a

nd
 ad

vic
e t
o b

us
ine
ss
es
. 

• 
Pr
od
uc
e b

us
ine
ss
 ne

ws
let
ter
 3 
pe
r y
ea
r. 

 
FB
 

 
Fo
od
 Ite

m 
Co
mp

lai
nt 
Inv
es
tig
ati
on
s 

• 
Inv
es
tig
ate

 al
l c
om

pla
int
s i
n a

cc
ord

an
ce
 w
ith
 

do
cu
me

nte
d p

roc
ed
ure

s. 
• 
Dir
ec
t a
llo
ca
tio
n t
o P

EH
O 
- in

co
mi
ng
 w
ork

loa
d c

he
ck
ed
 

da
ily.
 

• 
Pr
ior
ity
 co

mp
lai
nts

 co
lle
cte

d o
n d

ay
 of
 co
mp

lai
nt.
 

• 
Ot
he
r c
om

pla
int
s w

ith
in 
5 w

ork
ing
 da

ys
 

SE
W
, F
B 

• 
 C
as
e r
ev
iew

s. 
• 
Ra
nd
om

 ca
se
s r
ev
iew

ed
 by
 PE

HO
 at
 12

1’s
.  

SE
W
, F
B, 

• 
Cu
sto

me
r C
are

. 
• 
Le
tte
r to

 co
mp

lai
na
nt 
aft
er 
3 m

on
ths
 up

da
tin
g o

n 
pro

gre
ss
. 

• 
Le
tte
r to

 co
mp

lai
na
nt 
inf
orm

ing
 ou

tco
me

 on
 co
mp

let
ion
 

of 
ca
se
. 

DT
, S
EW

, F
B, 

ID
, A
K, 
EV

, 
BM

I, H
C,
 R
Z, 

JO
S 

Pr
em

ise
s C

om
pla
int
s 

• 
Inv
es
tig
ate

 al
l c
om

pla
int
s i
n a

cc
ord

an
ce
 w
ith
 

do
cu
me

nte
d p

roc
ed
ure

s. 
• 
Dir
ec
t a
llo
ca
tio
n t
o o

ffic
er 
- in

co
mi
ng
 w
ork

loa
d c

he
ck
ed
 

da
ily.
 

    
   

DT
, S
EW

, F
B, 

ID
, A
K, 
EV

, 
BM

I, H
C,
 R
Z, 

JO
S 

• 
Pr
ior
ity
 ba

se
d a

cti
on
. 

• 
Hig

he
r ri
sk
 is
su
es
 – 
co
nta

ct 
co
mp

lai
na
nt 
wit
hin
 2 

wo
rki
ng
 da

ys
 - a

cti
on
 in
 ac

co
rda

nc
e w

ith
 po

lici
es
 an

d 
pro

ce
du
res

. 
• 
Lo
we
r ri
sk
 is
su
es
 – 
co
nta

ct 
co
mp

lai
na
nt 
wit
hin
 5 
wo
rki
ng
 

da
ys
 – 
ac
tio
n b

as
ed
 up

on
 pr
em

ise
 hi
sto
ry 
an
d i
n 

ac
co
rda

nc
e w

ith
 po

lici
es
 an

d p
roc

ed
ure

s. 

DT
, S
EW

, F
B, 

ID
, A
K, 
EV

, 
BM

I, H
C,
 R
Z, 

JO
S 

Ot
he
r R
eq
ue
sts
 fo
r S
erv

ice
 

Page 83



 
48

 

• 
Re
sp
on
d t
o a

ll r
eq
ue
sts
 in
 ac

co
rda

nc
e w

ith
 

do
cu
me

nte
d p

roc
ed
ure

s. 
• 
Dir
ec
t a
llo
ca
tio
n t
o o

ffic
er 
- in

co
mi
ng
 w
ork

loa
d c

he
ck
ed
 

da
ily.
 

 
DT
, S
EW

, F
B, 

ID
, A
K, 
EV

, 
BM

I, H
C,
 R
Z, 

JO
S 

• 
Pr
ior
ity
 ba

se
d a

cti
on
 (in

clu
din
g F

ree
do
m 
of 

Inf
orm

ati
on
 Ac

t re
qu
es
ts)
. 

• 
Re
qu
es
ts 
for
 se
rvi
ce
, 1

st
 re
sp
on
se
 w
ith
in 
5 w

ork
ing
 da

ys
 

– a
cti
on
 in
 ac
co
rda

nc
e w

ith
 po

lici
es
, p
roc

ed
ure

s a
nd
 

sta
tut
ory

 re
qu
ire
me

nts
. 

DT
, S
EW

, F
B, 

ID
, A
K, 
EV

, 
BM

I, H
C,
 R
Z, 

JO
S 

 Bu
sin
es
s A

dv
ice
 

• 
Re
sp
on
d t
o r
eq
ue
sts
 fo
r b
us
ine
ss
 ad

vic
e. 

Re
sp
on
d t
o r
eq
ue
sts
 fo
r a
dv
ice
 on

 fo
od
 sa
fet
y a
nd
 he

alt
h 

an
d s
afe

ty,
 1st

 re
sp
on
se
 w
ith
in 
5 w

ork
ing
 da

ys
 – 
pro

vid
e 

ad
vic
e w

ith
in 
2 w

ee
ks
. 

DT
, S
EW

, F
B, 

ID
, A
K, 
EV

, 
BM

I, H
C,
 R
Z, 

JO
S 

Fo
od
 H
az
ard

 W
arn

ing
s/F

oo
d S

afe
ty 
Inc

ide
nts
 

• 
Re
sp
on
d t
o a

ll F
oo
d A

ler
ts/
Fo
od
 Sa

fet
y I
nc
ide
nts

 
in 
ac
co
rda

nc
e w

ith
 do

cu
me

nte
d p

roc
ed
ure

s. 
• 
Br
ou
gh
t to

 at
ten

tio
n o

f P
EH

O 
im
me

dia
tel
y. 

• 
Im
me

dia
te 
res

po
ns
e t
o W

arn
ing
/In
cid
en
t d
ep
en
din
g 

up
on
 na

tur
e, 
ca
teg

ory
 an

d r
ele
va
nc
e. 

• 
Ac
tio
n t
ak
en
 fu
lly 
do
cu
me

nte
d e

lec
tro
nic
all
y. 

SE
W
, F
B 

 Ad
mi
n 

 

He
alt
h C

ert
ific
ate

s 
• 
Re
sp
on
d t
o a

ll H
ea
lth
 C
ert
ific
ate

 R
eq
ue
sts
 in
 

ac
co
rda

nc
e w

ith
 do

cu
me

nte
d p

roc
ed
ure

s. 
• 
Dir
ec
t a
llo
ca
tio
n t
o P

EH
O 
-in
co
mi
ng
 w
ork

loa
d c

he
ck
ed
 

da
ily.
 

• 
Ce
rtif
ica
te 
or 
oth

er 
res

po
ns
e p

rod
uc
ed
 w
ith
in 
5 d

ay
s. 

DT
, S
EW

, F
B, 

ID
, A
K, 
EV

, 
BM

I, H
C,
 R
Z, 

JO
S 

Co
nd
em

na
tio
n/V

olu
nta

ry 
Su
rre
nd
er 
of 
Fo
od
 

• 
Re
sp
on
d t
o a

ll r
eq
ue
sts
 fo
r C
on
de
mn

ati
on
 

Ce
rtif
ica
tes
/Vo

lun
tar
y S

urr
en
de
r o
f fo

od
 in
 

ac
co
rda

nc
e w

ith
 do

cu
me

nte
d p

roc
ed
ure

s. 
• 
Dir
ec
t a
llo
ca
tio
n t
o P

EH
O 
- in

co
mi
ng
 w
ork

loa
d c

he
ck
ed
 

da
ily.
 C
ert
ific
ate

s i
ss
ue
d/s

urr
en
de
r a
cc
ep
ted

 w
he
re 

ap
pro

pri
ate

, w
ith
in 
1 w

ork
ing
 da

y f
or 

pe
ris
ha
ble
/de

ter
ior
ati
ng
 go

od
s a

nd
 w
ith
in 
5 w

ork
ing
 

da
ys
 fo
r a
mb

ien
t s
tab

le 
go
od
s. 

 

DT
, S
EW

, F
B, 

ID
, A
K, 
EV

, 
BM

I, H
C,
 R
Z, 

JO
S 

Co
ns
ult
ati
on
s 

Page 84



 
49

 

• 
Re
sp
on
d t
o c
on
su
lta
tio
ns
 fo
r P
lan
nin
g, 
Bu
ild
ing
 

Co
ntr
ol 
& M

ark
ets
 Se

rvi
ce
 re
fer
ral
s i
n a

cc
ord

an
ce
 

wit
h d

oc
um

en
ted

 pr
oc
ed
ure

s. 
• 
As
se
ss
 no

tifi
ca
tio
ns
 of
 ap

pli
ca
tio
ns
 fo
r v
ari
ati
on
s 

of 
Pr
em

ise
s L
ice
nc
es
 un

de
r th

e n
ew
 Li
ce
ns
ing
 Ac

t 
an
d r
es
po
nd
 ac
co
rdi
ng
ly.
 

• 
Dir
ec
t a
llo
ca
tio
n t
o P

EH
O 
- in

co
mi
ng
 w
ork

loa
d c

he
ck
ed
 

da
ily.
 

• 
Ta
rge

t re
sp
on
se
 tim

e 7
 da

ys
 or
 as

 sp
ec
ifie
d b

y 
co
ns
ult
ee
. 

• 
Vis

it p
rem

ise
s a
nd
 ob

jec
t w
he
re 
ne
ce
ss
ary

. 

DT
, S
EW

, F
B, 

ID
, A
K, 
EV

, 
BM

I, H
C,
 R
Z, 

JO
S 

Fo
od
 Pr
em

ise
s R

eg
ist
rat
ion
 

• 
Fu
ll in

sp
ec
tio
n a

nd
 In
sp
ec
tio
n R

ati
ng
 of
 ne

w 
pre

mi
se
s. 

• 
Ne
wly

 re
gis
ter
ed
 pr
em

ise
s t
o b

e i
ns
pe
cte
d a

nd
 ra
ted

 
wit
hin
 28

 da
ys
 of
 re
ce
ipt
 of
 R
eg
ist
rat
ion
 Fo

rm
.  

• 
Re
po
rt t
o b

e r
un
 to
 id
en
tify
 th
es
e p

rem
ise
s 

DT
, S
EW

, F
B, 

ID
, A
K, 
EV

, 
BM

I, H
C,
 R
Z, 

JO
S 

• 
En
su
re 
all
 re
lev
an
t p
rem

ise
s a

re 
req

uir
ed
 to
 

reg
ist
er.
 

• 
Ne
w 
pre

mi
se
s i
nv
ite
d t
o r
eg
ist
er 
as
 so
on
 as
 id
en
tifi
ed
. 

• 
Pr
em

ise
s r
eq
uir
ing
 am

en
de
d r
eg
ist
rat
ion
 in
vit
ed
 to
 do

 so
 

as
 so

on
 as
 id
en
tifi
ed
. 

DT
, S
EW

, F
B, 

ID
, A
K, 
EV

, 
BM

I, H
C,
 R
Z, 

JO
S 

Ho
me

 Au
tho

rity
  

• 
Re
sp
on
d t
o a

ll r
eq
ue
sts
 fro

m 
or 
ab
ou
t 

Ho
me

/O
rig
ina
tin
g A

uth
ori
ty 
bu
sin
es
se
s i
n 

ac
co
rda

nc
e w

ith
 do

cu
me

nte
d p

roc
ed
ure

s. 
• 
Dir
ec
t a
llo
ca
tio
n t
o P

EH
O 
- in

co
mi
ng
 w
ork

loa
d c

he
ck
ed
 

da
ily.
 

• 
1st
 re
sp
on
se
 w
ith
in 
5 w

ork
ing
 da

ys
. 

• 
Hy
gie
ne
, la

be
llin
g o

r c
om

po
sit
ion
al 
etc
. a
dv
ice
, 

res
po
ns
e w

ith
in 
2 w

ee
ks
. 

• 
En
qu
irie
s b

y o
the

r a
uth

ori
tie
s/a

ge
nc
ies
, re

sp
on
se
 w
ith
in 

2 w
ee
ks
. 

DT
, S
EW

, F
B, 

ID
, A
K, 
EV

, 
BM

I, H
C,
 R
Z, 

JO
S 

Ot
he
r O

pe
rat
ion
al 
Iss
ue
s 

 Sm
ok
e F

ree
 Pu

bli
c P

lac
es
 

• 
Pr
om

ote
 Sm

ok
e F

ree
 Pu

bli
c P

lac
es
 

• 
Im
ple
me

nt 
leg
isla

tio
n  

• 
Inc

lud
e p

rom
oti
on
al 
gu
ida
nc
e i
n a

ll c
orr
es
po
nd
en
ce
 

DT
, S
EW

, F
B, 

ID
, A
K, 
EV

, 
BM

I, H
C,
 R
Z, 

JO
S 

Ed
uc
ati
on
/Fo

od
 Sa

fet
y P

rom
oti
on
 

• 
Pa
rtic
ipa
te 
in 
Na
tio
na
l F
oo
d S

afe
ty 
W
ee
k. 

• 
Fin

ali
se
 pr
og
ram

me
 by
 M
ay
 20

08
. 

• 
De
live

r in
itia
tiv
e J

un
e 2

00
8. 
Int
era

cti
ve
 di
sp
lay
. 

• 
Co
mm

en
ce
 de

ve
lop
me

nt 
of 
pro

gra
mm

e f
or 
20
09
 in
 

Ja
n/F

eb
 20

09
. 

BM
I 

• 
Mi
sc
ell
an
eo
us
 Fo

od
 Sa

fet
y P

rom
oti
on
 Ac

tiv
itie
s. 

• 
Ex
am

ine
 op

po
rtu
nit
ies
 to
 pa

rtic
ipa
te 
in 
ap
pro

pri
ate

 
BM

I 

Page 85



 
50

 

sc
he
me

s, 
de
live

r ta
lks
, p
ub
lish

 in
for
ma

tio
n a

nd
 pr
ov
ide
 

dis
pla
ys
 fo
r s
uit
ab
le 
gro

up
s o
r a
t e
ve
nts

 or
 lo
ca
tio
ns
 

thr
ou
gh
ou
t th

e y
ea
r. 

• 
De
live

r e
du
ca
tio
n i
n a

cc
ord

an
ce
 w
ith
 ab

ov
e a

s 
ap
pro

pri
ate

.  
• 
De
live

ry 
of 
an
 Al
ler
ge
ns
 aw

are
ne
ss
 se
mi
na
r to

 ca
ter
ers

. 
 

Int
er-
De
pa
rtm

en
tal
 Li
ais
on
 

• 
Le
ad
 of
fic
ers

 to
 lia
se
 w
ith
 ot
he
r s
erv

ice
s. 

 • 
Ed
uc
ati
on
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   R

eg
ula
r li
ais
on
 

me
eti
ng
s, 
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
   

• 
So
cia
l S
erv

ice
s  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
at 
lea
st 
1 p

er 
ye
ar 

• 
Pr
ov
ide
 ad

vic
e o

n a
pp
rop

ria
te 
po
lici
es
 an

d p
roc

ed
ure

s 
to 
Ed
uc
ati
on
 an

d S
oc
ial
 Se

rvi
ce
s w

ith
 re
ga
rd 
to 
the

ir 
res

po
ns
ibi
litie

s u
nd
er 
foo

d s
afe

ty 
leg
isla

tio
n. 

FB
, S
EW

, ID
 

Inf
orm

ati
on
 an

d L
ibr
ary

 
• 
Fo
od
 Sa

fet
y L
ea
fle
ts/
Po
ste

rs/
oth

er 
inf
orm

ati
on
. 

• 
Ch
ec
k s
toc

k o
f le
afl
ets
/po

ste
rs/
foo

d s
afe

ty 
inf
orm

ati
on
 

ev
ery

 m
on
th 
an
d m

ak
e a

pp
rop

ria
te 
ord

ers
. 

• 
Inf
orm

 te
am

 of
 ne

w 
ma

ter
ial
s w

ith
in 
2 w

ee
ks
 of
 ar
riv
al.
 

RZ
,JO

S 

• 
Lib
rar
y p
roc

ed
ure

s. 
• 
Re
fer
en
ce
 bo

ok
s a
nd
 ot
he
r m

ate
ria
ls 
to 
be
 pr
op
erl
y 

ca
tal
og
ue
d u

po
n a

rriv
al.
 

RZ
,JO

S 

• 
Re
fer
en
ce
 En

cy
clo
pa
ed
ias
. 

• 
Up
da
te 
all
 En

cy
clo
pa
ed
ias
 w
ith
in 
2 w

ee
ks
 of
 ar
riv
al.
 

RZ
,JO

S 
• 
EH

CN
et.
 

• 
Mo

nit
or 
eff
ec
tiv
en
es
s o
f s
ys
tem

 fo
r d
iss
em

ina
tio
n o

f 
inf
orm

ati
on
. 

• 
Mo

nit
or 
sy
ste

m 
for
 m
on
ito
rin
g o

f re
lev
an
t W

eb
sit
es
 

(Fo
od
 St
an
da
rds

 Ag
en
cy
 & 
LA
CO

RS
) a
t a
pp
rop

ria
te 

int
erv

als
. 

DT
, A
DM

IN
 

Eq
uip
me

nt 
Co
ntr
ol 

• 
Inv
en
tor
y f
or 
eq
uip
me

nt.
 

• 
Up
da
te 
inv
en
tor
y w

ith
in 
1 w

ee
k o
f n
ew
 ar
riv
als
.  

DT
 

• 
En
su
re 
eq
uip
me

nt 
co
ntr
ol 
pro

ce
du
res

 ar
e w

ork
ing
. 

• 
Mo

nit
or 
us
e a

nd
 co
ntr
ol 
of 
eq
uip
me

nt 
& a

ud
it s
ys
tem

 
ev
ery

 3 
mo

nth
s. 

RZ
,JO

S 

• 
En
su
re 
all
 eq

uip
me

nt 
is 
ca
lib
rat
ed
 an

d m
ain
tai
ne
d 

in 
wo
rki
ng
 or
de
r. 

• 
Ar
ran

ge
 m
ain
ten

an
ce
 an

d c
ali
bra

tio
n s

o t
ha
t a
ll 

eq
uip
me

nt 
co
nfo

rm
s t
o r
ele
va
nt 
sp
ec
ific
ati
on
 an

d C
od
es
 

of 
Pr
ac
tic
e. 

RZ
,JO

S 

• 
En
su
re 
ad
eq
ua
te 
sto
ck
s o
f c
on
su
ma

ble
s (
ba
gs
, 

• 
Ch
ec
k s
toc

k e
ve
ry 
mo

nth
 an

d m
ak
e a

pp
rop

ria
te 
ord

ers
. 

RZ
,JS

 

Page 86



 
51

 

se
als
 et
c).
 

 
• 
En
su
re 
ad
eq
ua
te 
co
ntr
ol 
pro

ce
du
res

 fo
r 

Re
frig

era
tor
s a
nd
 Fr
ee
ze
rs.
 

• 
Te
mp

era
tur
e m

on
ito
rin
g o

f re
lev
an
t re

frig
era

tor
 an

d 
fre
ez
er 
to 
be
 m
ain
tai
ne
d. 

• 
Re
frig

era
tor
s a
nd
 fre

ez
ers

 to
 be

 ke
pt 
cle
an
, re

gu
lar
ly 

de
fro
ste
d a

nd
 ot
he
rw
ise
 m
ain
tai
ne
d i
n w

ork
ing
 or
de
r. 

RZ
,JO

S 

Ac
co
un
tab

ility
 to
 Fo

od
 St
an
da
rds

 Ag
en
cy
 (F
SA

) 
 

 
• 
FS
A “
Se
rvi
ce
 Pl
an
nin
g”,
 “S
erv

ice
 St
an
da
rd”
 an

d 
“M
on
ito
rin
g” 
Re
qu
ire
me

nts
. 

 
• 
Pu
bli
sh
 FS

A S
erv

ice
 Pl
an
 fo
r 2
00
8/2

00
9 a

nd
 su
bm

it t
o 

Me
mb

ers
 (C
ab
ine
t). 
Ju
ne
 20

08
. 

• 
Pr
od
uc
e S

erv
ice
 Pl
an
 fo
r 2
00
9/2

01
0 i
n a

cc
ord

an
ce
 w
ith
 

Fo
od
 St
an
da
rds

 Ag
en
cy
 re
qu
ire
me

nts
.  C

om
me

nc
e 

Ma
rch

/Ap
ril 
20
09
. 

• 
Au
dit
 in
pu
t o
f a
ll s
tat
ist
ica
l d
ata

 to
 en

su
re 
pro

du
cti
on
 of
 

ac
cu
rat
e r
etu

rns
. 

• 
Pr
od
uc
e a

nd
 su
bm

it a
ll F
oo
d S

tan
da
rds

 Ag
en
cy
 

Mo
nit
ori
ng
 R
etu

rn 
inf
orm

ati
on
 w
ith
in 
tim
eta

ble
 se

t b
y 

FS
A. 

 

DT
 

 CP
 

 DT
 

  DT
, A
H 

 DT
, C
P 

 
Sta

ff C
om

pe
ten

cie
s/T

rai
nin
g 

• 
All
 En

vir
on
me

nta
l H
ea
lth
 O
ffic
ers

 el
igi
ble
 

for
 su

bm
iss
ion
 to
 th
e C

IEH
 As

se
ss
me

nt 
of 
Pr
ofe

ss
ion
al 
Co
mp

ete
nc
e (
AP

C)
 to
 

un
de
rta
ke
 th
e a

ss
es
sm
en
t. 

• 
 R
ele
va
nt 
EH

O’
s w

ho
 ar
e C

orp
ora

te 
Me

mb
ers

 cu
rre
ntl
y w

ith
ou
t 

AP
D 
are

 en
co
ura

ge
d t
o s

ub
mi
t fo

r a
ss
es
sm
en
t d
uri
ng
 th
e y
ea
r. 

SE
W
, F
B 

• 
Sta

ff c
om

pe
ten

cie
s a
nd
 tra

ini
ng
 ne

ed
s t
o 

be
 m
on
ito
red

.  
• 
Im
ple
me

nt 
sy
ste
m 
for
 re
gu
lar
 m
on
ito
rin
g o

f c
om

pe
ten

cy
 du

rin
g 

the
 ye
ar 
by
 as

se
ss
me

nt 
of 
on
 si
te 
an
d o

ff s
ite
 w
ork

 of
 fie
ld 
sta
ff 

an
d i
n a

cc
ord

an
ce
 w
ith
 PD

R 
sc
he
me

. 
SE
W
, F
B 

• 
Ide

nti
fy 
ap
pro

pri
ate

 tra
ini
ng
 ne

ed
s o
f 

sta
ff a

nd
 se

ek
 to
 pr
ov
ide
 ap

pro
pri
ate

 
tra
ini
ng
 to
 m
ee
t C
od
e o

f P
rac

tic
e, 

de
pa
rtm

en
tal
 an

d C
PD

 re
qu
ire
me

nts
. 

• 
Sta

ff t
o a

tte
nd
 ap

pro
pri
ate

 up
da
te-
tra
ini
ng
, c
ou
rse

s, 
an
d 

se
mi
na
rs 
as
 av
ail
ab
le 
su
bje
ct 
to 
bu
dg
eta

ry 
co
ns
tra
int
s. 

 
DT
, S
EW

, F
B, 
ID
, 

AK
, E
V, 
BM

I, H
C,
 

RZ
, J
OS

 

Ma
int
en
an
ce
 of
 Fo

od
 Pr
em

ise
s D

ata
ba
se
 

• 
Mo

nit
or 
an
d v
eri
fy 
da
tab

as
e i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 

reg
ula
rly
. 

• 
Ne
w 
pre

mi
se
s i
de
nti
fie
d a

nd
 ad

de
d t
o d

ata
ba
se
 by
 cr
os
s- 

ref
ere

nc
ing
 ot
he
r s
ou
rce

s o
f in
for
ma

tio
n a

nd
 by
 

ob
se
rva

tio
n/s

tre
et 
su
rve

ys
. 

• 
Mo

nit
or 
an
d v
eri
fy 
inp
utt
ing
 of
 Pr
em

ise
s, 
Ins
pe
cti
on
, S
erv

ice
 

Re
qu
es
t, S

am
pli
ng
 an

d P
ros

ec
uti
on
 in
for
ma

tio
n o

nto
 FL

AR
E 

Ad
mi
n, 
AH

 
  DT
, S
EW

, F
B 

Page 87



 
52

 

da
tab

as
e. 

De
pa
rtm

en
tal
 O
pe
rat
ion
s 

• 
Co
nti
nu
all
y r
ev
iew

 m
eth

od
s o
f w
ork

ing
 

an
d o

pe
rat
ion
al 
ac
tiv
itie
s t
o s
ee
k t
o 

ide
nti
fy 
fur
the

r e
ffic
ien
cie
s i
n p

rov
isio

n o
f 

se
rvi
ce
s. 

• 
As
se
ss
 id
en
tifi
ed
 im
pro

ve
me

nts
 to
 se
rvi
ce
 an

d i
mp

lem
en
t a
s 

ap
pro

pri
ate

 
DT
, S
EW

, F
B 

 He
alt

h a
nd

 Sa
fet

y E
nfo

rce
me

nt 
• 
Re
ac
tiv
ely
 in
ve
sti
ga
te 
se
lec
ted

 ac
cid
en
ts 
tha

t 
fal
l w
ith
in 
the

 sc
op
e o

f th
e s
ec
tio
n's
 po

lici
es
. 

 • 
Pr
oa
cti
ve
 w
ork

 to
 be

 un
de
rta
ke
n i
n l
ine
 w
ith
 

the
 C
us
tom

er 
Pr
om

ise
. 

       

• 
Inv
es
tig
ati
on
s t
o b

e u
nd
ert
ak
en
 in
 lin
e w

ith
 th
e S

ec
tio
ns
 

En
for
ce
me

nt 
Po
licy

 on
 a 
ris
k p

rio
rity
 ap

pro
ac
h. 
Ho
we
ve
r th

e 
fol
low

ing
 ac

tio
n w

ill b
e t
ak
en
: 

• 
Inv
es
tig
ate

 al
l s
lip
s, 
trip

s a
nd
 fa
lls 
wh
ere

 a 
bro

ke
n b

on
e r
es
ult
s 

as
 re
po
rte
d u

nd
er 
a R

ID
DO

R 
no
tifi
ca
tio
n. 
Inv
es
tig
ate

 al
l fa
tal
 

ac
cid
en
ts 
an
d m

ajo
r re

po
rta
ble
 ac

cid
en
ts.
 

• 
All
 as

be
sto
s r
em

ov
al 
to 
be
 su

pe
rvi
se
d, 
rec

ord
ed
 an

d f
ee
db
ac
k 

giv
en
 to
 th
e H

SE
. 

• 
En
su
re 
req

uir
ed
 w
ork

s t
o d

efe
cti
ve
 lif
t n
oti
fic
ati
on
s a

re 
ex
ec
ute

d 
wit
hin
 a 
leg
al 
fra
me

wo
rk.
 

• 
Inv
es
tig
ate

 al
l S
erv

ice
 R
eq
ue
sts
 

 

CA
S, 
SE
W
 R
DW

, 
W
S, 
SM

, F
E, 
AM

A, 
KM

O,
 D
FH
, D
T 

• 
Inv
olv
em

en
t w
ith
 no

n-l
ice
ns
ed
 ev
en
ts 

• 
To
 en

su
re 
co
mp

lia
nc
e w

ith
 he

alt
h a

nd
 sa
fet
y s
tan

da
rds

 at
 la
rge

 
ve
nu
es
 w
ith
in 
the

 Bo
rou

gh
 i.e

. T
rum

an
’s 
Br
ew
ery

 an
d T

ob
ac
co
 

Do
ck
. 

• 
W
ork

 w
ith
 En

for
ce
me

nt 
Of
fic
ers

 w
ith
in 
the

 Te
am

 to
 ac
hie
ve
 

co
mp

lia
nc
e. 

• 
To
 id
en
tify
 re
lev
an
t F
oo
d r
eta

ilin
g o

pe
rat
ion
s a
nd
 pr
ov
ide
 

gu
ida
nc
e i
n l
iai
so
n w

ith
 Fo

od
 Sa

fet
y O

ffic
ers

.  

SE
W
, D
FH
, K
MO

 
 

• 
Pr
ov
ide
 
cle
ar,
 
co
nc
ise
 
an
d 

ref
ere

nc
ed
 

tec
hn
ica
l i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 t
o 
the

 a
pp
lica

nt 
an
d 

Tra
din
g 

Sta
nd
ard

s 
if 
ma

kin
g 

he
alt
h 

an
d 

sa
fet
y r
ep
res

en
tat
ion
s o
n a

n a
pp
lica

tio
n. 

 

• 
 W
ith
 re
ga
rds

 to
 TE

Ns
 in
for
ma

tio
n t
o b

e p
rov

ide
d t
o a

pp
lica

nt 
pri
or 
to 
the

 ev
en
t. 

• 
Re
vie
w 
ap
pli
ca
tio
ns
 as
 th
ey
 ar
e p

res
en
ted

. 
• 
Att
en
d a

ll r
ele
va
nt 
me

eti
ng
s w

ith
 th
e a

pp
lica

nt 
 

SE
W
,D
FH
, K
MO

 
    

• 
Un
de
rta
ke
 en

for
ce
me

nt 
ac
tio
n i
n l
ine
 w
ith
 th
e 

De
pa
rtm

en
ts 
Po
licy

  
• 
Fo
rm
al 
ac
tio
n t
o b

e i
ns
tig
ate

d a
nd
 pr
os
ec
uti
on
s/s
im
ple
 ca
uti
on
s 

to 
be
 co
ns
ide
red

 in
 lin
e w

ith
 cu

rre
nt 
Co
de
s o
f P
rac

tic
e a

nd
 H
SC

 
Po
licy

 St
ate

me
nt,
 in
 ag

ree
me

nt 
wit
h t
he
 Le

ga
l T
ea
m 
an
d 

CA
S, 
SE
W
, R
DW

,  
W
S, 
SM

, F
E, 
 

Page 88



 
53

 

EH
CS

M.
  

• 
Un
de
rta
ke
 a 
ris
k-b

as
ed
 pr
og
ram

me
 of
 

pro
ac
tiv
e i
ns
pe
cti
on
s. 
 In
sp
ec
tio
ns
 to
 be

 
un
de
rta
ke
n u

sin
g S

MA
RT
 ta
rge

ts.
  E
ac
h 

pro
jec
t to

 ha
ve
 de

live
rab

le 
aim

s a
nd
 

ob
jec
tiv
es
. P
roj
ec
t s
ha
ll c
on
sid
er 
the

 
ap
pro

pri
ate

ne
ss
 of
 bu

sin
es
s s
em

ina
rs 

du
rin
g t
he
 pr
oje
ct 
pla
nn
ing
 st
ag
e. 

• 
Ris

k p
rio
rity
 in
sp
ec
tio
ns
 to
 be

 un
de
rta
ke
n w

ith
 re
ga
rds

 to
 H
EL
A 

ad
vic
e a

nd
 ag

ree
me

nt 
wit
h t
he
 H
SE

 Pa
rtn
ers

hip
 M
an
ag
er.
 To

tal
 

of 
78
3 p

rim
ary

 in
sp
ec
tio
ns
, in

clu
din
g a

 to
tal
 of
 10

0 M
ST
, P
et 

Sh
op
 Li
ce
nc
es
 to
 be

 un
de
rta
ke
n b

y t
he
 Te

am
 as

 pe
r re

so
urc

es
 

on
 1/
4/0

8. 
 In
div
idu
al 
mo

nth
ly 
tar
ge
ts 
CA

S 0
 SE

W
 – 
8, 
RD

W
 - 

10
, F
E-
14
, W

S –
 14

, S
M 
- 7
, D
FH
 – 
13
, K
MO

 - 7
 AM

A -
10
 .  

Inc
lud
ing
 M
ST
, la
un
de
ret
tes

, P
et 
Sh
op
 an

d e
ve
nt 
ins
pe
cti
on
s. 
 

8.2
% 
of 
co
mm

erc
ial
 pr
em

ise
s w

ill b
e i
ns
pe
cte
d b

y t
he
 U
nit
. 

• 
Un
de
rta
ke
 re
lev
an
t re

-in
sp
ec
tio
ns
 in
 lin
e w

ith
 th
e I
ns
pe
cti
on
 

Pr
oto

co
l –
 w
he
re 
ne
ce
ss
ary

 

CS
, S
EW

, W
S, 
SM

, 
FE
, A
MA

, K
MO

, 
DF
H,
  

  

• 
To
 b
e 
on
e 
of 

the
 le
ad
ing
 B
oro

ug
hs
 in
 th

e 
HS

E 
Str
es
s 

in 
the

 
Fin

an
cia
l 

Se
cto
r 

pro
gra

mm
e. 

To
 f
ac
ilita

te 
the

 H
SE

 S
tre
ss
 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
Sta

nd
ard

s w
ith
in 
the

 F
ina
nc
ial
 

Se
cto

r. 

• 
To
 ac

t a
s a

 le
ve
r to

 pe
rsu

ad
e 1

0 o
rga

nis
ati
on
s t
o j
oin
 th
e H

SC
/E 

Str
es
s P

roj
ec
t. T

o p
art
icip

ate
 in
 se
mi
na
rs 
an
d t
rai
nin
g i
n t
he
 

str
es
s m

an
ag
em

en
t s
tan

da
rds

. A
nti
cip
ate

d 2
0 c

on
tac

ts 
to 
be
 

ma
de
. 

 

• 
To
 ta
rge

t E
nte

rta
inm

en
t V
en
ue
s w

he
re 

Co
ntr
ol 
of 
No
ise
 at
 W
ork

 R
eg
ula
tio
ns
 20

05
 

ma
y b
e a

n i
ss
ue
.  

• 
He
alt
h a

nd
 Sa

fet
y i
ns
pe
cti
on
s t
o b

e u
nd
ert
ak
en
 to
 ga

ug
e t
he
 

lev
el 
of 
co
mp

lia
nc
e a

nd
 sp

ec
ific
all
y t
he
 N
ois
e a

t W
ork

 
Re
gu
lat
ion
s 2
00
5. 
To
 ra
ise
 aw

are
ne
ss
 an

d t
ak
e a

cti
on
 w
he
re 

em
plo
ye
es
 ar
e a

t ri
sk
. 

DF
H,
 KM

O 

CA
S, 
SE
W
, R
DW

, 
W
S, 
SM

, F
E, 
AM

A, 
 

DF
H,
 KM

O 
  

• 
To
 be

 in
vo
lve
d w

ith
 th
e L

ad
de
rs 
Ex
ch
an
ge
 

ca
mp

aig
n r
un
 by
 th
e H

SE
 in
 Se

pte
mb

er 
an
d 

Oc
tob

er 
20
08
 

• 
Ca
rry
 ou

r re
lev
an
t v
isit
s t
o d

uty
 ho

lde
rs 
wit
h r
eg
ard

s t
o w

ork
ing
 

fro
m 
lad
de
rs.
  

• 
Es
tab

lish
ing
 co
mp

lia
nc
e t
o t
he
 W
ork

ing
 at
 H
eig
ht 
Re
gu
lat
ion
s 

• 
Ca
rry
 ou

t e
va
lua
tio
n i
ns
pe
cti
on
s f
rom

 pr
em

ise
s i
ns
pe
cte

d i
n t
he
 

pro
jec
t fr
om

 20
07
/08

 
 

• 
To
 ca

rry
 ou

t w
ork

 w
ith
 th
e L

FE
PA
 du

rin
g t
he
 

run
 up

 to
 C
hri
stm

as
 to
 gi
ve
 gu

ida
nc
e t
o 

ret
ail
ers

 on
 m
ain
tai
nin
g f
ire
 ro
ute

s a
nd
 

ov
ers

toc
kin
g. 

• 
Un
an
no
un
ce
d v
isit
s, 
so
me

 w
ith
 of
fic
ers

 fro
m 
the

 LF
EP

A 
DF
H,
 KM

O 

• 
To
 ra
ise
 aw

are
ne
ss
 on

 W
ork

pla
ce
 Tr
an
sp
ort
 

– e
sp
ec
ial
ly 
in 
Bu
ild
ers

 M
erc

ha
nts
 an

d o
the

r 
rel
ev
an
t p
rem

ise
s. 
 

• 
W
ork

ing
 in
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w
ith
 th
e N

ort
h E

as
t 

Se
cto

r, H
SE
 on

 th
e L

on
do
n w

ide
 Pr
oje
cts
 of
 

• 
De
vis
e a

 pr
oje
ct 
to 
rev

iew
 an

d e
sta
bli
sh
 co
ntr
ol 
me

as
ure

s f
or 

du
ty 
ho
lde
rs 
on
 is
su
es
 re
lat
ing
 to
 Bu

ild
ers

 M
erc

ha
nts

 an
d o

the
r 

rel
ev
an
t p
rem

ise
s. 

• 
As
be
sto
s C

am
pa
ign
 in
 la
st 
qu
art
er 
– m

ain
ten

an
ce
 w
ork

ers
 

• 
To
 co

nc
en
tra
te 
on
 is
su
es
 in
 re
lat
ion
 to
 M
ov
ing
 G
oo
ds
 Sa

fel
y. 

CA
S, 
SE
W
, R
DW

, 
W
S, 
SM

, F
E, 
AM

A, 
 

 Po
ss
ibl
e p

roj
ec
t o
n 

vio
len
ce
 de

pe
nd
ing
 

Page 89



 
54

 

mo
vin
g g

oo
ds
 sa
fel
y. 
Ta
rge

t C
om

pa
ny
 

Ca
stl
e T

im
be
r.  
  

Th
is 
wil
l c
on
ce
ntr
ate

 on
 C
as
tle
 Ti
mb

er 
Ltd

. T
o b

e t
he
 le
ad
 on

 
thi
s p

roj
ec
t fo

r N
ort
h E

as
t L
on
do
n  

on
 th
e H

SE
 to
olk
it  

• 
To
 ca

rry
 ou

t a
wa
ren

es
s r
ais
ing
 on

 sa
fet
y 

iss
ue
s w

ith
 th
e F

oo
d O

ffic
ers

.  
• 
Aw

are
ne
ss
 se
mi
na
rs 
to 
be
 un

de
rta
ke
n o

n t
he
 fo
llo
win

g s
ub
jec
ts.
  

• 
Ga

s S
afe

ty 
in 
Fo
od
 pr
em

ise
s 

• 
De
live

ry 
Ha
tch

es
 

• 
Ma

ch
ine
 Sa

fet
y 

DT
, C
AS
, S
EW

, 
RD

W
 

  
• 

To
 ca

rry
 ou

t in
sp
ec
tio
ns
 in
 re
lat
ion
 to
 

W
are

ho
us
e a

nd
 W
ho
les
ale
 Sa

fet
y. 
To
 ra
ise
 

aw
are

ne
ss
 du

rin
g t
he
se
 vi
sit
s o

n t
he
 FI
T 3

 
are

as
. 

 

• 
To
 ta
rge

t W
are

ho
us
es
 an

d W
ho
les
ale
 pr
em

ise
s t
o c
on
sid
er 

Fo
rk 
Lif
t T
ruc

ks
, R
ac
kin
g u

se
, F
all
s f
rom

 H
eig
ht.
 Th

e w
ork

 to
 be

 
co
-or
din
ate

d w
ith
 Fo

od
 Sa

fet
y O

ffic
ers

. 
CA

S, 
SE
W
, R
DW

, 
W
S, 
SM

, F
E, 
AM

A, 
 

Fo
od
 Sa

fet
y O

ffic
ers

 

• 
To
 in
ve
sti
ga
te 
the

 le
ve
l o
f c
om

pli
an
ce
 w
ith
in 

tyr
e f
itti
ng
 es

tab
lish

me
nts

.  
• 

To
 in
sp
ec
t ty
re 
fitt
ing
 es
tab

lish
me

nts
 an

d c
arr
y o
ut 
co
mp

lia
nc
e 

str
ate

gie
s i
n r
ela
tio
n t
o t
he
 se
t p
rot
oc
ol.
 

RD
W
, W

S 

• 
To
 w
ork

 in
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w
ith
 th
e T

rad
ing
 

Sta
nd
ard

s S
erv

ice
 on

 th
e s

tor
ag
e o

f 
Fir
ew
ork

s 
• 

To
 un

de
rta
ke
 jo
int
 vi
sit
s a

nd
 a 
pro

gra
mm

e o
n i
nd
ep
en
de
nt 
vis
its
 

in 
rel
ati
on
 to
 th
e s
tor
ag
e o

f fi
rew

ork
s. 
En
ga
ge
me

nt 
of 
loc
al 
Fir
e 

Sa
fet
y O

ffic
ers

. 
DF
H,
 KM

O 
  

• 
Le
gio
ne
lla
 C
on
tro
l  

• 
To
 au

dit
 an

d i
ns
pe
ct 
hig
h r
isk
 C
oo
lin
g T

ow
ers

 
• 

To
 au

dit
 do

me
sti
c w

ate
r s
up
ply
 in
 O
ffic
es
 

• 
To
 au

dit
 an

d i
ns
pe
ct 
sp
a’s
   

CA
S, 
SE
W
, R
DW

, 
W
S, 
SM

, F
E, 
AM

A, 
 

 
• 
An
im
al 
we
lfa
re 
an
d Z

oo
no
tic
 in
fec

tio
ns
. 

• 
Ins

pe
ct 
Cit
y F

arm
s i
n r
ela
tio
n t
o a

nim
al 
we
lfa
re 
an
d z
oo
no
tic
 

inf
ec
tio
ns
.  L

iai
se
 w
ith
 R
SP

CA
 an

d P
oli
ce
 w
he
re 
ne
ce
ss
ary

. 
 

SM
 

• 
Mi
gra

nt 
W
ork

ers
 

• 
To
 in
ve
sti
ga
te 
the

 be
ne
fits
 of
 be

co
mi
ng
 in
vo
lve
d i
n t
he
 TU

C 
Mi
gra

nt 
W
ork

ers
 pr
og
ram

me
. T
o m

ak
e r
efe

rra
ls 
wh
ere

 po
ss
ibl
e.  

DT
 

  
• 
Yo
un
g W

ork
ers

 
• 

To
 ga

the
r re

lev
an
t d
ata

 on
 yo
un
g w

ork
ers

 an
d m

ak
e r
efe

rra
ls 
to 

the
 Ed

uc
ati
on
 Se

rvi
ce
. 

CA
S, 
SE
W
, R
DW

, 
W
S, 
SM

, F
E, 
AM

A, 
 

DF
H,
 KM

O 
• 

Sm
ok
e F

ree
 Pu

bli
c P

lac
es
 

• 
To
 as

sis
t in

 en
for
ce
me

nt 
iss
ue
s w

he
n t
he
 ne

ed
 ar
ise
s 

CA
S, 
SE
W
, R
DW

, 
W
S, 
SM

, F
E, 
AM

A, 
 

DF
H,
 KM

O 
• 

Un
de
rta
ke
 en

vir
on
me

nta
l s
am

pli
ng
: 

• 
To
 de

ve
lop
 sa
mp

lin
g p

rot
oc
ols
 an

d t
o u

nd
ert
ak
e s

am
pli
ng
 an

d 
CA

S, 
SE
W
, R
DW

, 

Page 90



 
55

 

• 
Sp
a w

ate
r 

• 
W
ax
 po

ts 
• 

Dy
es
 us

ed
 in
 se
mi
 pe

rm
an
en
t m

ak
e, 
tat
too

s 
an
d h

en
na
 

  

pu
bli
sh
 th
e r
es
ult
s. 
W
ork

 w
ith
 ot
he
r e
nfo

rce
rs 
wh
ere

 re
qu
ire
d. 
  

W
S, 
SM

, F
E, 
AM

A, 
 

 

 He
alt

h a
nd

 Sa
fet

y E
du

ca
tio

n/A
dv

ice
 

• 
Ca
rry
 ou

t S
afe

ty 
He
alt
h a

nd
 Aw

are
ne
ss
 D
ay
s 

(S
HA

DS
)  t
o d

uty
ho
lde
rs 
at 
the

 co
nc
lus
ion
 of
 

the
 pr
oje
ct 
are

as
. 

• 
De
ve
lop
 ro
uti
ne
 bu

sin
es
s s
em

ina
rs 

CA
S, 
SE
W
, R
DW

 

• 
En
su
re 
lite
rat
ure

 on
 re
lev
an
t is
su
es
 an

d 
lan
gu
ag
es
 ar
e f
orw

ard
ed
 to
 SM

E’s
. 

• 
An
 in
for
ma

tio
n p

ac
k t
o b

e s
en
t to

 al
l S
ME

 af
ter
 au

dit
ing
. T
arg

et:
 

All
 au

dit
ed
 pr
em

ise
s 

CA
S, 
SE
W
, R
DW

, 
W
S, 
SM

, F
E, 
AM

A, 
 

DF
H,
 KM

O 
• 
Eu
rop

ea
n H

ea
lth
 an

d S
afe

ty 
W
ee
k O

cto
be
r 

20
08
 

• 
Ta
ke
 pa

rt a
nd
 pu

bli
cis
e t
he
 Eu

rop
ea
n H

ea
lth
 an

d S
afe

ty 
in 

Oc
tob

er 
– M

SD
’s 
an
d r
isk
 as

se
ss
me

nt 
 

 

Cu
sto

me
r C

ar
e 

• 
En
su
re 
tha

t a
ll c
us
tom

ers
 ar
e d

ea
lt w

ith
 fa
irly
 

an
d i
n a

cc
ord

an
ce
 to
 th
e S

ec
tio
ns
 Po

lici
es
. 

• 
Us
e t
he
 st
an
da
rd 
ph
ras

es
, ti
me

 sc
ale
s a
nd
 pr
oto

co
ls 
lai
d d

ow
n 

in 
the

 Se
cti
on
s P

oli
cie
s. 
Re
sp
on
se
: A
ud
it r
ep
ort
s i
n 1

0 d
ay
s, 

co
mp

lai
na
nts

 co
nta

cte
d i
n 5

 da
ys
, le

ss
 if 
hig
h r
isk
. N
oti
ce
s: 

Pr
oh
ibi
tio
n, 
sa
me

 da
y, 
Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
3 d

ay
s 

CA
S, 
SE
W
, R
DW

, 
W
S, 
SM

, F
E, 
AM

A, 
 

DF
H,
 KM

O 

• 
To
 be

 op
en
 w
he
n t
ak
ing
 En

for
ce
me

nt 
Ac
tio
n. 

  
• 
Pr
ov
ide
 th
e d

uty
 ho

lde
r w
ith
 al
ter
na
tiv
es
 to
 co
mp

lyin
g w

ith
 th
e 

leg
isla

tio
n. 
 

• 
Gi
ve
 al
l re

lev
an
t in
for
ma

tio
n o

n t
he
 ap

pe
als
 pr
oc
ed
ure

s. 
• 
Tra

ns
lat
ion
s n
oti
fic
ati
on
s w

he
re 
ne
ce
ss
ary

. 
      
 

CA
S, 
SE
W
, R
DW

, 
W
S, 
SM

, F
E, 
AM

A, 
 

DF
H,
 KM

O 

• 
To
 se

ek
 pu

bli
cit
y a
t a
ll o
pp
ort
un
itie
s 

• 
To
 pr
od
uc
e p

res
s r
ele
as
es
 on

 to
pic
 in
sp
ec
tio
ns
 an

d a
ll 

pro
se
cu
tio
ns
. 

CA
S, 
DH

I, R
DW

, 
W
S, 
SM

, F
E, 
AM

A, 
 

DF
H,
 KM

O 
Int

erm
ed

iar
y 

• 
To
 ex
plo
it a

ll o
pp
ort
un
itie
s t
o p

rom
ote

 th
e 

se
cti
on
s w

ork
 w
ith
 re
ga
rds

 to
 H
ea
lth
 an

d 
Sa
fet
y 

• 
To
 w
ork

 w
ith
 C
orp

ora
te 
bu
sin
es
s a
nd
 pr
ov
ide
 in
for
ma

tio
n i
n a

 
tar
ge
ted

 an
d c
on
sis
ten

t m
an
ne
r 

 
CA

S, 
SE
W
, R
DW

, 
W
S, 
SM

, F
E, 
AM

A, 
 

DF
H,
 KM

O 

Page 91



 
56

 

Lic
en

sin
g  

• 
De
ter
mi
ne
 l
ice
nc
e 

ap
pli
ca
tio
ns
 w

ith
in 

se
t 

tim
e-s

ca
les
.  

 
• 
Lic
en
ce
s >

 1 
mo

nth
 ex
pir
ed
 fa
ce
 pr
os
ec
uti
on
. 

• 
Lic
en
se
es
 sh
all
 be

 ad
vis
ed
 of
 pr
oc
es
s o
n a

pp
lica

tio
n. 

• 
Sta

nd
ard

 lic
en
ce
 pr
oc
ed
ure

 to
 be

 fo
llo
we
d 

Ta
rge

t: A
ll L
ice
nc
es
 

CA
S, 
SE
W
, R
DW

, 
W
S, 
SM

, F
E, 
AM

A, 
 

DF
H,
 KM

O 

• 
Co
ns
ist
en
cy
 w
ith
 ot
he
r L
oc
al 
Au
tho

riti
es

 
• 
Att
en
da
nc
e a

nd
 pa

rtic
ipa
tio
n a

t th
e M

ST
 W
ork

ing
 Pa

rty
, to

 
att
en
d q

ua
rte
rly

 
SE
W
, F
E, 
KM

O 

• 
All
 Li
ce
nc
es
 is
su
ed
 w
ill b

e v
isit
ed
 fo
r n
on
 

co
mp

lia
nc
e’s
 

All
 lic
en
se
d p

rem
ise
s s
ha
ll b
e a

ud
ite
d o

nc
e a

 ye
ar,
 un

les
s 

co
mp

lai
nts

 ar
e r
ec
eiv
ed
. T
his
 w
ill e

qu
ate

 to
 10

0 v
isit
s. 
Ta
rge

t: A
ll 

pre
mi
se
s. 

CA
S,S

EW
, R
DW

, 
W
S, 
SM

, F
E, 
AM

A, 
 

DF
H,
 KM

O 
In
fec

tio
us
 D
ise

ase
  

• 
Re
vie
w 
an
d b

e t
he
 po

int
 of
 co

nta
ct 
for
 th
e 

co
ntr
ol 
of 
inf
ec
tio
us
 di
se
as
e. 

• 
To
 m
ain
tai
n l
iai
so
n w

ith
 Em

erg
en
cy
 Se

rvi
ce
s, 
He
alt
h P

rot
ec
tio
n 

Ag
en
cy
 an

d P
CT
 

 
DT
 

• 
Mo

nit
or 
ca
se
s a
nd
 co
nta

cts
 of
 in
fec
tio
us
 

dis
ea
se

 
• 
Inv
es
tig
ate

 no
tifi
ca
tio
ns
 in
 re
lat
ion
 to
 N
ati
on
al 
an
d L

oc
al 

Gu
ide
lin
es
.  T

ak
e s

too
l s
am

ple
s t
o t
he
 Lo

ca
l re

ce
ivin

g c
en
tre
.  

Re
sp
on
se
: h
igh
-ris

k c
as
es
 in
 on

e d
ay
, lo

w 
ris
k c
as
es
 in
 5 
da
ys
. 

• 
Inv
es
tig
ati
on
 of
 O
utb

rea
ks
 

• 
Re
tur
ns
 to
 be

 se
nt 
off
 on

 a 
we
ek
ly 
ba
sis
 as

 re
qu
ire
d. 

AM
A, 
DT
 

  CA
S, 
SE
W
,R
DW

, 
W
S, 
SM

, F
E, 
AM

A, 
Fo
od
 O
ffic
ers

 
• 
Pr
od
uc
tio
n o

f s
tat
ist
ics
 fo
r e
xte
rna

l 
org

an
isa
tio
ns
 to
 en

ab
le 
Na
tio
na
l m
on
ito
rin
g 

of 
Inf
ec
tio
us
 D
ise
as
e 

• 
To
 co
mp

let
e t
he
 st
atu

tor
y r
etu

rns
 as

 re
qu
ire
d. 
En
su
re 
tha

t th
e 

da
tab

as
e i
s m

ain
tai
ne
d. 

• 
Re
sp
on
se
: to

 se
nd
 re
tur
ns
 by
 du

e d
ate

 

DT
  

Li
ais

on
 w
ith

 In
fec

tio
us
 D
ise

ase
 C
on

tro
l O

rg
an

isa
tio

ns
 

• 
Lia
se
 w
ith
 th
e H

ea
lth
 Au

tho
rity
 (C
CD

C)
 on

 
no
tifi
ca
tio
ns
 of
 In
fec

tio
us
 D
ise
as
e a

nd
 ot
he
r 

rel
ev
an
t m

att
ers

 
• 

To
 w
ork

 w
ith
 th
e P

CT
 to
 ra
ise
 aw

are
ne
ss
 of
 

inf
ec
tio
us
 di
se
as
e a

nd
 to
 im
ple
me

nt 
joi
nt 

co
ntr
ol 
po
lice

s 

• 
To
 m
ee
t w
ith
 th
e C

CD
C 
to 
dis
cu
ss
 no

tifi
ca
tio
ns
.  L

ias
e w

ith
 th
e 

Inf
ec
tio
us
 C
on
tro
l N
urs

e, 
Ca
rer
s, 
as
 ap

pro
pri
ate

. 
• 
Ide

nti
fy 
tre
nd
s i
n r
ela
tio
n t
o c

ert
ain
 or
ga
nis
ms
 an

d u
nd
ert
ak
e f
ull
 

inv
es
tig
ati
on
s, 
rep

ort
 qu

art
erl
y t
o t
he
 H
PA

 fo
rum

. 
• 
W
ork

 w
ith
 th
e P

CT
 on

 jo
int
 in
itia
tiv
es
.   

DT
  

DT
 

 DT
   

Ed
uc

ati
on

 an
d A

dv
ice

 
• 
To
 as

sis
t a
nd
 or
ga
nis
e p

ub
lic 
he
alt
h p

roj
ec
ts 
 

• 
To
 w
ork

 w
ith
 ot
he
r a
ge
nc
ies
 to
 de

ve
lop
 th
e a

wa
ren

es
s o
f 

Inf
ec
tio
us
 D
ise
as
e C

on
tro
l in
 th
e B

oro
ug
h. 

DT
  

• 
To
 ta
ke
 pa

rt i
n t
he
 en

ha
nc
ed
 ty
ph
oid
 

• 
To
 as

sis
t w
ith
 th
e r
ev
iew

 an
d p

rov
ide
 re
lev
an
t h
ard

 da
ta 
as
 

DT
, A
MA

  

Page 92



 
57

 

su
rve

illa
nc
e s

ch
em

e. 
req

ue
ste

d. 
• 
Pr
om

ote
 in
fec
tio
n c

on
tro
l p
oli
cie
s 

• 
To
 ad

vis
e c

orp
ora

te 
org

an
isa
tio
ns
 on

 th
e n

ee
d a

nd
 

im
ple
me

nta
tio
n o

f in
fec
tio
n c

on
tro
l p
oli
cie
s  

DT
 

En
vir

on
me

nta
l H

ea
lth

 C
om

me
rc

ial
 

 SW
OT

 
Str
en
gth

s 
Ne
w 
sta

ff j
oin
ing
 

Pr
oc
ed
ure

s i
n p

lac
e 

Go
od
 Te

am
 m
ora

le,
 di
ve
rse

 sk
ills
  

Int
eg
rat
ion
 of
 Fo

od
 an

d H
ea
lth
 an

d S
afe

ty 
Te
am

 m
an
ag
em

en
t 

Tra
ini
ng
 of
 on

e s
tud

en
t E
nv
iro
nm

en
tal
 H
ea
lth
 O
ffic
ers

 
Pr
oje
ct 
wo
rk 
– h

igh
lig
hti
ng
 re
al 
ris
ks
 an

d a
dd
res

sin
g t
he
m 
(Fi
t 3
) 

De
ve
lop
ing
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
s 

Str
uc
tur
e a

llo
ws
 ca

ree
r p
rog

res
sio
n 

Str
uc
tur
ed
 sy
ste

m 
for
 re
ce
ivin

g c
us
tom

er 
fee

db
ac
k 

Str
uc
tur
ed
 sa
mp

lin
g p

rog
ram

me
s w

ith
 ot
he
r L
oc
al 
Au
tho

riti
es
 

W
ea
kn
es
se
s  

Fo
rm
al 
ad
op
tio
n E

nfo
rce

me
nt 
Po
licy

 ne
ed
ed
. 

Ex
pa
nd
ing
 w
ork

loa
d a

s t
he
 Bo

rou
gh
 de

ve
lop
s 

Re
lia
nc
e o

n c
on
tra
cto
rs,
 lo
ss
 on

 lo
ca
l in
tel
lig
en
ce
 

Po
ten

tia
l d
iffi
cu
ltie
s i
n d

ea
lin
g w

ith
 m
ajo
r re

ac
tiv
e i
ss
ue
s  
 

Th
ree

 va
ca
nt 
po
sts
  

Tra
ini
ng
 ne

ed
s f
or 
sta
ff 

W
eb
sit
e r
eq
uir
es
 co
ns
tan

t u
pd
ati
ng
 

 

Op
po
rtu
nit
ies
 

Fle
xib
le 
W
arr
an
tin
g 

He
alt
h a

nd
 W
ell
be
ing
 Ag

en
da
  

Re
vie
w 
of 
FS
A p

oli
cie
s w

ith
 re
ga
rds

 to
 Lo

ca
l A
uth

ori
tie
s 

Su
bs
tan

tia
l p
art
 of
 th
e B

oro
ug
h u

nd
er 
reg

en
era

tio
n 

De
ve
lop
me

nt 
of 
Fla

re 
– l
ink
ing
 do

cu
me

nts
 an

d M
ST
 Li
ce
ns
ing
 

Sc
ore

s o
n t
he
 D
oo
rs 

Ol
ym
pic
s J
oin
t W

ork
 

De
ve
lop
me

nt 
of 
the

 pr
oc
es
s t
o e

ns
ure

 co
ns
ist
en
cy
 ac

ros
s t
he
 

wh
ole
 se

rvi
ce
 

Ne
w 
An
im
al 
we
lfa
re 
leg
isla

tio
n 

Str
on
ge
r H
PA

, m
ore

 fo
cu
ss
ed
 on

 Lo
ca
l A
uth

ori
tie
s a

s p
art
ne
rs 

HS
E t
o f
oc
us
 on

 Lo
ca
l A
uth

ori
tie
s a

s p
art
ne
rs 

Re
vie
w 
of 
se
cti
on
 18

 gu
ida
nc
e 

Jo
int
 PC

T T
ea
m 
on
 Sm

ok
e F

ree
 Pu

bli
c P

lac
es
 

Pr
ov
isio

n o
f S
cie
nc
e a

nd
 Te

ch
no
log
y f
un
din
g f
rom

 H
SE
 

Th
rea

ts 
Mo

re 
leg
al 
res

po
ns
ibi
lity
, m

ore
 re
ge
ne
rat
ion
, a
bil
ity
 to
 be

 fle
xib
le 

wit
h r
es
ou
rce

s  
Ab
ility

 of
 a 
‘sit
ua
tio
n’ 
to 
aff
ec
t p
rog

ram
me

d w
ork

 
Ma

rke
t s
ho
rta
ge
 of
 En

vir
on
me

nta
l H
ea
lth
 Pr
ac
titi
on
ers

 
  

Page 93



 
58

 

 Ac
tio
n P

oin
ts 
fro
m 
Sw

ot 
 Is

su
es

 th
at 

ne
ed

s t
o b

e a
dd

res
se

d 
De

fin
e A

cti
on

 an
d T

arg
et 

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y 

• 
Im
ple
me

nta
tio
n o

f S
mo

ke
 Fr
ee
 Te

am
 an

d S
tra
teg

y (
H)
 

• 
W
ork

 w
ith
 ex
ter
na
l p
art
ne
rs 
to 
se
cu
re 
fun

din
g 

DT
, C
P, 
 

• 
Sta

tut
ory

 C
od
e o

f P
rac

tic
e f
or 
Re
gu
lat
ors

 
• 
As
se
ss
 im
pa
ct 

DT
,C
P 

• 
Fo
rm
al 
ad
op
tio
n o

f jo
int
 En

for
ce
me

nt 
 Po

licy
 (H

) 
• 
Ide

nti
fy 
the

 ro
ute

 of
 ad

op
tio
n  
  

    
 O
bta

in 
for
ma

l a
do
pti
on
 of
 po

licy
 

DT
 , C

P  

• 
Be
 aw

are
 of
 cu

rre
nt 
rev

iew
s o

f th
e l
eg
isla

tio
n t
ha
t th

e 
Se
rvi
ce
 en

for
ce
s.(
M)
 

• 
Ha
ve
 re
pre

se
nta

tio
n a

t th
e L

iai
so
n G

rou
ps
 

an
d W

ork
ing
 Pa

rtie
s. 
Fo
ur 
me

eti
ng
s o
f e
ac
h 

pe
r y
ea
r. 

• 
As
se
ss
 im
pa
ct 
of 
ne
w 
leg
isla

tio
n a

nd
 th
e 

eff
ec
ts 
on
 th
e S

erv
ice
.  

DT
  

• 
Re
vie
w 
of 
Of
fic
er 
pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 en

su
rin
g s
erv

ice
 

sta
nd
ard

s a
re 
me

t  (
L) 

 
• 
Un
de
rta
ke
 ve
rifi
ca
tio
n a

ud
its
 of
 st
aff
 – 

em
be
dd
ed
 fo
r F
S r
oll
 ou

t to
 H
S 

• 
Re
gu
lar
 re
vie
w 
pro

gra
mm

es
 of
 st
aff
 

pe
rfo
rm
an
ce
 

PE
HO

  

• 
De
ve
lop
 IT
 in
fra
str
uc
tur
e (
M)
. 

• 
To
 in
ve
sti
ga
te 
the

 fu
rth
er 
ca
pa
bil
itie
s o
f F
lar
e 

wit
h r
eg
ard

s t
o l
ink
ing
 do

cu
me

nts
.  

DT
, S
R,
 AH

 

• 
Th
rea

ts 
to 
the

 w
ork

 pl
an
 (M

) 
• 
De
al 
wit
h u

nfo
res

ee
n e

me
rge

nc
ies
 an

d 
de
ter
mi
ne
 ef
fec
t o
n w

ork
 pl
an
 ac

co
rdi
ng
ly.
 

DT
  

• 
Sc
ore

s o
n t
he
 D
oo
rs 
(M
) 

• 
Se
ek
 po

litic
al 
an
d S

en
ior
 m
an
ag
em

en
t b
uy
 in
 
DT
, C
P 

• 
En
ga
ge
 H
ea
lth
 an

d S
afe

ty 
EH

O’
s a

nd
 th
e i
nte

res
t in

 
Fo
od
 w
ork

 (M
) 

• 
Po
ten

tia
l tr
ain
ing
 im

pli
ca
tio
ns
 fo
r E
HO

’s 
DT
. P
EH

O 

• 
En
ga
ge
 w
ith
 H
ea
lth
 St
rat
eg
ies
 – 
PC

T/H
PA

 (H
) 

• 
Pr
og
res

s j
oin
t w
ork

ing
 w
ith
 H
SE

, F
SA

 an
d N

E S
ec
tor
 

(H
) 

• 
Inv
olv
em

en
t w
ith
 PC

T, 
LA
Ps
, L
AA
 an

d 
CP

AG
’s 
as
 th
e o

pp
ort
un
ity
 ar
ise
s. 

• 
Inv
olv
em

en
t w
ith
 FS

A, 
HS

E, 
 LA

’s 
 

DT
, P
EH

O 

• 
Re
du
ce
 re
lia
nc
e o

n c
on
tra
cto

rs 
(L)
 

• 
Pr
om

ote
 th
e R

&R
 pa

ck
ag
e w

he
n d

eli
ve
red

 
DT
, C
P 

• 
Re
vie
w 
an
d u

pd
ate

 w
eb
sit
e (
L) 

• 
Un
its
 to
 re
vie
w 

DT
, P
EH

O 
• 
Ev
alu
ate

 cu
sto
me

r fe
ed
ba
ck
 co
ns
ult
ati
on
s (
H)
 

• 
Re
sp
on
d t
o a

nd
 ac
t o
n c
us
tom

er 
fee

db
ac
k 

DT
 

• 
Co
ns
ide
r th

e i
mp

lica
tio
ns
 of
 fu
rth
er 
rol
e f
or 
HS

 U
nit
 (M

) 
• 
Ex
plo
re 
the

 po
ss
ibi
lity
 of
 ag

ree
ing
 to
 fle
xib
le 

wa
rra
nti
ng
 fo
r a
 m
ore

 co
he
siv
e s

erv
ice
 to
 th
e 

pu
bli
c. 

DT
, C
P, 
PE

HO
 

• 
De
ve
lop
me

nt 
of 
Jo
int
 O
lym

pic
s T

ea
ms
 (H
) 

• 
W
ork

ing
 w
ith
 an

d o
uts

ide
 TH

 
DT
 C
P 

Page 94



 
59

 

• 
De
ve
lop
 FS

A r
ep
ort
ing
 m
ec
ha
nis
ms

 (H
) 

• 
To
 as

se
ss
 im
pa
ct 
an
d s
et 
up
 

DT
, C
P 

• 
En
ga
ge
 w
ith
 th
e H

SE
 an

d d
ev
elo
p t
he
 FI
T 3

 ag
en
da
 (H

) 
• 
W
ork

 w
ith
 ot
he
r A
uth

ori
tie
s a

nd
 th
e H

SE
 

DT
 

• 
De
ve
lop
 Te

am
 to
 bl
ur 
ed
ge
s (
H)
 

• 
PE

HO
 an

d j
oin
t p
lan
nin
g 

DT
, P
EH

O 
    

Page 95



 
60

 

   
 
 

 
 

 
 

An
ne

x 
F 

LO
ND

O
N 

BO
RO

UG
H 

O
F 

TO
W

ER
 H

AM
LE

TS
 

 
FO

O
D 

SA
M

PL
IN

G
 P

O
LI

CY
 2

00
8/

09
 

  
It i
s a

 re
qu
ire
me

nt 
of 
the

 C
od
e o

f P
rac

tic
e, 
wh
ich
 ou

tlin
es
 pr
oc
ed
ure

s f
or 
sa
mp

lin
g m

ad
e u

nd
er 
the

 Fo
od
 Sa

fet
y A

ct 
19
90
 an

d F
oo
d H

yg
ien
e 

(E
ng
lan
d) 
Re
gs
 20

06
 th
at 
loc
al 
au
tho

riti
es
 pu

bli
sh
 a 
sa
mp

lin
g p

oli
cy
 an

d o
utl
ine
 pr
og
ram

me
s f
or 
ea
ch
 fin
an
cia
l y
ea
r. 

 In 
co
mm

on
 w
ith
 al
l L
on
do
n b

oro
ug
hs
, T
ow
er 
Ha
ml
ets

 is
 pa

rt o
f th

e L
on
do
n F

oo
d C

o-o
rdi
na
tin
g G

rou
p (
LF
CG

).  
Th
is 
ha
s b
ee
n s

et 
up
 by
 

AL
EH

M 
(A
ss
oc
iat
ion
 of
 Lo

nd
on
 En

vir
on
me

nta
l H
ea
lth
 O
ffic
ers

), p
rev

iou
sly
 th
e L

on
do
n C

hie
f E
nv
iro
nm

en
tal
 H
ea
lth
 O
ffic
ers

’ A
ss
oc
iat
ion
 in
 

as
so
cia
tio
n w

ith
 LA

CO
RS

 to
 co

-or
din
ate

 th
e f
oo
d e

nfo
rce

me
nt 
fun

cti
on
 of
 Lo

nd
on
 Bo

rou
gh
s. 

 Me
mb

ers
hip
 of
 th
e G

rou
p i
nc
lud
es
 En

vir
on
me

nta
l H
ea
lth
 O
ffic
ers

, P
ub
lic 
An
aly
sts
 an

d a
 re
pre

se
nta

tiv
e o

f th
e H

ea
lth
 Pr
ote

cti
on
 Ag

en
cy
.  O

ne
 

of 
the

 ke
y f
un
cti
on
s o
f th

e G
rou

p i
s t
he
 co

-or
din
ati
on
 of
 fo
od
 sa
mp

lin
g i
n L

on
do
n –

 th
is 
is 
ac
hie
ve
d b

y d
ivid

ing
 th
e 3

3 L
on
do
n B

oro
ug
hs
 in
to 
4 

reg
ion
al 
se
cto

rs,
 w
ith
 ea

ch
 se

cto
r a
rra
ng
ing
 sa
mp

lin
g p

rog
ram

me
s i
n i
ts 
ow
n a

rea
 on

ly 
aft
er 
pro

pe
r li
ais
on
 w
ith
 th
e o

the
r 3
 se

cto
rs.
  T
ow
er 

Ha
ml
ets

 is
 in
 th
e N

E s
ec
tor
. 

 FO
OD

 SA
MP

LIN
G 
OB

JE
CT
IVE

S A
ND

 PR
IO
RI
TIE

S 
 Th
e m

ain
 ob

jec
tiv
e o

f fo
od
 sa
mp

lin
g s
ho
uld
 be

 th
e p

rot
ec
tio
n o

f th
e c
on
su
me

r th
rou

gh
 th
e e

nfo
rce

me
nt 
of 
foo

d l
eg
isla

tio
n a

nd
 th
e 

en
co
ura

ge
me

nt 
of 
fai
r tr
ad
ing
.  I
n a

tte
mp

tin
g t
o a

ch
iev
e t
his
 ob

jec
tiv
e i
t is
 im
po
rta
nt 
tha

t th
e C

ou
nc
il c
on
sid
ers

 th
e m

os
t e
ffe
cti
ve
 us
e o

f 
lim
ite
d r
es
ou
rce

s. 
 Th

ere
for
e, 
the

 C
ou
nc
il h
as
 id
en
tifi
ed
 its
 fo
od
 sa
mp

lin
g p

rog
ram

me
s i
n t
he
 fo
llo
win

g p
rio
rity
 or
de
r: 

 
(i) 

Inv
es
tig
ati
on
 of
 fo
od
 po

iso
nin
g o

utb
rea

ks
 an

d f
oo
d c
on
tam

ina
tio
n i
nc
ide
nts
 

(ii)
 

Co
mp

lai
nts

 w
he
re 
sa
mp

lin
g i
s n

ec
es
sa
ry 

(iii
) 

Im
po
rte
d f
oo
d r
es
po
ns
ibi
litie

s 
(iv
) 

Ho
me

 au
tho

rity
 re
sp
on
sib
iliti
es
 

(v)
 

EU
 co

-or
din
ate

d s
am

pli
ng
 pr
og
ram

me
 

(vi
) 

HP
A/L

AC
OR

S s
am

pli
ng
 pr
og
ram

me
 

(vi
i) 

Co
-or
din
ate

d p
rog

ram
me

d s
am

pli
ng
 – 
wit
h o

the
r L
on
do
n B

oro
ug
hs
 

(vi
ii) 

Lo
ca
l p
roj
ec
ts 
in 
ind
ivid

ua
l b
oro

ug
hs
 

Page 96



 
61

 

TY
PE

S O
F S

AM
PL
ES
 

 Th
ere

 is
 a 
ne
ed
 fo
r a
 co
mm

on
 ap

pro
ac
h t
o s

am
pli
ng
 in
 th
e B

oro
ug
h, 
an
d t
his
 is
 se
t o
ut 
as
 fo
llo
ws
: 

 Ra
nd
om

 in
for
ma

l s
am

ple
s 

 
(i) 

Th
es
e s
ho
uld
 be

 av
oid
ed
 fo
r b
oth

 ch
em

ica
l a
nd
 m
icr
ob
iol
og
ica
l s
am

ple
s. 

(ii)
 

Th
ere

 is
, h
ow
ev
er,
 a 
pla
ce
 fo
r in

for
ma

l s
am

ple
s b

ut 
pri
nc
ipa
lly 
wit
hin

 a 
pro

gra
mm

ed
 sa
mp

lin
g p

roj
ec
t c
on
ce
ntr
ati
ng
 on

 a 
pa
rtic
ula
r 

foo
d i
ss
ue
. 

(iii
) 

Th
ere

 w
ill a

lso
 be

 oc
ca
sio
ns
 w
he
n i
nfo

rm
al 
sa
mp

les
 w
ill b

e j
us
tifi
ed
 w
he
n t
es
tin
g a

 ne
w 
pro

du
ct 
or 
pro

ce
ss
 on

 th
e m

ark
et.
 

 Mi
cro

bio
log
ica
l s
am

ple
s 

 
(i) 

Fo
rm
al 
sa
mp

les
 be

ing
 ta
ke
n i
n a

cc
ord

an
ce
 w
ith
 th
e R

eg
ula
tio
ns
 sh
ou
ld 
be
 th
e n

orm
al 
pro

ce
du
re.
 

(ii)
 

Th
ere

 ar
e n

o a
dv
an
tag

es
 in
 ta
kin
g i
nfo

rm
al 
mi
cro

bio
log
ica
l s
am

ple
s –
 th
e p

roc
ed
ure

s l
aid
 do

wn
 in
 th
e R

eg
ula
tio
ns
 ar
e i
n a

ny
 ca

se
 

go
od
 sa
mp

lin
g p

rac
tic
e a

nd
 th
e a

dd
itio
na
l in
for
ma

tio
n g

ath
eri
ng
 re
qu
ire
d i
s m

ini
ma

l.  
Ho
we
ve
r, o

nly
 sa

mp
les
 ta
ke
n w

ith
 th
e 

int
en
tio
n o

f le
ga
l p
roc

ee
din
gs
 in
 th
e e

ve
nt 
of 
ad
ve
rse

 re
su
lts
 sh
ou
ld 
be
 su
bm

itte
d t
o t
he
 H
PA

 as
 Fo

rm
al 
sa
mp

les
.  I
n t
he
se
 ca

se
s 

the
 re
lev
an
t H
PA

 Fo
rm
al 
Sa
mp

le 
for
m 
sh
ou
ld 
be
 us
ed
. 

 Ch
em

ica
l s
am

ple
s 

 
(i) 

In 
vie
w 
of 
the

 re
so
urc

e a
nd
 tim

e i
mp

lica
tio
ns
 of
 ta
kin
g f
orm

al 
ch
em

ica
l s
am

ple
s i
t is
 ac
ce
pte

d t
ha
t a
 si
gn
ific
an
t a
mo

un
t o
f c
he
mi
ca
l 

sa
mp

lin
g w

ill b
e i
nfo

rm
al 
– t
his
 is
 es

pe
cia
lly 
the

 ca
se
 w
he
n p

roj
ec
t o
r p
rog

ram
me

d s
am

pli
ng
 is
 be

ing
 ca

rrie
d o

ut 
as
 a 
mo

nit
ori
ng
 or
 

fac
t fi
nd
ing
 ex
erc

ise
. 

(ii)
 

Fo
rm
al 
sa
mp

les
 sh
ou
ld,
 ho

we
ve
r, b

e t
ak
en
 w
he
n: 

• 
Pr
ob
lem

s a
nd
 co
ntr
av
en
tio
ns
 of
 le
gis
lat
ion
 ar
e s

us
pe
cte
d 

• 
Re
su
lts
 ar
e n

ot 
tho

ug
ht 
rep

ea
tab

le,
 e.
g. 
pe
sti
cid
e r
es
idu
es
 or
 af
lat
ox
ins
 in
 fo
od
 

• 
In 
res

po
ns
e t
o f
oo
d c

om
pla
int
s 

• 
Re
pe
at 
sa
mp

lin
g f
oll
ow
ing
 a 
pre

vio
us
 un

sa
tis
fac
tor
y i
nfo

rm
al 
sa
mp

le 
 

Page 97



 
62

 

Sa
mp

lin
g i
n m

an
ufa

ctu
rin
g p

rem
ise
s 

 
(i) 

Th
e l
ev
el 
an
d t
yp
e o

f s
am

ple
s t
ak
en
 at
 in
div
idu
al 
ma

nu
fac

tur
ing
 pr
em

ise
s w

ill d
ep
en
d o

n a
 nu

mb
er 
of 
fac
tor
s i
nc
lud
ing
: 

• 
Th
e n

atu
re 
of 
the

 ra
w 
ma

ter
ial
s, 
int
erm

ed
iat
e a

nd
 fin
ish
ed
 pr
od
uc
ts 

• 
Th
e e

xis
ten

ce
 or
 ab

se
nc
e o

f H
az
ard

 An
aly
sis
 C
riti
ca
l C
on
tro
l P
oin
ts 
(H
AC

CP
) ty

pe
 pr
oc
ed
ure

s 
• 

Th
e e

xis
ten

ce
 of
 in
-ho

us
e q

ua
lity
 co

ntr
ol 
sy
ste

ms
 

• 
Th
e l
ev
el 
of 
in-
ho
us
e s
am

pli
ng
 an

d t
he
 qu

ali
ty 
of 
pro

ce
du
res

 an
d d

oc
um

en
tat
ion
 

 
(ii)
 

It i
s i
mp

ort
an
t, h

ow
ev
er,
 to
 en

su
re 
tha

t fo
od
 sa
mp

lin
g f
orm

s a
n i
nte

gra
l p
art
 of
 ro
uti
ne
 in
sp
ec
tio
ns
 w
ith
in 
the

 ris
k a
ss
es
sm

en
t 

sy
ste

m 
lai
d d

ow
n i
n t
he
 re
lev
an
t C
od
e o

f P
rac

tic
e a

nd
 LA

CO
RS

 gu
ida
nc
e. 
 Ad

 ho
c s
am

ple
s t
ak
en
 w
ith
ou
t re

ga
rd 
to 
the

 ab
ov
e a

nd
 

wit
ho
ut 
se
t o
bje
cti
ve
s a
nd
 pr
oto

co
ls 
sh
ou
ld 
be
 av
oid
ed
. 

 SA
MP

LIN
G 
PR

OC
ED

UR
E 

 It i
s w

as
tef
ul 
of 
res

ou
rce

s t
o c
arr
y o
ut 
sa
mp

lin
g w

ith
ou
t fi
rst
 co
ns
ide
rin
g a

nd
 ag

ree
ing
 th
e o

bje
cti
ve
s –

 th
is 
is 
es
pe
cia
lly 
the

 ca
se
 fo
r a
ny
 

sa
mp

lin
g p

roj
ec
t o
r p
rog

ram
me

 ca
rrie

d o
ut 
in 
co
nju
nc
tio
n w

ith
 ot
he
r L
on
do
n B

oro
ug
hs
. 

 A s
am

pli
ng
 an

d a
na
lyt
ica
l p
rot
oc
ol 
sh
ou
ld 
be
 pr
ep
are

d i
n c
on
jun
cti
on
 w
ith
 th
e s
ele
cte
d l
ab
ora

tor
y i
n o

rde
r to

 en
su
re 
an
 ag

ree
d p

roc
ed
ure

 an
d 

to 
en
co
ura

ge
 a 
un
ifo
rm
 ap

pro
ac
h. 
 C
lea
rly
 th
e s

ub
se
qu
en
t s
tat
us
 of
 th
e s

am
pli
ng
 w
ill d

ep
en
d u

po
n t
he
 ob

jec
tiv
es
 an

d p
rot
oc
ol 
ag
ree

d. 
 Th
e r
es
ult
s a
nd
 co
nc
lus
ion
s f
rom

 th
e s
am

pli
ng
 ex
erc

ise
 sh

ou
ld 
be
 co
lla
ted

 an
d c

irc
ula
ted

 th
rou

gh
 se

cto
r g
rou

ps
.  I
t is
 re
co
gn
ise
d t
ha
t o
n 

oc
ca
sio
ns
 in
div
idu
al 
loc
al 
au
tho

riti
es
, s
ec
tor
s o
r th

e L
FC
G 
wil
l w
an
t to

 co
ns
ide
r w
ide
r p
ub
lica

tio
n. 

 LE
VE
L O

F S
AM

PL
IN
G 

 Lo
ca
l a
uth

ori
ty 
sa
mp

lin
g l
ev
els
 ar
e c

los
ely
 m
on
ito
red

 by
 th
e F

oo
d S

tan
da
rds

 Ag
en
cy
 th
rou

gh
 re
tur
ns
.  T

his
 da

ta 
wil
l b
e a

gg
reg

ate
d a

nd
 

ret
urn

ed
 to
 Br
us
se
ls 
in 
ac
co
rda

nc
e w

ith
 th
e O

ffic
ial
 C
on
tro
l o
f F
oo
ds
tuf
fs 
Dir
ec
tiv
e. 

 

Page 98



 
63

 

CO
-O
RD

IN
AT
IO
N 

 In 
ord

er 
to 
ac
hie
ve
 m
ax
im
um

 ef
fec
tiv
en
es
s a
nd
 th
e b

es
t u
se
 of
 sc
arc

e r
es
ou
rce

s, 
the

 C
ou
nc
il s
ho
uld
 en

su
re 
tha

t fo
od
 sa
mp

lin
g, 
oth

er 
tha

n 
for
 re
ac
tiv
e d

uti
es
 su

ch
 as

 co
mp

lai
nts

, fo
od
 po

iso
nin
g a

nd
 po

rt h
ea
lth
 an

d h
om

e a
uth

ori
ty 
du
tie
s, 
is 
ca
rrie

d o
ut 
in 
co
nju
nc
tio
n w

ith
 th
e L

FC
G.
 

 Pr
op
os
ed
 sa
mp

lin
g p

roj
ec
ts 
sh
ou
ld 
be
 cl
ea
red

 in
itia
lly 
thr
ou
gh
 th
e r
ele
va
nt 
se
cto
rs.
  S
ec
tor
 co

-or
din
ato

rs 
wil
l b
e i
n a

 po
sit
ion
 to
 en

su
re 
tha

t 
oth

er 
se
cto

rs 
are

 no
t p
rop

os
ing
 to
 ca
rry
 ou

t s
im
ila
r s
urv

ey
s –

 th
is 
wil
l a
vo
id 
du
pli
ca
tio
n. 

 Re
po
rts
 of
 su

rve
ys
 sh

ou
ld 
be
 pa

ss
ed
 th
rou

gh
 se

cto
rs 
an
d u

ltim
ate

ly 
thr
ou
gh
 th
e L

FC
G 
in 
ord

er 
to 
en
su
re 
a w

ide
 di
str
ibu
tio
n a

nd
 a 
sh
ari
ng
 of
 

inf
orm

ati
on
. 

 In 
ca
se
s w

he
re 
pro

jec
ts 
ha
ve
 im

pli
ca
tio
ns
 fo
r a
rea

s o
uts

ide
 Lo

nd
on
, th

e c
om

ple
ted

 re
po
rts
 w
ill b

e s
ub
mi
tte
d t
o t
he
 re
lev
an
t F
oo
d P

an
el 
of 

LA
CO

RS
. 

 SU
MM

AR
Y 

 Th
e a

im
 of
 th
is 
Po
licy

 is
 to
 en

su
re 
tha

t th
e C

ou
nc
il p
rot
ec
ts 
the

 co
ns
um

er,
 an

d i
n s
o d

oin
g f
oll
ow
s g
oo
d p

rac
tic
e a

nd
 us
es
 sc
arc

e r
es
ou
rce

s i
n 

the
 m
os
t e
ffe
cti
ve
 w
ay
. 

 Th
e P

oli
cy
 is
 in
ten

de
d o

nly
 as

 a 
gu
ide
.  I
t is
 fle
xib
le 
en
ou
gh
 to
 al
low

 in
itia
tiv
e, 
bu
t p
oin
ts 
the

 w
ay
 fo
rw
ard

 to
 a 
mo

re 
loc
all
y b
as
ed
 ap

pro
ac
h t
o 

foo
d s
am

pli
ng
. 

 No
thi
ng
 in
 th
e F

oo
d S

am
pli
ng
 Po

licy
 is
 in
ten

de
d t
o p

rec
lud
e i
nit
iat
ive
 on

 th
e p

art
 of
 in
div
idu
al 
en
for
ce
me

nt 
off
ice
rs 
– t
he
re 
wil
l b
e o

cc
as
ion
, in

 
cir
cu
ms

tan
ce
s o
f c
on
sta
nt 
ma

rke
t c
ha
ng
e, 
wh
en
 ad

 ho
c s
am

pli
ng
 w
ill b

e n
ec
es
sa
ry.
 

     

Page 99



Page 100

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

1 

COMMITTEE 
Cabinet 
 

DATE 
2nd July 2008 

CLASSIFICATION 
UNRESTRICTED 

REPORT 
NO. 

AGENDA ITEM 
NO. 

REPORT OF 
Corporate Director, Adults Health and Wellbeing 
 
(Originating Officers) 
Barbara Disney, Commissioning Manager – 
Older People 
 

TITLE 
Recommissioning LinkAge Plus 
 
Wards affected: All 

    
1. SUMMARY 
  1.1 The Link Age Plus programme, funded for two years on a pilot basis by the Department 

of Work and Pensions and Neighbourhood Renewal Fund,  has been very successful 
in enabling older people in the community to access a wide range of preventive and 
support services. The Council and the PCT have jointly agreed to mainstream ongoing 
funding for the programme. The programme now needs to be recommissioned within 
the agreed level of funding. This report makes proposals on how this recommissioning 
should be taken forward.  

      
  2. RECOMMENDATIONS   
  2.1 Cabinet are recommended to agree that: 
   2.1.1  A limited tender process be conducted for the coordination of the LinkAge Plus 

organisation 
   2.1.2  The Corporate Director of Adults Health and Wellbeing be authorised to agree 

the contract with the successful organisation. 
 2.1.3   Authorisation be given pursuant to Procurement Procedures paragraph 2.1.1 (b) 

for an exception to the general provisions of paragraphs 2.5.1 (requirement for 6 
 tenders) and 2.5.2  (requirement for public notice) of the Procedures in respect 
of the  procurement process for this contract. 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT1972 (AS AMENDED) SECTION 100D 
LIST OF 'BACKGROUND PAPERS' USED IN THE PREPERATION OF THIS REPORT 
 
Brief description of background papers Name and telephone number of holder Address where open to inspection 
3rd Interim Evaluation Report Barbara Disney 

020 7364 2035 
Anchorage House – 7th floor 

Agenda Item 7.1

Page 101



 
 

2 

 
3. BACKGROUND 
  3.1 LinkAge Plus is a national pilot funded by the Department of Work and Pensions 

(DWP) with the support of the Department of Communities and Local Government 
(CLG).  The two year DWP pilot ends on 30th June 2008. Neighbourhood Renewal 
Fund (NRF) has also been made available to this initiative.  This funding stream will 
come to an end on 31st August 2008. 

  3.2 There are eight national pilots, Tower Hamlets being the only London pilot site, which 
are monitored by DWP on a monthly basis.  The Tower Hamlets pilot initiative 
involves five different voluntary sector organisations each hosting an Older People’s 
Network Centre in a different locality in the borough.  The five host organisations 
were selected following extensive consultation with the voluntary sector in 2006.  The 
host voluntary sector organisation co-ordinates a network involving voluntary and 
community sector groups in the locality, as well as public sector and statutory 
providers.  Host organisations are active in linking with other community and 
voluntary sector organisations in the locality. Over 30 partner organisations across 
the borough are members of the networks and the outreach workers employed by the 
host organisations regularly refer to them as well as to activities in the network 
centres. The five host organisations are: Age Concern Tower Hamlets; Neighbours in 
Poplar; Peabody Trust / Sundial Centre; St Hildas East Community Centre; and 
Toynbee Hall. 

  
3.3 Future funding has been agreed by members as Service Improvement Growth to the 

sum of £243,000 for 2008-09 and £334,000 for the subsequent two years to 31st 
March 2011. 

  3.4 Tower Hamlets Primary Care Trust has agreed to match fund LinkAge Plus.  
  3.5 The pilot projects have been very successful in offering single accessible gateways to 

services.   Warwick Business School, the national evaluator for the pilots, has 
particularly identified Tower Hamlets as successful in connecting people and 
organisations better with a wider range of services being provided in more locations. 

  3.6 Under the pilot programme, each host organisation has employed a co-ordinator. 
Discussions with the five host organisations have led to agreement to a new, more 
efficient governance and management model, under which the Council and the PCT 
will contract with one of the five organisations, selected through a limited tendering 
process, to co-ordinate the programme, and to employ one co-ordinator and one 
deputy co-ordinator for the programme as a whole, instead of the current five co-
ordinators.  They will work across the borough to ensure equity and appropriateness 
of service delivery. The co-ordinating organisation will then enter into consortia 
arrangements with the other four organisations to maintain the networks. It is 
important to stress that the host organisations, who have between them secured the 
outstanding success of the programme over the pilot period, will continue to host the 
individual network centres and the outreach services that they have developed. A 
Partnership Board, comprised of representatives of the five organisations, the 
Council, Tower Hamlets PCT and the Tower Hamlets Partnership will provide overall 
governance of the programme, thus maintaining the partnership arrangements. 
 

3.7 Cabinet are therefore recommended that a limited tender process be conducted, 

Page 102



 
 

3 

limited to the five host organisations, to procure the co-ordination of the LinkAge Plus 
programme. 
 

4. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
  4.1 This report proposes that a limited tender process is conducted to appoint one 

organisation to coordinate the future structure of LinkAge Plus. This will create 
efficiency savings. 

  4.2 Currently LinkAge Plus, a national pilot project, is funded in Tower Hamlets by the 
Department of Works and Pensions (DWP) and the Neighbourhood Renewal Fund 
(NRF). To date the annual funding has totalled £965,000. These funding streams 
however end in the first half of this financial year (2008/09). 

  4.3 In light of this funding ending and to ensure the continuation of LinkAge Plus, the 
Council has approved future funding as part of the 2008/09 – 2010/11 budget setting 
process. The Tower Hamlets PCT has agreed to match the funding approved by the 
Council. The funding for LinkAge Plus for 2008/09 to 2010/11 is as follows: 
 
 
 2008/09 

£ 
2009/10 

£ 
2010/11 

£ 
DWP 167,700 - - 
NRF 236,521 - - 
LBTH 243,000 324,000 324,000 
THPCT 243,000 324,000 324,000 

 

Total: 890,221 648,000 648.000 
  

The proposal made in this report will be met from this funding 
 

5 CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE (LEGAL 
SERVICES) 

  5.1 The proposed contract is for a Part B service and so the full EU public procurement 
regulations do not apply.  There remains the requirement for an award notice to be 
published in the Official Journal of the European Union. 

   
 

Dependant upon the size of the contract which is let, the procurement process 
outlined above may not adhere strictly to the Council’s Procurement Procedures in 
respect of giving public notice inviting expressions of interest and of inviting at least 
six tenderers.  Under the Procedures, Cabinet may authorise an exception from the 
standard provisions in this regard. 

   
 
 
 

The Council has power to enter into this contract pursuant to Section 2 Local 
Government Act 2000 as the proposal is likely to achieve the promotion of the 
economic, environmental and social wellbeing of the area. 

  6. EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 

Page 103



 
 

4 

  6.1 
 
 

The voluntary and community sector provides responsive services that help to meet 
the needs of specific groups that find it difficult to access statutory sector provision.  
Organisations providing specific services for socially excluded groups have been 
considered in the development of these arrangements. 

  7. ANTI-POVERTY IMPLICATIONS 
  7.1 As a funding body, the Council supports local voluntary organisations and service 

providers which are working to alleviate poverty among local people, building upon 
their capacity to develop local communities and increase their participation in 
decision-making in Tower Hamlets.  

  8. RISK MANAGEMENT 
  8.1 The governance arrangements outlined above will ensure equity amongst the 

organisations. 
  8.2  Robust monitoring arrangements which will include service user feedback will alert 

Commissioners to any potential difficulties and risk. 
  9. EFFICIENCY STATEMENT 
  9.1 The budget and spend has been analysed, and mainstreaming costs have been 

reduced by the proposal for consortia arrangements.  One co-ordinator and one 
deputy co-ordinator working from one organisation but having the borough-wide 
overview, instead of five co-ordinators each placed within their own Network Centre, 
will offer efficiency savings whilst maintaining the equity and working together ethos 
that LinkAge Plus services have developed over the duration of the Pilot.  The 
consortia arrangements and governance arrangements will ensure ongoing 
efficiencies and focus funding on local identified needs. 

  10. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 
  10.1 The Council as a funder of voluntary sector proposals that meet SAGE priorities 

assists in the implementation of the strategic aims of SAGE along with its community 
and voluntary sector partners.   

 

 

Page 104



 1 

Committee: 
 
Cabinet 
 

Date: 
 
2nd July 2008 

Classification: 
 

Unrestricted  
 
 

Report No: 
 
 

Agenda 
Item: 

Report of:  
Paul Evans- Interim Corporate Director, 
Development and Renewal 
 
 
Originating officer(s)  
Simone Williams, Major Projects 
Development Planner 
 

Title:  
London Thames Gateway Development 
Corporation, Draft Bromley-by-Bow Land Use 
Design Brief 
 
Wards Affected:  
Bromley-by-Bow 
 

 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 The London Thames Gateway Development Corporation (LTGDC), in 

partnership with the Council, has prepared a draft Land Use and Design Brief 
for land at Hancock Road, Imperial Street and Three Mills Lane. The land is 
identified as a site within the draft Bromley-by-Bow Masterplan boundary, (see 
site plan, Appendix 1). The draft Brief will provide clear guidance for new 
development within the defined boundary for the determination of planning 
applications and, where necessary, support the case for public sector site 
assembly and development implementation. This work area has been prioritised 
due to increasing pressure from landowners, to develop individual sites in 
isolation. Furthermore, unlike the remainder of the draft Masterplan area, none 
of the land is currently under public ownership.  

  
1.2 It is therefore proposed for the Council to work with the LTGDC to approve this  

draft Brief as ‘Interim Planning Guidance’. It is also proposed that the final 
Cabinet approval of the Draft Bromley-by-Bow Masterplan is to be held back 
until this draft Brief, and other key areas of work outlined in this Report, are 
completed. This report updates members on the additional work that is being 
undertaken to progress the development principles identified in the draft 
Bromley-by-Bow Masterplan.  

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Cabinet is recommended to: 
 
2.1 Approve the Draft Bromley-by-Bow Land Use and Design Brief (Appendix 2) for a 

12 week period of statutory consultation to be carried out jointly between the 
Council and LTGDC prior to its approval by the Council as ‘Interim Planning 
Guidance’.   

 

Agenda Item 8.1

Page 105



 2 

2.2 Authorise the Corporate Director Development and Renewal, after consultation 
with the Lead Member Housing and Development, to make any appropriate and 
necessary minor amendments to the Bromley-by-Bow Land Use and Design 
Brief prior to statutory consultation from August 2008.   

 
3. BACKGROUND 

 
Draft Bromley-by-Bow Land Use and Design Brief 

 
3.1 The draft Brief builds on the Mayor of London Lower Lea Valley Opportunity Area 

Planning Framework and draft Bromley-by-bow Masterplan to provide a 
framework for the comprehensive physical and economic transformation of the 
Hancock Road, Three Mills Lane and Imperial Street area of Bromley-by-Bow. 

 
3.2 In accordance with the draft Bromley-by-Bow Masterplan, the draft Brief provides 

more detailed development principles for the creation of a new neighbourhood 
centre. The daft Brief identifies land use and urban design principles that new 
development will be expected to incorporate in order to achieve the following 
objectives: 

 

� A comprehensive development that makes efficient use of land to create a 
well connected mixed used quarter of Bromley-by-Bow; 

� A mix of private and affordable housing, including a significant amount of 
family housing, that benefit  from close proximity to Bromley-by-Bow station, 
the Lea Navigation Canal and historic Three Mills setting; 

� A neighbourhood centre, anchored by a supermarket, that includes new 
shopping facilities, a primary school, a healthcare facility and open space; 

� Modern and flexible industrial and business space providing new job 
opportunities that benefit from access to the strategic road network and public 
transport; 

� New pedestrian links and public transport accessibility enhancements that 
improve connections with surrounding communities, key destinations and 
future development sites; 

� Accessibility improvements that link existing neighbouring communities with 
access to new homes, jobs and community facilities and the amenities of the 
Lower Lea Valley’s open spaces, waterways and heritage assets; 

� An innovative and exemplary approach to urban design and architecture that 
responds to the area’s constraints and opportunities and creates a place in 
which people want to live, work and visit; 

� A development that achieves a combination of sustainable land use change, 
design excellence and commercial viability. 

 
3.3 LBTH Council officers have taken a central role in this work from the outset, 

attending workshop sessions with LTGDC’s consultants and providing detailed 
comments on the draft Brief to ensure that it is consistent with the objectives of 
the Council’s Interim Planning Guidance and draft Bromley-by-Bow Masterplan.  

 

Page 106



 3 

3.4 It is noted that the proposed hotel use is not identified within the Leaside Area 
Action Plan as a preferred use for this location. This use will be given more 
detailed consideration in terms of need and its role within the new neighbourhood 
centre. Officers are also aware of the importance of ensuring improved 
connections between the new neighbourhood centre and the existing 
communities to the west of the A12 and also the Council’s Bow Lock site to the 
south. The Council will continue to work closely with LTGDC and TfL to address 
these issues ahead of the final approval of the draft Brief. This builds on the 
extensive public consultation which was undertaken in respect of the draft 
Bromley-by-Bow Masterplan. 

 
3.5 LTGDC has ensured that landowners and public sector stakeholders have been 

engaged in the preparation of the draft Brief. The results of landowner 
engagement have already become apparent, with evidence that landowners are 
looking to work together in order to deliver the objectives defined in the draft 
Brief. 

 
3.6 This work area is one of many projects underway within the context of the draft 

Bromley-by-Bow Masterplan, prepared by the Council in 2006.  
 
Bromley-by-Bow Draft Masterplan and Implementation 

 
3.7 The draft Bromley-by-Bow Masterplan, produced by the Council was developed 

closely with its public sector partners and was prepared to ensure a coordinated 
approach to development and delivery of improvements for Bromley-by-Bow. It 
aims to transform Bromley-by-Bow into a “distinctive, accessible and cohesive 
London neighbourhood with a strong community emphasis, a choice of local 
services and a high quality environment” (draft Bromley-by-Bow Masterplan, 
2006). This builds on the strategic land use objectives outlined in the Council’s 
Leaside Area Action Plan (approved as Interim Planning Guidance) and the 
Mayor of London’s Lower Lea Valley Opportunity Area Planning Framework  

 
3.8 Following the statutory period of consultation on the draft Bromley-by-Bow 

Masterplan, which ended in March 2007, the Cabinet of the Council took the 
decision in July 2007 to delay its final approval to allow more detailed and 
complementary work to be undertaken in partnership with LTGDC and other 
public sector agencies. This further work was considered necessary to progress 
the development principles established by the Masterplan and improve its weight 
as a planning policy document, to guide development proposals and determine 
planning applications.  

 
3.9 Officers subsequently established the Bromley-by-Bow Implementation Group, 

comprising representatives from key public sector agencies, to coordinate and 
deliver the additional work for the Masterplan. The following list identifies the 
main areas of work that relate to the Masterplan objectives:  

 

Page 107



 4 

� Trad Site Application Inquiry  (site adjacent to Tesco store) 
� Draft Bromley-by-Bow Land Use and Design Brief 
� Bromley-by-Bow Retail Planning Assessment  
� Bromley-by-Bow Station Improvement and Integration Study  
� St Andrews Hospital Site  
� Bow Lock Site  
� A12 Network Management Plan  

 
3.10 The Council originally intended to consolidate the additional work outlined above 

within the Masterplan and present an updated draft to Cabinet by July 2008, prior 
to further public consultation. However, as consultation is programmed to take 
place on the draft Land Use and Design Brief over the summer this would 
coincide with consultation on the updated Masterplan. LTGDC’s legal advice is 
that parallel consultation would not only be confusing to the local community and 
landowners, but could undermine the integrity of both documents. Furthermore, 
whilst LTGDC is the determining Planning Authority for the part of Bromley-by-
Bow to the east of the A12, LBTH is still the planning policy making body. The 
consolidation of the additional work of the Implementation Group and final 
approval of the draft Masterplan will be held back until the approval of the draft 
Brief 

 
3.11 As such, LTGDC is seeking the Council’s endorsement of the document as 

‘Interim Planning Guidance’, to add weight to the document ahead of a potential 
Compulsory Purchase Order Inquiry and in the determination of planning 
applications. LTGDC has prioritised this work due to increasing pressure from 
landowners to develop individual sites in isolation. Unlike the remainder of the 
Masterplan area, none of the land is currently under public ownership.  

 
3.12 It is considered that this is the most effective strategy for managing development 

pressure in the area, ensuring the timely delivery of the new neighbourhood 
centre and maximising the considerable resources that LTGDC has identified for 
investment in Bromley-by-Bow. To this end, Officers have taken a key role in the 
preparation of the draft Brief and are proposing a joint period of public 
consultation, subject to this approval by Cabinet. 

 
Consultation of Bromley-by-Bow Land Use Design Brief 
 
Informal Consultation  
 

3.11 On 3rd March 2008 the LTGDC Board approved the draft Land Use and Design 
Brief for informal consultation with landowners, developers and public sector 
agencies to maintain the momentum created by the Trad Inquiry result and 
facilitate negotiations between landowners and developers’ as well as the  
preparation of development proposals for the site. The deadline for submitting 
representations was 9th May 2008. This provided an opportunity for internal 
departments within the Council to comment on the draft Brief.  

Page 108



 5 

 
3.12 Appendix 3 provides a summary of the substantive comments received.  The 

comments from the informal consultation are primarily from developers and 
primarily relate to viability and concerns that the drat Brief is overly prescriptive. 
However, it is considered that none of the comments justify a fundamental 
change to the form and content of the draft Brief at this stage, ahead of formal 
consultation.  
 
Statutory Consultation 

 
3.13 Subject to approval by Cabinet, a 12 week period of public consultation (6 

weeks informal and the statuary 6 weeks formal) will be carried out jointly by 
LBTH and LTGDC, to commence in August 2008. This will include detailed 
consultation with statutory consultees, the local community and key local 
stakeholders.  

 
3.14 Prior to the statutory consultation, Members will have the opportunity to 

comment on the draft Brief. Members will also be consulted on the outcome of 
the consultation and subsequent amendments to the draft Brief will be ahead of 
its final approval as ‘Interim Planning Guidance’.  

 
3.15 The draft Brief will also be subject to a summary Sustainability Appraisal and 

Scoping Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA). A full EqIA was not prepared for 
this draft Brief as a full EqIA was carried out for the draft Bromley-by-Bow 
Masterplan.  This suite of documents will also inform any subsequent 
amendments to the draft Brief after statutory consultation. We hope to report 
back to Cabinet regarding the findings of the consultation in January 2009 for 
the final approval. 

 
4. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
4.1   Following Cabinet approval to delay the final approval of the Bromley-by-Bow  

Masterplan, in order that additional work could be undertaken in partnership with 
the London Thames Gateway Development Corporation, Members are asked to 
approve the commencement of statutory consultation of the draft Bromley-by-
Bow Land Use and Design Brief with a view to its approval by the Council as 
‘Interim Planning Guidance’. 

4.2   The consultation will be undertaken jointly between the Council and the LTGDC, 
with the direct costs (e.g. advertising, printing, hiring venues) being funded by the 
LTGDC. The only expense falling on the Authority will be the cost of officer time 

Page 109



 6 

5. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE (LEGAL) 
 
5.1 The Bromley-by-Bow Land Use and Design Brief will ultimately be adopted as a 

 Supplementary Planning Document (“SPD”) in accordance with Regulation 19 of 
 the Town and Country Planning (Local Development) (England) Regulations 
 2004 (“2004  Regs”).   

 
5.2 However, the Council is precluded by statute from adopting any SPD’s in 
 advance of adopting Development Plan Documents (“DPD”), and therefore at 
 this stage in the Council’s DPD programme, the Land Use and Design Brief 
 can only be adopted as Interim Planning Guidance.  
 
5.3 The Council is required to carry out formal public consultation in accordance 
 with Regulation 17 of the 2004 Regs prior to formal adoption.  Following 
 adoption as Interim Planning Guidance, Land Use Design Brief will represent a 
 material consideration to be taken into account in the  development control 
 process, as a statement of council policy. 
 
6 EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1      Equality Impact Assessments (EqIA) have been produced for the Draft Bromely-

by-Bow Masterplan and the LTGDC draft Brief. The EqIA will form part of the final 
suite of the LTGDC draft Brief. The EqIA for the LTGDC draft Brief is provided in 
Appendix 4. 

  
7.        ANTI-POVERTY IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1      Tackling poverty and social exclusion are key objectives of Draft Bromely-by- 
           Bow Masterplan and the LTGDC draft Brief and is central to the Borough’s 

approach to promoting sustainable communities. Antipoverty and social inclusion 
impacts are fully tested through the Sustainability Appraisal, which will form part 
of the final suite of draft Brief. 

 
8. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 
 
8.1    A Sustainability Appraisal has been completed for the LTGDC draft Brief, in line 

with statutory requirements. The appraisal has informed the drafting of the 
document, to ensure it is robust and will achieve sustainable development 
objectives. The Sustainability Appraisal for the draft Brief is provided in Appendix 
5. 

Page 110



 7 

9. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 The key risk associated with advancing more detailed planning guidance for the 

Hancock Road / 3 Mills Lane / Imperial Street area ahead of the approval of the 
overall Bromley-by-Bow Masterplan is that of the effective coordination of the 
wider Bromley-by-Bow area. In order to mitigate against this risk, Officers have 
established the Bromley-by-Bow Implementation Group to take forward and 
coordinate the additional work required for production of the Masterplan.  

 
9.2 A further risk includes potential issues such as poor quality of the final document. 

This is mitigated by the project management of the draft Brief, within the 
Development Implementation Team. The draft Brief is allocated a project 
manager who will work closely with LTGDC to ensure the Implementation 
Programme is managed. In this way, the draft Brief and its Implementation is 
carefully watched on a daily basis. 

 
Appendices 

  
Appendix 1 – Site Plan 
 

 
Appendix 2 – LTGDC, Draft Bromley-by-
Bow Land Use and Design Brief 
 

 

Appendix 3 – Consultation Summary 
 

 
Appendix 4 – Equality Impact Assessment   
 

 
Appendix 5 – Sustainability Appraisal  
 

 
 

Page 111



 8 

__________________________________________________________________ 
 
Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) Section 100D 
List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 

  
Brief description of “back ground papers” Name and telephone number of holder  

and address where open to inspection. 
 

Draft Bromley-By-Bow Masterplan 
November, 2006 

Simone Williams  
Development Implementation  
Ext. 3515  
 

  
  
  
  
  
 

Page 112



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix 1  
 Site Plan 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 113



Page 114

This page is intentionally left blank



Und

CR

189

BOW
ROAD

St Mary's Church

183

19
9

185

18
3a

201 to
205

187 191
PH

21
1

20
7

20
3

to

20
1 20

5

19
3

to
19

7

9.0m

8.5m

BM
10

.1
2m

22
3

21
9

BOW
ROAD

21
3 to

21
7

22
1

Bow
Brid

ge

House

1 to
20

7.4m

8.6m

Foxley
House

Prioress

RO
AD

246

Bradley House

PH

1to20

BO
W

House

1 to 32

Foxley

1
to

3
0

A
lt

o
n

H
o
u

s
e

1
to

5
0

2

BOW
ROAD

1

23

161

32

34

27

4 15

165

16

Insley

26

12

167

House

H
a

rd
w

ic
k
e

H
o

u
s
e

31

5

Barto
n House

163

2413

1 to
22

1to28

1to36

3 10

B
a

k
e
r

H
o

u
s

e

8

1
to

2
4

2

4

1
to

2
4

5
6

Cante
rb

ury

12

9.6m

Rudstone House

Playground

1 to
24

House

7

911

1

P
la

y
g

r
o

u
n

d

BROMLEY HIGH STREET

Jolles House

B
a

x
te

r
H

o
u

s
e

20

PO

6

10

1 to 42

2

U
L
C

9

Warre
n

19

22

18

D
o

rrin
g

to
n

8

20

UL
C

House

U
L
C

24

30

12

S
tro

u
d

le
y

W
a
lk

11

PH

Fairlie

TCP

4

22

18

P
o

in
t

21

16

Court

10

26

13

14

8

169

19

20

22

30

1

El Sub Sta

1
to

4
1

48

Henshall Point

Point

50

PH

Playground

1
to

4
1

Ballinger

1
to

4
1

19

25

31

1
to

9
0

72

M
u

n
d

e
n

H
o
u

s
e

74

C
o

rb
in

H
o

u
s
e

1 to 20

6
7

a

Sadler House

76

67

PH

1
to

2
8

El

Sub Sta

10
0

Adventure Playground

TCB

98

92

10
294

9.4m

96

PH

30

13

1

E
D

G
A

R
R

O
A

D

4

12

40

3

52

Primary School

1a

Church

10.1m

Old Palace

1b

2

1

35

23

81

39

83

47

79
80

84

82

48
46

Regent Square

38

1

3

13
2

5

2

4

Playground

Playground

RAINHILL WAY

SPs

60

Car Park

58

Surgery

63

UL
C

61

51

17

31

59

38

30

UL
C

50

48

406564
66

41

49

62

PC

66

4
6

ARROW
ROAD

12

49

76

39

20

BRUCE ROAD

7

80c

2a

80a

2b

13
4

1
to

1
6

1
to

1
6

N
u
rse

ry

12
2

S
c
h
o
o
l

W
in

g
a
te

H
o

u
s
e

11
4

N
e

th
e
rc

o
tt

H
o

u
s
e

15
6

10

El Sub Sta

D
E

V
O

N
S

R
O

A
D

1

20

7

L
a

n
g
m

e
a

d
H

o
u

s
e1

to
2
4

T
C

B

1
to

2
5

17T
h

e
lb

rid
g

e
H

o
u

s
e

11

3

13

U
p

c
o
tt

H
o

u
s
e

1 to 12

30

46

Lester

27

Kingsley Hall

56

38

P
O

W
IS

R
O

A
D

Lim
scott House1 to

45

Court

Bromley

1 to 5

25

Health CentreCourt

7

War Memorial

Wheatle
y

Recreation Ground

13

El Sub Sta

1 to
28

1
to

4
0

1
to

2
5

N
o

rth
le

ig
h

H
o

u
s
e

S
h

illin
g

fo
rd

H
o

u
s
e

El Sub Sta

Ashcombe House

GRACE
STREET

61to78

79 to 105

43to60

Gardens
Patrick Connolly

22
0

19
2

B
o

w
d

e
n

H
o

u
s
e

20
2

1
to

1
6

21
8

B
R

U
C

E
R

O
A

D

14
4

19
0

17
2

15
4

19
8

20
0

20
4

1
to

1
6

1
to

2
4

1
to

2
0

S
o

u
th

c
o

tt
H

o
u
s

e

21 to
39

1
to

2
0

K
e

rs
c
o

tt
H

o
u

s
e

H
u

n
ts

h
a

w
H

o
u
s

e

F
o
o
t
B
rid

g
e

3

1

5
6

8
1

BROMLEY

15

MP 3

Birchdown House

Surgery

7

9

Allotment Gardens

2

SP

SP

17

Denbury House

Playground

15

10.37m

Playground

5

El Sub Sta

1
to

3
0

1to47

BM

10

9.8m

C
h

a
g
fo

rd
H

o
u

s
e

20
H

o
ls

w
o

rth
y

H
o

u
s
e

4
2

to
5

9

TALWIN STREET

18 to 41

GUY GARDENS

6
0

W
IL

L
IA

M

Games Court

13

11

3

1

9.4m

LB

T
C

B

R
O

A
D

D
E

V
O

N
S

B
M

8
.5

4
m

Bromley-by-Bow Station (LT)

St Andrew's

SP

Ian Mikardo

High School

6
7

6
9

2
2

5
2
0

3

1
7

3
to

1
9

3

2
3

7

2
1
1

S
u

rg
e

ry
2
2

7

6
9

16
7

1
9

5

2
0

9

28

TCBs

2
6

7.8m

30

1
4

1
0

32

B
M

8
.7

1
m

7.6m

E
l

S
u

b
S

ta

1
to

2
4

43

41

4

P
U

R
D

Y
S

T
R

E
E

T

1

2

42

29

14
1
6

5
7

55

to

REEVES ROAD

16

23
to

33

1

1
5

24to3416

PH

2
1

15
8

31

22

18

8.4m

1
7

R
E

E
V

E
S

R
O

A
D

TIBBATT'S ROAD

9

2

DEVONS ROAD

2
3

32
3

1

9.8m

2
0

7

15

2
3

5

27

10.7m

1

2
0

5
2
2

9

4

13

El Sub Sta

Recreation Ground

RE
EV

ES
R

O
A

D

30

BM 9.49m

El Sub Sta

Tank

1
4

4

43 to 53

BM 9.74m

8.9m

8.7m

1
5

2

Shelter

Hospital

of Nursing

Newham
Chy

School
Tanks

B
ro

x
b

o
u

rn
e

H
o

u
s
e

1

9.2m

Shelter

Roxford House

B
is

c
o

tt
H

o
u

s
e

1
to

3
7

DEVAS STREET

Playground

1 to 16

27

Ambulance Station

PH

D
e

v
o

n
s

R
o

a
d

S
ta

tio
n

75

El Sub Sta Posts

El Sub Sta

2

C
R

A
N

W
E

L
L

C
L

O
S

E

E
l

S
u

b
S

t

22

Chy

30

1

S
T

A
N

D
R

E
W

S
W

A
Y

8

3

5

10

Clifford House

80

1
to

5
1

PH

EMPSON STREET

El

Sub Sta

70

7

9
a

11

HIG
H

STREET

Wharf

Meeson's

Bollards

Wharf

Works

Works

18

9.8m

P
o

s
t

B
L
A

C
K

W
A
L
L

TU
N

N
E

L

N
O

R
T
H

E
R

N
A

P
P

R
O

A
C

H

13

19

PRIO
RY STREET

9.9m

12

3

1

37

FRANKLIN
STREET

9

1

S
T

L
E

O
N

A
R

D
'S

S
T

R
E

E
T

LB

2

P
o

s
t

T
a
ft

W
a
y

10

5

1

Charis

3
5

45

House
47

16

67

57

1

1
to

1
2

House

Vera
Court

Veronica

1to8

1
0

6
to

1
1
6

2
8

to
4

2

GRACE
PLACE

28

1to9

1

10.0m

Bromley-by-Bow Station

1
3

to
2

4

1
to

1
7

P
a
d

s
to

n
e

H
o

u
s
e

1
to

1
2

Bailey House

(LRT)

El Sub Sta

BM 9.67m

Marner
Primary School

Court

1

Works

1 to 29

Stanborough House

1
0

Hillstone

6

5

WB

FB

Factory

H
U

N
T
'S

L
A

N
E

Works

22

D Distillery

26

24

El

Sub Sta

Works

Works

Sta

Sub

El

El Sub Sta

30

4.4m

Tow
ing

Path

Tredegar

Wharf

MP

MP

MP

Weir

SM

1 to 47

Island House

Depot

OTIS
STREET

El Sub Sta

6.6m

MP

MP

WB

ESS

S
h

o
rt

W
a
ll

P
o

n
to

o
n

Prescott

R
iv

e
r

P
o

n
to

o
n

Three Mills Green

Three Mills Green

T
h

re
e

M
il

ls
W

a
ll

S
h

o
rt

W
a
ll

4.1m

M
e

a
n

H
ig

h
W

a
te

r

Sluice

MLW

MLW

Tank

Superstore

THREE MILL LANE

El Sub Sta

R
iv

e
r

L
e
a

o
r
L
e
e

SL

Depot

SL

SL

SLs

BM 9.93m

M
o
o
rin

g
P

o
sts BM 4.97m

4.1m

Mud

Mud

MLW

4.1m

Three Mills Studios

T
o
w

in
g

P
a

th

FB

MP Signal Light

B
o

w
C

re
e

k

Channelse

MLW

MP

MP

M
u

d

MLW

Gas

M
e

a
n

H
ig

h
W

a
te

r

FB

T
o
w

in
g

P
a

th

BM 4.04m

TWELVETREES CRESCENT

MP

M
u

d

MLW

MLW

Tank

Tank

9.0m

BM 10.05m

El

Bollards

Sub Sta

7.0m

B
L

A
C

K
W

A
L

L
T
U

N
N

E
L

N
O

R
T

H
E

R
N

A
P

P
R

O
A

C
H

PH

S
h

e
lte

r

1

FB

1

3

B
M

Bol

B
o

w
L

o
c
k

C
o

tt
a

g
e
s

B
o

ll
a

rd
s

4.5m

4
.0

4
m

L
im

e
h

o
u

s
e

C
u

t

MLW

Bow Locks

Bol

1
8

WarehouseG
IL

L
E

N
D

E
R

S
T

R
E

E
T

6.1m

Shelter

Sub Sta

Bol

El

4.4m

Warehouse

Warehouse

M
e

a
n

H
ig

h
W

a
te

r

B
o

w
C

re
e
k

R
iv

e
r

L
e
a

o
r

L
e
e

9

BM 8.39m

1

Gantry 2
1

Sub Sta
El

Barratt Indus trial Park

6

5

Mud

4.5m

Bol

Bollard

Bollard

FB

Floodgates

Bow

MLW

7.5m

Bols

Bols

Bol

Bol

Bols

FB

Bol

Cn
Mud

Cn

MLW

M
e

a
n

H
ig

h
W

a
te

r

M
u

d

Depot

Warehouse

Wharf

Bol

Bols

Meeson's

Bol

Tk

River Lea

Works

Ware
house

Works

Bol

4.3m

4.3m

Bol

BM 4.75m

MP

MP

or Lee

Tanks

BM
4.80m

MP

9

11

3

H
A

N
C

O
C

K
R

O
A

D

28

B
M

9.71
m

5

El Sub Sta

2

77 79
to

89

W
A

S
H

L
N

G
T

O
N

C
L

O
S

E

1
3

Subway

8

10.3m

E
li
za

b
e
th

50

TALWIN ST

H
o

u
s
e

S
T

L
E

O
N

A
R

D
'S

S
T

R
E

E
T

1
to

1
2

B
L

A
C

K
W

A
L

L
T

U
N

N
E

L

IM
PERIA

L
STREET

B
M

1
0

.9
2
m

N
O

R
T

H
E

R
N

A
P

P
R

O
A

C
H

El

Sta

Sub

Sta tionBromley-by-Bow

El Sub Sta

C
a

p
u
le

t
S

q
u

a
re

Shire

House

15.1m

(LRT)

H
o

s
p

ita
l

S
t
A

n
d

re
w

's

Tank

TW
ELVETREES

Shelter

CRESCENT

Shelter

TCP

Sta nstead House

1to12

Wellington

9.2m

DEVAS STREET

(PH)

Duke of

Primary

Marner

School

1
to

6
4

N
e
w

m
ill

H
o

u
s

e

1
to

5
5

7
6

to
8

8B
rim

s
d

o
w

n
H

o
u

s
e

Post

Stanborough

1to28

House

EMPSON STREET

Works

Depot

Works

Clinic

El Sub Sta

Four Mills

18

10

Works

2a

Works

4

3

5.6m

Works

TO
W

C
E
S
T
E

R
R

O
A

D

Bridge

D
e

f

CR

D
e

f

B
o

ro
C

o
n

s
t

an
d

L
B

B
dy

C
R

D
e

f

BP

CR

Boro
Const and Ward

Bdy

L
B

B
d

y

C
R

C
R

B Plate

U
n

d

CC

W
ar

d
B

dy

D
e

f

B Plates

L
B

B
d

y

Boro Const and

CR

LB Bdy

CR

10.0m

BM

10.07m

7

Tunnel

Subway

Gantry

Subway

Subway

Posts

1

W
e

a
ld

e
n

H
o

u
s
e

3
5

Boro Const &
Ward

Bdy

CR

Und

CR

Boro Const &
Ward

Bdy

Def

44

59
to

6
9

N
APPROACH

HIG

Foot Bridge

Grove Hall Park

Playground

Fn

O
u

r
L

ad
y

an
d

179a

PC

11.0m

166to180
150to16

179

h
erin

e
of

S
ie

na

R
C

C
h

u
rc

h

157

S
tatu

e

Court

St Mary's

151

149

153

7
6

159155

10

W
areh

o
u
s
e

F
ac

to
ry

Pond

1

P
A

Y
N

E
R

O
A

D

Baptist

F
ac

to
ry

Bow
Church

El Sub Sta

3

181

Works

Produced on 21/05/08 from the Ordnance Survey mapping with the permission of Her Majesty's Stationary Office
(C) Crown Copyright London Borough of Tower Hamlets LA100019288 0 70 14035 Metres ¹
W:\Development & Renewal\Planning\Projects\Master Plans\Mapping\Site Plan Bromley-by-Bow.mxd

Bromley-by-Bow Master Plan Boundary

Draft Bromley-by-Bow Land Use and Design Brief Boundary

Borough Boundary

Site Plan

Page 115



Page 116

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix 2 
LTGDC Draft Bromley-by-Bow Land Use 

and Design Brief 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 117



Page 118

This page is intentionally left blank



P
a
g
e

 1
1
9



P
a
g
e

 1
2
0



P
a
g
e

 1
2
1



P
a
g
e

 1
2
2



P
a
g
e

 1
2
3



P
a
g
e

 1
2
4



P
a
g
e

 1
2
5



P
a
g
e

 1
2
6



P
a
g
e

 1
2
7



P
a
g
e

 1
2
8



P
a
g
e

 1
2
9



P
a
g
e

 1
3
0



P
a
g
e

 1
3
1



P
a
g
e

 1
3
2



µ

P
a
g
e

 1
3
3



P
a
g
e

 1
3
4



P
a
g
e

 1
3
5



P
a
g
e

 1
3
6



P
a
g
e

 1
3
7



P
a
g
e

 1
3
8



P
a
g
e

 1
3
9



P
a
g
e

 1
4
0



P
a
g
e

 1
4
1



P
a
g
e

 1
4
2



P
a
g
e

 1
4
3



P
a
g
e

 1
4
4



P
a
g
e

 1
4
5



P
a
g
e

 1
4
6



P
a
g
e

 1
4
7



P
a
g
e

 1
4
8



P
a
g
e

 1
4
9



P
a
g
e

 1
5
0



P
a
g
e

 1
5
1



P
a
g
e

 1
5
2



P
a
g
e

 1
5
3



P
a
g
e

 1
5
4



P
a
g
e

 1
5
5



P
a
g
e

 1
5
6

T
h
is

 p
a

g
e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix 3 
Consultation Summary 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 157



Page 158

This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

Consultation Summary 
  

The following table summarises the substantive comments received by 
landowners’ and an explanation as to why they do not require a fundamental 
amendment to the Draft Land Use and Design Brief at this stage. 

 
 
Summary of issues raised  LBTH and LTGDC initial response 

 
The requirement for the proposed 
neighbourhood centre to comprise 
6,700m² of retail floorspace is not 
based on a technical assessment of 
the need for and capacity of the area 
to accommodating an increase in 
retail floorspace 

The Bromley by Bow Retail Planning 
Assessment will provide the evidence 
base on which to decide the type of 
centre to be created at Bromley by 
Bow based on an assessment of the 
need and capacity for new retail 
floorspace.      
 

The requirement for achieving a 
target of 50% affordable housing 
does adequately reflect the need to 
take into adequate site costs, the 
availability of public subsidy and 
development viability 
 

The Land Use and Design Brief is 
drafted to take into account this 
requirement. 
 

The requirement to retain the 
industrial capacity of sites along 
Hancock Road is not informed by 
research into the type of, and demand 
for, new industrial uses. 
 

Discussions will take place with the 
GLA to clarify the definition of 
industrial capacity and its application 
in the design evolution and 
determination of development 
proposals.  
 

The proposed building heights are too 
prescriptive and constrain the housing 
capacity of the site.     
 

The proposed building heights reflect 
what is considered to be the preferred 
development scale and massing on 
parts of the site which are subject to 
different development constraints and 
opportunities. 

 
The major interventions referred to as 
necessary to overcome the 
severance caused by the A12 are not 
deliverable. 
 
 

While the Draft Land Use and Design 
Brief does not prescribe major 
interventions to the A12 corridor 
beyond significant improvements to 
the existing subways, discussions are 
taking place with developers and 
Transport for London about the 
feasibility and delivery of works to the 
A12 that would overcome its barrier 
effect. 

 

Page 159



 2 

The assumptions about the quantum 
and type of development is not 
informed by an appraisal of 
development viability  
 

The LTGDC has commissioned GVA 
Grimley to test the viability of a  
development scheme prepared in 
broad conformity with the Draft Land 
Use and Design Brief. This result of 
this work will be used to inform any 
amendments to the Brief prior to its 
adoption.   

 
The Land Use and Design Brief 
should not require a phase 1 on land 
at Imperial Street to be delivered in 
advance of a phase 2 on land at 
Hancock Road. 

 
 

It is considered that the 
redevelopment of the southern part of 
the site, to deliver the land uses 
required to create the neighbourhood 
centre and the subway improvements 
to improve accessibility to and from 
the station and across the A12 should 
form a first phase. Development 
requiring these community facilities 
and infrastructure improvements 
should follow as a second phase.    

 
The proposed housing density and 
housing mix and tenure is too 
prescriptive and will constrain the 
viability of development proposals. 
 

The proposed housing density and 
housing mix and tenure is identified in 
the London Plan, London Plan 
Housing SPG, LLV OAPF and LBTH 
IPG. 
 

The amount of open space proposed 
should be reduced in size to take into 
account the proximity of existing open 
space (Three Mills Green) 
 

The amount of open space is required 
to provide a deficiency in open space, 
particularly west of the A12.  
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 160



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix 4  
 Equality Impact Assessment 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Page 161



Page 162

This page is intentionally left blank



                                                              Bromley by Bow Land Use and Design Brief  
                                                          Equality Impact Assessment 

                                                          June 2008 

1
Page 163



‘You will not get far if you perceive the 
duty to be over burdensome or take a 
mechanistic approach….there will be 

progress if the duty is seen as a way of 
fundamentally changing the core values 

and culture of the organisation…..we need 
and outcome-oriented approach’ – CRE 

Chair 2001 

2
Page 164



Equality Impact Assessment (EIA): Stage 1: Initial Screening Form for 
New/Revised Policies or Functions 

A: Summary Details 

Directorate:    Develeopment and Renewal 

Section:                                Development Schemes 

Person responsible for the assessment:     

Contact details:

Name of Policy to be assessed: Bromley-by-Bow  Land Use and Design  

Is this a new or revised policy: 

The Land Use and Design Brief builds on the Mayor of London Lower Lea Valley 
Opportunity Area Planning Framework (LAAP), LBTH Interim Planning Guidance 
and Draft Bromley by Bow Masterplan to provide framework for the regeneration.

The Masterplan was prepared by the Council to be a Supplementary Planning 
Document to the LAAP. The document is accompanied by a Draft Sustainability 
Appraisal. In July 2007, following a period of formal consultation, the Council agreed 
to postpone final approval of the Masterplan to allow more detailed and 
complementary work to be undertaken in partnership with LTGDC and other public 
sector agencies. This work has resulted in the preparation of the Brief for the 
Hancock Road, Three Mills Lane and Imperial Street site.

The brief is in accordance with the draft Bromley by Bow Masterplan and provides 
clear guidance for new development of the site, inform the determination of planning 
applications and, where necessary, support the case for public sector site assembly 
and development implementation. 

The Brief will be endorsed by the Council as Interim Planning Guidance following a 
period of formal consultation. This will enable stakeholders to submit representations 
on the content of the Brief and give the document greater weight as planning policy. 

Date policy scheduled for Overview and Scrutiny/Cabinet/LAB: 

B: Preparation

3
Page 165



It is important to consider all available information that could help determine whether 
the policy could have any potential adverse impact. Please attach examples of 
available monitoring information, research and consultation reports. 

1. Do you have monitoring data available on the number of people (from different 
target groups) who are using or are potentially impacted upon by your policy? Please
specify what monitoring information you have available (your monitoring information 
should be compared to the current available census data to see whether a 
proportionate number of people are taking up your service). 

An EqIA was completed at the time of the preparation of the Draft Bromley-by-
Bow Master Plan.  Monitoring information captured as part of the consultation 
process was reported in the 2006-7 Annual Monitoring Report.  The data in 
relation other B by B Master Plan is included in appendix 1. 

2. If monitoring has NOT been undertaken, will it be done in the future or do you 
have access to relevant monitoring data for this area? If not, specify the 
arrangement you intend to make; if not please give a reason for your decision. 

As the Development Brief flows from the B by bow Master Plan, for which an 
EqIA has been completed it was not relevant carry out an additional full impact 
assessment.  However, the action plan from the first EqIA does make specific 
recommendations about where supplementary data can be captured and 
analaysed. 

The detailed planning applications which flow from the development brief will 
have statutory requirement for consultation and the submission of a social 
impact assessment in line with the council’s Interim Planning Guidance.

3. Please list any consultations that you may have had and/or local/national 
consultations, research or practical guidance that will assist you in completing 
this EIA. 

The Development Brief has been commissioned by the London Thames Gateway 
Urban Development Corporation, and the Council.  The consultation process will be 
in line with the Council’s requirements as set out in the Statement of Community 
Involvement. This will include; satutory consultees , landowners and the public. 

C: Your Policy or Function 

1. What is the main purpose of the policy or function? 

4
Page 166



The aim of this policy is to provide a visionary, inclusive and functional design brief 
for the Bromley-by-Bow area.  This Land Use and Design Brief has been 
commissioned by the London Thames Gateway Urban Development Corporation 
partnership with the Council and builds on the London Lower Lea Valley Opportunity 
Area Framework and the Council’s Interim Planning Guidance.  This strategic 
framework will enable a comprehensive physical and economic transformation of the 
Hancock, Three Mills Lane and Imperial area of Bromley by bow area. 

The stated aims and objectives of the development brief are: 

x High quality and distinctive architecture; 

x Appropriate scale, form and massing to suit the site context and housing type; 

x Successful design, solutions that distinguish between family and non family 
housing

x Internal layouts that prevent the creation of single aspect north facing units and 
maximise the provision of dual aspect units; 

x avoid single aspect units overlooking the A12 or the railway; 

x Provide Lifetime Homes as identified in the London Plan; 

x Adopt innovative design solutions accommodating accessible and secure car and 
cycle parking; 

x Achieve Code for Sustainable Homes Level 4, etc. 

2 Are there any other objectives of the policy or function, if so what are they? 

The London Thames Gateway Development Corporation LTGDC has commissioned 
this document to provide landowners, developers and the wider community with 
clear guidance for promoting regeration within the area.  It identifies the key land use 
and urban design principles that new development will be expected to incorporate 

3 Do any written procedures exist to enable delivery of this policy or function? 

The Draft Masterplan for the Bromley by bow area, including both the Sustainability 
Appraisal and the EqIA, was completed in November 2006.  The draft documents 
now form part the suite of Interim Planning Guidance which is endorsed by the 
Council.  This Land Use and Development Brief flows from the Draft Masterplan. 

The Interim Planning Guidance provides the planning framework for the Borough as 
whole and an EqIA has also been undertaken as part of this process.  The 
Masterplan is used promote key regeneration areas. It provides additional level of 
detail in the determination of planning applications. 

5
Page 167



6

4 Are there elements of common practice in the service area or function that are 
not clearly defined within the written procedures? 

No.

5 Who are the main stakeholders of the policy? 

The Land Use and Design Brief has been commissioned by the London Thames 
Gateway Urban Development Corporation in partnership with the Council  

The Statement of Community Involvement also sets out who the key stakeholders 
will be in the planning process as well as the process for community engagement.
The London Thames Gateway UDC and the Council will have a statutory obligation 
to consult with the community once planning applications are submitted. 

6 Is the policy associated with any other Council policy (s)? 

As stated above The Development Brief has an associated with existing planning 
policy as set out in the Mayors OAPF Interim Planning Guidance (LDF), 1998 UDP 
and Draft Bromley by Bow Masterplan 

7 Are there any areas of the service that are governed by discretionary powers? If 
so, is there clear guidance as to how to exercise these? 

8 Is the responsibility for the proposed policy or function shared with another 
department or authority or organisation? If so, what responsibility, and which 
bodies? 

The responsibility for the implementation the Development Brief rests with both the 
council and the London Thames Gateway Urban Development Corporation which 
has planning powers in this part of the Borough). This document will be a material 
consideration in the determination of planning applications and provide a framework 
for public and private investment in the area. 

Page 168



D
: 

T
h

e
 I

m
p

a
c

t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
 t

h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

th
a
t 

th
e
 p

o
lic

y
 c

o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 o

n
 e

a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

g
ro

u
p
s
. 

T
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 n

e
g
a
ti
v
e
, 

p
o
s
it
iv

e
 o

r 
n
e
u
tr

a
l.
 I

f 
y
o
u
 h

a
v
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 n

e
g
a
ti
v
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
im

p
a

c
t 

fo
r 

a
n

y
 o

f 
th

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

g
ro

u
p

s
 y

o
u
 w

ill
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 a

ls
o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

th
a
t 
n
e
g
a
ti
v
e

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
im

p
a

c
t 

is
 h

ig
h

, 
m

e
d

iu
m

 o
r 

lo
w

 –
 s

e
e

 g
lo

s
s
a
ry

 i
n
 t

h
e
 a

tt
a
c
h
e
d
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 n

o
te

s
 f

o
r 

d
e
fi
n
it
io

n
s
. 

1
.

a
) 

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 p

o
lic

y
 o

n
 m

e
n
 a

n
d
 w

o
m

e
n
: 

G
e
n

d
e
r

P
o

s
it

iv
e

N
e
g

a
ti

v
e

(p
le

a
s
e

s
p

e
c

if
y
 i

f 
H

ig
h

, 
M

e
d

iu
m

 o
r 

L
o

w
) 

N
e
u

tr
a
l

R
e
a
s
o

n

W
o

m
e
n

�
H

ig
h

 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

u
n

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 

e
c

o
n

o
m

ic
 i

n
a

c
ti

v
it

y
 a

m
o

n
g

s
t 

w
o

m
e

n
 i

n
 t

h
is

 l
o

c
a

li
ty

. 
 t

h
e

 
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
b

ri
e
f 

s
e
ts

  
o

u
t 

th
e
 

la
n

d
 u

s
e
 p

a
tt

e
rn

 w
h

ic
h

 c
o

u
ld

 
a
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
te

 g
ro

w
th

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 i

n
 

th
e
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

lo
c

a
l 

re
s

id
e

n
ts

.

T
h

e
re

 i
s

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
n

e
g

o
ti

a
te

 f
o

r 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 t

o
 h

a
v
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

lo
c

a
l 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 

g
e
n

e
ra

te
d

 a
t 

th
e
 c

o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

 
s
ta

g
e
 a

n
d

 o
n

c
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
 a

re
 

o
c
c
u

p
ie

d
. 

 T
h

is
 s

h
o

u
ld

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
s
 i

n
 

th
e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t.
 

M
e
n

�
A

s
a
b

o
v
e
. 

7

Page 169



b
) 

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 p

o
lic

y
 o

n
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

ra
c
e
 g

ro
u
p
s
:

R
a
c
e

P
o

s
it

iv
e

N
e
g

a
ti

v
e

(p
le

a
s
e

s
p

e
c

if
y
 i

f 
H

ig
h

, 
M

e
d

iu
m

 o
r 

L
o

w
) 

N
e
u

tr
a
l

R
e
a
s
o

n

A
s
ia

n
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

B
a
n

g
la

d
e
s

h
i,
 P

a
k
is

ta
n

i,
 I

n
d

ia
n

, 
C

h
in

e
s
e
, 

V
ie

tn
a

m
e
s
e
, 

O
th

e
r 

A
s

ia
n

 B
a
c
k
g

ro
u

n
d

 –
 p

le
a
s
e
 

s
p

e
c

if
y
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
)

�
U

n
e

m
p

lo
y

m
e

n
t 

le
v

e
ls

 g
e

n
e

ra
ll

y
 i

n
 

th
is

 l
o

c
a
ti

o
n

 a
re

 h
ig

h
 b

u
t 

a
m

o
n

g
s
t 

B
M

E
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e
 

s
u

g
g

e
s
ts

 t
h

a
t 

u
n

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a
re

 
h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a
n

 t
h

o
s
e
 f

o
r 

W
h

it
e
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
.

A
g

a
in

 t
h

e
re

 w
il
l 

b
e
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d

 t
o

 
e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

a
ll
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o

 
b

e
n

e
fi

t 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 j

o
b

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s
 

w
h

ic
h

 r
e

s
u

lt
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
, 

u
ti

li
s
in

g
 o

u
r 

jo
b

 b
ro

k
e
ra

g
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

S
k

il
ls

m
a

tc
h

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll
 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

re
 j

o
b

 r
e
a
d

y
 a

n
d

 h
a
v
e
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n

t 
tr

a
in

in
g

 e
tc

. 

E
v
id

e
n

c
e
 f

ro
m

, 
th

e
 2

0
0
1
 C

e
n

s
u

s
 

s
h

o
w

s
 t

h
a
t 

B
M

E
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

re
 

m
o

re
 l

ik
e

ly
 t

o
 b

e
 i

n
 n

e
e

d
 o

f 
a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

a
m

o
n

g
s
t 

th
e
ir

 h
o

u
s
e
h

o
ld

s
 t

h
e
re

 
a
re

 i
s
s
u

e
 o

f 
o

v
e
rc

ro
w

d
in

g
. 

It
 i
s

 e
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l 
th

a
t 

th
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
b

o
th

 o
f 

th
e
s
e
 i

s
s
u

e
s
 a

re
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

. 8

Page 170



B
la

c
k

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 C

a
ri

b
b

e
a
n

, 
 

S
o

m
a

li
, 

O
th

e
r 

A
fr

ic
a

n
, 

O
th

e
r 

b
la

c
k
 b

a
c
k
g

ro
u

n
d

 –
 p

le
a
s
e
 

s
p

e
c

if
y
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

)

�
U

n
e

m
p

lo
y

m
e

n
t 

le
v

e
ls

 g
e

n
e

ra
ll

y
 i

n
 

th
is

 l
o

c
a
ti

o
n

 a
re

 h
ig

h
 b

u
t 

a
m

o
n

g
s
t 

B
M

E
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e
 

s
u

g
g

e
s
ts

 t
h

a
t 

u
n

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a
re

 
h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a
n

 t
h

o
s
e
 f

o
r 

W
h

it
e
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
.

A
g

a
in

 t
h

e
re

 w
il
l 

b
e
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d

 t
o

 
e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

a
ll
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o

 
b

e
n

e
fi

t 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 j

o
b

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s
 

w
h

ic
h

 r
e

s
u

lt
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
, 

u
ti

li
s
in

g
 o

u
r 

jo
b

 b
ro

k
e
ra

g
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

S
k

il
ls

m
a

tc
h

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll
 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

re
 j

o
b

 r
e
a
d

y
 a

n
d

 h
a
v
e
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n

t 
tr

a
in

in
g

 e
tc

. 

E
v
id

e
n

c
e
 f

ro
m

, 
th

e
 2

0
0
1
 C

e
n

s
u

s
 

s
h

o
w

s
 t

h
a
t 

B
M

E
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

re
 

m
o

re
 l

ik
e

ly
 t

o
 b

e
 i

n
 n

e
e

d
 o

f 
a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 a

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

a
m

o
n

g
s
t 

th
e
ir

 h
o

u
s
e
h

o
ld

s
 t

h
e
re

 
a
re

 i
s
s
u

e
 o

f 
o

v
e
rc

ro
w

d
in

g
. 

It
 i
s

 e
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l 
th

a
t 

th
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
b

o
th

 o
f 

th
e
s
e
 i

s
s
u

e
s
 a

re
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

. 

W
h

it
e

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g

li
s

h
, 

S
c

o
tt

is
h

, 
W

e
ls

h
, 

Ir
is

h
, 

 O
th

e
r 

w
h

it
e
 b

a
c
k
g

ro
u

n
d

 –
 p

le
a
s
e
 

s
p

e
c

if
y
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

)

�
It

 i
s

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 b
e

n
e

fi
c

ia
l 

g
iv

e
n

 t
h

e
 

ra
n

g
e

 o
f 

p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 

a
n

d
 s

o
c

ia
l 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i

m
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

ts
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

. 

9

Page 171



M
ix

e
d

 D
u

a
l 

h
e

ri
ta

g
e

 
(W

h
it

e
 a

n
d

 B
la

c
k
 C

a
ri

b
b

e
a
n

, 
W

h
it

e
 a

n
d

 B
la

c
k

 A
fr

ic
a

n
, 

W
h

it
e

 
a
n

d
 A

s
ia

n
, 

O
th

e
r 

m
ix

e
d

 
b

a
c
k
g

ro
u

n
d

  
- 

p
le

a
s
e
 

s
p

e
c

if
y
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
)

�
U

n
e

m
p

lo
y

m
e

n
t 

le
v

e
ls

 g
e

n
e

ra
ll

y
 i

n
 

th
is

 l
o

c
a
ti

o
n

 a
re

 h
ig

h
 b

u
t 

a
m

o
n

g
s
t 

B
M

E
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e
 

s
u

g
g

e
s
ts

 t
h

a
t 

u
n

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a
re

 
h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a
n

 t
h

o
s
e
 f

o
r 

W
h

it
e
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
.

A
g

a
in

 t
h

e
re

 w
il
l 

b
e
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d

 t
o

 
e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

a
ll
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o

 
b

e
n

e
fi

t 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 j

o
b

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s
 

w
h

ic
h

 r
e

s
u

lt
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
, 

u
ti

li
s
in

g
 o

u
r 

jo
b

 b
ro

k
e
ra

g
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

S
k

il
ls

m
a

tc
h

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll
 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

re
 j

o
b

 r
e
a
d

y
 a

n
d

 h
a
v
e
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n

t 
tr

a
in

in
g

 e
tc

 

O
th

e
r

(p
le

a
s
e
 s

p
e
c
if

y
)

c
) 

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 p

o
lic

y
 o

n
 d

is
a
b
le

d
 p

e
o
p
le

: 

D
is

a
b

il
it

y
 

P
o

s
it

iv
e

N
e
g

a
ti

v
e

(p
le

a
s
e

s
p

e
c

if
y
 i

f 
H

ig
h

, 
M

e
d

iu
m

 o
r 

L
o

w
) 

N
e
u

tr
a
l

R
e
a
s
o

n

1
0

Page 172



�
T

h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
b

ri
e
f 

is
 s

e
e
k
in

g
 

to
 i

m
p

ro
v
e
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
li
ty

 o
f 

th
e
 b

u
il
t 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

in
 t

h
is

 l
o

c
a

li
ty

 b
o

th
 i

n
 

te
rm

s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
–

 l
in

k
in

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s
, 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 
c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 f

a
c

il
it

ie
s

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
a
m

e
n

it
ie

s
 i

n
 t

e
rm

 s
o

 o
p

e
n

 s
p

a
c
e
 

e
tc

. 
 I

t 
a
ls

o
 i

d
e
n

ti
fi

e
s
 n

e
e
d

s
 i

n
 

te
rm

s
 o

f 
th

e
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 s

to
c
k
.

T
h

e
re

 a
re

 h
ig

h
 l

e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

u
n

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
a

m
o

n
g

s
t 

d
is

a
b

le
d

 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
. 
 I
t 

is
 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

t 
to

 
n

e
g

o
ti

a
te

 a
n

d
 f

a
c
il
it

a
te

 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 u

s
in

g
 

o
u

r 
jo

b
 b

ro
k
e
ra

g
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

S
k

il
ls

m
a

tc
h

. 

A
t 

th
e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

p
p

li
c
a
ti

o
n

 s
ta

g
e
 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

 n
e
e
d

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 

b
u

il
t 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 t

h
e
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 r

e
fl

e
c
t 

th
e
 n

e
e
d

s
 o

f 
d

is
a

b
il

it
y
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
s

 s
e

t 
o

u
t 

in
 t

h
e

 
In

te
ri

m
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 G

u
id

a
n

c
e
. 

 T
h

e
 G

L
A

 h
a
s
 a

lr
e
a
d

y
 p

la
c
e
d

 a
 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 l

o
c
a
l 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s
 t

o
 

re
p

o
rt

 o
n

 t
h

e
ir

 o
u

tc
o

m
e
s
 i

n
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 

to
 t

h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

w
h

e
e
lc

h
a
ir

 a
n

d
 

m
o

b
il
it

y
 h

o
u

s
in

g
. 

T
h

is
 i

n
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 
w

il
l 

b
e
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

 o
f 

T
o

w
e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 A
n

n
u

a
l 

M
o

n
it

o
ry

 R
e

v
ie

w
  

.

1
1

Page 173



d
) 

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 p

o
lic

y
 o

n
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

a
g
e
 g

ro
u
p
s
:

A
g

e
 G

ro
u

p
 (

s
p

e
c
if

y
, 

fo
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 y
o

u
n

g
e
r,

 
o

ld
e

r 
e

tc
) 

P
o

s
it

iv
e

N
e
g

a
ti

v
e

(p
le

a
s
e

s
p

e
c

if
y
 i

f 
H

ig
h

, 
M

e
d

iu
m

 o
r 

L
o

w
) 

N
e
u

tr
a
l

R
e
a
s
o

n

�
T

h
e
re

 a
re

 u
n

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
le

v
e
ls

 
a
b

o
v
e
 t

h
e
 n

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

a
n

d
 r

e
g

io
n

a
l 

le
v

e
ls

 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 

a
m

o
n

g
s
t 

th
e
 1

6
-2

4
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
. 

A
g

a
in

 t
h

e
re

 w
il
l 

b
e
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d

 t
o

 
e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a
t 

a
ll
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o

 
b

e
n

e
fi

t 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 j

o
b

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s
 

w
h

ic
h

 r
e

s
u

lt
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
, 

u
ti

li
s
in

g
 o

u
r 

jo
b

 b
ro

k
e
ra

g
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

S
k

il
ls

m
a

tc
h

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll
 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

re
 j

o
b

 r
e
a
d

y
 a

n
d

 h
a
v
e
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n

t 
tr

a
in

in
g

 e
tc

.

T
h

e
 i

n
it

ia
ti

v
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 a

t 
d

is
a
b

le
d

 p
e
o

p
le

 a
re

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 h
a
v
e
 

b
e
n

e
fi

ts
 f

o
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 a
t 

d
if

fe
re

n
t 

li
fe

 
s
ta

g
e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 e

ld
e
rl

y
 i

n
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

m
a
y
 b

e
n

e
fi

t 
fr

o
m

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d

 
a

c
c

e
s

s
ib

il
it

y
 i

n
it

ia
ti

v
e
s

. 

1
2

Page 174



e
)

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 p

o
lic

y
 o

n
 l
e
s
b
ia

n
, 

g
a
y
 m

e
n
, 

b
is

e
x
u
a
l 
o
r 

h
e
te

ro
s
e
x
u
a
l 
p
e
o
p
le

:

S
e
x
u

a
l 

O
ri

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
P

o
s
it

iv
e

N
e
g

a
ti

v
e
 (

p
le

a
s
e
 

s
p

e
c

if
y
 i

f 
H

ig
h

, 
M

e
d

iu
m

 o
r 

L
o

w
) 

N
e
u

tr
a
l

R
e
a
s
o

n

L
e
s
b

ia
n

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e
 a

s
 t

o
 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 w

il
l 

h
a
v
e
 a

 
p

o
s
it

iv
e
, 

n
e
g

a
ti

v
e
 o

r 
n

e
u

tr
a
l 

im
p

a
c

t.
  

H
o

w
e
v

e
r,

 i
t 

is
 l

ik
e

ly
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 a

c
c
e
s

s
, 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

il
it

y
 a

n
d

 
c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 s

a
fe

ty
 i

n
it

ia
ti

v
e

s
 w

il
l 

h
a
v
e
 a

 p
o

s
it

iv
e
 i

m
p

a
c
t 

fo
r 

th
e
s
e
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
.

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

c
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

 i
s

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
. 

G
a

y
 M

e
n

 
W

e
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e
 a

s
 t

o
 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 w

il
l 

h
a
v
e
 a

 
p

o
s
it

iv
e
, 

n
e
g

a
ti

v
e
 o

r 
n

e
u

tr
a
l 

im
p

a
c

t.
  

H
o

w
e
v

e
r,

 i
t 

is
 l

ik
e

ly
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 a

c
c
e
s

s
, 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

il
it

y
 a

n
d

 
c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 s

a
fe

ty
 i

n
it

ia
ti

v
e

s
 w

il
l 

h
a
v
e
 a

 p
o

s
it

iv
e
 i

m
p

a
c
t 

fo
r 

th
e
s
e
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
.

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

c
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

 i
s

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 

B
is

e
x
u

a
l

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e
 a

s
 t

o
 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 w

il
l 

h
a
v
e
 a

 
p

o
s
it

iv
e
, 

n
e
g

a
ti

v
e
 o

r 
n

e
u

tr
a
l 

im
p

a
c

t.
  

H
o

w
e
v

e
r,

 i
t 

is
 l

ik
e

ly
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 a

c
c
e
s

s
, 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

il
it

y
 a

n
d

 
c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 s

a
fe

ty
 i

n
it

ia
ti

v
e

s
 w

il
l 

1
3

Page 175



h
a
v
e
 a

 p
o

s
it

iv
e
 i

m
p

a
c
t 

fo
r 

th
e
s
e
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
.

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

c
o

n
s

u
lt

a
ti

o
n

 i
s

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 

H
e

te
ro

s
e

x
u

a
l

�
It

 i
s

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 b
e

n
e

fi
c

ia
l 

g
iv

e
n

 t
h

e
 

ra
n

g
e

 o
f 

p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 

a
n

d
 s

o
c

ia
l 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i

m
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

ts
 t

h
a
t 

a
re

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

. 

f)
 I

d
e
n
ti
fy

 t
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

th
e
 p

o
lic

y
 o

n
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 

re
lig

io
u
s
/f
a
it
h
 g

ro
u
p
s
?
 

R
e

li
g

io
u

s
/F

a
it

h
g

ro
u

p
s

 (
s

p
e

c
if

y
) 

P
o

s
it

iv
e

N
e
g

a
ti

v
e

(p
le

a
s
e

s
p

e
c

if
y
 i

f 
H

ig
h

, 
M

e
d

iu
m

 o
r 

L
o

w
) 

N
e
u

tr
a
l

R
e
a
s
o

n

B
u

d
d

h
is

t
�

T
h

e
re

is
in

a
d

e
q

u
a
te

 d
a

ta
 t

o
 r

e
a
c
h

  
s
p

e
c
if

ic
 c

o
n

c
lu

s
io

n
s
, 

h
o

w
e
v
e
r,

 
w

h
e
re

 t
h

e
 f

o
ll
o

w
e
rs

 o
f 

a
 

re
li
g

io
n

/f
a
it

h
 a

re
 p

re
d

o
m

in
a
n

tl
y
 

fr
o

m
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 r

a
c
ia

l 
g

ro
u

p
 i

t 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 r

e
a
s
o

n
a
b

le
 t

o
 a

p
p

ly
 t

h
e
 

re
a
s
o

n
in

g
 f

o
r 

ra
c
e
 t

o
 t

h
a
t 

re
li
g

io
n

 

C
h

ri
s
ti

a
n

�
A

s
a
b

o
v
e

H
in

d
u

�
A

s
a
b

o
v
e

J
e
w

is
h

 
�

A
s

a
b

o
v
e

M
u

s
li

m
�

A
s

a
b

o
v
e

S
ik

h
�

A
s

a
b

o
v
e

O
th

e
r 

(p
le

a
s
e
 s

p
e
c
if

y
) 

�

g
) 

A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
le

ti
n
g
 Q

u
e
s
ti
o
n
 1

 a
-f

 a
b
o
v
e
 w

h
a
t 

is
 t

h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

y
o
u
r 

p
o
lic

y
?

1
4

Page 176



H
ig

h
� 

 
 

M
e

d
iu

m
 

 
 

 
 

L
o

w
  


If
 y

o
u

 h
a

v
e
 a

s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 t

h
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
im

p
a

c
t 

a
s
 H

IG
H

 y
o

u
 m

u
s
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

 a
 f

u
ll

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
im

p
a

c
t 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t.
 

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 b

e
in

g
 h

ig
h
 i
t 

is
 n

o
t 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

to
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

 f
u
ll 

im
p
a
c
t 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
t 

th
is

 s
ta

g
e
. 

 I
m

p
a

c
t

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

h
a

s
 a

lr
e

a
d
y
 b

e
e

n
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 M

a
s
te

rp
la

n
 a

re
a
. 

 I
n
te

ri
m

 P
la

n
n
in

g
 G

u
id

a
n
c
e
 r

e
q
u
ir

e
s
 t

h
a
t 

m
o
re

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 

th
e
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

a
 s

o
c
ia

l 
im

p
a
c
t 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
re

 s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 f

o
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
m

a
jo

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

. 
It
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n
t 

to
 n

o
te

 t
h
a
t 

in
 a

ll 
c
a
s
e
s
 t

h
e
 l
ik

e
ly

 i
m

p
a
c
t 

is
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a

s
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 a

s
 t

h
e
 a

im
s
 a

n
d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

b
ri
e
f 

a
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 l
o
c
a
l 
n
e
e
d
s
 

2
. 

C
o
u
ld

 y
o
u
 m

in
im

is
e
 o

r 
re

m
o
v
e
 a

n
y
 n

e
g
a
ti
v
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 

th
a
t 

is
 o

f 
m

e
d
iu

m
 o

r 
lo

w
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
c
e
?
 E

x
p
la

in
 H

o
w

. 
 

R
a

c
e
:

G
e

n
d

e
r:

D
is

a
b

ili
ty

: 
  
  

A
g
e
:

S
e

x
u
a

l 
O

ri
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
: 

R
e
lig

io
u
s
/F

a
it
h
 g

ro
u
p
s
: 

3
. 

If
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 n

o
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 p

o
lic

y
 p

ro
m

o
te

s
 e

q
u
a
l 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
–
 c

o
u
ld

 i
t 

b
e
 a

d
a
p
te

d
 s

o
 i
t 

d
o
e
s
?
 H

o
w

?
 

P
le

a
s
e
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

a
ll 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

re
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n

 t
h
e
 a

tt
a
c
h
e
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 a

n
d
 i
n
 y

o
u
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n
. 

P
le

a
s
e
 s

ig
n
 a

n
d
 d

a
te

 t
h
is

 f
o
rm

, 
k
e
e
p
 o

n
e
 c

o
p
y
 a

n
d
 s

e
n
d
 o

n
e
 t

o
 E

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 T

e
a
m

..
 

1
5

Page 177



S
ig

n
e
d

 
 

 
 

 
 

S
ig

n
e
d

 
 

 
 

 
 

S
ig

n
e
d

 
 

 
L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

 
 

 
 

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d
 

 
 

 
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 

D
a
te

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
D

a
te

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
D

a
te

 

1
6

Page 178



A
c
ti

o
n

 P
la

n
 

R
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

K
e
y
 a

c
ti

v
it

y
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 m

il
e
s
to

n
e
s
 

O
ff

ic
e
r

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
P

ro
g

re
s
s

E
n

s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 t

h
a

t 
re

s
u

lt
 f

ro
m

 
th

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 

B
ro

m
le

y
 b

y
 b

o
w

 a
re

a
 a

re
 

n
e
g
o
ti
a
te

d
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

lo
c
a
l 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

.

In
c
lu

d
e
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 D

iv
e
rs

it
y
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 n

e
g
o
ti
a
te

d
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 

O
b
lig

a
ti
o

n
s
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

M
a
jo

r 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 B

ro
m

le
y
 B

y
 B

o
w

 

x 
L

o
c
a

l 
ta

rg
e

ts
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
  

x 
L
o
c
a
l 
ta

rg
e

ts
/i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 

a
g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
r/

e
n
d
 

u
s
e

r

x 
D

e
ta

ils
 o

f 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
r 

a
n
d
/o

r 
e
n
d
 u

s
e
r 

(w
h
e
re

 k
n
o
w

n
) 

x 
A

g
re

e
d
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 a
n
d
 d

e
ta

ils
 

o
f 

m
o

n
it
o
ri
n
g
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 

s
1
0
6
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

C
o
n
tr

o
l

O
ff

ic
e

r/
P

la
n
n
in

g
O

b
lig

a
ti
o

n
s
 

T
e
a
m

/S
k
ill

s
m

a
tc

h

M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
jo

b
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

.

R
e
q
u
e
s
t 

a
g
re

e
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

in
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f

ro
m

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
r/

 e
n
d
 u

s
e
r 

to
 a

s
c
e
rt

a
in

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
/n

o
n
 

c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 w

it
h
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

  

x 
Q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

x 
A

n
a

ly
s
e

 d
a

ta
 

x 
R

e
-p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t/
n
o
n
-

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

ta
rg

e
ts

  

S
k
ill

s
m

a
tc

h

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

a
ll 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
re

 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 o

n
 

fu
tu

re
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t

h
e
 

B
ro

m
le

y
 b

y
 B

o
w

 a
re

a
 a

s
 

re
q
u
ir
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n
t 

o
f 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 I

n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t.
, 

e
.g

. 
w

o
m

e
n

, 
B

M
E

, 
a
g

e
, 

d
is

a
b
le

d
, 

L
G

B
T

 a
n
d
 f

a
it
h
. 

U
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t,
 w

h
e
re

 
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 t
h
e
ir
 v

ie
w

s
 a

re
 t

a
k
e
n
 i
n
 

to
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t.
 E

n
s
u
re

 

x 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
s

x 
A

n
a
ly

s
e
 

a
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c
e

/r
e

s
u

lt
s
 t

o
 

e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y
 r

e
fl
e

c
t

lo
c
a
l 
d
e
m

o
g
ra

p
h
ic

s
 

x 
A

d
a
p
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
f 

re
s
u
lt
s
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
a

t 
th

a
t 

is
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

S
c
h
e
m

e
s

1
7

Page 179



M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f
W

h
e
e
lc

h
a

ir
, 

M
o
b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 

L
if
e

ti
m

e
 H

o
m

e
s
. 

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 a
g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
r 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

s
1
0
6
 

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

a
re

 m
e

t 

x 
P

ro
d
u
c
e
 a

n
d
 p

u
b
lic

is
e
 

lo
c
a
l 
ta

rg
e
ts

 

x 
R

e
v
ie

w
 p

la
n
s
 a

n
d
 

re
v
is

io
n
s
 o

f 
p
la

n
s
 t

o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

a
g
re

e
d
 l
e
v
e
l 

re
m

a
in

s
 o

n
 p

la
n
 

x 
R

e
fe

r 
v
a
c
a
n
c
ie

s
 t

o
 

L
e
tt
in

g
s

P
la

n
n
in

g
O

b
lig

a
ti
o

n
s
 

T
e
a
m

/L
e
g
a
l

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t/

B
u
ild

in
g
 

C
o
n
tr

o
l

1
8

Page 180



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendix 5 
Sustainability Appraisal 

 

Page 181



Page 182

This page is intentionally left blank



��������	����
�������������������������

�������������	����������������

London Thames Gateway Development Corporation

and London Borough of Tower Hamlets

June 2008

12266529-001

Draft SA

Page 183



QM

WSP Environmental UK
Buchanan House,
24 - 30 Holborn,
London,
EC1N 2HS
Tel: +44 (0) 207 314 5884
Fax: +44 (0) 207 314
5005http://www.wspgroup.com

Issue/revision Issue 1 Revision 1 Revision 2 Revision 3

Remarks

Date June 2008

Prepared by Sean Nicholson

Vicky Piggott

Katie Elmer

Signature

Checked by Vicky Piggott

Signature

Authorised by Sean Nicholson

Signature

Project number 12262232

File reference SA Report

Page 184



Contents

� ����������� �

1.1 Context 4

1.2 The Objectives of the Draft Land Use and Design Brief 4

1.3 Structure of the Sustainability Appraisal Report 5

1.4 How to Comment on this Report 5

� ��� ������ !

2.1 Introduction 6

2.2 What is Sustainable Development? 6

2.3 What is Sustainability Appraisal? 7

2.4 The SA Process 8

" ����������#��$�������� �%

3.1 Overview 10

3.2 Sustainability Appraisal Task 10

3.3 Compliance with the Requirements of the SEA Directive 12

3.4 TASK A1: Links to Other Policies, Plans and Programmes 14

3.5 TASK A2: The Existing Baseline Conditions 16

3.6 Likely Evolution of the Baseline Without the Plan (Part of Task A2)18

3.7 Task A3: Identifying Sustainability Issues 18

3.8 Areas Likely to be Significantly Affected (Part of Task A3) 19

3.9 Task A4: Developing the SA Framework 19

3.10 Technical Difficulties and Limitations Associated with the Assessment
21

� ����������$���������	������&������� ��

4.1 introduction 22

4.2 Task B1: Testing the Brief’s Objectives Against the SA Framework 22

4.3 Task B2: Assessing Options for the Brief 22

4.4 Task B2 and B3: Appraisal of the Brief 23

4.5 Task B3 and B4 Cumulative and Synergistic Effects 23

4.6 Task B5: Opportunities for Enhancement and Mitigation 24

4.7 Conclusions 28

' (�)�������� �*

5.1 Introduction 29

5.2 Monitoring (Task B6) 29

Page 185



12266529-001 Draft SA 3

5.3 Links to Plans and Programmes at the Project Level 29

5.4 Mayoral Targets 32

5.5 Next Steps 33

Appendices

Appendix A: Plans and Programmes

Appendix B: Testing the Bromley by Bow Land Use and Design Brief objectives
against the Sustainability Appraisal framework

Appendix C: The SA of the Bromley by Bow Land Use and Design Brief

Appendix D: The SA of the Business as Usual Scenario

Appendix E: London Sustainable Development Checklist

Appendix F: Glossary

Page 186



12266529-001 Draft SA 4

1 Introduction

�+� ,-(.&/.�

1.1.1 The London Thames Gateway Development Corporation (“LTGDC”) and London Borough
of Tower Hamlets (“the Council”) has commissioned the preparation of the Draft Bromley by Bow
Land Use and Design Brief (“the Brief”) for land at Hancock Road, Three Mills Lane and Imperial
Street. The Land Use and Design Brief builds on the Mayor of London Lower Lea Valley
Opportunity Area Planning Framework (LLVOAPF), the Council’s Interim Planning Guidance
(IPG) and Draft Bromley by Bow Masterplan (“the Masterplan’’) to provide a framework for the
regeneration.

1.1.2 The Brief is informed by a hierarchy of adopted (LLVOAPF and IPG) and emerging (The
Council’s Local Development Framework and the Masterplan) planning policy.

1.1.3 The Masterplan was prepared by the Council to be a Supplementary Planning Document
to the adopted IPG and emerging Local Development Framework. The Masterplan is
accompanied by a Draft Sustainability Appraisal.

1.1.4 Following formal consultation in July 2007, the Council agreed to postpone final approval
of the Masterplan to allow more detailed and complementary work to be undertaken in partnership
with LTGDC and other public sector agencies. This work has resulted in the preparation of the
Brief for the Hancock Road, Three Mills Lane and Imperial Street site.

1.1.5 The Brief is in accordance with the draft Bromley by Bow Masterplan and provides clear
guidance for new development of the site, inform the determination of planning applications and,
where necessary, support the case for public sector site assembly and development
implementation.

1.1.6 The Brief will be endorsed by the Council as Interim Planning Guidance following a period
of formal consultation. This will enable stakeholders to submit representations on the content of
the Brief and give the document greater weight as planning policy.

1.1.7 As part of this process, a Sustainability Appraisal (SA) of the Brief has been undertaken.
This SA report sets out the process, findings and results of the SA of the Brief and has been
informed by the SA undertaken for the Masterplan. The Brief is also supported by an Equality
Impact Assessment (EqIA). The EqIA was informed by the EqIA for the Masterplan.

�+� .0&�-�1&,.�2&��-3�.0&��4�3.���(����&��(���&��5(��4�&3�

1.2.1 The Brief builds on the Masterplan to provide detailed guidance on the type and form of
development proposed for the site. The Brief includes a set of objectives based on the
development principles of comprehensive development, integration and intensification.

1.2.2 The Brief includes a set of land use and urban design guidelines that new development
will be expected to achieve in order to deliver the following objectives:

� A comprehensive development that makes efficient use of land to create an integrated
mixed used quarter of Bromley by Bow;

� A mix of housing types and tenures, including a substantial provision of family housing,
that profit from close proximity to Bromley by Bow station, the Lea Navigation Canal and
historic Three Mills setting;

� A neighbourhood centre, anchored by a supermarket, that includes new shopping
facilities, a primary school, a healthcare facility and open space;

Page 187



12266529-001 Draft SA 5

� Modern and flexible industrial and business space that benefits from access to the
strategic road network and public transport;

� New pedestrian links and public transport accessibility enhancements that improve
integration with surrounding communities, nodes of activity and future development sites;

� Accessibility improvements that link existing neighbouring communities with access to
new homes, jobs and community facilities and the amenities of the Lower Lea Valley’s
open spaces, waterways and heritage assets;

� An innovative and exemplary approach to urban design and architecture that responds to
the area’s constraints and opportunities and creates a place in which people want to live,
work and visit;

� A development that achieves a combination of sustainable land use change, design
excellence and commercial viability.

�+" �.4�,.�4&�-3�.0&����.��(�����.6��774������4&7-4.��

1.3.1 The Report is structured as follows:

� Chapter 2 provides an explanation of Sustainable Development, Sustainability Appraisal and
the Sustainability Appraisal process;

� Chapter 3 describes the appraisal methodology and identifies the context, objectives and
baseline for the appraisal and how it meets the requirements of the Strategic Environmental
Assessment (SEA) Directive/Regulations;

� Chapter 4 presents the result of the Sustainability Appraisal and includes recommendations for
improving the Brief;

� Chapter 5 identifies the next steps for monitoring and consultation;

�+� 0-8�.-�,-##&(.�-(�.0���4&7-4.�

1.4.1 This draft SA is being consulted on in association with the Brief between (tbc) and (tbc).

1.4.2 All comments received during this period will be taken into consideration in the
preparation of the Brief before being endorsed by the Council as Interim Planning Guidance.

1.4.3 Please send comments to:

Simone Williams

London Borough of Tower Hamlets

Directorate of Development and Renewal

Major Projects - Development Implementation

Mulberry Place

PO Box 55739

5 Clove Crescent

London

E14 1BY

Page 188



12266529-001 Draft SA 6

2 Background

�+� �(.4-��,.�-(�

2.1.1 This section defines Sustainable Development and Sustainability Appraisal and explains
the impacts and requirements of both on the preparation of planning policy documents.

�+� 80�.�������.��(���&��&2&�-7#&(.9�

2.2.1 Sustainable Development is about ensuring a better quality of life for existing and future
generations. It is about considering the long-term social economic and environmental issues and
impacts in a an integrated and balanced way.

2.2.2 The most widely used and recognised definition of Sustainable Development is provided
by the Bruntland Report: ‘Our Common Vision’ (World Commission on Environment and
Development) (1987):

“Development that meets the needs of the present without compromising the ability of future
generations to meet their own needs”

2.2.3 The UK Government has identified five guiding principles to achieving sustainable
development in the ‘UK Government Sustainable Development Strategy (HM Government March
2005):

� Living within environmental limits: Respecting the limit’s of the planet’s environment,
resources and biodiversity – to improve our environment and ensure that the natural resources
needed for life are unimpaired and remain so for future generations.

� Ensuring a strong, healthy and just society: Meeting the diverse needs of all existing
and future communities, promoting personal well being, social cohesion and inclusion and
creating equal opportunity for all.

� Building a strong, stable and sustainable economy: Providing prosperity and
opportunities for all, and in which environmental and social costs fall on those who impose
them and efficient resource is incentivised.

� Promoting good governance: Actively promoting effective, participative systems of
governance in all levels of society – engaging people’s creativity, energy and diversity.

� Using sound science responsibly: Ensuring policy is developed and implemented on
the basis of strong scientific evidence, whilst taking into scientific uncertainty (through the
precautionary principle) as well as public attitudes and values.

Page 189



12266529-001 Draft SA 7

2.2.4 The UK Government has adopted the following definition for sustainable communities:

“Places where people want to live and work, now and in the future. They meet the diverse
needs of existing and future residents, are sensitive to their environment, and contribute to a
high quality of life. They are safe and inclusive, well planned, built and run, and offer equality
of opportunity and good services for all.”

�+" 80�.�������.��(�����.6��774�����9�

2.3.1 The requirement for a Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) is set out in European
Directive 2001/42/EC. The Directive is transposed in UK law through the “Environmental
Assessment of Plans and Programmes Regulations 2004”.

2.3.2 The objective of the SEA Directive is:

“To provide for a high level of protection of the environment and to contribute to the integration of
environmental considerations into the preparation and adoption of plans with a view to promoting
sustainable development.”

2.3.3 Sustainability Appraisal has been defined as:

“a systematic and iterative process undertaken during the preparation of a plan, which identifies
and reports on the extent to which implementation of the plan would achieve environmental,
social and economic objectives by which sustainable development can be defined, in order that
the performance of the plan can be improved”1.

2.3.4 The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires Local Authorities to exercise
their function with a view to contributing to the achievement of sustainable development. Under
the Act the preparation of a Sustainability Appraisal is mandatory and part of the process of
adopting a planning policy document. The SA process has been designed to meet the
requirements of the SEA Directive.

2.3.5 The aim of the Sustainability Appraisal of the Brief is to set out how sustainable
development will be achieved through better integration of economic, social and environmental
considerations into the preparation and adoption of the Brief.

2.3.6 Throughout the remainder of this report where reference is made to Sustainability
Appraisal, SA or the SA Report, it denotes Sustainability Appraisal under the Act incorporating the
requirements of the SEA Directive.

2.3.7 The SEA Directive emphasis the need to:

• Collect and present baseline environmental information;

• Predict the significant environmental effects of the plan and address them during its
preparation;

• Identify reasonable alternatives and their effects;

• Consult the public and authorities with environmental responsibilities as part of the
assessment process;

• Monitor the actual environmental effect of the plan during its implementation.

2.3.8 The SEA Directive identifies a range of factors that need to be considered. The Directive
makes it clear that the following list of factors is not exhaustive:

1
Good Practice Guidance on Sustainability Appraisal of Regional Planning Guidance, DETR, 2000

Page 190



12266529-001 Draft SA 8

� Biodiversity;

� Population;

� Human health;

� Fauna;

� Flora;

� Soil;

� Water;

� Climatic factors;

� Material assets;

� Cultural heritage;

� Landscape.

2.3.9 The Directive and associated guidance do not define the range of issues that need to be
considered under each topic but it is significant that the Directive includes reference to
‘population,’ ‘human health’ and ‘material assets.’ These topics suggest that the Directive takes a
wide definition of the term ‘environment’ to include impacts on people and the built environment,
as well as the natural environment.

�+� .0&����74-,&���

2.4.1 The Government publication “Sustainability Appraisal of Regional Spatial Strategies and
Local Development Documents” (November 2005) provides guidance on incorporating
Sustainability Appraisal within the process of preparing planning policy documents. Figure 2.1
illustrates the relationship between the process of preparing a Supplementary Planning Document
and undertaking Sustainability Appraisal.

Page 191



12266529-001 Draft SA 9

Figure 2.1 The SA and SPD processes

Evidence
gathering

Preparation of

draft SPD

Public
participation on

draft SPD

Representations
and finalise SPD

Adoption

Implementation,
monitoring and

review

Stage A: Setting
the context,

establishing the
baseline and

deciding on
scope

Stage B:

Developing and
refining options

and assessing
effects

Stage C:
Preparing the SA

Report

Stage D:
Consulting on the

draft SPD and SA
Report

Stage E:

Monitoring the
significant effects
of implementing

the SPD

C
o
m

m
u
n

it
y

In
v
o

lv
e

m
e
n

t
(a

s
o

u
tl
in

e
d

in
P

a
rt

2
re

g
u

la
ti
o
n

s
)

Reg 18

Reg 17

SPD process SA process

Key

SA Stages

Process

Statutory consultation

(4-6 weeks)

Page 192



12266529-001 Draft SA 10

3 Appraisal Methodology

"+� -2&42�&8�

3.1.1 This chapter explains the methodology for undertaking the Sustainability Appraisal and
identifies the context, objectives and baseline for the appraisal and how it meets the requirements
of the Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA) Directive/Regulations.

3.1.2 In accordance with guidance on how to meet the requirements of the Directive and
Regulations, this Sustainability Appraisal considers the performance of the Brief against a set of
independent Sustainability Appraisal objectives. The objectives used are those developed by
LBTH to appraise the Masterplan. These objectives were adopted to provide consistency between
Sustainability Appraisals of two planning policy documents that relate to same area of land.

3.1.3 The Sustainability Appraisal has considered the Brief as a whole and not by breaking it
into individual parts and assessing them separately. This approach is considered appropriate
given the size and nature of the document.

3.1.4 The SEA Directive requires the assessment of ‘reasonable alternatives’. This
Sustainability Appraisal considers the impacts of a ‘Business as Usual’ (BAU) scenario. This
scenario considers the sustainability impacts of not promoting redevelopment based on the Brief
but on a reliance on existing planning policy.

"+� ���.��(�����.6��774������.��:��

The Government publication “Sustainability Appraisal of Regional Spatial Strategies and Local
Development Documents” (November 2005) provides detailed guidance on how to undertake
Sustainability Appraisal and ensure compliance with the SEA Directive. The methodology is
divided into the following stages, within which individual tasks are required to be completed:

� Stage A: Setting the context and objectives, establishing the baseline and deciding on the
scope

� Stage B: Developing and refining options

� Stage C: Appraising the effects of the preferred option

� Stage D: Consulting on the Master Plan and the SA Report

� Stage E: Monitoring Implementation of the Master Plan

3.2.1 Figure 3.1 outlines the individual tasks to be completed as part of the methodology.

3.2.2 It is important to note that this Sustainability Appraisal is informed by the following tasks
undertaken as part of the SA undertaken for the Masterplan:

� A Scoping Report for the Masterplan, which was prepared in 2006, which included
identification of the SA objectives;

� An SA for Draft Bromley by Bow Master Plan dated�November 2006

Page 193



12266529-001 Draft SA 11

Figure 3.1:
The SA
Process

Page 194



12266529-001 Draft SA 12

"+" ,-#7���(,&�8�.0�.0&�4&;��4&#&(.��-3�.0&��&����4&,.�2&�

3.3.1 The methodology used for this appraisal meets the requirements of the SEA Directive.
The table below explains how each chapter of the SA report meets the requirements of the SA
Directive and in which Stage of the recommended SA process this is undertaken. This section
reports on individual tasks but also covers specific sub-tasks in order to thoroughly meet with the
reporting requirements of the Directive.

Requirements of the SEA Directive Chapter of the SA Report Stage in the
SA Process

Preparation of an environmental report in which the likely significant effects on the

environment of implementing the plan or programme, and reasonable alternatives taking into

account the objectives and geographical scope of the plan or programme, are identified,

described and evaluated. The information to be given is (criteria a to j below):

a) An outline of the contents, main objectives of
the plan or programme and relationship with
other relevant plans and programmes

Chapter 1 of this report
provides an outline of the
Brief. Links to other plans
and programmes are
considered in Chapter 2 of
this report

Stage A

b) The relevant aspects of the current state of the
environment and the likely evolution without
implementation of the plan or programme

The Scoping Report
prepared for the wider
Master Plan and they are
summarised in Chapter 2 of
this report.

Stage A

c) The environmental characteristics of areas
likely to be significantly affected

Chapter 2 of this report Stage A

d) Any existing environmental problems which
are relevant to the plan or programme including,
in particular, those relating to any areas of a
particular environmental importance, such as
areas designated pursuant to Directive
79/409/EEC and 92/43/EEC

Chapter 2 of this report Stage A

e) The environmental protection objectives
established at international, community or
national level which are relevant to the plan or
programme and the way those objectives and
any environmental considerations have been
taken into account during its preparation

Chapter 2 of this report Stage A

f) The likely significant effects on the
environment, including: short, medium and long
term; permanent and temporary; positive and
negative; secondary, cumulative and synergistic
effects on issues such as: biodiversity,
population, human health, fauna, flora, soil,
water, air, climatic factors, material assets,

Chapter 3 of this report and
Appendix A of this report.

Stage B

Page 195



12266529-001 Draft SA 13

cultural heritage including architectural and
archaeological heritage, landscape and the
interrelationship between the above factors

g) The measures envisaged to prevent, reduce
and, as fully as possible, offset any significant
adverse effects on the environment of
implementing the plan or programme

Chapter 3 of this report. Stage B

h) An outline of the reasons for selecting the
alternatives dealt with and a description of how
the assessment was undertaken including any
difficulties (such as technical deficiencies or lack
of know-how) encountered in compiling the
required information

Chapter 2 of this report Stage C

i) A description of measures envisaged
concerning monitoring (in accordance with
regulation 17)

Chapter 4 of this report. Stage B

j) A non-technical summary of the information
provided under the above headings

A None Technical
Summary has been
provided

Stage C

Consultation with:

Authorities with environmental responsibility
when deciding on the scope and level of detail of
the information to be included in the environment
report

The relevant authorities
were consulted on the
Scoping Report prepared
for the LDF and were
consulted on the Scoping
Report for the Master Plan
area. They will be
consulted on the Draft Land
Use and Design Brief and
SA.

Stage D

Authorities with environmental responsibility and
the public to be given an early and effective
opportunity within appropriate time frames to
express their opinion on the draft plan and
accompanying environmental report before its
adoption

The Draft Land Use and
Design Brief and SA will be
consulted on.

Stage A
(Scoping
Report)

Stage D
(Draft SA
Report)

Other EU Member States, where the
implementation of the plan or programme is likely
to have significant effects on the environment of
that country

Not relevant in this instance Stage D

Taking the environmental report and the results
of the consultations into account in decision
making

To be addressed in future

stages

Stage D

Provision of information on the decision: When
the plan or programme is adopted the public and
any countries consulted must be informed and
the following made available:

To be addressed in future
stages

Stage D

Page 196



12266529-001 Draft SA 14

• The plan or programme as adopted

• A statement summarising how environmental
considerations have been integrated into the plan
or programme in accordance with the
requirements of the legislation

• The measures decided concerning monitoring

Monitoring of the environmental effects of the
plan or programmes implementation must be
undertaken

Chapter 4 of this report
considers monitoring.

Stage E

"+� .��:�������(:��.-�-.0&4�7-��,�&�<�7��(���(��74-54�##&��

3.4.1 The SEA Regulations 2004 require an analysis of the Brief’s “relationship with other
relevant plans and programmes” and of “the environmental protection objectives…which are
relevant to the plan or programme and the way those objectives and any environmental
considerations have been taken into account during its preparation”.

3.4.2 The Brief is required to be in general conformity with other policies, plans and
programmes (PPPs) produced by National Government, the Mayor of London, the Council,
Statutory Agencies, for example, Natural England, Environment Agency and English Heritage and
by other bodies with plan-making responsibilities, for example, neighbouring local authorities.
Legislation, for example the Water Framework Directive, is a further driver that sets the
framework for the Brief, either directly or indirectly.

3.4.3 PPPs act as constraints (i.e. set formal limitations, policy contexts, requirements) or
sources of useful background information to gathering evidence. A review of relevant PPPs is
essential to establishing the baseline conditions of the site. It also helps to establish the
economic, social and environmental context and role of the Brief. This stage allows opportunities
and synergies to be identified, as well as potential conflicts between aims, objectives or detailed
policies within the Brief. The review also highlights sustainability drivers and key issues which
apply for this particular part of the Borough.

�

Approach to Task A1

3.4.4 A full review of relevant PPPs was undertaken in 2006 and presented in the SA Report for
the Masterplan.. Documents published since then, and which account has been taken of, are
shown in italics.

3.4.5 The PPPs that have been reviewed are presented in Appendix A. The first set of
documents identified set out general sustainable development principles. The remainder are
grouped under the four key strands of sustainable development:

� social progress which recognises the needs of everyone;

� effective protection of the environment;

� the prudent use of natural resources; and,

� the maintenance of high and stable levels of economic growth and employment.

3.4.6 Any conflicts, constraints and challenges which may arise through the interpretation of the
PPPs have been identified with a recommendation made on how the Brief may be amended to
take them into account.

Page 197



12266529-001 Draft SA 15

3.4.7 The following section provides a summary of the key issues identified through a review of
the PPPs.

General Sustainable Development

3.4.8 Sustainable Development has been placed at the centre of the new planning system.
Legislation and guidance for planning and many other elements of sustainable development has
been emerging for many years. It is essential that this is reflected in all planning policy
documents, including the Brief. The challenge is to ensure that it is easily understandable and that
it is clear that economic, environmental and social considerations have been taken into account.

3.4.9 From the review of general sustainable development policies, plans, strategies and
guidance documents, it is obvious that there is a significant amount of documentation that places
general sustainable development principles as a central issue. The documents that should be
given priority are the most recently published and the ones that are a material consideration in
producing the Brief.

Effective protection of the environment

3.4.10 There is a general consensus that the built and natural environment is an important
resource that should be safeguarded, and that public open space should be expanded and
improved. Decisions need to be made at a local level as to which areas of Bromley-by-Bow
should be used for development, which areas should be identified for new open space,
particularly green space and how existing areas should be enhanced and protected.

3.4.11 With a presumption in favour of new development to be accommodated within existing
urban areas, it will be important that the value of the existing natural environment of the urban
areas is protected. A balance is required between the need for new development and the
importance attached to natural areas that are valued by residents and visitors.

3.4.12 A major challenge for the Brief will be the delivery and integration of new infrastructure.

Social progress which recognises the needs of everyone

3.4.13 There is a general consensus that new housing development should occur through the
redevelopment of bownfield land. The challenge is to ensure that new development does not
result in any adverse impact on the environment. It is also essential that the provision of new
housing is linked with the provision of community facilities and services. Failure to do this would
be likely to result in increased levels of social exclusion and demand for existing facilities.

3.4.14 There is a general consensus that improving people’s health and well-being be achieved
through new developments.

Prudent use of natural resources

3.4.15 There is a general consensus that sustainable methods for construction, waste
management, energy efficiency, renewable energy generation and water management need to be
an integral part of new development.

Page 198



12266529-001 Draft SA 16

Maintaining a vibrant, flourishing and diverse economy

3.4.16 There are no obvious constraints or conflicts between the economic and employment
related plans or policies. However, there is no clear direction on what types of employment uses
would be considered preferable/acceptable within the Bromley-by-Bow area.

3.4.17 Similar to the need for new housing, the review of PPPs suggests that the need for new
employment facilities will have to be integrated with the need to protect the environment of
Bromley-by-Bow, achieve social progress for everyone and make prudent use of natural
resources.

"+' .��:�����.0&�&/��.�(5����&��(&�,-(��.�-(���

3.5.1 This SA report adopts the relevant baseline conditions set out in the SA for the
Masterplan and updates it where appropriate. These baseline conditions are considered relevant
as characteristics beyond the Brief boundary would provide a basis for identifying current issues
in the Bromley by Bow area.

3.5.2 A summary of the economic, environmental and social characteristics of the area is
provided below. Any statistics are sourced from 2001 Census unless otherwise stated.

Economic characteristics

3.5.3 The site currently accommodates low grade industrial uses and a large foodstore. The site
is currently occupied by a range of industrial uses, including a scaffolding yard, gas storage and
printing. The residential community located west of the site experiences high unemployment when
compared to Tower Hamlets and London as a whole. The 2001 census revealed that of the adult
population there were 2645 (33%) economically inactive and 442 unemployed (6%) compared to
4% in Tower Hamlets and 3% in London.

3.5.4 The workforce within the site is also relatively low skilled. The percentage of people in
elementary occupations, for example, is double that for London as a whole. It is therefore likely
that average incomes generated within the site will be significantly lower than the Tower Hamlets
or London average.

3.5.5 In terms of deprivation, the residential community to the west of the site is in the bottom
3% of deprived areas in the country.

3.5.6 The 2001 census revealed that within the Masterplan area there were 2872 dwellings with
almost 50% in Council Tax Band B and 30% in Band C. This suggests that there is a
concentration of low cost dwellings within the residential hinterland. The majority of people live in
purpose-built flats or maisonettes. There are very few semi-detached and detached properties
within the area, resulting in a lack of properties suitable for large or extended families.

3.5.7 68% of households within the Masterplan area rent their property from a social landlord,
compared to 52% in Tower Hamlets and only 26% in London as a whole. Only a small percentage
of homes are in shared-ownership, which means that people do not have the opportunity of taking
shared-ownership as a first step out of the rented sector and into home ownership.

Environmental Characteristics

3.5.8 The site measures approximately 8 hectares and is bounded by the Lea Navigation Canal
to the east, the A12 Blackwall Tunnel North Approach to the west, the London Underground and
National Rail corridor to the south and the A11 Bow flyover to the north. This infrastructure severs
the site from the residential community to the west and key transport and community facilities.

Page 199



12266529-001 Draft SA 17

The site lacks open green space but is within close proximity of Three Mills Green located within
the London Borough of Newham.

3.5.9 The Three Mills Conservation Area includes land primarily within the London Borough of
Newham but its boundary extends across the Lea Navigation Canal to include land within the site.

3.5.10 With respect to archaeology, land between the River Lea and the A12 is identified as an
area of archaeological importance or potential.

3.5.11 The site is lacking in both quantity and quality of open space and offers limited biodiversity
value.

3.5.12 The level of tree cover is also low both within existing open spaces and street trees.
According to Tower Hamlets Biodiversity Action Plan there are no important species within the
site, but the canals and waterways within the study area act as important corridors for animals
and birds.

3.5.13 The site does not contain any nature reserves, Site of Special Scientific Interest or other
nature designations.

3.5.14 There is limited quantitative data available for the monitoring of recreational water quality.
The Council, however, are in the process of identifying relevant baseline data sources and
monitoring methods.

3.5.15 The A12 has an impact on air quality within the site. Further, the number of construction
sites in the hinterland area of the study area is likely to remain an important source of pollution in
the next 5-10 years.

3.5.16 Following the completion of the first review and assessment of air quality in January 2000
by the Council, the whole of the Borough was declared an Air Quality Management Area under
part V of the Environment Act 1995. This declaration was published in December 2003.

3.5.17 The site is located within a Flood Risk Area. The site’s eastern edge is at risk to flooding.

3.5.18 The site is traversed by four sub-surface strategic sewers.

Social Characteristics

3.5.19 With respect to transport and travel, 61% of the population does not have access to a car,
which is a considerably higher than the London Average of 37%. Despite the lack of car
ownership the distances travelled to work by the surrounding residential population are similar to
those travelled by Londoners as a whole. The mode of transport, however, varies with more
people relying on public transport than the London average.

3.5.20 There are four primary schools located within the Masterplan area and one secondary
school, the Ian Mikardo Special Needs Secondary School.

3.5.21 44% of the adult population does not have any qualifications. This is higher than the
Tower Hamlets and London averages. This is reflected in the fact that 18% of the population is in
elementary employment. This is a serious issue with regard to raising aspirations of young
people.

3.5.22 While there are no community facilities within the Brief site, Bromley-by-Bow area is
relatively well served by community facilities. There are three GP practices within the Masterplan
area and several places of worship, including Coventry Cross Mosque and Islamic Centre and
Bow Central Mosque and Islamic Centre. Bow Church is the only place for Christian worship. The
Bromley-by-Bow centre is a high quality community resource, offering a range of services,
including a doctor’s surgery, childcare and training. Other community centres include The Marner

Page 200



12266529-001 Draft SA 18

Centre and Tudor Lodge. The Masterplan area is, however, poorly served by libraries and only
has one mobile library service.

3.5.23 With regards to levels of health within the area, 64% of residents describe their overall
health as good, which is lower than the London average of 71%. Tower Hamlets also has a higher
number of people with a limiting long-term illness (18%).

3.5.24 According to the Tower Hamlets Partnership Ward Data Report of January 2006, the
Borough of Tower Hamlets is making progress in terms of reducing overall crime levels, including
domestic crime, burglary, robbery and vehicle crime. There is a disproportionate fear of crime,
however, revealed by Police surveys. This fear stems from poor environmental features within
Bromley-by-Bow, such as poor lighting, underpass crossings and a lack of pedestrian traffic.

"+! ��:&�6�&2-��.�-(�-3�.0&����&��(&�8�.0-�.�.0&�7��(�=7�4.�-3�

.��:���>�

3.6.1 A requirement of the SA process is to identify the existing social, economic and
environmental conditions and consider their potential for change without adoption and
implementation of the Draft Land Use and Design Brief (see Section 2.2).

3.6.2 Appendix D considers this requirement by considering a Business as Usual (BaU) or no
plan scenario. The uncertainty and delay to achieving the objectives contained within the Brief
under BaU scenario is a key sustainability issue.

"+? .��:��"����&(.�36�(5����.��(�����.6�����&���

3.7.1 The key sustainability issues that relates to the Brief are identified below. They are
consistent with the issues identified in the SA for the Masterplan and reflect the current planning
policy context:

� Securing a mixed use development that contributes to a sustainable pattern of development;

� Securing comprehensive redevelopment of the site and ensure that development in one part
does not restrict or develop what can be achieved on residual parts of the site;

� The need to ensure that existing residents benefit from new employment opportunities;

� The need to raise educational attainment and aspiration;

� The need to improve access to existing and new open space;

� The need to address existing concerns around crime and fear of crime;

� The need to recognise existing constraints relating to air quality and noise, particularly along
the A11/A12 and rail corridor;

� The need to improve connectivity with the surrounding area and encourage the use of buses,
walking and cycling;

� The need to optimise the waterside setting of the area, whilst ensuring that development does
not contribute to increased flood risk;

� The need to achieve community integration;

� The need to address the poor physical environment currently experienced in the area;

� The need to secure sustainable design and construction methods;

� The need to reduce, and adapt to, climate change;

Page 201



12266529-001 Draft SA 19

� Need to ensure that the capacity of infrastructure is sufficient to support new development;

� The need to improve connectivity across the A12;

� The need to preserve and enhance the character and appearance of cultural heritage assets
within the area.

�

"+@ �4&�����:&�6�.-��&���5(�3�,�(.�6��33&,.&��=7�4.�-3�.��:��">��

3.8.1 The SEA Directive requires consideration of the “environmental characteristics of the
areas likely to be significantly affected” (Annex I (c)).

3.8.2 Guidance on SEA from the EU (Implementation of Directive 2001/42 on the Assessment
of the Effects of Certain Plans and Programmes on the Environment, Director General DG
Environment, undated) states (paragraph 5.23) states:

“In (c) the focus is on the areas that are of special interest for the assessment, namely
the areas likely to be significantly affected by the plan or programme. A description of
the environmental characteristics of these areas is to be given in the report”.

3.8.3 The guidance on SA of Regional Spatial Strategies and Local Development Documents
(November 2005) states, at paragraph 3.2.8:

“Sufficient information about the current and likely future state of the area covered by
the Development Plan Document (DPD) needs to be collected to allow effects to be
adequately predicted. Information collection needs to focus on the social,
environmental and economic characteristics of the area that relate to the issues to be
tackled in the DPD. The SA Report can then focus on those where significant effects
are likely.”

3.8.4 The Scoping Stage for the SA prepared for the Masterplan identifies areas likely to be
significantly affected. It should be noted that in identifying these areas it is not concluded that
effects will occur. The whole purpose of the SA is to highlight potential effects and recommend
amendments to the Brief to achieve mitigation. The areas that could be significantly affected are:

� The character and appearance of Three Mills Conservation Area and Listed Buildings and their
settings;

� The parts of the site susceptible to noise and air quality impacts from the A12 and railway;

� The loss of existing job opportunities within the site and ability of the existing residential
community to access new jobs and community facilities;

� The risk to flooding of vulnerable land uses;

� Potential impacts on air quality and noise could occur during the construction process;

� The increase in waste generated by the construction process; and

� The water quality of the River Lea.

"+* .��:������&2&�-7�(5�.0&����34�#&8-4:�

3.9.1 The objectives used to assess the Brief are identified below. They are consistent with
those used in the SA for the Masterplan. They were used because they have been previously
consulted on and provide continuity between this SA and that undertaken for the Masterplan.
They reflect the key economic, social and environmental issues identified in the area through a
review of the relevant policies, plans and programmes.

Page 202



12266529-001 Draft SA 20

3.9.2 The SA objectives are:

1. To improve health, promote healthy lifestyles and reduce health

inequalities

2. To provide all residents with the opportunity to live in quality homes,

including affordable homes

3. To provide social and community facilities and open spaces to meet

the needs of Borough residents

4. To create sustainable communities through the regeneration and

efficient use of land and buildings with links to appropriate infrastructure

5. To promote good quality in urban design, and the conservation and

appreciation of the historic environment

6. To create safe and secure environments and reduce crime

7. To give all residents the opportunity of an occupation providing self-

worth and a good livelihood, particularly in deprived areas

8. To reduce poverty, facilitate economic growth, and ensure equality of

opportunity for all residents

9. To reduce the need to travel, reduce private vehicular transport and

encourage the use of public transport, cycling and walking

10. To improve air quality

11. To reduce the impact of noise

12. To combat fuel poverty, reduce energy consumption, and promote

renewable forms to reduce greenhouse gas emissions

13. To minimise waste requiring disposal and to increase recycling and

recovery

14. To improve water quality and reduce water use

15. To conserve, enhance and where appropriate create biodiversity,

including species, habitats, green spaces and watercourses

16. To minimise flood risk within the Borough and elsewhere, and

promote the use of sustainable urban drainage systems

17. To ensure that the plan does not negatively affect existing residents of

Tower Hamlets, and particularly disempowered groups

Page 203



12266529-001 Draft SA 21

"+�% .&,0(�,�����33�,��.�&���(����#�.�.�-(�����-,��.&��8�.0�.0&�

���&��#&(.�

3.10.1 The SEA Regulations require that the report includes the identification of any difficulties
(such as lack of information) encountered.

3.10.2 The main difficulty relates to the level of detail at which to undertaken the SA. It should be
noted that the Brief is required to be subject to a SA and not Environmental Impact Assessment.
The SA was informed by a site visit but not by any detailed field work.

Page 204



12266529-001 22

4 Assessing the Sustainability Effects

�+� �(.4-��,.�-(�

4.1.1 This Chapter of the report sets out the results of the SA for the Brief and considers the
effects of the BAU scenario. A matrix documenting the results of the SA has been completed and
is attached at Appendix C. Consideration is given below to the main effects identified, their nature
(permanent and temporary) and the timescale over which they might occur. Separate
consideration is given to synergistic and cumulative effects because these can best be
considered at the end of the process.

�+� .��:�����.&�.�(5�.0&��4�&3A��-�1&,.�2&���5��(�.�.0&����

34�#&8-4:�

4.2.1 The objectives from the draft Brief have been assessed against the SA framework. The
purpose of this exercise is to identify any potential incompatibilities or gaps in the Brief’s
objectives.

4.2.2 The results are set out in Appendix B. The Brief’s objectives are considered appropriate
and consistent with the SA framework. Where uncertainties are identified they reflect the fact that
compatibility will depend on how the Brief’s objectives are reflected in the rest of the Brief, which
is considered in later tasks associated with the SA. For example the Brief has an objective of
providing ‘modern and flexible industrial and business space that benefits from access to the
strategic road network and public transport.’ How this objective is achieved will affect
performance against a number of SA objectives, including ‘to promote good quality in urban
design, and the conservation and appreciation of the historic environment.‘

�+" .��:��������&���(5�-7.�-(��3-4�.0&��4�&3�

4.3.1 Development options were considered during the preparation of the Masterplan (see page
25 of previous report)

4.3.2 As noted in the method section, consideration has been given to the BAU scenario, in
which the Brief is not prepared.

4.3.3 The significant risk of the BAU scenario is that the area would be under greater pressure
to be developed in a piecemeal manner. This would result in the site being developed inefficiently
undermine the delivery of the physical and community infrastructure required to realise the
development potential of the site.

4.3.4 The BAU scenario is considered against the SA objectives in Appendix D.

Page 205



12266529-001 23

�+� .��:�����(���"���774������-3�.0&��4�&3��

4.4.1 A detailed assessment of the Brief has been undertaken and the results are presented at
Appendix C. The matrix at Appendix C presents the results of the assessment against each SA
objective using the following key:

Potential for a significant positive effect ++
Potential for a minor positive effect +
Potential for a minor negative effect -
Potential for significant negative effect --
No significant effect or no relationship No relationship

Uncertainty – outcome dependent on what is

done, how and where
?

4.4.2 The matrix also indicates whether the effects are temporary or permanent in nature and
gives an indication of their geographical scale. Section 3.4 of this report highlights opportunities to
mitigate such effects.

4.4.3 In general, it is considered that the Brief will contribute to achieving the principles of
sustainable development. It performs well against the SA objectives and no instances were
identified where the documents would conflict with the SA objectives. Opportunities to improve
the Brief have been identified.

�+' .��:��"��(�����,�#���.�2&��(���6(&45��.�,�&33&,.���

4.5.1 The Brief is designed to provide clear guidance to landowners and developers on the
preferred type and arrangement of land use and form of development within the site. The Brief is
intended to facilitate land assembly and implementation and secure the delivery of the physical
and community infrastructure required to achieve the development potential of the site and the
surrounding area. There is therefore potential for synergistic positive effects (a total effect greater
than the sum of the individual effects).

4.5.2 The Brief seeks to secure improved public transport facilities to and from the site which
should help reduce the potential for cumulative negative effects associated with increased traffic.

Page 206



12266529-001 24

�+! .��:��'��-77-4.�(�.�&��3-4�&(0�(,&#&(.��(��#�.�5�.�-(��

4.6.1 The opportunities for mitigating the impact of the Brief and enhancing the quality of
development proposed in the Brief are set out as recommendations in the matrix at Appendix C.
They are presented in bold lettering. The recommendations are summarised in Table 4.1 and 4.2
below. Table 4.1 presents recommendations relating to specific objectives and Table 4.2
presents more general recommendations. The recommendations mainly relate to future
applications and detailed development considerations but could be highlighted in the Brief.

Table 4.1 Summary of Recommendations from the SA

SA Objective to which
recommendation relates

Recommendation

1. To improve health,
promote healthy lifestyles
and reduce health
inequalities

A detailed breakdown of the types of open space required on site

should be provided to ensure that all requirements are provided if,

as anticipated, the area is developed in a phased manner.

Clarify any issues associated with proximity to the Bromley by Bow

Gas Works and the anticipated timing for this to convert to open

space as suggested in Section 1.2 of the Brief.

2. To provide all residents
with the opportunity to live
in quality homes, including
affordable homes

The Brief includes proposals for a significant number of dwellings. A

significant proportion of which will be affordable homes. It will be

important to ensure that the affordable housing is provided

throughout the development – so as to encourage social inclusion.

The Brief could specify the requirement for affordable housing to be

integrated across the site.

4. To create sustainable
communities through the
regeneration and efficient
use of land and buildings
with links to appropriate
infrastructure

The Brief could specify the need for the school to be a dual –use

facility, i.e. available for activities in the evening and weekends

(further education, training etc.) for the local community.

5. To promote good
quality in urban design,
and the conservation and
appreciation of the historic
environment

The Brief could identify the need for proposals to include provision of

public art, or for contributions towards the provision of this.

Is there any scope for enhanced visitor facilities associated with the

Three Mills Area and Lea River Park?

6. To create safe and
secure environments and
reduce crime

Require developers to demonstrate consideration of this issue in

supporting material submitted with the planning application.

Are there any issues in relation to water and safety?

7. To give all residents
the opportunity of an
occupation providing self-
worth and a good
livelihood, particularly in

The Brief bases employment provision on the current ‘industrial

capacity’ of the site but the site includes areas of open storage

which we presume have been used to calculate the employment

requirement. The Brief should provide evidence of the relationship

Page 207



12266529-001 25

deprived areas between employment provision and the proportion of the resident

population that will be of working age. Is the aim for the two to be in

balance or will the site be a net importer or exporter of employment?

Consideration should be given to the provision of starter and small

units and shared facilities.

The Brief could explicitly state whether or not live work units would

be considered as part of proposals.

8. To reduce poverty,
facilitate economic growth,
and ensure equality of
opportunity for all
residents

The Brief could also highlight the opportunity for starter units, for

example with shared facilities.

The Brief could consider the use of voluntary agreements and other

measures to promote training and recruitment of local people.

10. To improve air quality The Brief could reference the Mayor and London Council’s “London

Best Practice Guide” on the control of dust and emissions during

demolition and construction.

11. To reduce the impact
of noise

Construction activity will give rise to noise. The Brief could

reference the Mayor’s Considerate Constructors scheme.

12. To combat fuel
poverty, reduce energy
consumption, and promote
renewable forms to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions

An overall Energy Concept Strategy is recommended for the area –

this would provide the opportunity to identify opportunities to

optimise local energy generation (both within the area and adjoining

areas). If left to individual applications, the opportunity could be lost.

Applications could be accompanied by an Energy and Renewables

Assessment and the Brief could highlight the need for these.

Developers could be required to include a statement on ‘climate

change proofing’ in supporting material submitted with planning

applications; including consideration of the effects of proposals on

micro-climate.

13. To minimise waste
requiring disposal and to
increase recycling and
recovery

The construction phase will generate waste associated with

demolition of existing buildings. The Brief could specify the need for

materials to be used on site where possible, for example could

material be used to achieve the necessary increase in height across

parts of the site at risk from flooding?

The Brief could also require the production of a Construction and

Environmental Management Plan, incorporating a Soil Management

Plan with the aim of using material on-site.

The Brief could encourage the use of prefabricated and

standardised modulation components to minimise waste.

Page 208



12266529-001 26

The Mayor has identified specific targets for recycling and the Brief

could reference these in Section 6.

Proposals for remediation should be required to take account of the
carbon footprint of remediation options.

14 To improve water
quality and reduce water
use

The Mayor has identified specific targets in relation to water

consumption and these could also be referred to.

15. To conserve, enhance
and where appropriate
create biodiversity,
including species,
habitats, green spaces
and watercourses

The overall aim should be to achieve a net gain in the ecological

value of the area. The Brief should require an ecological budgeting

approach. The overall aim should be to achieve a net gain in the

ecological value of the area. This would detail those habitats

identified on site as part of a phase 1 Habitat Survey, a balance

sheet would indicate the value given to each habitat (Local to

European), current biodiversity assets, those to be retained/created

and those to be lost a final column would show the net change

qualitatively. This will help demonstrate the potential ecological

benefits that the project could deliver.

Ecological budgeting for sites should cross-reference BAP Targets

and demonstrate the scope for working towards these targets.

The Mayor has set targets for the provision of green roofs and these

should be referred to in the Brief. The term ‘brown roof’ is also used

to describe roofs that are designed to have enhanced ecological

value (over and above that associated with a green roof). The Brief

could adopt the term ‘brown roofs’ for clarity.

The Brief should also identify the need for a long-term Management

Plan, developer contributions may be required to fund this and long-

term management.

The Brief could identify the opportunity to green the edge of the A12

adjacent to the site and seek developer contributions towards this.

16. To minimise flood risk
within the Borough and
elsewhere, and promote
the use of sustainable
urban drainage systems

The LLVOAPF locates the site within an area identified as required

for storm water attenuation in retention ponds. It is not however

clear from the Brief if retention ponds will be required on site and, if

so, where.

The Brief identifies the need for Sustainable Urban Drainage

Systems (SUDS) but could also highlight the potential need for

Page 209



12266529-001 27

developer contributions to secure the long-term management of

these. It could also advocate the use of a mix of hard and soft

SUDS.

Presumably the aim of attenuation measures will be to ensure that

the site does not increase the risk of flooding elsewhere, with the

site being neutral in terms of the amount and rate of run-off. The

Brief could specify this.

17. To ensure that the
plan does not negatively
affect existing residents of
Tower Hamlets, and
particularly disempowered
groups

The construction phase provides the potential for negative effects on

existing residents, including new residents associated the first phase

of development. The Brief could reference the Mayor’s Considerate

Constructors scheme.

As noted in other SA objective above, the Brief could highlight

measures to ensure that local people benefit from new employment

opportunities, through training and placement initiatives.

Table 4.2: General Recommendations

General - Layout of the
Brief

The Brief could provide greater differentiation between background
text, proposals and requirements for development, e.g. by
highlighting text. As the Land Use and Design Brief stands it is not
easy to pick out requirements.

The Brief could also list the information that will need to be provided
by applicants at the time applications are made.

Delivering Infrastructure It is not clear from the Brief how infrastructure, e.g. new crossings
will be provided – will they be put in place before development takes
place, during construction or after development takes place? Will
infrastructure be wholly developer funded? Will adjoining
developments have a role in providing infrastructure where it would
benefit them?

How will infrastructure provision be related to phasing of the
development?

For example Section 5.1 of the Brief identifies a number of
connections and could also specify the likely funding mechanism(s)
and timing for each.

Sustainable Design and
Construction

The Brief includes reference to Code for Sustainable Homes 4 and
BREEAM Excellent. The Brief should include some justification for
the requirement for Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes,
given that the current target nationally is to achieve Level 3.
Nationally Code Level 4 will be the target from 2013. Subject to the
phasing and timing of the development it may therefore be

Page 210



12266529-001 28

appropriate to require dwellings likely to be completed before 2013
to be Code Level 3 with those completed after required to achieve
the higher rating.

The Mayor has developed a number of other targets and
requirements relating to Sustainable Design and Construction (see
Section 4.4 of this Report and Appendix C) which could also be
referenced in Section 6 of the Brief, so that developers are made
aware of them. The targets are consistent with and build on the
Council’s Core Strategy and Development Control Plan, Interim
Planning Guidance (see relevant policies at Appendix A).

Monitoring The Brief needs to include proposals for monitoring outcomes and
effects – or cross reference the LDF Annual Monitoring Report.

Phasing The Brief would benefit from a Plan showing proposed phases.

�+? ,-(,����-(��

4.7.1 The Brief highlight a range of measures that will contribute to sustainable development
objectives. This SA has identified the opportunity for further enhancement as specific
development proposals are progressed and development proposals implemented.

Page 211



12266529-001 29

5 Next Steps

'+� �(.4-��,.�-(�

5.1.1 This Chapter considers future arrangements for monitoring the Brief and then sets out
linkages to other plans and programmes.

'+� #-(�.-4�(5�=.��:��!>�

5.2.1 The SEA Directive requires monitoring to identify unforeseen adverse effects and to
enable appropriate remedial action to be taken (Article 10.1 refers).

5.2.2 Guidance on monitoring from ODPM states2:

“Local planning authorities should adopt an integrated approach to monitoring local development
frameworks that takes full account of the monitoring needs of Sustainability Appraisal and the
SEA Directive.”

5.2.3 Local Planning Authorities are required to prepare an Annual Monitoring Report. It is
recommended that the indicators are capable of monitoring implementation of this SPD.

5.2.4 The indicators will need to include consideration of the following topics in order to meet
the requirements of the SEA Directive:

� Biodiversity;

� Population;

� Human health;

� Fauna;

� Flora;

� Soil;

� Water;

� Climatic factors;

� Material assets;

� Cultural heritage;

� Landscape.

5.2.5 It is recommended that monitoring of these issues is nested within the monitoring
requirements for the LDF.

'+" ��(:��.-�7��(���(��74-54�##&���.�.0&�74-1&,.��&2&���

5.3.1 The Guidance produced by ODPM recommends consideration of links to other plans and
programmes at the project level (Figure 40 of the guidance refers) - Table 5.1 below sets out the
technical work that may be required as specific development proposals in the Brief site progress.
It also identifies other technical work that could be undertaken. Both provide an opportunity to
ensure that sustainable development considerations are integrated into the development process.

2
Local Development Framework Monitoring: A Good Practice Guide, ODPM, March 2005

Page 212



12266529-001 30

Table 5.1: Potential technical work

Topic Plan or Programme Status

Environmental Effects Environmental Impact Assessment Mandatory for
projects covered
by the Regulations

Contaminated land CLR 7-10 Contaminated Land Exposure
Assessment (CLEA), (DEFRA and EA, 2002)

CLR11: The Model Procedures for the
Management of Contaminated Land

Mandatory

European Sites Habitats Directive Mandatory for any
project that has
potential to impact
on a Natura 2000
site.

Built Heritage Listed Building Consent Mandatory for any
works affecting a
Listed Building

Transport Assessment Mandatory for
developments of a
specified size.

Transport

Travel Plan Voluntary

Flood Risk Assessment according to Appendix
7, PPG25

Mandatory for
affected sites

Flood Risk

Drainage Strategy (adopting SUDS principles) Voluntary

Fifth edition Sewers for Adoption (2002) MandatoryInfrastructure

Part H of the Building Regulations Mandatory

Part L2 of the Building Regulations Mandatory

Energy Efficiency Best Practice Programme Voluntary

Integrating renewable energy into new
development, toolkit for planners, developers
and consultants (London Renewable, Sep 04)

Voluntary

Energy

Carbon Neutral Co. Voluntary

Waste Management Licence Mandatory if
deposit, keep, treat
or dispose of
controlled waste

Waste

Duty of Care for Waste (2003) Mandatory

Page 213



12266529-001 31

Topic Plan or Programme Status

Hazardous Waste Registration (if produced)
with the Environment Agency

Mandatory if
produced

Waste minimisation, an environmental good
practice guide for industry (EA, 1997)

Voluntary

Waste Audit Voluntary

National Industrial Symbiosis Programme Voluntary

Waste and Resources Action Plan Voluntary

Code of practice for the management,
destruction and disposal of Japanese
Knotweed (EA, 2001)

MandatoryEcology/ Biodiversity

Duty of Care for Waste Mandatory

Lighting Guidance Notes for the Reduction of Obtrusive
Light (Institution of Lighting Engineers, 2005)

Voluntary

Health Health Impact Assessment Voluntary, could be
incorporated in
EIAs but important
that the site as a
whole is
considered

Water Pollution Prevention Guidelines (EA) Voluntary

ENVEST II or The Green Guide to
Specification (2002)

Voluntary

Control of Asbestos at Work Regulation 1998,
HSE

Approved Code of Asbestos (1993)

Voluntary

Materials

Procurement Plan Voluntary

Urban Design Urban Design Statement (incorporating
Secured by Design)

Mandatory

Sustainable Design BREEAM/ Code for Sustainable Homes

London Sustainable Development Checklist

Voluntary

Voluntary

Building Regulations Part L2 (2002) Mandatory

Building Users Guide Voluntary

Considerate Construction Scheme Voluntary

Pollution Prevention Guidelines (EA) Voluntary

CIBSE Commissioning Codes Voluntary

British Standard BS5837 (1991) Voluntary

Construction

Construction and Environmental Management Voluntary

Page 214



12266529-001 32

Topic Plan or Programme Status

Plan

Planning Application Planning Conditions

S.106 Agreement

At the discretion of
the Local Planning
Authority

'+� #�6-4���.�45&.��

5.4.1 The Mayor of London’s essential standards, preferred standards and targets are set out in
Appendix E. It is recommended that the Brief acknowledges these. The standards and targets
are taken from the London Sustainable Development Checklist and would be particularly relevant
if a strategic planning application is submitted. Additional background on the checklist is provided
below.

5.4.2 The Council’s Core Strategy and Development Control Development Plan Document,
Interim Planning Guidance contains policies aimed at securing developments that incorporate
sustainable design and construction techniques (see Appendix A). The Mayor’s targets are
consistent with and build on these policies by providing targets and standards for proposals to
work towards.

Page 215



12266529-001 33

The London Sustainable Development Checklist is designed to be used by those involved in
planning or building sizeable developments from single schemes to urban villages and
regeneration projects. It helps both at the strategic level and at the more detailed site/estate level,
focusing on the sustainability aspects relating to buildings and infrastructure. The national
Sustainability Checklist for Developments provided the starting point for the first Regional
checklist (Sustainability Checklist for Developments in the South East, SEEDA/BRE, 2003/4), and
this was adapted to fit the London context.

The Mayor of London requires every strategic planning application that is referable to him to be
accompanied by a sustainability statement, as outlined in the London Plan (Policy 4B.6). This
checklist has been designed to outline the issues and standards that should be considered in
such a statement and to provide a useful way of compiling the relevant information. The
requirement for a sustainability statement is currently being amended as part of the Further
Alterations to the London Plan (FALP). A strengthened requirement for a ‘sustainable design and
construction statement’ is proposed in Policy 4A.2i of the FALP and again this checklist should
help developers to meet this requirement once it is adopted. The FALP are due for adoption in
early 2008.

The checklist looks at a range of sustainability issues by expressing the standards that are
outlined in the London Plan’s Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) on Sustainable Design
and Construction by a series of questions and further reference is made to policies in the London
Plan. Every LDF in London must be in general conformity with the London Plan so we would
expect that all boroughs would consistently use the key issues and questions in this checklist. At
the regional level it is required as part of the planning process for referable planning applications.

For each issue there are Essential Standards (mandatory minimum practice) and the Mayor’s
Preferred Standards (which indicate good practice) as appropriate. The checklist incorporates
these standards in a question-based format that helps to describe them. Most questions have a
minimum, good, and best practice option for an answer, and these reflect the intended outcomes
of the standards. It is expected that the checklist will help describe and aid implementation of
theses standards in tandem with the SPG on Sustainable Design and Construction and other GLA
initiatives.

Reference:

Available online at: http://www.londonchecklist.co.uk/checklist

'+' (&/.��.&7��

5.5.1 This draft SA is being consulted on in association with the Brief between (tbc) and (tbc).

5.5.2 All comments received during this period will be taken into consideration in the
preparation of the Brief before being endorsed by the Council as Interim Planning Guidance.

5.5.3 Please send comments to:

Simone Williams

London Borough of Tower Hamlets

Directorate of Development and Renewal

Major Projects - Development Implementation

Page 216



12266529-001 34

Mulberry Place

PO Box 55739

5 Clove Crescent

London

E14 1BY

5.5.4 The recommendations in this report will be considered alongside other responses
received during consultation. Responses to this SA will also be considered in finalising the SA
report.

5.5.5 If necessary a further SA will be undertaken of the revised draft Brief.

Page 217



12266529-001 Draft SA 35

Appendix A Plans and Programmes

General sustainable development

� The Johannesburg Declaration on Sustainable Development

� European Spatial Development Perspective

� A Better Quality of Life – A Strategy for Sustainable Development for the UK

� Sustainability Appraisals of Regional Spatial Strategies and Local Development Frameworks
(Nov 2005)

� Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act (2004)

� Town and Country Planning Act (1990)

� Planning Policy Statement 1 – Creating Sustainable Communities

� Planning Policy Statement 12 – Local Development Frameworks

� Sustainable Communities in London

� The London Plan

� The East London Sub-Regional Development Framework

� The Lower Lea Valley Opportunity Area Planning Framework

� Tower Hamlets Local Development Framework

� Leaside Area Action Plan

� Tower Hamlets – A Community Strategy

� Local Area Partnership 6 Action Plan

� London Borough of Tower Hamlets Strategic Plan

� Securing the Future: the UK Government Sustainable Development Strategy 2005

� Sustainable Development Framework for London

� Social progress which recognises the needs of everyone

� Planning Policy Guidance Note 3 – Housing

� Tower Hamlets Housing Strategy Statement

� Crime and Drugs Reduction Strategy 2005-2006

Effective protection of the environment

� Kyoto Protocol (1997)

� European Union Sixth Environmental Action Plan

� European Directive 2001/42/EC (SEA Directive)

� European Directive 92/43/EEC (amended by 97/62/EC)

� European Directive 79/409/EEC

� Wildlife and Countryside Act (1981)

Page 218



12266529-001 Draft SA 36

� UK Biodiversity Action Plan – UK BAP (1994)

� Countryside and Rights of Way Act (2000)

� UK Air Quality Strategy (2000)

� The Environmental Assessment of Plans and Programmes Regulations (2004)

� Planning Policy Statement 23 – Planning and Pollution Control

� Planning Policy Guidance Note 24 – Planning and Noise

� Planning Policy Guidance Note 25 – Development and Flood Risk

� Draft Planning Policy Statement 9 – Biodiversity and Geological Conservation

� The Water Framework Directive and the production of River Basin Management Plans

� The London Assembly’s The Blue Ribbon Network

� Biodiversity Action Plan for Tower Hamlets

� Planning Policy Guidance Note 15 – Planning and the Historic Environment

� Planning Policy Guidance Note 16 – Archaeology and Planning

� The Future of Transport – White Paper (2004)

� Planning Policy Guidance Note 13 – Transport

� Mayor’s Transport Strategy

� Mayor’s Biodiversity Strategy

� The Mayor’s Air Quality Strategy

� Mayor’s Draft Water Strategy (2007)

� The Mayor’s Ambient Noise Strategy

� Tower Hamlets Local Transport Plan

Social progress which recognises the needs of everyone

� Planning Policy Statement 3 (PPS3)

� Planning Policy Statement 17 (PPS17): Planning for open space, sport and recreation

� Tower Hamlets Housing Strategy Statement

� Crime and Drugs Reduction Strategy 2005-6

� Choosing Health: Making Healthier Choices Easier – Health White Paper (2004)

� Tower Hamlets Cultural Strategy

� Tower Hamlets Community Plan

� Tower Hamlets Neighbourhood Renewal Strategy

� Tower Hamlets Young Persons Community Plan

� An Open Spaces Strategy for the London Borough of Tower Hamlets 2006-2016

� Tower Hamlets Improving Health and Well Being Strategy (2006)

Prudent use of natural resources

� EU Directive to promote Electricity from Renewable Energy (2001/77/EEC)

� EU Directive for the Promotion of Biofuels for Transport (2003/30/EC)

Page 219



12266529-001 Draft SA 37

� Planning Policy Statement 10: Planning for Sustainable Waste Management

� Planning Policy Statement 22 – Renewable Energy

� The Mayor’s Waste Strategy

� BREEAM/Eco-homes

� EU Landfill Directive

� UK Waste Strategy (DEFRA, 2000)

� The Mayor’s Energy Strategy

� The Mayor’s Climate Change Action Plan (2007)

� UK Climate Change The UK Programme (2006)

� Meeting the Energy Challenge – A White Paper on Energy (2007)

� UK Waste Strategy (2007)

Maintaining a vibrant, flourishing and diverse economy

� Planning Policy Guidance Note 4 – Industrial, Commercial Development and Small Firms

� Consultation Paper Planning Policy Statement 4 (PPS4): Planning for Sustainable Economic
Development

� Planning Policy Statement 6 – Planning for Town Centres

� Planning Policy Guidance Note 21 – Tourism

� Tower Hamlets Regeneration Strategy

� Regional Economic Strategy for London ‘Sustaining Success’

Page 220



12266529-001 Draft SA 38

Policies from the London Borough of Tower Hamlets Core Strategy and Development
Control Development Plan Document, Interim Planning Guidance, October 2007

CP3. Sustainable Environment
1. The Council will proactively work to protect and enhance the quality of the environment,
ensure the prudent use of natural resources, and contribute to tackling climate change.
Measures will include, but not be limited to, ensuring all development, over its lifetime:
a) protects and assists in improving air, land and water quality, including by minimising air,
noise, land and water pollution;
b) prevents harm to biodiversity;
c) is appropriately located and designed to ensure the prevention of harm to areas of nature
conservation value;
d) incorporates sustainable design practices;
e) minimises demand for, and ensures the sustainable use of water, energy, minerals and
other natural resources, including minimising the use of non-renewable resources;
f) minimises greenhouse gas emissions;
g) reduces the risk of flooding;
h) incorporates effective waste management and recycling
initiatives; and
i) prevents people and the environment from being at risk from hazardous substances.
2. In carrying out its planning functions, including the assessment of planning applications,
the Council will:
a) take into account all the potential impacts of development, including the indirect,
cumulative and long-term impacts; and
b) adopt the precautionary principle where there are threats o f serious or irreversible
environmental damage.

DEV5. Sustainable Design
1. The Council will expect all major development to use best practice sustainable design
measures including, but not limited to, the
following:
a) maximising the use of natural systems, including the
incorporation of Passive Solar Design measures;
b) minimising energy use;
c) designing out negative impacts on microclimate;
d) protecting and, where possible, enhancing site biodiversity; and
e) preventing the possibility of contamination to land, water or air.
2. The Council will expect applications for development other than major development to
demonstrate a consideration of the incorporation of sustainable design measures.
Applicants should identify and implement opportunities to incorporate beneficial geological
features such as, rocks, islands, banks, localised basins, lakes, sand and silt coverings,
ridges, mud sediments and biodiversity in the design of new developments.
4. Where a Design and Access Statement is required to accompany a planning application,
the Design and Access Statement is to demonstrate compliance with DEV5. The depth of
analysis of a Design and Access Statement may vary according to the nature and scale of
the proposal.

DEV6. Energy Efficiency and Renewable Energy
1. All planning applications will be required to include an assessment demonstrating how the
development minimises energy demand and carbon dioxide emissions.
2. Major development will be required to incorporate renewable energy production, to
provide at least 10% of the predicted energy requirements on site. Incorporation of
renewable energy production equipment will be encouraged in all developments.

Page 221



12266529-001 Draft SA 39

3. Development of facilities that generate energy or produce renewable energy locally will be
encouraged, subject to the satisfactory resolution of environmental impacts and impact on
local amenity.

DEV8. Sustainable Drainage
The Council will expect all development proposals to incorporate Sustainable Urban
Drainage Systems (SUDS), where development is likely to have an impact on watercourses
and where there will be need to control and reduce run-off. The location of SUDS should be
as close to its origin as possible.

DEV9. Sustainable Construction Materials
All major developments are required to demonstrate sustainable construction practices
through provision of a site-wide Materials Use and Purchasing Strategy, covering all
construction management activities.

In assessing planning applications the Council will consider:
a) the adequacy and ease of access to the development for waste collection;
b) the need for provision of storage areas for waste as an internal room or an area within the
development screened from the street in perpetuity;
c) the adequacy of storage space for waste given the frequency of waste collections,
regardless of whether the collection service is to be provided by the Council or by a private
waste collection company;
d) the need to accommodate separate containers for residual refuse and recyclables;
e) the potential for the provision, where appropriate, of temporary construction and
demolition waste facilities; and
f) in the case of residential development, the degree to which the proposals implement the
guidance set out in Planning Standard 2: Residential Waste Refuse and Recycling Provision.

�

Page 222



1
2
2
6
6
5
2

9
-0

0
1

D
ra

ft
S

A
4
0

A
p
p
e
n

d
ix

B
T

e
st

in
g

th
e

B
ri
e
f’s

O
b
je

ct
iv

e
s

A
g
a
in

st
th

e
S

A
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

(T
a
sk

B
1
)

T
h
e

B
ri
e
f’
s

o
b
je

c
tiv

e
is

c
o
m

p
a
ti
b
le

w
it
h

th
e

S
A

o
b
je

c
tiv

e
�

T
h
e
re

is
n
o

re
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

b
e
tw

e
e
n

th
e

B
ri
e
f’
s

o
b
je

c
tiv

e
a
n
d

th
e

S
A

o
b
je

c
tiv

e
s

0

T
h
e

re
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

is
u
n
c
e
rt

a
in

a
n
d

w
ill

d
e
p
e
n
d

o
n

h
o
w

th
e

B
ri
e
f’
s

o
b
je

c
tiv

e
is

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d

?

B
ri

e
f

o
b

je
c

ti
v

e
s

S
A

o
b

je
c

ti
v

e
s

A
co

m
p

re
h

e
n

si
v
e

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n
t

th
a
t

m
a
k
e

s
e
ff

ic
ie

n
t

u
se

o
f

la
n

d
to

c
re

a
te

a
n

in
te

g
ra

te
d

m
ix

e
d

u
s
e
d

q
u

a
rt

e
r

o
f

B
ro

m
le

y
b

y
B

o
w

A
m

ix
o
f

h
o

u
si

n
g

ty
p

e
s

a
n

d
te

n
u

re
s,

in
cl

u
d
in

g
a

su
b
st

a
n
ti
a
l

p
ro

vi
si

o
n

o
f

fa
m

ily
h

o
u

si
n

g
,

th
a
t

p
ro

fi
t

fr
o

m

cl
o

se
p
ro

xi
m

it
y

to
B

ro
m

le
y

b
y

B
o
w

st
a
ti
o

n
,

th
e

L
e

a

N
a

vi
g

a
ti
o
n

C
a

n
a
l
a

n
d

h
is

to
ri
c

T
h

re
e

M
ill

s
se

tt
in

g
;

A
n
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

ce
n
tr

e
,

a
n
c
h
o

re
d

b
y

a
s
u
p

e
rm

a
rk

e
t,

th
a
t

in
cl

u
d

e
s

n
e

w

sh
o
p

p
in

g
fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

a

p
ri

m
a

ry
sc

h
o

o
l,

a

h
e

a
lt
h

ca
re

fa
ci

lit
y

a
n

d
o

p
e

n
s
p
a

c
e
;

M
o
d

e
rn

a
n

d

fl
e
xi

b
le

in
d

u
st

ri
a
l
a

n
d

b
u

si
n

e
s
s

sp
a
c
e

th
a
t

b
e

n
e
fi
ts

fr
o

m

a
c
ce

s
s

to
th

e

st
ra

te
g
ic

ro
a
d

n
e
tw

o
rk

a
n

d

p
u

b
lic

tr
a

n
s
p
o

rt
;

N
e
w

p
e

d
e
st

ri
a

n
lin

k
s

a
n

d
p

u
b
lic

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

a
c
ce

s
si

b
ili

ty

e
n

h
a

n
ce

m
e

n
ts

th
a
t

im
p
ro

ve
in

te
g

ra
ti
o
n

w
it
h

s
u
rr

o
u

n
d
in

g

co
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s,
n
o

d
e

s

o
f

a
ct

iv
it
y

a
n
d

fu
tu

re

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n
t

si
te

s

A
c
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

im
p
ro

ve
m

e
n
ts

th
a
t

lin
k

e
xi

st
in

g

n
e
ig

h
b
o

u
ri
n

g

co
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
w

it
h

a
c
ce

s
s

to
n

e
w

h
o

m
e

s,
jo

b
s

a
n
d

co
m

m
u

n
it
y

fa
ci

lit
ie

s

a
n

d
th

e
a

m
e
n
it
ie

s

o
f

th
e

L
o
w

e
r

L
e
a

V
a
lle

y’
s

o
p

e
n

sp
a
c
e

s,
w

a
te

rw
a

ys

a
n

d
h

e
ri
ta

g
e

a
ss

e
ts

A
n

in
n
o

v
a
ti
ve

a
n

d

e
x
e

m
p
la

ry

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

to
u

rb
a

n

d
e

si
g

n
a

n
d

a
rc

h
it
e
ct

u
re

th
a
t

re
sp

o
n
d

s
to

th
e

a
re

a
’s

c
o
n

st
ra

in
ts

a
n

d
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s

a
n

d
c
re

a
te

s
a

p
la

ce
in

w
h
ic

h

p
e

o
p
le

w
a
n
t

to

liv
e
,

w
o

rk
a

n
d

vi
si

t

A
d
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

th
a
t

a
ch

ie
v
e
s

a

co
m

b
in

a
ti
o

n
o
f

su
st

a
in

a
b
le

la
n

d

u
s
e

c
h
a

n
g
e
,

d
e

si
g

n
e

xc
e
lle

n
c
e

a
n

d
c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l

vi
a

b
ili

ty

T
o

im
p
ro

v
e

h
e

a
lt
h
,

p
ro

m
o
te

h
e

a
lt
h
y

lif
e
st

yl
e

s
a

n
d

re
d

u
c
e

h
e

a
lt
h

in
e
q

u
a
lit

ie
s

�
�

�
0

�
�

0
0

T
o

p
ro

vi
d
e

a
ll

re
si

d
e
n
ts

w
it
h

th
e

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y

to
liv

e
in

�
�

0
0

0
0

�
�

Page 223



1
2
2
6
6
5
2

9
-0

0
1

D
ra

ft
S

A
4
1

B
ri

e
f

o
b

je
c

ti
v

e
s

S
A

o
b

je
c

ti
v

e
s

A
co

m
p

re
h

e
n

si
v
e

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n
t

th
a
t

m
a
k
e

s
e
ff

ic
ie

n
t

u
se

o
f

la
n

d
to

c
re

a
te

a
n

in
te

g
ra

te
d

m
ix

e
d

u
s
e
d

q
u

a
rt

e
r

o
f

B
ro

m
le

y
b

y
B

o
w

A
m

ix
o
f

h
o

u
si

n
g

ty
p

e
s

a
n

d
te

n
u

re
s,

in
cl

u
d
in

g
a

su
b
st

a
n
ti
a
l

p
ro

vi
si

o
n

o
f

fa
m

ily
h

o
u

si
n

g
,

th
a
t

p
ro

fi
t

fr
o

m

cl
o

se
p
ro

xi
m

it
y

to
B

ro
m

le
y

b
y

B
o
w

st
a
ti
o

n
,

th
e

L
e

a

N
a

vi
g

a
ti
o
n

C
a

n
a
l
a

n
d

h
is

to
ri
c

T
h

re
e

M
ill

s
se

tt
in

g
;

A
n
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

ce
n
tr

e
,

a
n
c
h
o

re
d

b
y

a
s
u
p

e
rm

a
rk

e
t,

th
a
t

in
cl

u
d

e
s

n
e

w

sh
o
p

p
in

g
fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

a

p
ri

m
a

ry
sc

h
o

o
l,

a

h
e

a
lt
h

ca
re

fa
ci

lit
y

a
n

d
o

p
e

n
s
p
a

c
e
;

M
o
d

e
rn

a
n

d

fl
e
xi

b
le

in
d

u
st

ri
a
l
a

n
d

b
u

si
n

e
s
s

sp
a
c
e

th
a
t

b
e

n
e
fi
ts

fr
o

m

a
c
ce

s
s

to
th

e

st
ra

te
g
ic

ro
a
d

n
e
tw

o
rk

a
n

d

p
u

b
lic

tr
a

n
s
p
o

rt
;

N
e
w

p
e

d
e
st

ri
a

n
lin

k
s

a
n

d
p

u
b
lic

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

a
c
ce

s
si

b
ili

ty

e
n

h
a

n
ce

m
e

n
ts

th
a
t

im
p
ro

ve
in

te
g

ra
ti
o
n

w
it
h

s
u
rr

o
u

n
d
in

g

co
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s,
n
o

d
e

s

o
f

a
ct

iv
it
y

a
n
d

fu
tu

re

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n
t

si
te

s

A
c
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

im
p
ro

ve
m

e
n
ts

th
a
t

lin
k

e
xi

st
in

g

n
e
ig

h
b
o

u
ri
n

g

co
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
w

it
h

a
c
ce

s
s

to
n

e
w

h
o

m
e

s,
jo

b
s

a
n
d

co
m

m
u

n
it
y

fa
ci

lit
ie

s

a
n

d
th

e
a

m
e
n
it
ie

s

o
f

th
e

L
o
w

e
r

L
e
a

V
a
lle

y’
s

o
p

e
n

sp
a
c
e

s,
w

a
te

rw
a

ys

a
n

d
h

e
ri
ta

g
e

a
ss

e
ts

A
n

in
n
o

v
a
ti
ve

a
n

d

e
x
e

m
p
la

ry

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

to
u

rb
a

n

d
e

si
g

n
a

n
d

a
rc

h
it
e
ct

u
re

th
a
t

re
sp

o
n
d

s
to

th
e

a
re

a
’s

c
o
n

st
ra

in
ts

a
n

d
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s

a
n

d
c
re

a
te

s
a

p
la

ce
in

w
h
ic

h

p
e

o
p
le

w
a
n
t

to

liv
e
,

w
o

rk
a

n
d

vi
si

t

A
d
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

th
a
t

a
ch

ie
v
e
s

a

co
m

b
in

a
ti
o

n
o
f

su
st

a
in

a
b
le

la
n

d

u
s
e

c
h
a

n
g
e
,

d
e

si
g

n
e

xc
e
lle

n
c
e

a
n

d
c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l

vi
a

b
ili

ty

q
u

a
lit

y
h

o
m

e
s,

in
cl

u
d
in

g
a
ff

o
rd

a
b
le

h
o

m
e

s

T
o

p
ro

vi
d
e

so
ci

a
l

a
n

d
c
o

m
m

u
n
it
y

fa
ci

lit
ie

s
a
n

d
o

p
e

n

sp
a
c
e

s
to

m
e

e
t

th
e

n
e

e
d

s
o
f

B
o

ro
u
g

h

re
si

d
e
n
ts

�
0

�
0

0
�

0
�

T
o

c
re

a
te

su
st

a
in

a
b
le

co
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
th

ro
u
g

h

th
e

re
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

a
n

d

e
ff

ic
ie

n
t

u
s
e

o
f

la
n
d

a
n

d
b

u
ild

in
g

s
w

it
h

lin
ks

to
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a
te

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

�
�

�
�

�
�

0
�

T
o

p
ro

m
o
te

g
o

o
d

�
�

�
?

0
�

�
�

Page 224



1
2
2
6
6
5
2

9
-0

0
1

D
ra

ft
S

A
4
2

B
ri

e
f

o
b

je
c

ti
v

e
s

S
A

o
b

je
c

ti
v

e
s

A
co

m
p

re
h

e
n

si
v
e

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n
t

th
a
t

m
a
k
e

s
e
ff

ic
ie

n
t

u
se

o
f

la
n

d
to

c
re

a
te

a
n

in
te

g
ra

te
d

m
ix

e
d

u
s
e
d

q
u

a
rt

e
r

o
f

B
ro

m
le

y
b

y
B

o
w

A
m

ix
o
f

h
o

u
si

n
g

ty
p

e
s

a
n

d
te

n
u

re
s,

in
cl

u
d
in

g
a

su
b
st

a
n
ti
a
l

p
ro

vi
si

o
n

o
f

fa
m

ily
h

o
u

si
n

g
,

th
a
t

p
ro

fi
t

fr
o

m

cl
o

se
p
ro

xi
m

it
y

to
B

ro
m

le
y

b
y

B
o
w

st
a
ti
o

n
,

th
e

L
e

a

N
a

vi
g

a
ti
o
n

C
a

n
a
l
a

n
d

h
is

to
ri
c

T
h

re
e

M
ill

s
se

tt
in

g
;

A
n
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

ce
n
tr

e
,

a
n
c
h
o

re
d

b
y

a
s
u
p

e
rm

a
rk

e
t,

th
a
t

in
cl

u
d

e
s

n
e

w

sh
o
p

p
in

g
fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

a

p
ri

m
a

ry
sc

h
o

o
l,

a

h
e

a
lt
h

ca
re

fa
ci

lit
y

a
n

d
o

p
e

n
s
p
a

c
e
;

M
o
d

e
rn

a
n

d

fl
e
xi

b
le

in
d

u
st

ri
a
l
a

n
d

b
u

si
n

e
s
s

sp
a
c
e

th
a
t

b
e

n
e
fi
ts

fr
o

m

a
c
ce

s
s

to
th

e

st
ra

te
g
ic

ro
a
d

n
e
tw

o
rk

a
n

d

p
u

b
lic

tr
a

n
s
p
o

rt
;

N
e
w

p
e

d
e
st

ri
a

n
lin

k
s

a
n

d
p

u
b
lic

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

a
c
ce

s
si

b
ili

ty

e
n

h
a

n
ce

m
e

n
ts

th
a
t

im
p
ro

ve
in

te
g

ra
ti
o
n

w
it
h

s
u
rr

o
u

n
d
in

g

co
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s,
n
o

d
e

s

o
f

a
ct

iv
it
y

a
n
d

fu
tu

re

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n
t

si
te

s

A
c
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

im
p
ro

ve
m

e
n
ts

th
a
t

lin
k

e
xi

st
in

g

n
e
ig

h
b
o

u
ri
n

g

co
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
w

it
h

a
c
ce

s
s

to
n

e
w

h
o

m
e

s,
jo

b
s

a
n
d

co
m

m
u

n
it
y

fa
ci

lit
ie

s

a
n

d
th

e
a

m
e
n
it
ie

s

o
f

th
e

L
o
w

e
r

L
e
a

V
a
lle

y’
s

o
p

e
n

sp
a
c
e

s,
w

a
te

rw
a

ys

a
n

d
h

e
ri
ta

g
e

a
ss

e
ts

A
n

in
n
o

v
a
ti
ve

a
n

d

e
x
e

m
p
la

ry

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

to
u

rb
a

n

d
e

si
g

n
a

n
d

a
rc

h
it
e
ct

u
re

th
a
t

re
sp

o
n
d

s
to

th
e

a
re

a
’s

c
o
n

st
ra

in
ts

a
n

d
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s

a
n

d
c
re

a
te

s
a

p
la

ce
in

w
h
ic

h

p
e

o
p
le

w
a
n
t

to

liv
e
,

w
o

rk
a

n
d

vi
si

t

A
d
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

th
a
t

a
ch

ie
v
e
s

a

co
m

b
in

a
ti
o

n
o
f

su
st

a
in

a
b
le

la
n

d

u
s
e

c
h
a

n
g
e
,

d
e

si
g

n
e

xc
e
lle

n
c
e

a
n

d
c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l

vi
a

b
ili

ty

q
u

a
lit

y
in

u
rb

a
n

d
e

si
g

n
,

a
n
d

th
e

co
n
s
e

rv
a
ti
o

n
a

n
d

a
p

p
re

ci
a
ti
o

n
o
f

th
e

h
is

to
ri
c

e
n

vi
ro

n
m

e
n
t

T
o

c
re

a
te

s
a
fe

a
n

d

se
cu

re
e

n
vi

ro
n

m
e
n
ts

a
n

d
re

d
u

ce
cr

im
e

�
�

�
0

�
�

0
�

T
o

g
iv

e
a
ll

re
si

d
e

n
ts

th
e

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y

o
f

a
n

o
c
cu

p
a
ti
o
n

p
ro

vi
d
in

g

se
lf
-w

o
rt

h
a

n
d

a

g
o

o
d

liv
e
lih

o
o

d
,

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y

in

d
e

p
ri

ve
d

a
re

a
s

�
�

�
�

�
�

0
�

T
o

re
d
u

ce
p
o

v
e
rt

y,

fa
ci

lit
a
te

e
c
o
n

o
m

ic

g
ro

w
th

,
a
n

d
e

n
su

re

�
�

�
�

�
�

0
�

Page 225



1
2
2
6
6
5
2

9
-0

0
1

D
ra

ft
S

A
4
3

B
ri

e
f

o
b

je
c

ti
v

e
s

S
A

o
b

je
c

ti
v

e
s

A
co

m
p

re
h

e
n

si
v
e

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n
t

th
a
t

m
a
k
e

s
e
ff

ic
ie

n
t

u
se

o
f

la
n

d
to

c
re

a
te

a
n

in
te

g
ra

te
d

m
ix

e
d

u
s
e
d

q
u

a
rt

e
r

o
f

B
ro

m
le

y
b

y
B

o
w

A
m

ix
o
f

h
o

u
si

n
g

ty
p

e
s

a
n

d
te

n
u

re
s,

in
cl

u
d
in

g
a

su
b
st

a
n
ti
a
l

p
ro

vi
si

o
n

o
f

fa
m

ily
h

o
u

si
n

g
,

th
a
t

p
ro

fi
t

fr
o

m

cl
o

se
p
ro

xi
m

it
y

to
B

ro
m

le
y

b
y

B
o
w

st
a
ti
o

n
,

th
e

L
e

a

N
a

vi
g

a
ti
o
n

C
a

n
a
l
a

n
d

h
is

to
ri
c

T
h

re
e

M
ill

s
se

tt
in

g
;

A
n
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

ce
n
tr

e
,

a
n
c
h
o

re
d

b
y

a
s
u
p

e
rm

a
rk

e
t,

th
a
t

in
cl

u
d

e
s

n
e

w

sh
o
p

p
in

g
fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

a

p
ri

m
a

ry
sc

h
o

o
l,

a

h
e

a
lt
h

ca
re

fa
ci

lit
y

a
n

d
o

p
e

n
s
p
a

c
e
;

M
o
d

e
rn

a
n

d

fl
e
xi

b
le

in
d

u
st

ri
a
l
a

n
d

b
u

si
n

e
s
s

sp
a
c
e

th
a
t

b
e

n
e
fi
ts

fr
o

m

a
c
ce

s
s

to
th

e

st
ra

te
g
ic

ro
a
d

n
e
tw

o
rk

a
n

d

p
u

b
lic

tr
a

n
s
p
o

rt
;

N
e
w

p
e

d
e
st

ri
a

n
lin

k
s

a
n

d
p

u
b
lic

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

a
c
ce

s
si

b
ili

ty

e
n

h
a

n
ce

m
e

n
ts

th
a
t

im
p
ro

ve
in

te
g

ra
ti
o
n

w
it
h

s
u
rr

o
u

n
d
in

g

co
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s,
n
o

d
e

s

o
f

a
ct

iv
it
y

a
n
d

fu
tu

re

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n
t

si
te

s

A
c
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

im
p
ro

ve
m

e
n
ts

th
a
t

lin
k

e
xi

st
in

g

n
e
ig

h
b
o

u
ri
n

g

co
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
w

it
h

a
c
ce

s
s

to
n

e
w

h
o

m
e

s,
jo

b
s

a
n
d

co
m

m
u

n
it
y

fa
ci

lit
ie

s

a
n

d
th

e
a

m
e
n
it
ie

s

o
f

th
e

L
o
w

e
r

L
e
a

V
a
lle

y’
s

o
p

e
n

sp
a
c
e

s,
w

a
te

rw
a

ys

a
n

d
h

e
ri
ta

g
e

a
ss

e
ts

A
n

in
n
o

v
a
ti
ve

a
n

d

e
x
e

m
p
la

ry

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

to
u

rb
a

n

d
e

si
g

n
a

n
d

a
rc

h
it
e
ct

u
re

th
a
t

re
sp

o
n
d

s
to

th
e

a
re

a
’s

c
o
n

st
ra

in
ts

a
n

d
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s

a
n

d
c
re

a
te

s
a

p
la

ce
in

w
h
ic

h

p
e

o
p
le

w
a
n
t

to

liv
e
,

w
o

rk
a

n
d

vi
si

t

A
d
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

th
a
t

a
ch

ie
v
e
s

a

co
m

b
in

a
ti
o

n
o
f

su
st

a
in

a
b
le

la
n

d

u
s
e

c
h
a

n
g
e
,

d
e

si
g

n
e

xc
e
lle

n
c
e

a
n

d
c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l

vi
a

b
ili

ty

e
q

u
a
lit

y
o
f

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y

fo
r

a
ll

re
si

d
e
n
ts

T
o

re
d
u

ce
th

e
n
e

e
d

to
tr

a
ve

l,
re

d
u

ce

p
ri

va
te

v
e
h
ic

u
la

r

tr
a

n
s
p
o

rt
a

n
d

e
n

co
u

ra
g
e

th
e

u
s
e

o
f

p
u

b
lic

tr
a

n
s
p
o

rt
,

cy
cl

in
g

a
n
d

w
a
lk

in
g

�
�

�
�

�
�

0
�

T
o

im
p
ro

v
e

a
ir

q
u

a
lit

y
?

�
0

�
�

�
0

0

T
o

re
d
u

ce
th

e

im
p
a

ct
o
f

n
o
is

e
?

0
0

?
�

�
0

0

T
o

c
o

m
b

a
t

fu
e
l

p
o

ve
rt

y,
re

d
u

c
e

e
n

e
rg

y
c
o
n

su
m

p
ti
o

n
,

a
n

d
p

ro
m

o
te

�
�

�
?

�
�

�
�

Page 226



1
2
2
6
6
5
2

9
-0

0
1

D
ra

ft
S

A
4
4

B
ri

e
f

o
b

je
c

ti
v

e
s

S
A

o
b

je
c

ti
v

e
s

A
co

m
p

re
h

e
n

si
v
e

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n
t

th
a
t

m
a
k
e

s
e
ff

ic
ie

n
t

u
se

o
f

la
n

d
to

c
re

a
te

a
n

in
te

g
ra

te
d

m
ix

e
d

u
s
e
d

q
u

a
rt

e
r

o
f

B
ro

m
le

y
b

y
B

o
w

A
m

ix
o
f

h
o

u
si

n
g

ty
p

e
s

a
n

d
te

n
u

re
s,

in
cl

u
d
in

g
a

su
b
st

a
n
ti
a
l

p
ro

vi
si

o
n

o
f

fa
m

ily
h

o
u

si
n

g
,

th
a
t

p
ro

fi
t

fr
o

m

cl
o

se
p
ro

xi
m

it
y

to
B

ro
m

le
y

b
y

B
o
w

st
a
ti
o

n
,

th
e

L
e

a

N
a

vi
g

a
ti
o
n

C
a

n
a
l
a

n
d

h
is

to
ri
c

T
h

re
e

M
ill

s
se

tt
in

g
;

A
n
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

ce
n
tr

e
,

a
n
c
h
o

re
d

b
y

a
s
u
p

e
rm

a
rk

e
t,

th
a
t

in
cl

u
d

e
s

n
e

w

sh
o
p

p
in

g
fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

a

p
ri

m
a

ry
sc

h
o

o
l,

a

h
e

a
lt
h

ca
re

fa
ci

lit
y

a
n

d
o

p
e

n
s
p
a

c
e
;

M
o
d

e
rn

a
n

d

fl
e
xi

b
le

in
d

u
st

ri
a
l
a

n
d

b
u

si
n

e
s
s

sp
a
c
e

th
a
t

b
e

n
e
fi
ts

fr
o

m

a
c
ce

s
s

to
th

e

st
ra

te
g
ic

ro
a
d

n
e
tw

o
rk

a
n

d

p
u

b
lic

tr
a

n
s
p
o

rt
;

N
e
w

p
e

d
e
st

ri
a

n
lin

k
s

a
n

d
p

u
b
lic

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

a
c
ce

s
si

b
ili

ty

e
n

h
a

n
ce

m
e

n
ts

th
a
t

im
p
ro

ve
in

te
g

ra
ti
o
n

w
it
h

s
u
rr

o
u

n
d
in

g

co
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s,
n
o

d
e

s

o
f

a
ct

iv
it
y

a
n
d

fu
tu

re

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n
t

si
te

s

A
c
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

im
p
ro

ve
m

e
n
ts

th
a
t

lin
k

e
xi

st
in

g

n
e
ig

h
b
o

u
ri
n

g

co
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
w

it
h

a
c
ce

s
s

to
n

e
w

h
o

m
e

s,
jo

b
s

a
n
d

co
m

m
u

n
it
y

fa
ci

lit
ie

s

a
n

d
th

e
a

m
e
n
it
ie

s

o
f

th
e

L
o
w

e
r

L
e
a

V
a
lle

y’
s

o
p

e
n

sp
a
c
e

s,
w

a
te

rw
a

ys

a
n

d
h

e
ri
ta

g
e

a
ss

e
ts

A
n

in
n
o

v
a
ti
ve

a
n

d

e
x
e

m
p
la

ry

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

to
u

rb
a

n

d
e

si
g

n
a

n
d

a
rc

h
it
e
ct

u
re

th
a
t

re
sp

o
n
d

s
to

th
e

a
re

a
’s

c
o
n

st
ra

in
ts

a
n

d
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s

a
n

d
c
re

a
te

s
a

p
la

ce
in

w
h
ic

h

p
e

o
p
le

w
a
n
t

to

liv
e
,

w
o

rk
a

n
d

vi
si

t

A
d
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

th
a
t

a
ch

ie
v
e
s

a

co
m

b
in

a
ti
o

n
o
f

su
st

a
in

a
b
le

la
n

d

u
s
e

c
h
a

n
g
e
,

d
e

si
g

n
e

xc
e
lle

n
c
e

a
n

d
c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l

vi
a

b
ili

ty

re
n
e

w
a

b
le

fo
rm

s
to

re
d
u

c
e

g
re

e
n

h
o
u

se

g
a

s
e

m
is

si
o
n

s

T
o

m
in

im
is

e
w

a
st

e

re
q
u
ir

in
g

d
is

p
o

sa
l

a
n

d
to

in
cr

e
a
s
e

re
cy

cl
in

g
a

n
d

re
co

v
e
ry

�
�

?
�

0
0

�
�

T
o

im
p
ro

v
e

w
a
te

r

q
u

a
lit

y
a

n
d

re
d

u
c
e

w
a
te

r
u

s
e

�
0

0
?

0
0

�
�

T
o

c
o

n
s
e

rv
e
,

e
n

h
a

n
ce

a
n

d
w

h
e

re

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

c
re

a
te

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y,

in
cl

u
d
in

g
s
p

e
ci

e
s,

h
a

b
it
a
ts

,
g

re
e

n

sp
a
c
e

s
a

n
d

�
�

�
?

�
�

�
�

Page 227



1
2
2
6
6
5
2

9
-0

0
1

D
ra

ft
S

A
4
5

B
ri

e
f

o
b

je
c

ti
v

e
s

S
A

o
b

je
c

ti
v

e
s

A
co

m
p

re
h

e
n

si
v
e

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n
t

th
a
t

m
a
k
e

s
e
ff

ic
ie

n
t

u
se

o
f

la
n

d
to

c
re

a
te

a
n

in
te

g
ra

te
d

m
ix

e
d

u
s
e
d

q
u

a
rt

e
r

o
f

B
ro

m
le

y
b

y
B

o
w

A
m

ix
o
f

h
o

u
si

n
g

ty
p

e
s

a
n

d
te

n
u

re
s,

in
cl

u
d
in

g
a

su
b
st

a
n
ti
a
l

p
ro

vi
si

o
n

o
f

fa
m

ily
h

o
u

si
n

g
,

th
a
t

p
ro

fi
t

fr
o

m

cl
o

se
p
ro

xi
m

it
y

to
B

ro
m

le
y

b
y

B
o
w

st
a
ti
o

n
,

th
e

L
e

a

N
a

vi
g

a
ti
o
n

C
a

n
a
l
a

n
d

h
is

to
ri
c

T
h

re
e

M
ill

s
se

tt
in

g
;

A
n
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

ce
n
tr

e
,

a
n
c
h
o

re
d

b
y

a
s
u
p

e
rm

a
rk

e
t,

th
a
t

in
cl

u
d

e
s

n
e

w

sh
o
p

p
in

g
fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

a

p
ri

m
a

ry
sc

h
o

o
l,

a

h
e

a
lt
h

ca
re

fa
ci

lit
y

a
n

d
o

p
e

n
s
p
a

c
e
;

M
o
d

e
rn

a
n

d

fl
e
xi

b
le

in
d

u
st

ri
a
l
a

n
d

b
u

si
n

e
s
s

sp
a
c
e

th
a
t

b
e

n
e
fi
ts

fr
o

m

a
c
ce

s
s

to
th

e

st
ra

te
g
ic

ro
a
d

n
e
tw

o
rk

a
n

d

p
u

b
lic

tr
a

n
s
p
o

rt
;

N
e
w

p
e

d
e
st

ri
a

n
lin

k
s

a
n

d
p

u
b
lic

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

a
c
ce

s
si

b
ili

ty

e
n

h
a

n
ce

m
e

n
ts

th
a
t

im
p
ro

ve
in

te
g

ra
ti
o
n

w
it
h

s
u
rr

o
u

n
d
in

g

co
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s,
n
o

d
e

s

o
f

a
ct

iv
it
y

a
n
d

fu
tu

re

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n
t

si
te

s

A
c
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

im
p
ro

ve
m

e
n
ts

th
a
t

lin
k

e
xi

st
in

g

n
e
ig

h
b
o

u
ri
n

g

co
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
w

it
h

a
c
ce

s
s

to
n

e
w

h
o

m
e

s,
jo

b
s

a
n
d

co
m

m
u

n
it
y

fa
ci

lit
ie

s

a
n

d
th

e
a

m
e
n
it
ie

s

o
f

th
e

L
o
w

e
r

L
e
a

V
a
lle

y’
s

o
p

e
n

sp
a
c
e

s,
w

a
te

rw
a

ys

a
n

d
h

e
ri
ta

g
e

a
ss

e
ts

A
n

in
n
o

v
a
ti
ve

a
n

d

e
x
e

m
p
la

ry

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

to
u

rb
a

n

d
e

si
g

n
a

n
d

a
rc

h
it
e
ct

u
re

th
a
t

re
sp

o
n
d

s
to

th
e

a
re

a
’s

c
o
n

st
ra

in
ts

a
n

d
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s

a
n

d
c
re

a
te

s
a

p
la

ce
in

w
h
ic

h

p
e

o
p
le

w
a
n
t

to

liv
e
,

w
o

rk
a

n
d

vi
si

t

A
d
e

v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

th
a
t

a
ch

ie
v
e
s

a

co
m

b
in

a
ti
o

n
o
f

su
st

a
in

a
b
le

la
n

d

u
s
e

c
h
a

n
g
e
,

d
e

si
g

n
e

xc
e
lle

n
c
e

a
n

d
c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l

vi
a

b
ili

ty

w
a
te

rc
o

u
rs

e
s

T
o

m
in

im
is

e
fl
o
o

d

ri
s
k

w
it
h
in

th
e

B
o

ro
u

g
h

a
n

d

e
ls

e
w

h
e

re
,

a
n

d

p
ro

m
o
te

th
e

u
se

o
f

su
st

a
in

a
b
le

u
rb

a
n

d
ra

in
a
g

e
s
y
st

e
m

s

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

T
o

e
n

su
re

th
a
t

th
e

p
la

n
d

o
e

s
n

o
t

n
e

g
a
ti
ve

ly
a
ff

e
ct

e
xi

st
in

g
re

si
d

e
n
ts

o
f

T
o
w

e
r

H
a

m
le

ts
,

a
n

d

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y

d
is

e
m

p
o
w

e
re

d

g
ro

u
p

s

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

Page 228



1
2
2
6
6
5
2

9
-0

0
1

D
ra

ft
S

A
4
6

� A
p
p
e
n

d
ix

C
T

h
e

S
A

fo
r

th
e

B
ro

m
le

y
b
y

B
o

w
L
a
n
d

U
se

a
n

d
D

e
si

g
n

B
ri
e
f

K
e

y
to

M
a

tr
ix

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l
fo

r
a

si
g

n
if
ic

a
n

t
p

o
si

ti
ve

e
ff

e
ct

+
+

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l
fo

r
a

m
in

o
r

p
o

si
ti
ve

e
ff

e
ct

+
P

o
te

n
ti
a

l
fo

r
a

m
in

o
r

n
e

g
a

ti
ve

e
ff

e
ct

-
P

o
te

n
ti
a

l
fo

r
si

g
n

if
ic

a
n

t
n

e
g

a
ti
ve

e
ff

e
ct

--
N

o
si

g
n

ifi
ca

n
t

e
ff

e
ct

o
r

n
o

re
la

ti
o

n
sh

ip
N

o
re

la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip

U
n

ce
rt

a
in

ty
–

o
u

tc
o

m
e

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t
o

n
w

h
a

t
is

d
o

n
e

,
h

o
w

a
n

d

w
h

e
re

?
�

S
A

O
b

je
c

ti
v

e
S

u
m

m
a

ry
o

f
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
a

n
d

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s

1
.

T
o

im
p

ro
ve

h
e

a
lt
h

,
p

ro
m

o
te

h
e

a
lt
h

y
lif

e
st

yl
e

s
a

n
d

re
d

u
ce

h
e

a
lt
h

in
e

q
u

a
lit

ie
s

+
+

P
e

rm
a
n
e

n
t/

L
o

ca
ls

ig
n

ifi
ca

n
ce

T
h

e
p

ro
vi

si
o

n
o

f
o

p
e

n
s
p

a
ce

,
im

p
ro

ve
d

p
e

d
e

st
ri

a
n

a
n

d
cy

cl
in

g
lin

ks
a

n
d

a
n

im
p

ro
ve

d
p

u
b

lic
re

a
lm

sh
o

u
ld

a
ls

o
h

e
lp

e
n

co
u

ra
g

e
h

e
a

lt
h

ie
r

lif
e

st
yl

e
s.

A
d

e
ta

il
e

d
b

re
a

k
d

o
w

n
o

f
th

e
ty

p
e

s
o

f
o

p
e

n
s

p
a

c
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

o
n

s
it

e
s

h
o

u
ld

b
e

p
ro

v
id

e
d

to
e

n
su

re
th

a
t

a
ll

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
a

re
p

ro
vi

d
e

d
if
,

a
s

a
n

ti
ci

p
a

te
d

,
th

e
a

re
a

is
d

e
ve

lo
p

e
d

in
a

p
h

a
se

d
m

a
n

n
e

r.

C
la

ri
fy

a
n

y
is

s
u

e
s

a
s

s
o

c
ia

te
d

w
it

h
p

ro
x

im
it

y
to

th
e

B
ro

m
le

y
b

y
B

o
w

G
a

s
W

o
rk

s

Page 229



1
2
2
6
6
5
2

9
-0

0
1

D
ra

ft
S

A
4
7

S
A

O
b

je
c

ti
v

e
S

u
m

m
a

ry
o

f
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
a

n
d

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s

a
n

d
th

e
a

n
ti

c
ip

a
te

d
ti

m
in

g
fo

r
th

is
to

c
o

n
v

e
rt

to
o

p
e

n
s

p
a

c
e

a
s

su
g

g
e

st
e

d
in

S
e

ct
io

n
1

.2
o

f
th

e
B

ri
e

f.

2
.

T
o

p
ro

vi
d

e
a

ll
re

si
d

e
n

ts
w

it
h

th
e

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y

to
liv

e
in

q
u

a
lit

y
h

o
m

e
s,

in
cl

u
d

in
g

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
h

o
m

e
s

+
+

P
e

rm
a
n
e

n
t/

L
o

ca
ls

ig
n

ifi
ca

n
ce

T
h

e
B

ri
e

f
in

cl
u

d
e

s
p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
fo

r
a

si
g

n
if
ic

a
n

t
n

u
m

b
e

r
o

f
d

w
e

lli
n

g
s.

A
si

g
n

ifi
ca

n
t

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
o

f
w

h
ic

h
w

ill
b

e
a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

h
o

m
e

s
a

n
d

w
ill

b
e

p
ro

vi
d

e
d

o
n

a
si

te
b

y
si

te
b

a
si

s.
It

w
ill

b
e

im
p

o
rt

a
n

t
to

e
n

su
re

th
a

t
th

e
a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

h
o

u
si

n
g

is
p

ro
vi

d
e

d
th

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t
th

e
d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t

–
so

a
s

to
e

n
co

u
ra

g
e

so
ci

a
li

n
cl

u
si

o
n

.
T

h
e

B
ri

e
f

c
o

u
ld

s
p

e
c
if

y
th

e
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t

fo
r

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
h

o
u

s
in

g
to

b
e

d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
a

c
ro

s
s

th
e

s
it

e
a

n
d

w
it

h
in

m
ix

e
d

te
n

u
re

b
u

il
d

in
g

s
.

3
.

T
o

p
ro

vi
d

e
so

ci
a

l
a

n
d

co
m

m
u

n
it
y

fa
ci

lit
ie

s
a

n
d

o
p

e
n

sp
a

ce
s

to
m

e
e

t
th

e
n

e
e

d
s

o
f

B
o

ro
u

g
h

re
si

d
e

n
ts

+
+

P
e

rm
a
n
e

n
t/

L
o

ca
ls

ig
n

ifi
ca

n
ce

T
h

is
is

a
n

o
u

tw
a

rd
fa

ci
n

g
sc

h
e

m
e

,i
.e

.
th

e
fa

ci
lit

ie
s

th
a

t
w

ill
b

e
p

ro
vi

d
e

d
a

re
in

te
n

d
e

d
to

h
e

lp
m

e
e

t
th

e
n

e
e

d
s

o
f

it
s

re
si

d
e

n
ts

a
n

d
th

o
se

in
th

e
w

id
e

r
a

re
a

.
T

h
e

B
ri

e
f

in
cl

u
d

e
s

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

fo
r

cr
e

a
tio

n
o

f
a

n
e

w
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

C
e

n
tr

e
th

a
t

w
ill

se
rv

e
th

e
d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t

a
n

d
th

e
w

id
e

r
a

re
a

.
It

a
ls

o
in

cl
u

d
e

s
p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
fo

r
n

e
w

o
p

e
n

sp
a

ce
a

n
d

a
p

ri
m

a
ry

sc
h

o
o

l.
T

h
e

B
ri

e
f

a
ls

o
lin

ks
to

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

fo
r

th
e

cr
e

a
ti
o

n
o

f
th

e
L

e
a

R
iv

e
r

P
a

rk
.

4
.

T
o

cr
e

a
te

su
st

a
in

a
b

le
co

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
th

ro
u

g
h

th
e

re
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

n
d

e
ff

ic
ie

n
t

u
se

o
f

la
n

d
a

n
d

b
u

ild
in

g
s

w
it
h

lin
ks

to
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
in

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re

+
+

P
e

rm
a
n
e

n
t/

L
o

ca
ls

ig
n

ifi
ca

n
ce

T
h

e
B

ri
e

f
se

e
ks

to
cr

e
a

te
a

g
e

n
u

in
e

ly
m

ix
e

d
u

s
e

sc
h

e
m

e
th

a
t

se
e

ks
to

o
p

ti
m

is
e

th
e

e
ff

ic
ie

n
t

u
se

o
f

la
n

d
,

ta
ki

n
g

a
cc

o
u

n
t

o
f

e
xi

st
in

g
fe

a
tu

re
s.

T
h

e
B

ri
e

f
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

s
n

e
ce

ss
a

ry
in

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
,

in
cl

u
d

in
g

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

fo
r

im
p

ro
ve

d
co

n
n

e
ct

io
n

s
in

to
a

n
d

fr
o

m
th

e
si

te
fo

r
p

u
b

lic
tr

a
n

sp
o

rt
a

n
d

p
e

d
e

st
ri

a
n

s.
T

h
e

se
lin

ks
sh

o
u

ld
a

ls
o

h
e

lp
im

p
ro

ve
a

cc
e

s
si

b
ili

ty
to

a
n

d
fr

o
m

a
d

jo
in

in
g

a
re

a
s

th
a

t
a

re
a

ls
o

a
ff

e
ct

e
d

b
y

se
ve

ra
n

ce
is

su
e

s
a

ss
o

ci
a

te
d

w
it
h

th
e

A
1

2
.

T
h

e
B

ri
e

f
co

u
ld

b
e

cl
e

a
re

r
in

te
rm

s
o

f
th

e
p

h
a

si
n

g
o

f
su

ch
in

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

ts
a

n
d

h
o

w
th

e
y

w
ill

b
e

fu
n

d
e

d
.

T
h

e
B

ri
e

f
c

o
u

ld
s

p
e
c

if
y

th
e

n
e

e
d

fo
r

th
e

s
c

h
o

o
l

to
b

e
a

d
u

a
l

–
u

s
e

fa
c
il

it
y

,
i.

e
.

a
v

a
il

a
b

le
fo

r
a

c
ti

v
it

ie
s

in
th

e
e
v

e
n

in
g

a
n

d
w

e
e

k
e

n
d

s
(f

u
rt

h
e
r

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
,

tr
a

in
in

g
e
tc

.)
fo

r
th

e
lo

c
a
l

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

.

Page 230



1
2
2
6
6
5
2

9
-0

0
1

D
ra

ft
S

A
4
8

S
A

O
b

je
c

ti
v

e
S

u
m

m
a

ry
o

f
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
a

n
d

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s

5
.

T
o

p
ro

m
o

te
g

o
o

d
q

u
a

lit
y

in
u

rb
a

n
d

e
si

g
n

,
a

n
d

th
e

co
n

se
rv

a
tio

n
a

n
d

a
p

p
re

ci
a

ti
o

n
o

f
th

e
h

is
to

ri
c

e
n

vi
ro

n
m

e
n

t

+
+

P
e

rm
a
n
e

n
t/

L
o

ca
ls

ig
n

ifi
ca

n
ce

T
h

e
B

ri
e

f
ce

rt
a

in
ly

se
e

k
s

to
p

ro
m

o
te

g
o

o
d

q
u

a
lit

y
u

rb
a

n
d

e
si

g
n

.
It

p
ro

vi
d

e
s

g
u

id
a

n
ce

o
n

th
e

m
ix

a
n

d
fo

rm
o

f
d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t

a
cr

o
ss

th
e

si
te

.
It

re
sp

e
ct

s
th

e
h

is
to

ri
ca

l
co

n
te

xt
o

f
th

e
si

te
.

C
o

n
s

id
e
ra

ti
o

n
c

o
u

ld
b

e
g

iv
e

n
to

th
e

d
e
s

ir
a

b
il

it
y

o
f

p
ro

v
id

in
g

e
n

h
a

n
c

e
d

v
is

it
o

r
fa

c
il

it
ie

s
a
s

s
o

c
ia

te
d

w
it

h
th

e
L

e
a

R
iv

e
r

P
a
rk

a
n

d
th

e
T

h
re

e
M

il
ls

a
re

a
.

6
.

T
o

cr
e

a
te

sa
fe

a
n

d
se

cu
re

e
n

vi
ro

n
m

e
n

ts
a

n
d

re
d

u
ce

cr
im

e

+
P

e
rm

a
n
e

n
t/

L
o

ca
l

si
g

n
ifi

ca
n

ce

Im
p

ro
ve

d
p

e
d

e
st

ri
a

n
a

n
d

cy
cl

in
g

fa
ci

lit
ie

s
to

cr
o

ss
th

e
A

1
2

w
ill

h
e

lp
im

p
ro

ve
sa

fe
ty

.
T

h
e

p
ro

vi
si

o
n

o
f

a
m

ix
e

d
u

se
sc

h
e

m
e

w
ill

a
ls

o
co

n
tr

ib
u

te
to

th
is

o
b

je
ct

iv
e

b
y

e
n

co
u

ra
g

in
g

a
ct

iv
it
y

a
cr

o
ss

th
e

d
a

y.
T

h
e

p
ro

p
o

se
d

m
ix

o
f

u
se

s
a

n
d

re
vi

se
d

st
re

e
t

la
yo

u
t

w
ill

a
ls

o
h

e
lp

e
n

co
u

ra
g

e
n

a
tu

ra
l
su

rv
e

ill
a

n
ce

o
f

a
re

a
s.

T
h

e
p

u
b

lic
o

p
e

n
sp

a
ce

s
a

re
a

ls
o

w
e

ll
in

te
g

ra
te

d
in

to
th

e
d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t,

e
n

co
u

ra
g

in
g

n
a

tu
ra

l
su

rv
e

ill
a

n
ce

o
f

th
e

se
.

T
h

e
p

ro
vi

si
o

n
o

f
u

n
d

e
rg

ro
u

n
d

p
a

rk
in

g
co

u
ld

a
ls

o
d

e
te

r
ca

r
th

e
ft

b
y

re
st

ri
ct

in
g

th
e

n
u

m
b

e
r

o
f

a
cc

e
ss

p
o

in
ts

in
to

ca
r

p
a

rk
in

g
a

re
a

s.
It

w
ill

b
e

im
p

o
rt

a
n

t
fo

r
d

e
ck

a
cc

e
ss

h
o

u
si

n
g

to
h

a
ve

co
n

tr
o

lle
d

a
cc

e
s
s

a
t

g
ro

u
n

d
-l

e
ve

l
b

u
t

th
a

t
is

a
d

e
ta

ile
d

d
e

si
g

n
m

a
tt

e
r

th
a

t
n

e
e

d
n

o
t

b
e

re
fl
e

ct
e

d
in

th
e

B
ri

e
f.

R
e

q
u

ir
e

d
e

v
e
lo

p
e
rs

to
d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
o

f
th

is
is

s
u

e
in

s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

m
a

te
ri

a
l

s
u

b
m

it
te

d
w

it
h

th
e

p
la

n
n

in
g

a
p

p
li

c
a

ti
o

n
.

A
re

th
e
re

a
n

y
is

s
u

e
s

in
re

la
ti

o
n

to
w

a
te

r
a

n
d

s
a

fe
ty

a
s

s
o

c
ia

te
d

w
it

h
in

tr
o

d
u

c
in

g
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a
l

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

n
e

x
t

to
th

e
R

iv
e
r

th
a
t

th
e

B
ri

e
f

s
h

o
u

ld
c

o
n

s
id

e
r?

7
.

T
o

g
iv

e
a

ll
re

si
d

e
n

ts
th

e
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y

o
f

a
n

o
cc

u
p

a
ti
o

n
p

ro
vi

d
in

g
se

lf
-w

o
rt

h
a

n
d

a
g

o
o

d
liv

e
lih

o
o

d
,

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y

in
d

e
p

ri
ve

d
a

re
a

s

+
/?

P
e

rm
a
n
e

n
t/

L
o

ca
l

si
g

n
ifi

ca
n

ce

T
h

e
B

ri
e

f
in

cl
u

d
e

s
p

ro
vi

si
o

n
fo

r
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t
u

se
s

a
s

p
a

rt
o

f
th

e
m

ix
o

f
u

se
s.

T
h

e
p

ro
vi

si
o

n
is

b
a

se
d

o
n

th
e

p
ri

n
ci

p
le

o
f

th
e

re
b

e
in

g
n

o
n

e
t

lo
ss

o
f

in
d

u
st

ri
a

l
ca

p
a

ci
ty

(a
s

re
q

u
ir

e
d

b
y

th
e

L
L

V
O

A
P

F
).

In
d

u
st

ri
a

l
ca

p
a

ci
ty

is
d

e
fi
n

e
d

a
s

th
e

o
ve

ra
ll

sp
a

ce
co

m
p

ri
si

n
g

in
te

rn
a

lf
lo

o
r

a
re

a
s

a
n

d
a

ll
fu

n
ct

io
n

a
l
e

xt
e

rn
a

l
a

re
a

s.
T

h
e

e
xi

st
in

g
in

d
u

st
ri

a
l
ca

p
a

ci
ty

o
f

th
e

si
te

is
e

st
im

a
te

d
a

t
2

2
,5

0
0

m
2

b
y

th
e

B
ri

e
f.

T
h

e
sc

a
le

o
f

th
is

p
ro

vi
si

o
n

is
p

a
rt

ly
a

tt
ri

b
u

ta
b

le
to

la
rg

e
a

m
o

u
n

ts
o

f
o

p
e

n
st

o
ra

g
e

in
th

e
a

re
a

.

T
h

e
cu

rr
e

n
t

a
m

o
u

n
t

o
f

e
m

p
lo

ym
e

n
t

(i
n

te
rm

s
o

f
a

ct
u

a
l
jo

b
s)

is
n

o
t

kn
o

w
n

a
n

d
it

w
ill

b
e

im
p

o
rt

a
n

t
to

e
n

su
re

th
a

t
p

e
o

p
le

w
h

o
cu

rr
e

n
tl
y

w
o

rk
in

th
e

a
re

a
h

a
ve

a
ch

a
n

ce
to

o
b

ta
in

n
e

w
jo

b
s

w
h

e
re

th
e

re
e

xi
st

in
g

e
m

p
lo

ye
r

is
d

is
p

la
ce

d
.

It
w

ill
a

ls
o

b
e

im
p

o
rt

a
n

t
th

a
t

p
e

o
p

le
liv

in
g

in
th

e
su

rr
o

u
n

d
in

g
a

re
a

a
n

d
th

e
n

e
w

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t
a

ls
o

h
a

ve
a

Page 231



1
2
2
6
6
5
2

9
-0

0
1

D
ra

ft
S

A
4
9

S
A

O
b

je
c

ti
v

e
S

u
m

m
a

ry
o

f
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
a

n
d

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s

ch
a

n
ce

to
w

o
rk

lo
ca

lly
.

C
o

n
s

id
e
ra

ti
o

n
s

h
o

u
ld

b
e

g
iv

e
n

to
th

e
p

ro
v
is

io
n

o
f

s
ta

rt
e
r

a
n

d
s
m

a
ll

u
n

it
s

a
n

d
s

h
a
re

d
fa

c
il
it

ie
s

.

8
.

T
o

re
d

u
ce

p
o

ve
rt

y,
fa

ci
lit

a
te

e
co

n
o

m
ic

g
ro

w
th

,
a

n
d

e
n

su
re

e
q

u
a

lit
y

o
f

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y

fo
r

a
ll

re
si

d
e

n
ts

+
/?

P
e

rm
a
n
e

n
t/

L
o

ca
l

si
g

n
ifi

ca
n

ce

S
e

e
co

m
m

e
n

ts
a

b
o

ve
in

re
la

ti
o

n
to

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
to

e
n

su
re

th
a

t
lo

ca
l
p

e
o

p
le

b
e

n
e

fit
fr

o
m

fu
tu

re
e

m
p

lo
ym

e
n

t
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s.
H

e
a

lt
h

,
e

d
u

ca
ti
o

n
,

a
n

d
re

ta
il

fa
c
ili

ti
e

s
w

ill
p

ro
vi

d
e

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s.
T

h
e

B
ri

e
f

co
n

si
d

e
rs

th
e

ro
le

o
f

e
m

p
lo

ym
e

n
t

a
ss

o
ci

a
te

d
w

it
h

in
d

u
st

ry
o

n
si

te
.

It
id

e
n

tif
ie

s
a

re
a

s
fo

r
la

rg
e

r
sc

a
le

in
d

u
st

ri
a

l
a

ct
iv

it
y

a
lo

n
g

w
it
h

cr
e

a
ti
ve

in
d

u
st

ri
e

s
(r

e
fl
e

ct
in

g
th

e
cl

u
st

e
r

o
f

a
ct

iv
it
y

a
t

T
h

re
e

M
ill

s
S

tu
d

io
s

a
n

d
S

u
g

a
rh

o
u

se
L

a
n

e
.

T
h

e
B

ri
e

f
c

o
u

ld
a
ls

o
h

ig
h

li
g

h
t

th
e

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
fo

r
s

ta
rt

e
r

u
n

it
s

w
it

h
s

h
a
re

d
fa

c
il

it
ie

s
.

9
.

T
o

re
d

u
ce

th
e

n
e

e
d

to
tr

a
ve

l,
re

d
u

ce
p

ri
va

te
ve

h
ic

u
la

r
tr

a
n

sp
o

rt
a

n
d

e
n

co
u

ra
g

e
th

e
u

se
o

f
p

u
b

lic
tr

a
n

sp
o

rt
,

cy
cl

in
g

a
n

d
w

a
lk

in
g

+
+

P
e

rm
a
n
e

n
t/

L
o

ca
l

si
g

n
ifi

ca
n

ce

T
h

e
si

te
is

in
a

su
st

a
in

a
b

le
lo

ca
tio

n
,

w
it
h

g
o

o
d

a
cc

e
s
s

to
th

e
u

n
d

e
rg

ro
u

n
d

st
a

ti
o

n
a

n
d

th
e

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
fo

r
a

d
e

d
ic

a
te

d
b

u
s

se
rv

ic
e

.
Im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

ts
to

cr
o

ss
in

g
fa

ci
lit

ie
s

fo
r

th
e

A
1

2
w

ill
a

ls
o

h
e

lp
e

n
co

u
ra

g
e

w
a

lk
in

g
a

n
d

cy
cl

in
g

.

1
0

.
T

o
im

p
ro

ve
a

ir
q

u
a

lit
y

-
T

e
m

p
o

ra
ry

+
P

e
rm

a
n

e
n

t/
L
o

ca
l

si
g

n
ifi

ca
n

ce

T
ra

ff
ic

a
n

d
m

a
ch

in
e

ry
a

ss
o

ci
a

te
d

w
it
h

th
e

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
p

h
a

se
a

re
lik

e
ly

to
h

a
ve

a
te

m
p

o
ra

ry
n

e
g

a
ti
ve

e
ff

e
ct

o
n

a
ir

q
u

a
lit

y.
T

h
e

b
ri

e
f

c
o

u
ld

re
fe

re
n

c
e

th
e

M
a

y
o

r
a

n
d

L
o

n
d

o
n

C
o

u
n

c
il

’s
“
L

o
n

d
o

n
B

e
s

t
P

ra
c

ti
c

e
G

u
id

e
”

o
n

th
e

c
o

n
tr

o
l

o
f

d
u

s
t

a
n

d
e

m
is

s
io

n
s

d
u

ri
n

g
d

e
m

o
li

ti
o

n
a

n
d

c
o

n
s

tr
u

c
ti

o
n

a
lo

n
g

w
it

h
th

e
M

a
y
o

r’
s

o
th

e
r

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
re

la
ti

n
g

to
s

u
s

ta
in

a
b

le
d

e
s
ig

n
a

n
d

c
o

n
s

tr
u

c
ti

o
n

.

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

is
a

m
a

jo
r

co
n

tr
ib

u
to

r
to

p
o

o
r

a
ir

q
u

a
lit

y.
T

h
e

B
ri

e
f

se
e

ks
to

re
la

te
fu

tu
re

ca
r

p
a

rk
in

g
p

ro
vi

si
o

n
to

th
e

a
va

ila
b

ili
ty

o
f

p
u

b
lic

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

a
n

d
a

ls
o

p
ro

vi
d

e
a

n
e

w
p

u
b

lic
tr

a
n

sp
o

rt
ro

u
te

th
ro

u
g

h
th

e
si

te
.

T
h

e
B

ri
e

f
a

ls
o

in
cl

u
d

e
s

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

fo
r

im
p

ro
ve

d
p

e
d

e
st

ri
a

n
a

n
d

cy
cl

e
lin

ks
.

T
h

e
se

m
e

a
su

re
s

sh
o

u
ld

h
e

lp
re

d
u

ce
tr

a
ff

ic
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

ss
o

ci
a

te
d

w
it
h

th
e

si
te

.
T

h
ro

u
g

h
tr

a
ff

ic
o

n
th

e
A

1
2

/A
1

1
is

th
e

m
a

in
so

u
rc

e
o

f
e

m
is

si
o

n
s

a
n

d
th

e
re

is
lit

tl
e

th
a

t
th

is
sc

h
e

m
e

ca
n

d
o

to
a

d
d

re
ss

th
a

t.
A

Page 232



1
2
2
6
6
5
2

9
-0

0
1

D
ra

ft
S

A
5
0

S
A

O
b

je
c

ti
v

e
S

u
m

m
a

ry
o

f
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
a

n
d

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s

d
e

ta
ile

d
a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t
o

f
a

ir
q

u
a

lit
y

is
su

e
s

o
n

si
te

a
n

d
a

n
y

fu
rt

h
e

r
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

iti
e

s
fo

r
m

it
ig

a
tio

n
w

ill
b

e
re

q
u

ir
e

d
a

s
p

a
rt

o
f

a
ll

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

e
n

ta
l
S

ta
te

m
e

n
ts

th
a

t
w

ill
b

e
su

b
m

it
te

d
w

it
h

fu
tu

re
p

la
n

n
in

g
a

p
p

lic
a

tio
n

s.
T

h
e

B
ri

e
f

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

s
th

e
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y

fo
r

d
e

ck
e

d
a

cc
e

s
s

h
o

u
si

n
g

to
h

a
ve

g
la

ze
d

d
e

ck
s.

-
/?

T
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
1

1
.

T
o

re
d

u
ce

th
e

im
p

a
ct

o
f

n
o

is
e

+
P

e
rm

a
n

e
n

t/
L
o

ca
l

si
g

n
ifi

ca
n

ce

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

a
ct

iv
it
y

w
ill

g
iv

e
ri

se
to

n
o

is
e

.
T

h
e

B
ri

e
f

c
o

u
ld

re
fe

re
n

c
e

th
e

M
a

y
o

r’
s

C
o

n
s

id
e

ra
te

C
o

n
s

tr
u

c
to

rs
s

c
h

e
m

e
.

S
e

ct
io

n
3

.3
o

f
th

e
B

ri
e

f
st

a
te

s
th

a
t

n
e

w
h

o
u

si
n

g
w

ill
b

e
e

xp
e

ct
e

d
to

a
ch

ie
ve

d
e

si
g

n
st

a
n

d
a

rd
s

th
a

t
co

n
fo

rm
to

th
e

B
ri

ti
sh

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

B
S

8
2

3
3

:1
9

9
9

‘S
o

u
n

d
in

s
u

la
ti
o

n
a

n
d

n
o

is
e

re
d

u
ct

io
n

fo
r

b
u

ild
in

g
s

–
C

o
d

e
o

f
P

ra
ct

ic
e

’
a

n
d

th
e

W
o

rl
d

H
e

a
lt
h

O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
‘G

u
id

e
lin

e
s

fo
r

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

N
o

is
e

’
(2

0
0

0
).

T
h

e
B

ri
e

f
a

ls
o

id
e

n
tif

ie
s

th
e

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y

to
lo

ca
te

co
m

m
e

rc
ia

l
a

n
d

e
m

p
lo

ym
e

n
t

re
la

te
d

a
ct

iv
iti

e
s

to
a

ct
a

s
a

b
u

ff
e

r
to

th
e

A
1

2
.

T
h

e
n

e
e

d
fo

r
n

e
w

h
o

u
si

n
g

to
b

e
p

ro
te

ct
e

d
a

g
a

in
st

n
o

is
e

fr
o

m
th

e
ra

ilw
a

y
lin

e
is

a
ls

o
id

e
n

tif
ie

d
.

1
2

.
T

o
co

m
b

a
t

fu
e

l
p

o
ve

rt
y,

re
d

u
ce

e
n

e
rg

y
co

n
su

m
p

tio
n

,
a

n
d

p
ro

m
o

te
re

n
e

w
a

b
le

fo
rm

s
to

re
d

u
ce

g
re

e
n

h
o

u
se

g
a

s
e

m
is

si
o

n
s

+
P

e
rm

a
n
e

n
t/

L
o

ca
l

si
g

n
ifi

ca
n

ce

T
h

e
B

ri
e

f
p

ro
m

o
te

s
e

n
e

rg
y

e
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

a
n

d
re

n
e

w
a

b
le

fo
rm

s
o

f
e

n
e

rg
y.

T
h

e
B

ri
e

f
se

e
ks

to
a

ch
ie

ve
a

2
0

%
re

d
u

ct
io

n
in

ca
rb

o
n

e
m

is
si

o
n

s
th

o
u

g
h

th
e

u
se

o
f

o
n

-s
it
e

re
n

e
w

a
b

le
e

n
e

rg
y

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
.

T
h

e
B

ri
e

f
s

h
o

u
ld

re
q

u
ir

e
a

p
p

li
c

a
ti

o
n

s
to

b
e

a
c

c
o

m
p

a
n

ie
d

b
y

a
n

E
n

e
rg

y
C

o
n

c
e

p
t

S
tr

a
te

g
y

fo
r

th
e

s
it

e
a

s
w

h
o

le
.

T
h

is
sh

o
u

ld
co

n
si

d
e

r
th

e
p

o
te

n
ti
a

l
fo

r
e

n
e

rg
y

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
o

n
si

te
a

n
d

th
e

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y

to
se

rv
e

th
e

w
id

e
r

a
re

a
a

n
d

e
xp

o
rt

e
xc

e
ss

e
n

e
rg

y
to

th
e

g
ri

d
.

A
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s

co
u

ld
b

e
a

cc
o

m
p

a
n

ie
d

b
y

a
n

E
n

e
rg

y
a

n
d

R
e

n
e

w
a

b
le

s
A

s
s

e
s

s
m

e
n

t
a

n
d

th
e

B
ri

e
f

co
u

ld
h

ig
h

lig
h

t
th

e
n

e
e

d
fo

r
th

e
se

.

D
e

ve
lo

p
e

rs
co

u
ld

b
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

to
in

cl
u

d
e

a
st

a
te

m
e

n
t

o
n

‘c
li

m
a
te

c
h

a
n

g
e

p
ro

o
fi

n
g

’
in

su
p

p
o

rt
in

g
m

a
te

ri
a

l
su

b
m

itt
e

d
w

it
h

p
la

n
n

in
g

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s.

Page 233



1
2
2
6
6
5
2

9
-0

0
1

D
ra

ft
S

A
5
1

S
A

O
b

je
c

ti
v

e
S

u
m

m
a

ry
o

f
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
a

n
d

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s

-T
e
m

p
o

ra
ry

1
3

.
T

o
m

in
im

is
e

w
a

st
e

re
q

u
ir

in
g

d
is

p
o

sa
l
a

n
d

to
in

cr
e

a
se

re
cy

cl
in

g
a

n
d

re
co

ve
ry

+
P

e
rm

a
n
e

n
t/

L
o

ca
l

si
g

n
ifi

ca
n

ce

T
h

e
co

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

p
h

a
se

w
ill

g
e

n
e

ra
te

w
a

st
e

a
ss

o
ci

a
te

d
w

it
h

d
e

m
o

lit
io

n
o

f
e

xi
st

in
g

b
u

ild
in

g
s.

T
h

e
B

ri
e

f
c

o
u

ld
s

p
e
c

if
y

th
e

n
e

e
d

fo
r

m
a
te

ri
a

ls
to

b
e

re
c

y
c
le

d
a

n
d

u
s

e
d

o
n

s
it

e
w

h
e
re

p
o

s
s
ib

le
.

In
th

e
cu

rr
e

n
t

U
K

m
o

d
e

l
fr

a
m

e
w

o
rk

fo
r

th
e

a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t

a
n

d
re

m
e

d
ia

ti
o

n
o

f
co

n
ta

m
in

a
te

d
la

n
d

it
is

b
e

st
p

ra
ct

ic
e

to
u

n
d

e
rg

o
a

n
o

p
ti
o

n
s

a
p

p
ra

is
a

l,
w

h
ic

h
co

m
p

a
re

s
th

e
a

va
ila

b
le

re
m

e
d

ia
ti
o

n
te

ch
n

o
lo

g
ie

s
a

g
a

in
st

a
se

t
o

f
cr

it
e

ri
a

su
ch

a
s

co
st

,
d

u
ra

ti
o

n
,

e
ff

ic
a

cy
a

n
d

te
ch

n
ic

a
l
fe

a
si

b
ili

ty
.

T
h

e
ca

rb
o

n
fo

o
tp

ri
n

t
a

ss
o

ci
a

te
d

w
it
h

si
te

-s
p

e
ci

fi
c

re
m

e
d

ia
ti
o

n
o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

co
u

ld
a

ls
o

b
e

co
n

si
d

e
re

d
a

s
p

a
rt

o
f

th
e

o
p

ti
o

n
s

a
p

p
ra

is
a

l.
A

re
a

so
n

e
d

co
m

p
a

ri
so

n
o

f
th

e
ca

rb
o

n
im

p
a

ct
o

f
va

ri
o

u
s

a
va

ila
b

le
re

m
e

d
ia

ti
o

n
te

ch
n

o
lo

g
ie

s
ca

n
b

e
m

a
d

e
,

w
h

ic
h

ca
n

th
e

n
b

e
u

se
d

in
su

p
p

o
rt

o
f

o
th

e
r

co
n

si
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
s

su
ch

a
s

ti
m

e
a

n
d

b
u

d
g

e
t.

P
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

fo
r

re
m

e
d

ia
ti

o
n

c
o

u
ld

b
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

to
ta

k
e

a
c

c
o

u
n

t
o

f
th

e
ir

c
a
rb

o
n

fo
o

tp
ri

n
t.

T
h

e
B

ri
e

f
c

o
u

ld
a
ls

o
re

q
u

ir
e

th
e

p
ro

d
u

c
ti

o
n

o
f

a
C

o
n

s
tr

u
c

ti
o

n
a

n
d

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
P

la
n

,
in

c
o

rp
o

ra
ti

n
g

a
S

o
il

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

P
la

n
w

it
h

th
e

a
im

o
f

u
s
in

g
m

a
te

ri
a

l
o

n
-s

it
e

.

T
h

e
B

ri
e

f
c

o
u

ld
e

n
c

o
u

ra
g

e
th

e
u

s
e

o
f

p
re

fa
b

ri
c

a
te

d
a

n
d

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

is
e

d
m

o
d

u
la

ti
o

n
c

o
m

p
o

n
e

n
ts

to
m

in
im

is
e

w
a

s
te

.

S
e

ct
io

n
6

id
e

n
tif

ie
s

th
e

n
e

e
d

to
p

ro
vi

d
e

fa
ci

lit
ie

s
fo

r
re

cy
cl

in
g

w
it
h

in
a

ll
h

o
u

si
n

g
,

in
d

u
st

ri
a

l,
co

m
m

e
rc

ia
l
a

n
d

re
ta

il
d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

T
h

e
M

a
y

o
r

h
a

s
id

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

s
p

e
c
if

ic
ta

rg
e

ts
fo

r
re

c
y

c
li

n
g

a
n

d
th

e
B

ri
e

f
c

o
u

ld
re

fe
re

n
c
e

th
e

s
e

in
S

e
c

ti
o

n
6

.

1
4

.
T

o
im

p
ro

ve
w

a
te

r
q

u
a

lit
y

a
n

d
re

d
u

ce
w

a
te

r
u

se
+

P
e

rm
a
n
e

n
t/

L
o

ca
l

si
g

n
ifi

ca
n

ce

S
e

ct
io

n
6

o
f

th
e

B
ri

e
f

id
e

n
tif

ie
s

th
e

n
e

e
d

fo
r

m
e

a
su

re
s

to
re

d
u

ce
th

e
u

s
e

o
f

w
a

te
r

a
n

d
m

e
a

su
re

s
to

re
cy

cl
e

it.
T

h
e

M
a

y
o

r
h

a
s

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
s

p
e

c
if

ic
ta

rg
e
ts

in
re

la
ti

o
n

to
w

a
te

r
c

o
n

s
u

m
p

ti
o

n
a

n
d

th
e

s
e

c
o

u
ld

a
ls

o
b

e
re

fe
rr

e
d

to
.

Page 234



1
2
2
6
6
5
2

9
-0

0
1

D
ra

ft
S

A
5
2

S
A

O
b

je
c

ti
v

e
S

u
m

m
a

ry
o

f
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
a

n
d

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s

1
5

.
T

o
co

n
se

rv
e

,
e

n
h

a
n

ce
a

n
d

w
h

e
re

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

cr
e

a
te

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y,

in
cl

u
d

in
g

sp
e

ci
e

s,
h

a
b

it
a

ts
,

g
re

e
n

sp
a

ce
s

a
n

d
w

a
te

rc
o

u
rs

e
s

+
P

e
rm

a
n
e

n
t/

L
o

ca
l

si
g

n
ifi

ca
n

ce

T
h

e
B

ri
e

f
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

s
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
to

cr
e

a
te

n
e

w
h

a
b

it
a

ts
th

e
cr

e
a

ti
o

n
o

f
n

e
w

o
p

e
n

sp
a

ce
,

th
e

e
n

h
a

n
ce

m
e

n
t

o
f

e
xi

st
in

g
w

a
te

rw
a

ys
a

n
d

th
e

u
se

o
f

ro
o

f
to

p
g

a
rd

e
n

s,
g

re
e

n
ro

o
fs

a
n

d
w

a
lls

.
T

h
e

M
a

y
o

r
h

a
s

s
e

t
ta

rg
e
ts

fo
r

th
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

g
re

e
n

ro
o

fs
a

n
d

th
e
s

e
s

h
o

u
ld

b
e

re
fe

rr
e

d
to

in
th

e
B

ri
e
f.

T
h

e
te

rm
‘b

ro
w

n
ro

o
f’

is
a
ls

o
u

s
e

d
to

d
e
s

c
ri

b
e

ro
o

fs
th

a
t

a
re

d
e

s
ig

n
e

d
to

h
a

v
e

e
n

h
a

n
c

e
d

e
c

o
lo

g
ic

a
l

v
a
lu

e
(o

v
e
r

a
n

d
a

b
o

v
e

th
a

t
a

s
s

o
c

ia
te

d
w

it
h

a
g

re
e

n
ro

o
f)

.

T
h

e
o

ve
ra

ll
a

im
sh

o
u

ld
b

e
to

a
ch

ie
ve

a
n

e
t

g
a

in
in

th
e

e
co

lo
g

ic
a

l
va

lu
e

o
f

th
e

a
re

a
.

T
h

e
B

ri
e

f
c

o
u

ld
re

q
u

ir
e

a
n

e
c

o
lo

g
ic

a
l

b
u

d
g

e
ti

n
g

a
p

p
ro

a
c

h
.

T
h

is
w

o
u

ld
d

e
ta

il
th

o
se

h
a

b
it
a

ts
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
o

n
si

te
a

s
p

a
rt

o
f

a
p

h
a

se
1

H
a

b
it
a

t
S

u
rv

e
y,

a
b

a
la

n
ce

sh
e

e
t

w
o

u
ld

in
d

ic
a

te
th

e
va

lu
e

g
iv

e
n

to
e

a
ch

h
a

b
it
a

t
(L

o
ca

l
to

E
u

ro
p

e
a

n
),

cu
rr

e
n

t
b

io
d

iv
e

rs
it
y

a
ss

e
ts

,
th

o
s
e

to
b

e
re

ta
in

e
d

/c
re

a
te

d
a

n
d

th
o

se
to

b
e

lo
st

a
fi
n

a
l
co

lu
m

n
w

o
u

ld
sh

o
w

th
e

n
e

t
ch

a
n

g
e

q
u

a
lit

a
ti
ve

ly
.

T
h

is
w

ill
h

e
lp

d
e

m
o

n
st

ra
te

th
e

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
e

co
lo

g
ic

a
l
b

e
n

e
fi
ts

th
a

t
th

e
p

ro
je

ct
co

u
ld

d
e

liv
e

r.

T
h

e
B

ri
e

f
s

h
o

u
ld

a
ls

o
id

e
n

ti
fy

th
e

n
e
e

d
fo

r
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
p

ro
p

o
s

a
ls

to
in

c
lu

d
e

a
lo

n
g

-t
e
rm

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

P
la

n
fo

r
n

e
w

a
n

d
e

x
is

ti
n

g
o

p
e

n
s

p
a

c
e
.

E
co

lo
g

ic
a

l
b

u
d

g
e

ti
n

g
fo

r
si

te
s

sh
o

u
ld

cr
o

ss
-r

e
fe

re
n

ce
B

io
d

iv
e

rs
it
y

A
ct

io
n

P
la

n
T

a
rg

e
ts

a
n

d
d

e
m

o
n

st
ra

te
th

e
sc

o
p

e
fo

r
w

o
rk

in
g

to
w

a
rd

s
th

e
se

ta
rg

e
ts

,
fo

r
e

xa
m

p
le

th
ro

u
g

h
th

e
p

ro
vi

si
o

n
o

f
h

a
b

it
a

ts
th

a
t

w
o

rk
to

w
a

rd
s

a
ch

ie
vi

n
g

re
le

va
n

t
ta

rg
e

ts
.

T
h

e
B

ri
e

f
c

o
u

ld
id

e
n

ti
fy

th
e

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
to

g
re

e
n

th
e

e
d

g
e

o
f

th
e

A
1

2
a

d
ja

ce
n

t
to

th
e

si
te

a
n

d
se

e
k

d
e

ve
lo

p
e

r
co

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

to
w

a
rd

s
th

is
1

6
.

T
o

m
in

im
is

e
flo

o
d

ri
sk

w
it
h

in
th

e
B

o
ro

u
g

h
a

n
d

e
ls

e
w

h
e

re
,

a
n

d
p

ro
m

o
te

th
e

u
se

o
f

su
st

a
in

a
b

le
u

rb
a

n
d

ra
in

a
g

e
sy

st
e

m
s

+
P

e
rm

a
n
e

n
t/

L
o

ca
l

si
g

n
ifi

ca
n

ce

T
h

e
L

L
V

O
A

P
F

lo
ca

te
s

th
e

si
te

w
it
h

in
a

n
a

re
a

id
e

n
tif

ie
d

a
s

re
q

u
ir

e
d

fo
r

st
o

rm
w

a
te

r
a

tt
e

n
u

a
ti
o

n
in

re
te

n
ti
o

n
p

o
n

d
s.

It
is

n
o

t
h

o
w

e
ve

r
cl

e
a

r
fr

o
m

th
e

B
ri

e
f

if
re

te
n

ti
o

n
p

o
n

d
s

w
ill

b
e

re
q

u
ir

e
d

o
n

si
te

a
n

d
,

if
so

,
w

h
e

re
.

T
h

e
B

ri
e

f
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

s
th

e
n

e
e

d
fo

r
S

u
st

a
in

a
b

le
U

rb
a

n
D

ra
in

a
g

e
S

y
st

e
m

s
(S

U
D

S
)

b
u

t
co

u
ld

a
ls

o
h

ig
h

lig
h

t
th

e
p

o
te

n
ti
a

l
n

e
e

d
fo

r
d

e
ve

lo
p

e
r

co
n

tr
ib

u
ti
o

n
s

to
se

cu
re

th
e

lo
n

g
-

te
rm

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

o
f

th
e

se
.

It
co

u
ld

a
ls

o
a

d
vo

ca
te

th
e

u
se

o
f

a
m

ix
o

f
h

a
rd

a
n

d
so

ft
S

U
D

S
.

T
h

e
B

ri
e

f
a

ls
o

id
e

n
tif

ie
d

th
e

n
e

e
d

fo
r

F
lo

o
d

R
is

k
A

ss
e

s
s
m

e
n

t

P
re

su
m

a
b

ly
th

e
a

im
o

f
a

tt
e

n
u

a
ti
o

n
m

e
a

su
re

s
w

ill
b

e
to

e
n

su
re

th
a

t
th

e
si

te
d

o
e

s
n

o
t

Page 235



1
2
2
6
6
5
2

9
-0

0
1

D
ra

ft
S

A
5
3

S
A

O
b

je
c

ti
v

e
S

u
m

m
a

ry
o

f
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
a

n
d

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s

in
cr

e
a

se
th

e
ri

sk
o

f
fl
o

o
d

in
g

e
ls

e
w

h
e

re
,

w
it
h

th
e

si
te

b
e

in
g

n
e

u
tr

a
l
in

te
rm

s
o

f
th

e
a

m
o

u
n

t
a

n
d

ra
te

o
f

ru
n

-o
ff

.
T

h
e

B
ri

e
f

co
u

ld
sp

e
ci

fy
th

is
.

-/
?

T
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
1

7
.

T
o

e
n

su
re

th
a

t
th

e
p

la
n

d
o

e
s

n
o

t
n

e
g

a
ti
ve

ly
a

ff
e

ct
e

xi
st

in
g

re
si

d
e

n
ts

o
f

T
o

w
e

r
H

a
m

le
ts

,
a

n
d

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y

d
is

e
m

p
o

w
e

re
d

g
ro

u
p

s
+

/?
P

e
rm

a
n
e
n

t

T
h

e
co

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

p
h

a
se

p
ro

vi
d

e
s

th
e

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
fo

r
n

e
g

a
ti
ve

e
ff

e
ct

s
o

n
e

xi
st

in
g

re
si

d
e

n
ts

,
in

cl
u

d
in

g
n

e
w

re
si

d
e

n
ts

a
ss

o
ci

a
te

d
th

e
fir

st
p

h
a

se
o

f
d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

T
h

e
B

ri
e

f
c

o
u

ld
re

fe
re

n
c
e

th
e

M
a

y
o

r’
s

C
o

n
s

id
e

ra
te

C
o

n
s

tr
u

c
to

rs
s
c
h

e
m

e
.

A
s

n
o

te
d

in
o

th
e

r
S

A
o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

a
b

o
v
e

,
th

e
B

ri
e
f

c
o
u

ld
h

ig
h

lig
h

t
m

e
a

s
u

re
s

to
e

n
s
u

re
th

a
t

lo
c
a

l
p

e
o

p
le

b
e
n

e
fi
t
fr

o
m

n
e

w
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
,

th
ro

u
g
h

tr
a

in
in

g
a

n
d

p
la

c
e
m

e
n

t
in

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
.

T
h

e
B

ri
e
f

h
a

s
a

ls
o

b
e

e
n

s
u
b

je
c
te

d
to

a
n

E
q
u

a
lit

y
Im

p
a

c
t
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t.

Page 236



1
2
2
6
6
5
2

9
-0

0
1

D
ra

ft
S

A
5
4

Page 237



1
2
2
6
6
5
2

9
-0

0
1

D
ra

ft
S

A
5
5

A
p
p
e
n

d
ix

D
S

A
o
f

th
e

B
u
si

n
e
ss

a
s

U
su

a
lS

ce
n
a
ri
o

K
e

y
to

M
a

tr
ix

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l
fo

r
a

si
g

n
if
ic

a
n

t
p

o
si

ti
ve

e
ff

e
ct

+
+

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l
fo

r
a

m
in

o
r

p
o

si
ti
ve

e
ff

e
ct

+
P

o
te

n
ti
a

l
fo

r
a

m
in

o
r

n
e

g
a

ti
ve

e
ff

e
ct

-
P

o
te

n
ti
a

l
fo

r
si

g
n

if
ic

a
n

t
n

e
g

a
ti
ve

e
ff

e
ct

--
N

o
si

g
n

ifi
ca

n
t

e
ff

e
ct

o
r

n
o

re
la

ti
o

n
sh

ip
N

o
re

la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip

U
n

ce
rt

a
in

ty
–

o
u

tc
o

m
e

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t
o

n
w

h
a

t
is

d
o

n
e

,
h

o
w

a
n

d

w
h

e
re

?

S
A

O
b

je
c

ti
v

e
S

u
m

m
a

ry
o

f
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
a

n
d

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s

1
.

T
o

im
p

ro
ve

h
e

a
lt
h

,
p

ro
m

o
te

h
e

a
lt
h

y
lif

e
st

yl
e

s
a

n
d

re
d

u
ce

h
e

a
lt
h

in
e

q
u

a
lit

ie
s

?
U

n
ce

rt
a

in
th

a
t

n
e

w
h

e
a

lt
h

fa
ci

lit
ie

s
w

o
u

ld
b

e
a

cc
o

m
m

o
d

a
te

d
in

a
n

y
sc

h
e

m
e

in
th

e
a

b
se

n
ce

o
f

th
e

B
ri

e
f.

2
.

T
o

p
ro

vi
d

e
a

ll
re

si
d

e
n

ts
w

it
h

th
e

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y

to
liv

e
in

q
u

a
lit

y
h

o
m

e
s,

in
cl

u
d

in
g

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
h

o
m

e
s

?
U

n
ce

rt
a

in
if

th
e

B
a

U
sc

e
n

a
ri

o
w

o
u

ld
re

su
lt

in
m

o
re

o
r

fe
w

e
r

d
w

e
lli

n
g

s.
D

e
ve

lo
p

in
g

th
e

a
re

a
in

a
fr

a
g

m
e

n
te

d
m

a
n

n
e

r
co

u
ld

m
e

a
n

th
a

t
it
s

ca
p

a
ci

ty
is

n
o

t
o

p
ti
m

is
e

d
.

3
.

T
o

p
ro

vi
d

e
so

ci
a

l
a

n
d

co
m

m
u

n
it
y

fa
ci

lit
ie

s
a

n
d

o
p

e
n

sp
a

ce
s

to
m

e
e

t
th

e
n

e
e

d
s

o
f

B
o

ro
u

g
h

re
si

d
e

n
ts

?
U

n
ce

rt
a

in
ty

a
s

to
w

h
e

th
e

r
o

r
n

o
t

th
e

B
a

U
sc

e
n

a
ri

o
w

o
u

ld
se

cu
re

a
n

e
w

n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
ce

n
tr

e
,

o
p

e
n

sp
a

ce
s

a
n

d
o

th
e

r
co

m
m

u
n

it
y

fa
ci

lit
ie

s.

4
.

T
o

cr
e

a
te

su
st

a
in

a
b

le
co

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
th

ro
u

g
h

th
e

?
T

h
e

B
a

U
sc

e
n

a
ri

o
co

u
ld

m
e

a
n

th
a

t
th

e
a

re
a

is
n

o
t

d
e

ve
lo

p
e

d
e

ff
ic

ie
n

tl
y

a
n

d
th

a
t

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

is
n

o
t

p
ro

vi
d

e
d

.

Page 238



1
2
2
6
6
5
2

9
-0

0
1

D
ra

ft
S

A
5
6

S
A

O
b

je
c

ti
v

e
S

u
m

m
a

ry
o

f
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
a

n
d

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s

re
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

n
d

e
ff

ic
ie

n
t

u
se

o
f

la
n

d
a

n
d

b
u

ild
in

g
s

w
it
h

lin
ks

to
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
in

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
5

.
T

o
p

ro
m

o
te

g
o

o
d

q
u

a
lit

y
in

u
rb

a
n

d
e

si
g

n
,

a
n

d
th

e
co

n
se

rv
a

tio
n

a
n

d
a

p
p

re
ci

a
ti
o

n
o

f
th

e
h

is
to

ri
c

e
n

vi
ro

n
m

e
n

t

?
T

h
e

p
la

n
n

in
g

sy
st

e
m

w
o

u
ld

p
ro

vi
d

e
so

m
e

p
ro

te
ct

io
n

fo
r

th
e

se
tt

in
g

o
f

th
e

T
h

re
e

M
ill

s
A

re
a

b
u

t
it

is
u

n
ce

rt
a

in
if

g
o

o
d

q
u

a
lit

y
u

rb
a

n
d

e
si

g
n

w
o

u
ld

fl
o

w
fr

o
m

th
e

B
a

U
sc

e
n

a
ri

o
.

T
h

is
a

re
a

is
lo

ca
te

d
in

L
o

n
d

o
n

B
o

ro
u

g
h

o
f

N
e

w
h

a
m

.

6
.

T
o

cr
e

a
te

sa
fe

a
n

d
se

cu
re

e
n

vi
ro

n
m

e
n

ts
a

n
d

re
d

u
ce

cr
im

e

?
U

n
ce

rt
a

in
ty

a
s

to
w

h
e

th
e

r
th

e
B

a
U

sc
e

n
a

ri
o

w
o

u
ld

d
e

liv
e

r
im

p
ro

ve
d

p
e

d
e

st
ri

a
n

a
n

d
cy

cl
in

g
fa

ci
lit

ie
s

7
.

T
o

g
iv

e
a

ll
re

si
d

e
n

ts
th

e
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y

o
f

a
n

o
cc

u
p

a
ti
o

n
p

ro
vi

d
in

g
se

lf
-w

o
rt

h
a

n
d

a
g

o
o

d
liv

e
lih

o
o

d
,

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y

in
d

e
p

ri
ve

d
a

re
a

s

?
U

n
ce

rt
a

in
ty

a
s

to
w

h
e

th
e

r
th

e
B

a
U

sc
e

n
a

ri
o

w
o

u
ld

d
e

liv
e

r
e

m
p

lo
ym

e
n

t
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

iti
e

s.
T

h
is

w
o

u
ld

d
e

p
e

n
d

o
n

th
e

n
a

tu
re

o
f

th
e

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t
th

a
t

ca
m

e
fo

rw
a

rd
.

8
.

T
o

re
d

u
ce

p
o

ve
rt

y,
fa

ci
lit

a
te

e
co

n
o

m
ic

g
ro

w
th

,
a

n
d

e
n

su
re

e
q

u
a

lit
y

o
f

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
y

fo
r

a
ll

re
si

d
e

n
ts

?
U

n
ce

rt
a

in
ty

a
s

to
w

h
a

t
w

o
u

ld
b

e
p

ro
vi

d
e

d
o

n
si

te
a

n
d

th
e

re
fo

re
w

h
o

w
o

u
ld

p
o

te
n

ti
a

lly
b

e
n

e
fit

.

9
.

T
o

re
d

u
ce

th
e

n
e

e
d

to
tr

a
ve

l,
re

d
u

ce
p

ri
va

te
ve

h
ic

u
la

r
tr

a
n

sp
o

rt
a

n
d

e
n

co
u

ra
g

e
th

e
u

se
o

f
p

u
b

lic
tr

a
n

sp
o

rt
,

cy
cl

in
g

a
n

d
w

a
lk

in
g

+
+

/?
P

e
rm

a
n
e

n
t/

L
o

ca
l

si
g

n
ifi

ca
n

ce

T
h

e
si

te
is

in
a

su
st

a
in

a
b

le
lo

ca
tio

n
,

w
it
h

g
o

o
d

a
cc

e
s
s

to
th

e
u

n
d

e
rg

ro
u

n
d

a
n

d
th

e
p

o
te

n
ti
a

l
fo

r
a

d
e

d
ic

a
te

d
b

u
s

se
rv

ic
e

.
U

n
ce

rt
a

in
ty

a
s

to
w

h
e

th
e

r
im

p
ro

ve
d

cr
o

ss
in

g
fa

ci
lit

ie
s

fo
r

th
e

A
1

2
w

o
u

ld
b

e
p

ro
vi

d
e

d
.

1
0

.
T

o
im

p
ro

ve
a

ir
q

u
a

lit
y

?
T

ra
ff

ic
a

n
d

m
a

ch
in

e
ry

a
ss

o
ci

a
te

d
w

it
h

th
e

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
p

h
a

se
a

re
lik

e
ly

to
h

a
ve

a
te

m
p

o
ra

ry
n

e
g

a
ti
ve

e
ff

e
ct

o
n

a
ir

q
u

a
lit

y.
C

o
n

d
it
io

n
s

a
tt
a

c
h
e

d
to

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s

c
o

u
ld

re
fe

re
n

c
e

th
e

M
a

y
o

r
a
n

d
L
o

n
d
o

n
C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
“L

o
n

d
o

n
B

e
s
t
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

G
u

id
e

”
o
n

th
e

c
o

n
tr

o
l
o
f

d
u

s
t

a
n

d
e

m
is

s
io

n
s

d
u

ri
n

g
d

e
m

o
lit

io
n

a
n
d

c
o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

a
lo

n
g

w
it
h

th
e

M
a

y
o

r’
s

o
th

e
r

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
re

la
ti
n

g
to

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

d
e

s
ig

n
a
n

d
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
.

Page 239



1
2
2
6
6
5
2

9
-0

0
1

D
ra

ft
S

A
5
7

S
A

O
b

je
c

ti
v

e
S

u
m

m
a

ry
o

f
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
a

n
d

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s

T
h

e
m

o
st

su
it
a

b
le

a
cc

e
s
s

a
n

d
h

a
u

l
ro

u
te

s
fo

r
th

e
si

te
tr

a
ff

ic
sh

o
u

ld
b

e
id

e
n

tif
ie

d
a

s
p

a
rt

o
f

th
e

p
la

n
n

in
g

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
p

ro
ce

ss
.

T
h

e
m

o
st

e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

m
iti

g
a

ti
o

n
w

ill
b

e
a

ch
ie

ve
d

b
y

e
n

su
ri

n
g

th
a

t
co

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

tr
a

ff
ic

d
o

e
s

n
o

t
p

a
ss

a
lo

n
g

se
n

si
ti
ve

ro
a

d
s

(r
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l
ro

a
d

s,
co

n
g

e
st

e
d

ro
a

d
s,

vi
a

u
n

su
it
a

b
le

ju
n

ct
io

n
s,

e
tc

)
a

n
d

th
a

t
ve

h
ic

le
s

a
re

ke
p

t
cl

e
a

n
(t

h
ro

u
g

h
th

e
u

se
o

f
w

h
e

e
l
w

a
sh

e
rs

,
e

tc
)

a
n

d
sh

e
e

te
d

w
h

e
n

o
n

p
u

b
lic

h
ig

h
w

a
y
s.

T
im

in
g

o
f

la
rg

e
-s

ca
le

ve
h

ic
le

m
o

ve
m

e
n

ts
to

a
vo

id
p

e
a

k
h

o
u

rs
o

n
th

e
lo

ca
l

ro
a

d
n

e
tw

o
rk

w
ill

a
ls

o
b

e
b

e
n

e
fi
ci

a
l.

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

is
a

m
a

jo
r

co
n

tr
ib

u
to

r
to

p
o

o
r

a
ir

q
u

a
lit

y.
T

h
e

B
a

U
sc

e
n

a
ri

o
p

ro
vi

d
e

s
u

n
ce

rt
a

in
ty

a
s

to
fu

tu
re

p
a

rk
in

g
p

ro
vi

si
o

n
a

n
d

p
u

b
lic

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

a
n

d
th

e
q

u
a

lit
y

o
f

p
e

d
e

st
ri

a
n

a
n

d
cy

cl
in

g
lin

ks
.

A
d

e
ta

ile
d

a
ss

e
s
s
m

e
n

t
o

f
a

ir
q

u
a

lit
y

is
su

e
s

o
n

si
te

a
n

d
a

n
y

fu
rt

h
e

r
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

iti
e

s
fo

r
m

it
ig

a
tio

n
w

ill
b

e
re

q
u

ir
e

d
a

s
p

a
rt

o
f

th
e

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

e
n

ta
l

S
ta

te
m

e
n

t
th

a
t

w
ill

b
e

su
b

m
itt

e
d

w
it
h

fu
tu

re
p

la
n

n
in

g
a

p
p

lic
a

ti
o

n
s.

T
h

e
M

a
yo

r
h

a
s

a
st

a
n

d
a

rd
re

la
ti
n

g
to

n
e

w
g

a
s

b
o

ile
rs

–
u

n
ce

rt
a

in
h

o
w

th
e

B
a

U
sc

e
n

a
ri

o
co

u
ld

re
q

u
ir

e
a

d
o

p
ti
o

n
o

f
th

e
se

.

-
/?

T
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
1

1
.

T
o

re
d

u
ce

th
e

im
p

a
ct

o
f

n
o

is
e

?

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

a
ct

iv
it
y

w
ill

g
iv

e
ri

se
to

n
o

is
e

.

U
n

ce
rt

a
in

ty
a

s
to

h
o

w
th

e
B

a
U

sc
e

n
a

ri
o

w
o

u
ld

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

g
a

in
st

n
o

is
e

.

U
n

ce
rt

a
in

a
s

to
h

o
w

th
e

B
a

U
sc

e
n

a
ri

o
w

o
u

ld
p

e
rf

o
rm

.

1
2

.
T

o
co

m
b

a
t

fu
e

l
p

o
ve

rt
y,

re
d

u
ce

e
n

e
rg

y
co

n
su

m
p

tio
n

,
a

n
d

p
ro

m
o

te
re

n
e

w
a

b
le

?
U

n
ce

rt
a

in
ty

a
s

to
h

o
w

th
e

B
a

U
sc

e
n

a
ri

o
w

o
u

ld
p

e
rf

o
rm

h
e

re
.

A
n

a
d

h
o

c
a

p
p

ro
a

ch
to

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t
co

u
ld

re
d

u
ce

th
e

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
fo

r
a

d
o

p
tin

g
re

n
e

w
a

b
le

e
n

e
rg

y
o

n
si

te
.

Page 240



1
2
2
6
6
5
2

9
-0

0
1

D
ra

ft
S

A
5
8

S
A

O
b

je
c

ti
v

e
S

u
m

m
a

ry
o

f
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
a

n
d

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s

fo
rm

s
to

re
d

u
ce

g
re

e
n

h
o

u
se

g
a

s
e

m
is

si
o

n
s

1
3

.
T

o
m

in
im

is
e

w
a

st
e

re
q

u
ir

in
g

d
is

p
o

sa
l
a

n
d

to
in

cr
e

a
se

re
cy

cl
in

g
a

n
d

re
co

ve
ry

?
T

h
e

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
p

h
a

se
w

ill
g

e
n

e
ra

te
w

a
st

e
a

ss
o

ci
a

te
d

w
it
h

d
e

m
o

lit
io

n
o

f
e

xi
st

in
g

b
u

ild
in

g
s.

U
n

ce
rt

a
in

a
s

to
h

o
w

th
e

B
a

U
S

ce
n

a
ri

o
w

o
u

ld
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
g

a
in

st
th

is
o

b
je

ct
iv

e
.

U
n

ce
rt

a
in

ty
a

s
to

h
o

w
th

e
B

a
U

S
ce

n
a

ri
o

w
o

u
ld

p
e

rf
o

rm
o

n
ce

th
e

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t
w

a
s

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l.

1
4

.
T

o
im

p
ro

ve
w

a
te

r
q

u
a

lit
y

a
n

d
re

d
u

ce
w

a
te

r
u

se
?

U
n

ce
rt

a
in

ty
a

s
to

h
o

w
th

e
B

a
U

S
ce

n
a

ri
o

w
o

u
ld

p
e

rf
o

rm
o

n
ce

th
e

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t
w

a
s

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l.
1

5
.

T
o

co
n

se
rv

e
,

e
n

h
a

n
ce

a
n

d
w

h
e

re
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
cr

e
a

te
b

io
d

iv
e

rs
it
y,

in
cl

u
d

in
g

sp
e

ci
e

s,
h

a
b

it
a

ts
,

g
re

e
n

sp
a

ce
s

a
n

d
w

a
te

rc
o

u
rs

e
s

?
U

n
ce

rt
a

in
ty

a
s

to
h

o
w

th
e

B
a

U
S

ce
n

a
ri

o
w

o
u

ld
p

e
rf

o
rm

o
n

ce
th

e
d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t

w
a

s
o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

l.

1
6

.
T

o
m

in
im

is
e

flo
o

d
ri

sk
w

it
h

in
th

e
B

o
ro

u
g

h
a

n
d

e
ls

e
w

h
e

re
,

a
n

d
p

ro
m

o
te

th
e

?
U

n
ce

rt
a

in
a

s
to

h
o

w
th

e
B

a
U

sc
e

n
a

ri
o

w
o

u
ld

p
e

rf
o

rm
.

A
d

-h
o

c
d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t

o
f

th
e

a
re

a
co

u
ld

m
e

a
n

th
a

t
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

iti
e

s
fo

r
st

ra
te

g
ic

m
iti

g
a

ti
o

n
a

re
m

is
se

d
.

Page 241



1
2
2
6
6
5
2

9
-0

0
1

D
ra

ft
S

A
5
9

S
A

O
b

je
c

ti
v

e
S

u
m

m
a

ry
o

f
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
a

n
d

R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti

o
n

s

u
se

o
f

su
st

a
in

a
b

le
u

rb
a

n
d

ra
in

a
g

e
sy

st
e

m
s

1
7

.
T

o
e

n
su

re
th

a
t

th
e

p
la

n
d

o
e

s
n

o
t

n
e

g
a

ti
ve

ly
a

ff
e

ct
e

xi
st

in
g

re
si

d
e

n
ts

o
f

T
o

w
e

r
H

a
m

le
ts

,
a

n
d

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y

d
is

e
m

p
o

w
e

re
d

g
ro

u
p

s

?
T

h
e

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
p

h
a

se
p

ro
vi

d
e

s
th

e
p

o
te

n
ti
a

l
fo

r
n

e
g

a
ti
ve

e
ff

e
ct

s
o

n
e

xi
st

in
g

re
si

d
e

n
ts

,
in

cl
u

d
in

g
n

e
w

re
si

d
e

n
ts

a
ss

o
ci

a
te

d
th

e
fir

st
p

h
a

se
o

f
d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s

c
o

u
ld

re
fe

re
n

c
e

th
e

M
a

y
o

r’
s

C
o

n
s
id

e
ra

te
C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
to

rs
s
c
h

e
m

e
.

U
n

c
e

rt
a

in
ty

a
s

to
h
o

w
th

e
B

a
U

s
c
e

n
a

ri
o

w
o

u
ld

a
ff

e
c
t

lo
c
a

l
p
e

o
p

le
.

Page 242



1
2
2
6
6
5
2

9
-0

0
1

D
ra

ft
S

A
6
0

�

Page 243



1
2
2
6
6
5
2

9
-0

0
1

D
ra

ft
S

A
6
1

A
p
p
e
n

d
ix

E
L
o
n
d

o
n

S
u
st

a
in

a
b
le

D
e
ve

lo
p

m
e
n
t

C
h
e
ck

lis
t

S
A

T
o

p
ic

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
a

n
d

T
a
rg

e
ts

fr
o

m
th

e
L

o
n

d
o

n
S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

C
h

e
c

k
li

s
t

B
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y

E
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
N

o
n

e
t
lo

s
s

o
f

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y

a
n

d
a

c
c
e

s
s

to
n

a
tu

re
o

n
th

e
d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t
s
it
e

.

M
a

y
o

r’
s

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
N

e
t

g
a

in
o
f

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y

a
n

d
a

c
c
e

s
s

to
n

a
tu

re
o

n
th

e
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t
s
it
e

.

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

B
e

s
t

(N
e

t
g
a

in
w

it
h

p
ro

v
is

io
n

fo
r

o
n
g
o

in
g

m
a

n
a

g
e
m

e
n

t
a
n
d

m
a

in
te

n
a
n

c
e

,
a

n
d

th
e

in
c
lu

s
io

n
o
f

a
m

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t
p

la
n

);
G

o
o

d
(N

e
t

g
a

in
w

it
h

p
ro

v
is

io
n

to
re

d
u

c
e

th
e

id
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

a
re

a
s

o
f

d
e
fi
c
ie

n
c
y

in
M

a
p

3
D

.4
o
f

th
e

F
u

rt
h

e
r

A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

to
th

e
L
o

n
d
o

n
P

la
n

);
M

in
im

u
m

(N
o

n
e

t
lo

s
s

o
f

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y

a
n

d
a

c
c
e

s
s

to
n

a
tu

re
).

B
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y

E
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
R

e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

in
a

re
a

s
o
f

d
e
fi
c
ie

n
c
y

in
a

c
c
e

s
s

to
n

a
tu

re
.

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

B
e

s
t

(G
o

o
d

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

,
p

lu
s

n
e

w
w

ild
lif

e
c
o

rr
id

o
rs

a
re

c
re

a
te

);
G

o
o
d

(M
in

im
u
m

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

,
p

lu
s

lin
k
s

to
h

a
b

it
a

ts
a

re
c
re

a
te

d
);

M
in

im
u
m

(A
c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
n
a

tu
ra

l
g
re

e
n

s
p

a
c
e

is
c
re

a
te

d
).

B
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y

E
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
C

o
m

p
ly

w
it
h

p
ro

te
c
te

d
s
p

e
c
ie

s
le

g
is

la
ti
o

n
.

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

M
in

im
u
m

(C
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

w
it
h

p
ro

te
c
te

d
s
p

e
c
ie

s
le

g
is

la
ti
o

n
).

B
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y

a
n

d
e

n
e

rg
y

M
a

y
o

r’
s

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
E

x
is

ti
n

g
ro

o
f

s
p

a
c
e

is
re

u
s
e
d

w
h

e
re

p
ra

c
ti
c
a

b
le

to
c
re

a
te

n
e

w
o

u
td

o
o

r
s
p

a
c
e

s
a
n
d

e
n

h
a

n
c
e

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y

a
lo

n
g
s
id

e
th

e
in

te
g
ra

ti
o

n
o
f

re
n
e

w
a

b
le

e
n

e
rg

y
.

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

B
e

s
t

(7
0

%
o
f

th
e

ro
o
f

a
re

a
d

e
s
ig

n
e

d
fo

r
o

u
td

o
o

r
s
p
a

c
e

/g
re

e
n

ro
o
fs

a
n

d
re

n
e

w
a

b
le

e
n
e

rg
y

p
ro

v
is

io
n

);
G

o
o

d
(6

0
%

o
f

th
e

ro
o
f

a
re

a
d
e

s
ig

n
e

d
fo

r
o

u
td

o
o

r
s
p
a

c
e

/g
re

e
n

ro
o
fs

a
n

d
re

n
e

w
a

b
le

e
n
e

rg
y

p
ro

v
is

io
n

);
M

in
im

u
m

:
(A

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
o
f

th
e

ro
o
f

a
re

a
is

d
e

s
ig

n
e
d

fo
r

o
u

td
o

o
r

s
p
a

c
e

/g
re

e
n

ro
o
fs

a
n

d
/o

r
re

n
e

w
a

b
le

e
n
e

rg
y

p
ro

v
is

io
n

).

W
a

te
r

E
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

ts
to

a
c
h

ie
v
e

a
v
e

ra
g
e

w
a

te
r

u
s
e

in
n

e
w

d
w

e
lli

n
g
s

o
f

le
s
s

th
a

n
4

0
m

3
p

e
r

b
e

d
s
p

a
c
e

p
e

r
y
e

a
r

(a
p

p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
1

1
0

lit
re

s
/h

e
a
d

/d
a

y
).

M
a

y
o

r’
s

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
R

e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

ts
to

a
c
h

ie
v
e

a
v
e

ra
g
e

w
a

te
r

u
s
e

in
n

e
w

d
w

e
lli

n
g
s

o
f

le
s
s

th
a

n
2

5
m

3
p
e

r
b

e
d

s
p
a

c
e

p
e

r
y
e

a
r

(a
p

p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
7

0
lit

re
s
/h

e
a
d

/d
a

y
).

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

B
e

s
t

(Y
e

t
to

b
e

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
);

G
o

o
d

(M
in

im
u

m
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

,
p

lu
s

d
u

a
l
w

a
te

r
s
u
p

p
ly

u
s
in

g
g
re

y
w

a
te

r
re

c
y
c
lin

g
a

n
d

/o
r

ra
in

w
a

te
r

h
a

rv
e

s
ti
n

g
fo

r
re

-u
s
e

o
n

s
it
e

(a
v
e

ra
g
e

w
a

te
r

u
s
e

e
q
u

a
ls

7
0

lit
re

s
/h

e
a

d
/d

a
y
);

M
in

im
u
m

Page 244



1
2
2
6
6
5
2

9
-0

0
1

D
ra

ft
S

A
6
2

S
A

T
o

p
ic

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
a

n
d

T
a
rg

e
ts

fr
o

m
th

e
L

o
n

d
o

n
S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

C
h

e
c

k
li

s
t

(P
o

ta
b

le
w

a
te

r
d

e
m

a
n
d

m
in

im
is

e
d

th
ro

u
g
h

th
e

u
s
e

o
f

w
a

te
r

s
a

v
in

g
d

e
v
ic

e
s

(a
v
e

ra
g
e

w
a

te
r

u
s
e

e
q
u

a
ls

1
1
0

lit
re

s
/h

e
a
d

/d
a

y
)

W
a

te
r

E
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
1
0

0
%

m
e

te
ri
n

g
o
f

a
ll

n
e
w

ly
b

u
ilt

p
ro

p
e

rt
y

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

M
in

im
u
m

(Y
e
s
)s

M
a

y
o

r’
s

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
U

s
e

o
f

g
re

y
w

a
te

r
fo

r
a

ll
n

o
n

p
o

ta
b

le
u

s
e

s
.

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

B
e

s
t

(T
o

b
e

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

);
G

o
o

d
(2

5
-5

0
%

);

M
in

im
u

m
(S

e
e

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
fo

r
m

in
im

u
m

re
q
u

ir
e

d
).

W
a

te
r

E
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
U

s
e

S
u

s
ta

in
a
b

le
D

ra
in

a
g
e

S
y
s
te

m
s

(S
D

S
)

m
e

a
s
u

re
s
,
w

h
e

re
v
e

r
p

ra
c
ti
c
a

l.

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

B
e

s
t

(S
it
e

is
d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

d
to

b
e

a
b

le
to

c
o

n
ta

in
ra

in
fa

ll
fr

o
m

a
t

le
a

s
t
1

in
5

0
0

y
e

a
r

e
v
e

n
ts

);
G

o
o
d

(S
it
e

is
d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

d
to

b
e

a
b

le
to

c
o

n
ta

in
ra

in
fa

ll
fr

o
m

1
in

2
5

0
y
e

a
r

ra
in

e
v
e

n
ts

);
M

in
im

u
m

(S
it
e

is
d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

d
to

b
e

a
b

le
to

c
o
n

ta
in

ra
in

fa
ll

fr
o
m

1
in

1
0

0
y
e

a
r

ra
in

e
v
e

n
ts

).

W
a

te
r

E
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
A

c
h

ie
v
e

5
0

%
a

tt
e

n
u
a

ti
o

n
o
f

th
e

u
n

d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
s
it
e

’s
s
u

rf
a

c
e

w
a

te
r

ru
n

o
ff

a
t
p

e
a

k
ti
m

e
s
.

M
a

y
o

r’
s

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
A

c
h

ie
v
e

1
0

0
%

a
tt

e
n

u
a

ti
o

n
o
f

th
e

u
n

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

s
it
e

’s
s
u

rf
a
c
e

w
a

te
r

ru
n

o
ff

a
t

p
e

a
k

ti
m

e
s

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

B
e

s
t

(Y
e

t
to

b
e

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
);

G
o

o
d

(A
c
h

ie
v
e

s
1

0
0

%
a

tt
e

n
u

a
ti
o
n

o
f

th
e

u
n
d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

s
it
e

s
's

u
rf

a
c
e

w
a

te
r

ru
n

o
ff

a
t

p
e

a
k

ti
m

e
);

M
in

im
u
m

(A
c
h

ie
v
e

5
0

%
a

tt
e

n
u
a

ti
o

n
o
f

th
e

u
n
d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

s
it
e

s
's

u
rf

a
c
e

w
a

te
r

ru
n

o
ff

a
t

p
e

a
k

ti
m

e
).

s

N
a

tu
ra

l
R

e
s

o
u

rc
e
s

E
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
S

p
e

c
if
y

u
s
e

o
f

re
u

s
e

d
o

r
re

c
y
c
le

d
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

m
a

te
ri
a

ls
.

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

B
e

s
t

(>
1

0
%

);
G

o
o
d

(1
0

%
);

M
in

im
u
m

(s
e

e
C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
fo

r
m

in
im

u
m

re
q
u

ir
e

d
).

N
a

tu
ra

l
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

E
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
5
0

%
ti
m

b
e

r
a
n

d
ti
m

b
e

r
p

ro
d

u
c
ts

fr
o
m

F
o

re
s
t
S

te
w

a
rd

s
h

ip
C

o
u
n

c
il

(F
S

C
)

s
o

u
rc

e
a
n

d
b

a
la

n
c
e

fr
o
m

a
k
n
o

w
n

te
m

p
e

ra
te

s
o

u
rc

e
.

M
a

y
o

r’
s

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
9

0
%

s
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l
ti
m

b
e

r
fr

o
m

F
S

C
s
o
u

rc
e

a
n
d

th
e

b
a

la
n

c
e

o
f

ti
m

b
e

r
p

ro
d

u
c
ts

fr
o
m

a
k
n

o
w

n
te

m
p

e
ra

te
s
o
u

rc
e

.

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

B
e

s
t

(>
9

0
%

fr
o
m

F
S

C
(o

r
a

C
P

E
T

a
c
c
e

p
te

d
s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

c
e

rt
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
c
h

e
m

e
)

a
n
d

b
a

la
n

c
e

fr
o

m
te

m
p
e

ra
te

s
o

u
rc

e
s
);

G
o

o
d

(>
7

5
%

fr
o

m
F

S
C

(o
r

a
C

P
E

T
a

c
c
e

p
te

d
s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

c
e

rt
if
ic

a
ti
o
n

s
c
h
e

m
e

)
a

n
d

b
a

la
n

c
e

fr
o

m

Page 245



1
2
2
6
6
5
2

9
-0

0
1

D
ra

ft
S

A
6
3

S
A

T
o

p
ic

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
a

n
d

T
a
rg

e
ts

fr
o

m
th

e
L

o
n

d
o

n
S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

C
h

e
c

k
li

s
t

te
m

p
e

ra
te

s
o
u

rc
e

s
);

M
in

im
u
m

(>
5

0
%

fr
o
m

F
S

C
(o

r
a

C
P

E
T

a
c
c
e

p
te

d
s
u

s
ta

in
a
b

le
c
e

rt
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
c
h
e

m
e

)
a

n
d

b
a

la
n

c
e

fr
o
m

te
m

p
e

ra
te

s
o

u
rc

e
s
).

N
a

tu
ra

l
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

E
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
M

in
im

is
e

u
s
e

o
f

n
e

w
a
g
g

re
g
a

te
s
.

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

B
e

s
t

(Y
e

t
to

b
e

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
);

G
o

o
d

M
in

im
u

m
p

ra
c
ti
c
e
,

p
lu

s
re

c
y
c
le

d
a

n
d

re
u

s
e
d

m
a

te
ri
a

ls
w

ill
b

e
u

s
e

d
;

M
in

im
u

m
(A

s
tr

a
te

g
y

to
m

in
im

is
e

n
e

w
a

g
g
re

g
a

te
s

h
a

s
b

e
e

n
p

re
p

a
re

d
).

N
a

tu
ra

l
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

M
a

y
o

r’
s

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
5

0
%

o
f

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
m

a
te

ri
a

ls
b

y
m

a
s
s

to
b
e

s
o
u

rc
e

d
fr

o
m

a
fa

c
to

ry
/p

la
n

t,
q
u

a
rr

y
,

w
h

a
rf

,
ra

ilh
e
a

d
o

r
re

c
y
c
lin

g
c
e

n
tr

e
w

it
h

in
3

5
m

ile
s

o
f

s
it
e

w
h

e
re

v
e

r
fe

a
s
ib

le
.

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

B
e

s
t

(N
o

t
y
e

t
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
);

G
o

o
d

(S
tr

a
te

g
y

in
p

la
c
e

to
s
o

u
rc

e
5

0
%

o
f

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
m

a
te

ri
a

ls
lo

c
a

lly
(w

h
e

re
fe

a
s
ib

le
);

M
in

im
u
m

(C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

fo
r

m
in

im
u
m

re
q
u

ir
e

d
).

N
a

tu
ra

l
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

M
a

y
o

r’
s

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
1

0
%

to
ta

l
v
a

lu
e

o
f

m
a
te

ri
a

ls
u

s
e

d
to

b
e

d
e

ri
v
e

d
fr

o
m

re
c
y
c
le

d
a
n

d
re

u
s
e
d

c
o
n

te
n
t
in

p
ro

d
u

c
ts

a
n
d

m
a

te
ri
a

ls
s
e

le
c
te

d
.

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

B
e

s
t

(>
1

0
%

);
G

o
o
d

(1
0

%
);

M
in

im
u
m

(C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
fo

r
m

in
im

u
m

re
q
u

ir
e

d
).

P
ro

cu
re

m
e

n
t

st
ra

te
g

y
in

p
la

ce
d

u
ri

n
g

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
a

n
d

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
a

l
p

h
a

s
e

s
o

f
d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

C
li

m
a

te
c

h
a

n
g

e

E
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
C

a
rb

o
n

e
m

is
s
io

n
s

fr
o
m

th
e

to
ta

l
e

n
e

rg
y

n
e

e
d

s
(h

e
a
t,

c
o
o

lin
g

a
n
d

p
o

w
e

r)
o

f
th

e
d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t
s
h

o
u

ld
b

e
re

d
u

c
e

d
b

y
a

t
le

a
s
t

1
0

%
b

y
th

e
o

n
-s

it
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
o
f

re
n
e
w

a
b

le
e

n
e

rg
y
.

M
a

y
o

r’
s

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

M
a

jo
r

d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

ts
s
h

o
u

ld
b

e
z
e

ro
c
a

rb
o

n
e
m

is
s
io

n
d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
ts

(Z
E

D
s
).

E
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

fo
r

A
ir

P
o

ll
u

ti
o

n

L
o

w
e

m
is

s
io

n
d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
ts

th
a

t
a

re
d
e

s
ig

n
e
d

to
m

in
im

is
e

th
e

a
ir

q
u

a
lit

y
im

p
a

c
t
o
f

p
la

n
t,

v
e

h
ic

le
s

a
n

d
o

th
e

r
s
o

u
rc

e
s

o
v
e

r
th

e
lif

e
ti
m

e
o
f

th
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

T
a

rg
e

ts
(t

h
e

s
e

c
o

v
e

r
a

ll
s
iz

e
s

o
f

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t)

:
B

e
s
t
(Z

e
ro

c
a

rb
o
n

e
m

is
s
io

n
d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t)
;

G
o
o

d
(>

2
0

%
(a

s
re

q
u

ir
e

d
b

y
P

o
lic

y
4

A
.7

o
f

th
e

F
u

rt
h
e

r
A

lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

to
th

e
L
o

n
d
o

n
P

la
n

);
M

in
im

u
m

(>
1

0
%

).

C
li

m
a

te
c

h
a

n
g

e
E

s
s

e
n

ti
a

l
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
:

In
s
u

la
ti
o
n

m
a

te
ri
a

ls
c
o

n
ta

in
in

g
s
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e

s
k
n
o
w

n
to

c
o

n
tr

ib
u
te

to
s
tr

a
to

s
p

h
e

ri
c

o
z
o

n
e

d
e

p
le

ti
o

n
o

r
w

it
h

th
e

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
to

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
to

g
lo

b
a

l
w

a
rm

in
g

m
u

s
t
n

o
t

b
e

u
s
e
d

.

Page 246



1
2
2
6
6
5
2

9
-0

0
1

D
ra

ft
S

A
6
4

S
A

T
o

p
ic

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
a

n
d

T
a
rg

e
ts

fr
o

m
th

e
L

o
n

d
o

n
S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

C
h

e
c

k
li

s
t

M
a

y
o

r’
s

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
N

o
c
o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
n
o

r
s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
o
f

m
a

te
ri
a

l
w

it
h

h
ig

h
e

m
b
o

d
ie

d
im

p
a

c
t

to
b
e

u
s
e
d

(a
s

d
e
fi
n
e

d
b

y
th

e
s
u
m

m
a

ry
ra

ti
n

g
s

in
th

e
G

re
e
n

G
u

id
e

to
s
p

e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n

)
u

n
le

s
s

a
c
o
m

p
e

lli
n

g
w

h
o

le
lif

e
e

n
e

rg
y

o
r

te
c
h

n
ic

a
l
c
a

s
e

fo
r

it
s

u
s
e

e
x
is

ts
.

M
a

y
o

r’
s

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
N

o
p
e

a
t
o

r
n

a
tu

ra
l
w

e
a

th
e

re
d

lim
e

s
to

n
e

u
s
e

d
in

b
u

ild
in

g
s

o
r

la
n

d
s
c
a
p

in
g
.

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

B
e

s
t

(8
0

%
g
re

e
n

g
u

id
e

A
ra

te
d

(o
r

e
q
u

iv
a

le
n

t)
;

G
o

o
d

(6
0

-8
0

%
G

re
e

n
G

u
id

e
A

ra
te

d
(o

r
e

q
u

iv
a

le
n

t)
;
M

in
im

u
m

(N
o

in
s
u

la
ti
o
n

m
a

te
ri
a

ls
c
o
n

ta
in

in
g

s
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e

s
k
n

o
w

n
to

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
to

o
z
o

n
e

d
e
p

le
ti
o

n
o

r
g
lo

b
a

l
w

a
rm

in
g

a
re

u
s
e
d

).

E
n

e
rg

y
&

c
li

m
a

te
c

h
a

n
g

e

M
a

y
o

r’
s

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
M

a
jo

r
d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
ts

s
h
o

u
ld

m
a

k
e

a
c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
to

L
o

n
d

o
n

’s
h

y
d

ro
g
e

n
e

c
o
n

o
m

y
th

ro
u

g
h

th
e

a
d

o
p

ti
o

n
o
f

h
y
d

ro
g
e

n
a

n
d

/o
r

fu
e

l
c
e

ll
te

c
h
n

o
lo

g
ie

s
a
n

d
in

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
.

T
a

rg
e

ts
(C

o
v
e

rs
a

ll
s

iz
e

s
o

f
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t)

B
e

s
t

(H
y
d

ro
g
e

n
a

n
d

/o
r

fu
e

l
c
e

ll
te

c
h
n

o
lo

g
ie

s
a

n
d

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
is

a
d
o

p
te

d
);

G
o
o

d
(D

e
s
ig

n
in

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
o

th
a
t

it
c
a

n
b

e
e
a

s
ily

a
d

a
p

te
d

to
re

n
e

w
a

b
le

h
y
d

ro
g
e

n
in

th
e

fu
tu

re
);

M
in

im
u
m

(C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

fo
r

m
in

im
u
m

re
q
u

ir
e

d
).

L
in

k
to

L
B

A
P

ta
rg

e
ts

(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
a

n
y

p
ri
v
a

te
g
a

rd
e

n
s

a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

w
it
h

n
e

w
h

o
u

s
e

b
u

ild
in

g
)

a
s

w
e

ll
a

s
th

e
e

x
te

n
s
iv

e
g
re

e
n

c
o

rr
id

o
r

n
e
tw

o
rk

.

A
ir

q
u

a
li

ty

E
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
A

ll
n

e
w

g
a

s
b

o
ile

rs
s
h

o
u

ld
p

ro
d

u
c
e

lo
w

le
v
e

ls
o
f

N
O

X

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

B
e

s
t

(C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l

p
re

m
is

e
s

=
<

4
0
m

g
/k

w
h

w
it
h

0
%

e
x
c
e

s
s

o
x
y
g
e

n
;

D
w

e
ll

in
g

s
=

<
7

0
m

g
/k

w
h

w
it
h

0
%

e
x
c
e

s
s

o
x
y
g
e

n
);

G
o

o
d

(C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l

p
re

m
is

e
s

=
<

7
0

m
g
/k

w
h

w
it
h

0
%

e
x
c
e

s
s

o
x
y
g
e

n
;

D
w

e
ll

in
g

s
=

<
1
0

0
m

g
/k

w
h

w
it
h

0
%

e
x
c
e

s
s

o
x
y
g
e

n
);

M
in

im
u
m

(C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l
p

re
m

is
e
s

=
<

1
0
0

m
g
/k

w
h

w
it
h

0
%

e
x
c
e

s
s

o
x
y
g
e

n
;

D
w

e
ll
in

g
s

=
<

1
5

0
m

g
/k

w
h

w
it
h

0
%

e
x
c
e

s
s

o
x
y
g
e

n
).

A
ir

q
u

a
li

ty

E
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
T

a
k
e

m
e

a
s
u

re
s

to
re

d
u

c
e

a
n
d

m
it
ig

a
te

e
x
p

o
s
u

re
to

a
ir

p
o

llu
ti
o

n
.

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

B
e

s
t

(Y
e

t
to

b
e

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
);

G
o

o
d

(A
s
tu

d
y

h
a

s
b

e
e

n
c
a

rr
ie

d
o
u

t
a
n

d
re

c
o

m
m

e
n
d

a
ti
o
n

s
to

re
d

u
c
e

a
n

d
m

it
ig

a
te

e
x
p

o
s
u

re
w

ill
b

e
a

c
te

d
o

n
(o

u
tl
in

e
d

b
e

lo
w

);

M
in

im
u

m
(A

s
tu

d
y

h
a

s
b

e
e
n

c
a

rr
ie

d
o

u
t
a

n
d

n
o

d
ir
e

c
t
e

x
p

o
s
u

re
w

a
s

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
).

A
ir

q
u

a
li

ty
E

s
s

e
n

ti
a

l
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
:

A
ll

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
rs

s
h
o

u
ld

c
o

n
s
id

e
r

a
n

d
c
o
m

p
ly

w
it
h

th
e

M
a

y
o

r
a

n
d

L
o
n

d
o

n
C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
“L

o
n
d

o
n

B
e

s
t

P
ra

c
ti
c
e

G
u

id
e

”
o
n

th
e

c
o

n
tr

o
l
o
f

d
u

s
t

a
n

d
e

m
is

s
io

n
s

d
u

ri
n

g
d

e
m

o
lit

io
n

a
n
d

c
o
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

.

Page 247



1
2
2
6
6
5
2

9
-0

0
1

D
ra

ft
S

A
6
5

S
A

T
o

p
ic

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
a

n
d

T
a
rg

e
ts

fr
o

m
th

e
L

o
n

d
o

n
S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

C
h

e
c

k
li

s
t

M
a

y
o

r’
s

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
A

ll
c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

rs
s
h

o
u

ld
b

e
re

q
u

ir
e

d
b
y

te
n

d
e

r
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

to
s
ig

n
u

p
to

th
e

M
a

y
o

r
a

n
d

L
o

n
d

o
n

C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
“L

o
n
d

o
n

B
e

s
t
P

ra
c
ti
c
e

G
u

id
e

”
o

n
th

e
c
o

n
tr

o
l
o
f

d
u

s
t

a
n
d

e
m

is
s
io

n
s

d
u

ri
n

g
d

e
m

o
lit

io
n

a
n
d

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

.

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

B
e

s
t

(N
o

t
y
e

t
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
);

G
o

o
d

(T
h

e
c
o
n

tr
a

c
to

r
h

a
s

s
ig

n
e

d
u
p

to
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

w
it
h

th
e

B
P

G
th

ro
u

g
h

te
n
d

e
r

re
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

);
M

in
im

u
m

(T
h

e
B

P
G

h
a

s
b

e
e

n
c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
a
n

d
c
o

m
p

lie
d

w
it
h

).

A
ir

q
u

a
li

ty
&

s
a

fe
ty

a
n

d
s

e
c

u
ri

ty

E
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
A

ll
d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
rs

s
h
o

u
ld

s
ig

n
u

p
to

th
e

re
le

v
a

n
t
C

o
n

s
id

e
ra

te
C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
to

rs
S

c
h

e
m

e
o

r
in

th
e

C
it
y

o
f

L
o

n
d

o
n

to
th

e
C

o
n

s
id

e
ra

te
C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
to

rs
s
c
h

e
m

e
.

M
a

y
o

r’
s

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
A

ll
c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

rs
s
h

o
u

ld
b

e
re

q
u

ir
e

d
b
y

te
n

d
e

r
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

to
s
ig

n
u

p
to

th
e

re
le

v
a

n
t

C
o

n
s
id

e
ra

te
C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
to

rs
s
c
h

e
m

e
o

r
in

th
e

C
it
y

o
f

L
o

n
d

o
n

to
th

e
C

o
n

s
id

e
ra

te
C

o
n
tr

a
c
to

r
s
c
h

e
m

e
.

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

B
e

s
t

(N
o

t
y
e

t
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
);

G
o

o
d

(T
h

e
c
o
n

tr
a

c
to

r
h

a
s

s
ig

n
e

d
u
p

to
a

C
o

n
s
id

e
ra

te
C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
to

rs
S

c
h
e

m
e

th
ro

u
g
h

te
n

d
e

r
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

);
M

in
im

u
m

:
(A

C
o

n
s
id

e
ra

te
C

o
n

s
tr

u
c
to

rs
S

c
h

e
m

e
h

a
s

b
e
e

n
/w

ill
b

e
in

it
ia

te
d

).

E
n

e
rg

y

E
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
C

a
rr

y
o

u
t

a
n

e
n

e
rg

y
d

e
m

a
n
d

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t.

E
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
M

a
x
im

is
e

e
n

e
rg

y
e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
.

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

B
e

s
t

(Y
e

t
to

b
e

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
);

G
o

o
d

(M
in

im
u

m
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

,
p

lu
s

s
te

p
s

A
to

F
c
o
m

p
le

te
d

);
M

in
im

u
m

(A
n

E
n

e
rg

y
S

ta
te

m
e

n
t
h

a
s

b
e

e
n

p
re

p
a

re
d

,
in

c
lu

d
in

g
a

n
E

n
e

rg
y

D
e

m
a

n
d

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t)

.

E
n

e
rg

y

E
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
M

a
jo

r
c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l
a

n
d

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

ts
to

d
e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

th
a

t
c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
h

a
s

b
e
e
n

g
iv

e
n

to
th

e
fo

llo
w

in
g

ra
n

k
in

g
m

e
th

o
d

fo
r

h
e
a

ti
n

g
a

n
d

w
h

e
re

n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
c
o

o
lin

g
s
y
s
te

m
s
:

P
a

s
s
iv

e
d

e
s
ig

n
,

S
o

la
r

w
a

te
r

h
e

a
ti
n

g
;

th
e
n

C
o
m

b
in

e
d

h
e
a

t
a

n
d

p
o

w
e

r
fo

r
h
e

a
ti
n

g
a

n
d

c
o
o

lin
g

(i
.e

.
tr

ig
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
)

,
p

re
fe

ra
b

ly
fu

e
lle

d
b

y
re

n
e

w
a

b
le

s
;

th
e

n
C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y

h
e

a
ti
n

g
a

n
d

c
o

o
lin

g
;

th
e

n
H

e
a

t
p

u
m

p
s
;
a

n
d

th
e

n
G

a
s

c
o

n
d

e
n

s
in

g
b

o
ile

rs

M
a

y
o

r’
s

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
A

ll
d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

ts
to

d
e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

th
a

t
c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
h

a
s

b
e
e
n

g
iv

e
n

to
th

e
fo

llo
w

in
g

ra
n

k
in

g
m

e
th

o
d

fo
r

h
e
a

ti
n

g
a

n
d

w
h

e
re

n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
fo

r
c
o
o

lin
g

s
y
s
te

m
s

a
n

d
s
h

o
u

ld
in

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

th
e

h
ig

h
e

s
t
fe

a
s
ib

le
o
f

th
e

fo
llo

w
in

g
o

p
ti
o

n
s
:

s
o

la
r

w
a

te
r

h
e

a
ti
n

g
;

th
e
n

c
o
m

b
in

e
d

h
e

a
t

a
n

d
p
o

w
e

r/
tr

ig
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
,

p
re

fe
ra

b
ly

fu
e

lle
d

b
y

re
n

e
w

a
b

le
s
;

th
e

n
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y

h
e
a

ti
n

g
.

N
e

w
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

s
h
o

u
ld

a
lw

a
y
s

b
e

c
o

n
n

e
c
te

d
to

e
x
is

ti
n

g
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

h
e

a
ti
n

g
n

e
tw

o
rk

s
p

re
fe

ra
b

ly
fu

e
lle

d
b

y
re

n
e

w
a

b
le

s
w

h
e

re
fe

a
s
ib

le

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

B
e

s
t

(Y
e

t
to

b
e

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
);

G
o

o
d

(C
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

h
a

s
b
e
e

n
g
iv

e
n

to
th

e
o

rd
e

r
o
f

p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

o
u
tl
in

e
d

in

Page 248



1
2
2
6
6
5
2

9
-0

0
1

D
ra

ft
S

A
6
6

S
A

T
o

p
ic

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
a

n
d

T
a
rg

e
ts

fr
o

m
th

e
L

o
n

d
o

n
S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

C
h

e
c

k
li

s
t

P
o

lic
y

4
A

.5
i
o
f

th
e

F
u

rt
h

e
r

A
lt
e

ra
ti
o

n
s

to
th

e
L
o

n
d
o

n
P

la
n

a
n

d
th

e
m

o
s
t

s
u

s
ta

in
a
b

le
o
p

ti
o
n

c
h

o
s
e
n

(o
u

tl
in

e
b
e

lo
w

);
M

in
im

u
m

(C
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
h
a

s
b
e

e
n

g
iv

e
n

to
th

e
ra

n
k
in

g
m

e
th

o
d

o
u

tl
in

e
d

in
th

e
E

s
s
e
n

ti
a

l
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
a
n

d
th

e
m

o
s
t

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

o
p

ti
o
n

c
h
o
s
e

n
(o

u
tl
in

e
b

e
lo

w
)

6

E
n

e
rg

y

E
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
W

h
e
re

v
e

r
o

n
s
it
e

o
u

td
o

o
r

lig
h

ti
n

g
is

p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

a
s

p
a

rt
o
f

a
d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t

it
s
h
o

u
ld

b
e

e
n
e

rg
y

e
ff

ic
ie

n
t,

m
in

im
is

in
g

lig
h

t
lo

s
t
to

s
k
y
.

M
a

y
o

r’
s

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
W

h
e
re

v
e

r
o

u
td

o
o

r
lig

h
ti
n

g
o

r
o

th
e

r
e

le
c
tr

ic
a

lly
p

o
w

e
re

d
s
tr

e
e

t
fu

rn
it
u

re
is

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
o

n
s
it
e

,
it

s
h
o

u
ld

b
e

s
o

la
r

p
o

w
e

re
d

a
n
d

m
in

im
is

e
lig

h
t

lo
s
t

to
th

e
s
k
y
.

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

B
e

s
t

(Y
e

t
to

b
e

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
);

G
o

o
d

(M
in

im
u

m
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

,
p

lu
s

re
n

e
w

a
b

le
e
n

e
rg

y
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o
n

);
M

in
im

u
m

(1
0

0
%

lo
w

p
o

w
e

re
d

s
tr

e
e

t
lig

h
ti
n

g
w

it
h

lim
it
e

d
u

p
w

a
rd

lig
h

t
tr

a
n

s
m

is
s
io

n
).

E
n

e
rg

y

M
a

y
o

r’
s

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
L

ig
h

ti
n

g
,

h
e
a

ti
n

g
a

n
d

c
o

o
lin

g
c
o

n
tr

o
ls

s
h

o
u

ld
e

n
a

b
le

s
e

rv
ic

e
s

to
o

p
e

ra
te

e
ff

ic
ie

n
tl
y

u
n

d
e

r
d

if
fe

re
n

t
lo

a
d

in
g
s

a
n

d
a

llo
w

fo
r

lo
c
a

lis
e
d

c
o

n
tr

o
l.

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

B
e

s
t

(N
o

t
y
e

t
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
);

G
o

o
d

(M
in

im
u
m

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

,
p

lu
s

s
in

g
le

p
o

in
t
o
f

a
c
c
e

s
s

to
in

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
(a

n
d

a
llo

w
a

n
c
e

m
a

d
e

fo
r

fu
tu

re
e

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
o
f

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
),

a
n
d

a
llo

w
a

n
c
e

fo
r

lo
c
a

lis
e

d
c
o
n

tr
o

l)
;

M
in

im
u
m

(S
e

rv
ic

e
s

w
ill

o
p

e
ra

te
e
ff

ic
ie

n
tl
y

u
n
d
e

r
d

if
fe

re
n

t
lo

a
d

in
g
s
).

D
o

e
s

th
e

b
ri

e
f

ta
ke

a
cc

o
u

n
t

o
f

ke
y

S
P

D
s

su
ch

a
s

a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
o

f
th

e
C

o
u

n
ci

l’s
D

e
si

g
n

Q
u

a
lit

y
S

P
D

?

W
a

s
te

E
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
R

e
d

u
c
e

w
a

s
te

d
u

ri
n

g
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

a
n

d
d

e
m

o
lit

io
n

p
h

a
s
e

s
a

n
d

s
o

rt
w

a
s
te

s
tr

e
a
m

o
n

s
it
e

w
h

e
re

p
ra

c
ti
c
a

l.

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

B
e

s
t

(W
a
s
te

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t/

m
in

im
is

a
ti
o

n
s
c
h

e
m

e
im

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

th
ro

u
g
h

o
u

t
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t
w

it
h

fu
ll

w
a

s
te

s
e

g
re

g
a

ti
o

n
a

n
d

th
e

u
s
e

o
f

a
w

a
s
te

c
o
n

tr
a

c
to

r
w

it
h

d
e

d
ic

a
te

d
re

c
y
c
lin

g
,

re
c
la

m
a
ti
o

n
a

n
d

c
o
m

p
o

s
ti
n

g
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s
);

G
o
o

d
(W

a
s
te

m
a

n
a

g
e
m

e
n

t/
m

in
im

is
a
ti
o

n
s
c
h

e
m

e
im

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

th
ro

u
g
h

o
u

t
d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

w
it
h

s
o
m

e
w

a
s
te

s
tr

e
a
m

s
e

g
re

g
a

ti
o

n
);

M
in

im
u
m

(C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

fo
r

m
in

im
u

m
re

q
u

ir
e

d
).

W
a

s
te

E
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
M

in
im

is
e

,
re

u
s
e

a
n

d
re

c
y
c
le

d
e

m
o

lit
io

n
w

a
s
te

o
n

s
it
e

w
h

e
re

p
ra

c
ti
c
a

l.

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

B
e

s
t

(Y
e

t
to

b
e

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

);
G

o
o

d
(A

to
C

fu
lly

u
s
e

d
);

M
in

im
u
m

(A
to

C
w

h
e

re
p

ra
c
ti
c
a

l)
.

W
a

s
te

E
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
P

ro
v
id

e
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s
to

re
c
y
c
le

o
r

c
o

m
p

o
s
t

a
t

le
a

s
t

2
5

%
o
f

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
w

a
s
te

b
y

m
e
a

n
s

o
f

s
e

p
a

ra
te

d
d

e
d

ic
a
te

d
s
to

ra
g
e

s
p

a
c
e

.
B

y
2

0
1
0

th
is

s
h

o
u

ld
ri
s
e

to
3

5
%

.

Page 249



1
2
2
6
6
5
2

9
-0

0
1

D
ra

ft
S

A
6
7

S
A

T
o

p
ic

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
a

n
d

T
a
rg

e
ts

fr
o

m
th

e
L

o
n

d
o

n
S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

C
h

e
c

k
li

s
t

M
a

y
o

r’
s

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
P

ro
v
id

e
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s
to

re
c
y
c
le

o
r

c
o

m
p

o
s
t

a
t

le
a

s
t
3

5
%

o
f

h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
w

a
s
te

.
B

y
2

0
1
5

th
is

s
h

o
u

ld
ri
s
e

to
6

0
%

.

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

B
e

s
t

(n
o

t
y
e

t
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
);

G
o

o
d

(>
3

5
%

o
f

h
o

u
s
e
h

o
ld

w
a

s
te

w
ill

b
e

d
e

a
lt

w
it
h

b
y

o
n

s
it
e

re
c
y
c
lin

g
a

n
d

/o
r

c
o

m
m

u
n

a
l
c
o
m

p
o

s
ti
n

g
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s
(f

ro
m

w
h

ic
h

re
s
id

e
n
ts

a
n
d

o
c
c
u

p
ie

rs
c
a

n
p

u
rc

h
a

s
e

c
o
m

p
o

s
t
fo

r
th

e
ir

o
w

n
u

s
e

);
M

in
im

u
m

(>
2

5
%

o
f

h
o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
w

a
s
te

w
ill

b
e

d
e
a

lt
w

it
h

b
y

o
n

s
it
e

re
c
y
c
lin

g
a

n
d

/o
r

c
o
m

m
u

n
a

l
c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n

g
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s
(f

ro
m

w
h
ic

h
re

s
id

e
n

ts
a

n
d

o
c
c
u

p
ie

rs
c
a

n
p

u
rc

h
a

s
e

c
o
m

p
o
s
t
fo

r
th

e
ir

o
w

n
u

s
e

)

W
a

s
te

E
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
R

e
c
y
c
lin

g
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s
s
h

o
u

ld
b
e

a
s

e
a

s
y

to
a

c
c
e
s
s

a
s

w
a

s
te

fa
c
ili

ti
e

s

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

B
e

s
t

(N
o

t
y
e

t
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
);

G
o

o
d

(O
n

s
it
e

,
e

a
s
ily

a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
re

c
y
c
lin

g
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s
);

M
in

im
u

m
(C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
fo

r
m

in
im

u
m

re
q
u

ir
e

d
).

W
a

s
te

M
a

y
o

r’
s

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
U

s
e

p
re

fa
b

ri
c
a

te
d

a
n
d

s
ta

n
d
a

rd
is

e
d

m
o

d
u

la
ti
o
n

c
o
m

p
o

n
e

n
ts

to
m

in
im

is
e

w
a

s
te

.
If

th
is

is
n

o
t
fe

a
s
ib

le
u

s
e

lo
w

w
a

s
te

fa
b

ri
c
a

ti
o
n

te
c
h

n
iq

u
e

s

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

B
e

s
t

(N
o

t
y
e

t
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
);

G
o

o
d

(P
re

fa
b

ri
c
a

te
d

a
n

d
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
is

e
d

m
o
d

u
la

ti
o

n
c
o
m

p
o
n

e
n

ts
w

ill
b

e
s
p

e
c
if
ie

d
in

th
e

d
e

s
ig

n
o
f

th
e

d
e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t)

;
M

in
im

u
m

(C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

fo
r

m
in

im
u

m
re

q
u

ir
e

d
).

W
a

s
te

M
a

y
o

r’
s

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
In

c
o

rp
o

ra
ti
o
n

o
f

o
r

a
c
c
e

s
s

to
n
e

w
w

a
s
te

re
c
o

v
e

ry
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s
(a

n
a
e

ro
b

ic
d

ig
e

s
ti
o
n

,
p

y
ro

ly
s
is

/g
a

s
if
ic

a
ti
o

n
)

e
s
p

e
c
ia

lly
to

p
ro

v
id

e
a

re
n

e
w

a
b

le
s
o
u

rc
e

o
f

e
n

e
rg

y
(e

.g
.

m
e

th
a
n

e
o

r
h

y
d

ro
g
e

n
).

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

B
e

s
t

(N
o

t
y
e

t
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
);

G
o

o
d

(T
h

e
d
e

s
ig

n
w

ill
in

c
o

rp
o

ra
te

o
r

p
ro

v
id

e
a

c
c
e

s
s

to
w

a
s
te

re
c
o

v
e

ry
fa

c
ili

ti
e

s
);

M
in

im
u

m
(R

e
le

v
a

n
t

C
o
u

n
c
il

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

fo
r

m
in

im
u
m

re
q
u

ir
e

d
).

Page 250



1
2
2
6
6
5
2

9
-0

0
1

D
ra

ft
S

A
6
8

S
A

T
o

p
ic

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
a

n
d

T
a
rg

e
ts

fr
o

m
th

e
L

o
n

d
o

n
S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

C
h

e
c

k
li

s
t

B
u

il
t

a
n

d
h

is
to

ri
c

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

E
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
N

o
n

e
t
lo

s
s

o
f

p
u

b
lic

ly
a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
o

p
e
n

s
p
a

c
e
.

M
a

y
o

r’
s

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
N

e
t

g
a

in
o
f

p
u
b

lic
ly

a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
o

p
e
n

s
p

a
c
e

.

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

B
e

s
t

(N
e

t
g
a

in
in

th
e

a
m

o
u

n
t

o
f

p
u
b

lic
o

p
e
n

s
p

a
c
e

o
f

a
n

im
p

ro
v
e

d
q
u

a
lit

y
,

w
it
h

p
ro

v
is

io
n

fo
r

o
n

g
o

in
g

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t
a

n
d

m
a

in
te

n
a
n

c
e

a
n

d
th

e
in

c
lu

s
io

n
o
f

a
m

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t

p
la

n
);

G
o
o

d
(N

e
t

g
a

in
in

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
f

p
u

b
lic

o
p
e
n

s
p

a
c
e

to
m

e
e

t
th

e
L

o
n
d

o
n

P
la

n
p

u
b

lic
o

p
e
n

s
p

a
c
e

h
ie

ra
rc

h
y

(T
a
b

le
3

D
.1

),
a
n

d
re

d
re

s
s

a
n

y
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
d
e
fi
c
ie

n
c
ie

s
in

p
ro

v
is

io
n

o
r

q
u

a
lit

y
);

M
in

im
u
m

(N
o

n
e

t
lo

s
s

o
f

p
u

b
lic

o
p

e
n

s
p

a
c
e

).

B
u

il
t

a
n

d
h

is
to

ri
c

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t

E
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
C

re
a

te
a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
n

e
w

o
p

e
n

,
g
re

e
n

,
p

u
b

lic
ly

a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
s
p

a
c
e

s
w

h
e

re
th

e
s
e

c
a

n
re

d
re

s
s

id
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

a
re

a
s

o
f

d
e
fi
c
ie

n
c
y

o
f

p
u
b

lic
o

p
e

n
s
p

a
c
e

.

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

B
e

s
t

(G
o

o
d

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

,
p

lu
s

e
x
c
e

e
d

s
th

e
g
o

o
d

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

g
u

id
e
's

re
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

);
G

o
o

d
(M

in
im

u
m

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
,

p
lu

s
m

e
e
ts

th
e

O
D

P
M

's
(D

C
L

G
)

g
o

o
d

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

g
u
id

e
"D

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
p

la
y

s
p

a
c
e
:

a
g
o
o
d

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

g
u

id
e

")
;

M
in

im
u

m
(N

e
w

p
u

b
lic

o
p

e
n

s
p

a
c
e

is
c
re

a
te

d
in

a
n

a
re

a
o
f

d
e
fi
c
ie

n
c
y
).

H
o

u
s

in
g

E
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:

M
it
ig

a
te

a
n

y
n

e
g
a

ti
v
e

im
p

a
c
t

o
n

th
e

m
ic

ro
c
lim

a
te

o
f

e
x
is

ti
n

g
s
u

rr
o

u
n

d
in

g
p

u
b

lic
re

a
lm

a
n
d

b
u

ild
in

g
s

to
m

e
e

t
th

e
L

a
w

s
o

n
c
ri
te

ri
a

fo
r

w
in

d
c
o
m

fo
rt

a
n
d

s
a
fe

ty
.

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

B
e

s
t

(A
c
c
e

p
ta

b
le

-
n
o

n
u

is
a

n
c
e

);
G

o
o

d
(T

o
le

ra
b

le
le

v
e

l
o

f
n

u
is

a
n

c
e

);
M

in
im

u
m

(U
n

a
c
c
e

p
ta

b
le

-
m

it
ig

a
ti
o

n
m

e
a

s
u

re
s

in
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
).

H
o

u
s

in
g

E
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
R

e
d

u
c
e

th
e

ri
s
k

o
f

s
ta

tu
to

ry
n

u
is

a
n

c
e

to
n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

ri
n

g
p

ro
p

e
rt

ie
s

a
s

m
u

c
h

a
s

p
o

s
s
ib

le
th

ro
u

g
h

s
it
e

m
a

n
a

g
e
m

e
n

t.

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

B
e

s
t

(N
o

t
y
e

t
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
);

G
o

o
d

(K
e

y
n

u
is

a
n

c
e

s
a

re
id

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

a
n

d
a

p
la

n
is

d
ra

w
n

u
p

to
m

it
ig

a
te

th
e

s
e

);
M

in
im

u
m

(C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

fo
r

m
in

im
u
m

re
q
u

ir
e

d
).

H
o

u
s

in
g

E
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
In

e
rt

a
n

d
lo

w
e

m
is

s
io

n
fi
n

is
h

e
s
,

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
m

a
te

ri
a

ls
,

c
a

rp
e

ts
a

n
d

fu
rn

is
h

in
g
s

s
h

o
u

ld
b

e
u

s
e

d
w

h
e

re
v
e

r
p

ra
c
ti
c
a

l.

M
a

y
o

r’
s

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
D

e
s
ig

n
fo

r
in

d
o

o
r

c
o
m

fo
rt

o
f

u
s
e

rs
.

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

B
e

s
t

(Y
e

t
to

b
e

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
);

G
o

o
d

(M
o

re
th

a
n

1
0

%
d

w
e

lli
n

g
s

d
e

s
ig

n
e

d
,

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
a

n
d

fi
n

is
h

e
d

to
b
e

lo
w

a
lle

rg
e

n
a

n
d

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
lly

fr
ie

n
d

ly
w

it
h

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
p

a
c
k
s

d
e

ta
ili

n
g

th
e

m
e

a
s
u

re
s

ta
k
e

n
a

n
d

m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

/

Page 251



1
2
2
6
6
5
2

9
-0

0
1

D
ra

ft
S

A
6
9

S
A

T
o

p
ic

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
a

n
d

T
a
rg

e
ts

fr
o

m
th

e
L

o
n

d
o

n
S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

C
h

e
c

k
li

s
t

re
d

e
c
o

ra
ti
o

n
a

d
v
ic

e
);

M
in

im
u

m
:

(M
o

re
th

a
n

5
%

d
w

e
lli

n
g
s

d
e

s
ig

n
e

d
,

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
te

d
a

n
d

fi
n

is
h

e
d

to
b

e
lo

w
a

lle
rg

e
n

a
n

d
e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
lly

fr
ie

n
d

ly
w

it
h

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

p
a

c
k
s

d
e
ta

ili
n

g
th

e
m

e
a

s
u

re
s

ta
k
e
n

a
n

d
m

a
in

te
n
a

n
c
e

/
re

d
e

c
o

ra
ti
o
n

a
d

v
ic

e
).

H
o

u
s

in
g

E
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
A

ll
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t

s
h
o

u
ld

m
e
e

t
L

if
e

ti
m

e
H

o
m

e
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
a
n

d
1
0

%
s
h
o

u
ld

m
e

e
t

w
h

e
e

lc
h

a
ir

a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

ili
ty

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
(L

o
n

d
o

n
P

la
n

P
o

lic
y

3
A

.4
)

M
a

y
o

r’
s

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
A

ll
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t
s
h

o
u

ld
b
e

d
e

s
ig

n
e
d

to
m

e
e

t
w

h
e

e
lc

h
a

ir
a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

ili
ty

s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s

o
r

b
e

e
a

s
ily

a
d

a
p

ta
b

le
to

m
e

e
t
w

h
e

e
lc

h
a

ir
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
.

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

B
e

s
t

(1
0
0

%
h
o

m
e

s
to

L
if
e

ti
m

e
H

o
m

e
s

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

a
n
d

1
0

0
%

h
o
m

e
s

m
e
e

t
w

h
e

e
lc

h
a

ir
a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

ili
ty

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
);

G
o

o
d

(A
s

m
in

im
u
m

,
b

u
t

m
o

re
th

a
n

1
0

%
o
f

h
o
m

e
s

m
e
e

t
w

h
e

e
lc

h
a

ir
a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

ili
ty

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
);

M
in

im
u
m

(1
0
0

%
to

L
if
e

ti
m

e
H

o
m

e
s

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

,
1

0
%

m
e

e
t

w
h

e
e

lc
h
a

ir
a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

ili
ty

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
(P

o
lic

y
3

A
.4

o
f

th
e

L
o

n
d

o
n

P
la

n
)

H
o

u
s

in
g

E
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

ts
s
h
o

u
ld

in
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

p
ri
n

c
ip

le
s

o
f

“S
e

c
u

re
d

b
y

D
e

s
ig

n
.

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

B
e

s
t

(Y
e

t
to

b
e

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
);

G
o

o
d

(S
p

e
c
ia

lis
t

a
d

v
is

o
r

p
ro

v
id

e
d

in
p

u
t
to

d
e

s
ig

n
p
ro

c
e

s
s

a
n
d

h
a

s
p

ro
v
id

e
d

c
o

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

o
n

s
u
b

m
it
te

d
d

e
s
ig

n
);

M
in

im
u
m

(P
ri
n

c
ip

le
s

fr
o
m

n
a

m
e

d
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
u

s
e

d
to

d
e

v
e

lo
p

d
e

s
ig

n
fo

r
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t)

.

T
ra

n
s

p
o

rt

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

D
o
f

P
P

G
1
3

-
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

M
a

x
im

u
m

P
a

rk
in

g
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
s

s
e

ts
o

u
t
a

n
a

ti
o

n
a

l
m

a
x
im

u
m

p
a

rk
in

g
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
o
f

1
s
p

a
c
e

p
e

r
2

s
ta

ff
+

1
s
p

a
c
e

p
e

r
1
5

s
tu

d
e
n

ts
fo

r
H

ig
h

e
r

a
n

d
F

u
rt

h
e

r
E

d
u

c
a
ti
o

n
u

s
e

s
.

T
ra

n
s

p
o

rt

E
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
D

e
s
ig

n
in

fa
c
ili

ti
e

s
fo

r
b

ic
y
c
le

s
a

n
d

e
le

c
tr

ic
v
e

h
ic

le
s
.

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

B
e

s
t

(N
o

t
y
e

t
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
);

G
o

o
d

(M
in

im
u
m

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

,
p

lu
s

b
ic

y
c
le

fa
c
ili

ti
e

s
a

re
in

a
c
c
o

rd
a

n
c
e

w
it
h

T
ra

n
s
p
o

rt
fo

r
L

o
n

d
o
n

c
y
c
le

s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
);

M
in

im
u
m

(F
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
fo

r
b

ic
y
c
le

s
a

n
d

e
le

c
tr

ic
v
e

h
ic

le
s

a
re

p
ro

v
id

e
d

).

T
ra

n
s

p
o

rt

E
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
A

ll
p

la
n

t
a

n
d

m
a

c
h

in
e

ry
s
h

o
u

ld
b

e
a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
fo

r
e

a
s
y

m
a

in
te

n
a
n

c
e

.

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

B
e

s
t

(N
o

t
y
e

t
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
);

G
o

o
d

(S
in

g
le

p
o

in
t
a

c
c
e

s
s

to
in

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
e

x
te

rn
a

lly
a

n
d

s
p
a

c
e

a
n

d
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l
d

u
c
ti
n

g
p

ro
v
id

e
d

to
a

llo
w

fo
r

fu
tu

re
e

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
o
f

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
);

M
in

im
u

m
(C

o
u
n

c
il’

s
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
fo

r
m

in
im

u
m

re
q
u

ir
e

d
).

s

Page 252



1
2
2
6
6
5
2

9
-0

0
1

D
ra

ft
S

A
7
0

S
A

T
o

p
ic

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
a

n
d

T
a
rg

e
ts

fr
o

m
th

e
L

o
n

d
o

n
S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

C
h

e
c

k
li

s
t

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti

o
n

a
n

d
la

n
d

u
s

e

E
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
1
0

0
%

o
f

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t
o
n

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

la
n

d
,
u

n
le

s
s

v
e

ry
s
p

e
c
ia

l
c
ir
c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

s
c
a

n
b

e
d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

d
.

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

M
in

im
u
m

(1
0
0

%
).

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti

o
n

a
n

d
la

n
d

u
s

e

E
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t
d
e

n
s
it
y

s
h

o
u

ld
b

e
m

a
x
im

is
e

d
b
a

s
e

d
o

n
lo

c
a

l
c
o
n

te
x
t

(P
o

lic
y

4
B

.7
),

d
e

s
ig

n
p

ri
n

c
ip

le
s

(P
o

lic
y

4
B

.1
),

o
p

e
n

s
p

a
c
e

p
ro

v
is

io
n

(P
o

lic
y

3
D

.1
0

),
a

n
d

p
u

b
lic

tr
a
n

s
p

o
rt

c
a

p
a

c
it
y
.

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t
w

ill
b

e
a

s
s
e

s
s
e
d

o
n

th
e

M
a

tr
ix

o
f

S
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

R
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
D

e
n

s
it
y

in
th

e
L
o

n
d

o
n

P
la

n
(T

a
b

le
4

B
.1

-
s
c
h

e
m

e
s

s
h
o

u
ld

n
o
t

b
e

d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
a

t
d
e

n
s
it
ie

s
o
f

b
e

lo
w

3
0

d
w

e
lli

n
g
s

p
e

r
h

e
c
ta

re
a

n
d

s
h

o
u

ld
b
e

L
o

w
e

r
d

e
n

si
ty

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t,
p

re
d

o
m

in
a

n
tl
y

re
si

d
e

n
ti
a

l,
o

f
tw

o
to

th
re

e
st

o
re

ys
,

a
s

in
so

m
e

p
a

rt
s

o
f

in
n

e
r

L
o

n
d

o
n

a
n

d
m

u
ch

o
f

o
u

te
r

L
o

n
d

o
n

)3
.

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

M
in

im
u
m

(D
e
n

s
it
y

is
w

it
h

in
th

e
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
ra

n
g
e

o
f

th
e

S
R

Q
M

a
tr

ix
).

R
e

g
e

n
e

ra
ti

o
n

a
n

d
la

n
d

u
s

e

E
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
E

x
is

ti
n

g
b

u
ild

in
g

a
re

re
u

s
e

d
w

h
e

re
p

ra
c
ti
c
a

b
le

,
w

h
e

re
th

e
d
e

n
s
it
y

o
f

d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t

a
n

d
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
a

m
e

n
it
y

a
re

o
p

ti
m

is
e

d
a

n
d

w
h

e
re

th
e

b
u

ild
in

g
c
o

n
fo

rm
s

o
r

h
a

s
th

e
p
o

te
n

ti
a

l
to

m
e

e
t

th
e

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
fo

r
e

n
e

rg
y
,

m
a

te
ri
a

ls
,
b

io
d
iv

e
rs

it
y

a
n

d
w

a
te

r
c
o

n
s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
s
e

t
o

u
t

in
th

is
c
h

e
c
k
lis

t.

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

B
e

s
t

(1
0
0

%
);

G
o

o
d

(>
5

0
%

);
M

in
im

u
m

(C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
fo

r
m

in
im

u
m

re
q
u

ir
e

d
).

S
a

fe
ty

a
n

d
s

e
c

u
ri

ty

E
s

s
e

n
ti

a
l

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
D

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

th
a

t
a
d

v
e

rs
e

im
p
a

c
ts

o
f

n
o

is
e

h
a

v
e

b
e

e
n

m
in

im
is

e
d

,
u
s
in

g
m

e
a

s
u

re
s

a
t
s
o

u
rc

e
o

r
b

e
tw

e
e

n
s
o
u

rc
e

a
n

d
re

c
e

p
to

r
(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
c
h

o
ic

e
a

n
d

lo
c
a
ti
o

n
o
f

p
la

n
t
o

r
m

e
th

o
d

,
la

y
o

u
t,

s
c
re

e
n

in
g

a
n
d

s
o
u

n
d

a
b

s
o

rp
ti
o

n
)

in
p

re
fe

re
n
c
e

to
s
o

u
n

d
in

s
u

la
ti
o
n

a
t

th
e

re
c
e
p

to
r,

w
h

e
re

v
e

r
p

ra
c
ti
c
a

b
le

.

M
a

y
o

r’
s

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
F

o
r

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t,

a
c
h

ie
v
e

B
S

8
2

3
3

1
9
9

9
(T

a
b

le
5

)
“g

o
o

d
”

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
fo

r
e

x
te

rn
a

l
to

in
te

rn
a

l
n

o
is

e
tr

a
n

s
m

is
s
io

n
.

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

B
e

s
t

(F
u

ll
n

o
is

e
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t
c
a

rr
ie

d
o

u
t
b

y
a

c
o

u
s
ti
c

e
n

g
in

e
e

r.
U

s
e

s
s
it
e

a
n
d

/o
r

b
u
ild

in
g

la
y
o

u
ts

a
n

d
/o

r
o

th
e

r
m

e
a

s
u

re
s

to
a

c
h

ie
v
e

th
e

M
a

y
o

r'
s

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

o
n

e
x
te

rn
a

l
to

in
te

rn
a

l
n
o

is
e

tr
a
n

s
m

is
s
io

n
w

it
h

p
a

rt
ia

lly
o

p
e

n
w

in
d

o
w

s
);

G
o

o
d

(F
u

ll
n
o

is
e

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t
c
a

rr
ie

d
o

u
t

b
y

a
c
o
u

s
ti
c

e
n

g
in

e
e

r.
U

s
e

s
s
it
e

a
n

d
/o

r
b
u

ild
in

g
la

y
o

u
ts

a
n
d

/o
r

o
th

e
r

m
e
a

s
u

re
s
,
to

a
c
h
ie

v
e

th
e

M
a

y
o

r'
s

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

o
n

e
x
te

rn
a

l
to

in
te

rn
a

l
n
o

is
e

tr
a
n

s
m

is
s
io

n
w

it
h

p
a

rt
ia

lly
o

p
e
n

w
in

d
o

w
s

w
h

e
re

v
e

r
p

ra
c
ti
c
a

b
le

a
n

d
u

s
e
s
);

M
in

im
u
m

(S
e

e
re

le
v
a

n
t

lo
c
a

l
p

la
n

n
in

g
a
u

th
o

ri
ty

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

fo
r

m
in

im
u
m

re
q
u

ir
e

d
).

3
h
tt
p
:/

/w
w

w
.l
o

n
d
o

n
.g

o
v
.u

k
/m

a
y
o
r/

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
/s

d
s
/d

o
c
s
/s

p
g
-h

o
u
s
in

g
.r

tf

Page 253



1
2
2
6
6
5
2

9
-0

0
1

D
ra

ft
S

A
7
1

S
A

T
o

p
ic

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
a

n
d

T
a
rg

e
ts

fr
o

m
th

e
L

o
n

d
o

n
S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
le

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

C
h

e
c

k
li

s
t

S
a

fe
ty

a
n

d
s

e
c

u
ri

ty

M
a

y
o

r’
s

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

:
F

o
r

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a
l
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t,

im
p

ro
v
e

o
n

B
u

ild
in

g
R

e
g
u

la
ti
o

n
s

(2
0
0

3
)

P
a

rt
E

fo
r

in
te

rn
a

l
s
o

u
n
d

tr
a
n

s
m

is
s
io

n
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
b

y
5

d
B

.

T
a

rg
e

ts
:

B
e

s
t

(E
x
c
e

lle
n

t.
F

o
r

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t,
m

e
e

ts
o

r
e

x
c
e

e
d

s
M

a
y
o

r'
s

P
re

fe
rr

e
d

S
ta

n
d
a

rd
);

G
o
o

d
(V

e
ry

G
o

o
d
.

F
o

r
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t,
e

x
c
e

e
d

s
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

o
f

B
u

ild
in

g
R

e
g
u

la
ti
o

n
s

(2
0

0
3

)
P

a
rt

E
fo

r
in

te
rn

a
l
s
o

u
n

d
tr

a
n

s
m

is
s
io

n
);

M
in

im
u

m
:

(N
o

m
in

im
u
m

(o
th

e
r

th
a

n
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

w
it
h

B
u

ild
in

g
R

e
g
u

la
ti
o

n
s

(2
0

0
3

)
P

a
rt

E
fo

r
in

te
rn

a
l
s
o
u

n
d

tr
a

n
s
m

is
s
io

n
fo

r
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l
d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t)

Page 254



12266529-001 Draft SA 72

Appendix F Glossary

Annual Monitoring Report (AMR). Provides an annual evidence base upon which the
implementation of the policies in Local Development Documents can be assessed.

Baseline. A description of the present and future state of an area, in the absence of any
plan, taking into account changes resulting from natural events and from other human
activities.

Environmental Appraisal. A form of environmental assessment used in the UK (primarily
for development plans) since the early 1990s, supported by ‘Environmental Appraisal of
Development Plans: A Good Practice Guide’ (DoE, 1993); more recently superseded by
sustainability appraisal. Some aspects of environmental appraisal foreshadow the
requirements of the SEA Directive.

Environmental Assessment. Generically, a method or procedure for predicting the effects
on the environment of a proposal, either for an individual project or a higher- level “strategy”
(a policy, plan or programme), with the aim of taking account of these effects in decision-
making. The term “Environmental Impact Assessment” (EIA) is used, as in European
Directive 337/85/EEC, for assessments of projects. In the SEA Directive, an environmental
assessment means “the preparation of an environmental report, the carrying out of
consultations, the taking into account of the environmental report and the results of the
consultations in decision-making and the provision of information on the decision”, in
accordance with the Directive’s requirements.

Environmental Report Document required by the SEA Directive as part of an
environmental assessment, which identifies, describes and appraises the likely significant
effects on the environment of implementing a plan or programme. see SA Report.

Consultation Body. An authority which because of its environmental responsibilities is
likely to be concerned by the effects of implementing plans and programmes and must be
consulted under the SEA Directive. The Consultation Bodies in England are the Countryside
Agency, English Heritage, English Nature and the Environment Agency.

Local Development Framework (LDF). Sets out, in the form of a ‘portfolio’, the Local
Development Documents which collectively deliver the spatial planning strategy for the area
in question. The LDF also includes the Statement of Community Involvement, the Local
Development Scheme and the Annual Monitoring Report.

Objective. A statement of what is intended, specifying the desired direction of change in
trends.

Responsible Authority. In the SEA Regulations, means an organisation which prepares a
plan or programme subject to the SEA Directive and is responsible for the SEA.

Page 255



12266529-001 Draft SA 73

Scoping. The process of deciding the scope and level of detail of an SA, including the
sustainability effects and options which need to be considered, the assessment methods to
be used, and the structure and contents of the SA Report.

SEA Directive. European Directive 2001/42/EC on the assessment of the effects of certain
plans and programmes on the environment. SEA Regulations The Environmental
Assessment of Plans and Programmes Regulations, 2004.

Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA). Generic term used internationally to
describe environmental assessment as applied to policies, plans and programmes. In the
UK, SEA is increasingly used to refer to an environmental assessment in compliance with
the ‘SEA Directive’.

Supplementary Planning Document (SPD). A type of Local Development Document.
Supplementary Planning Documents are intended to elaborate on DPD policies and
proposals but do not have their statutory status.

Sustainability Appraisal (SA). Generic term used to describe a form of assessment which
considers the economic, social and environmental effects of an initiative. SA, as applied to
Local Development Documents, incorporates the requirements of the SEA Directive.

Page 256



 

 

 

1 

 
 
Committee 
 
Cabinet 

Date 
 
2nd July 2008 

Classification 
 
Unrestricted 

Report No. Agenda 
Item No. 
 
 

Report of 
Paul Evans – Corporate Director 
Development & Renewal 
 
Originating Officer 
Chris Holme 
Service Head (Resources) – 
Development and Renewal /  
Paul Leeson 
Finance Manager -  
Development & Renewal 

Title  
Housing Revenue Account 
Provisional Outturn Report 2007/08 
 
Wards Affected.............All............................ 

 
 
1.    Summary 
 
1.1 This report sets out the 2007/08 provisional outturn for the Housing Revenue 

Account, together with the explanations for the main variances between the 
provisional outturn and the latest approved budget.    

 
 
2.  Recommendation 
             

Cabinet is recommended to: - 
  
2.1 Note the 2007/8 provisional outturn for the Housing Revenue Account. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Local Government Act, 2000 (SECTION 97) 
List of “Background Papers” used in the Preparation of this report 
 
Brief description of “background paper” Name and telephone number of holder 

And address where open to inspection 
  
2007/08 Provisional Housing Revenue Account  
Outturn Report and Table of Variances 
 

Paul Leeson 020 7364 4995 

Agenda Item 12.1

Page 257



 2

 
 
 

3. Background information 
 
3.1 The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) is a statutory record of income and 

expenditure relating to the provision of a local authority’s housing stock. Its primary 
purpose is to ensure that expenditure on tenancies and maintaining dwellings is 
balanced by rents and service charges levied to tenants and leaseholders. The HRA 
is a statutory account ringfenced from the General Fund. 

 
3.2 The ringfence is controlled by Section 4 of the Local Government and Housing Act 

1989 which specifies which items of income and expenditure should be accounted for 
in the HRA. 

 
3.3 Set out in Appendix 1 is the provisional Housing Revenue Account Outturn 

Statement for 2007/08. Figures are provisional because the statements are subject to 
audit. The first column shows the latest budget which was approved by Cabinet when 
the first quarter’s budget monitoring was considered on the 5th September 2007. The 
next column shows the third quarter’s projections, while the third column shows the 
provisional outturn. The final column shows the variance between provisional outturn 
and the latest budget. 

 
3.4 Set out in Appendix 2 is a detailed explanation of all significant variances between 

the latest budget and the provisional outturn.  
 

4. Concurrent Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal) 
 
4.1 The Council is required to keep the financial position of the HRA under review and 

report on the matter. Accordingly, this report complies with the statutory requirements 
as it gives the provisional outturn position as at 31st March 2008. 

 
5. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer 

 
5.1 The figures in Appendix 1 are provisional and could change as a result of audit by 

our external auditors. However, the provisional outturn for 2007/08 shows an 
underspend of in excess of £4m and the HRA balances will stand at £21.5m as at 
31st March 2008. However, Members will note that the agreed budget for 2008/09 
included some utilisation of these balances. The primary purpose of these HRA 
balances is to provide financial cover for unforeseen risks in future years. 

 
5.2 The 2008/09 financial year is likely to see the creation of the Council’s ALMO, ‘Tower 

Hamlets Homes’, and some further stock transfers. The award of the contract for a 
strategic partner on the Ocean Estate will also take place over the next few months, 
whilst other Housing regeneration projects affecting the HRA will also be progressed. 

 
5.3 The planned level of reserves is a matter of further consideration when the HRA 

budget for 2009/10 and the medium term financial plan is considered later in the 
year.  
 

6. Equal Opportunity Implications 
 
6.1 There are no specific equalities implications arising from this report  

Page 258



 3

 
 
7. Anti Poverty Implications 
 
7.1 There are no specific anti poverty implications arising from this report. 
 
8. Risk Management Implications 
 
8.1 There is a risk that the issuing of any special determinations by the Department of 

Communities and Local Government (DCLG) could affect levels of HRA subsidy 
entitlement. Any impact will be addressed as part of the on-going budget monitoring 
process. 

 
9. Sustainable Action for a Greener Environment 
 
9.1 There are no specific implications arising from this report. 
 
10 Background Papers  
 
10.1 Corporate Revenue Budget Monitoring 2007/2008  
 Third Report - Housing Revenue Account (CAB 144/078) 
 
11 Appendices 
 
11.1 Appendix 1 Housing Revenue Account – Provisional Outturn Report 2007/08 
 Appendix 2 Explanation for Major Variances   ` 

Page 259



 4

REPORT TO CABINET - 2nd July 2008
REPORT NO APPENDIX 1

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT 
PROVISIONAL OUTTURN REPORT 2007/08

2007/08 2007/08
Note 2007/08 3rd Quarter Provisional

HEADING Ref Latest Budget Projections Outturn Variance
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Income
Dwelling rents 1 (59,556)            (60,258)          (60,198)      (642)         
Non-dwelling rents 2 (3,378)              (3,216)            (3,443)        (65)           
Heating and other tenant charges 3 (2,711)              (2,591)            (2,580)        131          
Leaseholder charges for services and facilities (10,488)            (8,986)            (10,497)      (9)             
HRA Subsidy Receivable (including MRA) -               

 General 4 (13,191)            (15,192)          (14,951)      (1,760)      
  MRA 5 (12,744)            (12,936)          (12,935)      (191)         

Contributions towards expenditure 6 (115)           (115)         

Total Income (102,068)          (103,179)        (104,719)    (2,536)      

Expenditure
Repairs & Maintenance 7 21,848              24,237           22,506        658          
General and Special Services 8 43,349              41,011           38,590        (4,759)      
Rents, rates, taxes and other charges 9 1,748                1,923             1,270          (478)         
Rent rebate subsidy limitation deduction transfer to GF 10 1,052                934                1,401          349          
Increased/(Decrease) provision for bad or doubtful debts 11 940                   1,440             4,151          3,211       
Capital Financing Charges -               
Interest (Item 8) 12 20,547              21,523           20,811        264          
Depreciation - HRA dwellings 13 12,744              12,936           12,935        191          
Depreciation - Other Interest 14 1,088                1,088             918             (170)         
Debt Management Costs 15 233                   224                199             (34)           

Total Expenditure 103,549            105,316         102,781      (768)         

Net costs of services 1,481                2,137             (1,938)        (3,419)      
-               

Supporting People Grant (910)                 (910)               (909)           1              
Amortised Premiums and Discounts 16 851                   668                668             (183)         
HRA investment income 17 (1,116)              (807)               (1,338)        (222)         

Net operating  expenditure 306                   1,088             (3,517)        (3,823)      
Appropriations
Revenue Contributions to Capital Expenditure 18 782                   -                     -                 (782)         
Transfer to/from  Reserves 19 (1,088)              (1,088)            (918)           170          

(Surplus)/deficit for year -                       -                     (4,435)        (4,435)      
Balances
Balances at beginning of year (17,116)            (17,116)          (17,116)      -               

Balances at end of year (17,116)            (17,116)          (21,551)      (4,435)      
 

Page 260



 5

REPORT TO CABINET – 2nd July 2008 
Report No  
 
HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT    APPENDIX  2 
PROVISIONAL OUTTURN REPORT 2007/08 
Explanation of Major Variances 
 
1 

 
 

Dwelling Rent Income 
Increased rental income due to the unanticipated delay in the transfer of housing stock to 
Registered Social Landlords 

2 
 
 

Non Dwelling Rent Income 
Increased income due to the unanticipated delay in the transfer of shops and garages to 
Registered Social Landlords 

3 Heating and Other Tenant Service Charges 
Reduction in income recovered following the renegotiation of energy contracts during the 
year. 

4 
 
 

Housing Subsidy Receivable – General 
During 2006-07, a reserve was established in anticipation of the receipt of a special subsidy 
determination from the DCLG in respect of stock transfers. Following the receipt of the 
determination and the subsequent audit of the 2006-07 HRA Subsidy claim, the additional 
subsidy entitlement was applied to the accounts in 2007-08. The effect of higher average 
stock numbers for 2007-08 also impacted on the subsidy entitlement for the year. 

5 Housing Subsidy Receivable – Major Repairs Allowance 
The Major Repairs Allowance is higher than anticipated because average stock figures were 
higher than originally estimated. 

6 Contributions Towards Expenditure 
This is the General Fund contribution for the use of Housing assets such as parks and 
amenity areas. This must be shown separately within the accounts. 

7 Repairs & Maintenance 
The expenditure on Repairs and Maintenance is lower than estimated mainly due to a 
reduction in the amount of void repairs charged to capital (See Note 18).  

8 General Management & Special Services 
Savings arising from the renegotiation of energy contracts coupled with economies resulting 
from restructured services. 

9 Rents Rates Taxes and Other Charges 
Lower than anticipated expenditure on rent and rates. 

10 Rent Rebate Subsidy Limitation transfer to General Fund 
Increased contribution arising from higher than anticipated average rents. 

11 Increase Provision for Bad & Doubtful Debts 
Latest projections anticipated changes in income from service charges due to the expected 
write off of some old debts. These have been reflected in the provision for bad debts. 

12 Capital Financing Charges – Item 8 Interest Payable 
Small increase due to the phasing of the repayment of debt and higher interest rates. 

13 Capital Financing Charges – Depreciation of Dwellings 
The cost of depreciation on dwellings equates to the Major Repairs Allowance 
(See Note 5). 

14 Capital Financing Charges – Other Assets 
Reduced recharge arising from the revaluation of assets following the transfer of shops and 
other assets to RSL’s. 

15 Capital Financing Charges – Debt Management Costs 
Slight reduction as a result of the repayment of overhanging debt by the Department of 
Communities & Local Government. 

 
 
 
 

Page 261



 6

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT    APPENDIX  2 
PROVISIONAL OUTTURN REPORT 2007/08 
Explanation of Major Variances (Continued) 
 
 
16 Amortised Premiums & Discounts 

Additional discounts arising from the repayment of overhanging debt. 
17 Investment Income – Item 8 Interest Receivable 

Mortgage interest received from Leaseholders has reduced as a result of the 
repayment of debt. This has been offset by increased interest rates and higher 
than anticipated level of balances. 

18 Revenue Contributions to Capital Expenditure 
Following the reduction in the amount of void repairs charged to capital, 
there was no longer a need to make a revenue contribution to finance the 
capital programme.  

19 Transfers from Reserves 
All depreciation costs over and above the Major Repairs Allowance must be 
financed by a contribution from the Major Repairs Reserve (See Note 14). 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 262



CORP/JR/PICOSB 2001-2002(LEB) 

COMMITTEE: 
 
Cabinet 
 

DATE: 
 
2 July 2008 

CLASSIFICATION:
 
Unrestricted 

REPORT NO.AGENDA NO. 

REPORT OF: 
 
Director of Resources 
 
ORIGINATING OFFICER(S): 
Jim Ricketts 
Capital and Investments Manager 

TITLE: 
 
Exercise of Corporate Directors’ 
Discretions 
  
Ward(s) affected: 
ALL 

 
 
1. SUMMARY 
1.1. This report sets out the exercise of Corporate Directors’ discretions under 

Financial Regulation B8 which stipulates that such actions be the subject of 
a noting report to Cabinet if they involve expenditure between £0.100 
million and £0.250 million. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
2.1 Cabinet is recommended to note the exercise of Corporate Directors’ 

discretions as set out in Appendix 1. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 1972 (AS AMENDED) SECTION 100D  
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 
 
Brief description of "background papers" 

  
Name and telephone number of 
holder and address where open to 
inspection 

   
Directorate Submissions  Jim Ricketts   Ext. 4733 

Mulberry Place, 4th Floor. 

Agenda Item 12.2

Page 263



CORP/JR/PICOSB 2001-2002(LEB) 

 
3. BACKGROUND 
3.1 Council adopted the current set of Financial Regulations on 19 May 2004. 
3.2 Regulation B8 sets out the Cabinet Reporting Thresholds for specific 

financial transactions. 
 
4. FINANCIAL REGULATION B8  
4.1 Financial Regulation B8 sets out the reporting thresholds for the following 

financial transactions: - 
Virements 
Capital Estimates 
Waiving Competition Requirements for Contracts and Orders (Subject to 
EEC Threshold)  
Capital Overspends 
Settlement Of Uninsured Claims 

4.2 The Regulation stipulates that if the transaction involves a sum in excess of 
£0.250 million then Cabinet must make the decision. 

4.3 If it involves a sum of £0.250 million or less Corporate Directors can 
authorise the transaction under the scheme of delegation. 

4.4 If however the transaction involves a sum between £0.100 million and 
£0.250 million it can be authorised by the Corporate Director under the 
scheme of delegation but must also be the subject of a noting report to the 
next available Cabinet. 

4.5 Appendix 1 sets out the exercises of Corporate Directors’ discretions, under 
the stipulations in 4.4 above, that have taken place since the previous 
Cabinet. 

 
5. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER  
 
5.1. The comments of the Director of Resources have been incorporated into 

the individual “Record of Corporate Directors’ Actions” maintained by 
Directorates, which underpin the entries in Appendix 1. 

 
6. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
6.1 The risks associated with each of the Corporate Directors’ discretions as set 

out in Appendix 1 would have been identified and evaluated as an integral 
part of the process, which lead to the decision. 

 
7. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

(LEGAL) 
7.1 The report sets out the individual exercises of Directors’ Discretions as 

required by Financial Regulations. 
7.2 The legal implications of each of the individual decisions would have been 

provided as part of the decision making process. These will be recorded on 
the “Record of Corporate Directors’ Actions” maintained by Directorates. 

 

Page 264



CORP/JR/PICOSB 2001-2002(LEB) 

 
8. ANTI-POVERTY IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 There are no specific anti poverty implications. 
 
9. EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 There are no equalities implications. 
 
10. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT  
 
10.1 There are no Sustainable Action for A Greener Environment implications. 

 
 
11. APPENDICES 
 
11.1 Appendix 1: Exercise of Corporate Directors’ Discretions under 

Financial Regulation B8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 265



CORP/JR/PICOSB 2001-2002(LEB) 

 
 
Appendix 1:  Exercise of Corporate Directors’ Discretions under Financial 

Regulation B8 
 
Corporate 
Director 

Amount Description of 
Exercise of 
Discretion 

Justification for 
Action 

Contact 

Corporate 
Director 
(Children’s 
Services) 

£200,000 
 
 

Waiving competition 
requirements for 
contracts and orders 
- To issue a Service 
Level Agreement to 
St Hilda’s 
Community Centre 
to provide family 
support staff and 
crèche services for 
Little Oaks Children 
Centre until March 
2011. 

No alternative 
spaces or Ofsted 
registered 
providers within 
the immediate 
area of the main 
site of the 
Children’s 
Centre. 

Kate Bingham 
Head of 
Children’s 
Services 
Finance 
Ext 4960 

 

Page 266


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	3 UNRESTRICTED MINUTES
	6.1 Food Law Enforcement Service Plan 2008/2009 (CAB 012/089)
	Food Law Enforcement Service Plan Appx 1

	7.1 Recommissioning LinkAge Plus (CAB 013/089)
	8.1 London Thames Gateway Development Corporation, Draft Bromley-by-Bow Land Use Design Brief (CAB 014/089)
	Appx 1 Site Plan Cover Sheet
	Site plan Bromley-by-Bow
	Appx 2 Draft Land Use & Design Brief Cover Sheet
	LTGDC_BBB_lans_use_and_design_brief
	Appx 3 Consultation Summary Cover Sheet
	Consultation Summary
	Appx 4 EQIA Cover Sheet
	BBB EQIA
	Appx 5 Sustain Appraisal Cover Sheet
	BBB Sustainability Appraisal

	12.1 Housing Revenue Account Provisional Outurn Report 2007/08 (CAB 016/089)
	12.2 Exercise of Corporate Director Discretions (CAB 017/089)

